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· SEL.ECT COMMITTEE appointed on the 7th day of December, 1900, to 
consider and report upon" The_ Mount Bischoff Railway Purchase -Bill ( No. llO.)" 

MEMBERS OF· THE COMMI'rTEE. 

MR. HALL. 
Mn. PATTERSON. M:a. AIKENHEAD. 
Mn. URQUH.A.RT. 

DAYS OF MEETING. 

MR. GUESDON. 
MR. NICHOLV'J. 
MR. MINISTER OF LANDS AND WORK!!. 

Saturday, December 8; Monday, Dec.ember 10; Tuesday, December 11; Wednesday, December 12; Thursday, 
December J.3; Friday, December 14; Saturday, December 15; Monday, December 17. 

WI'l'N ESSES EXAMINED. 

His Honour Mr. Justice Clark; Mr. John M. M'Cormick, C.E., Engineer of Existing Lines, Tasmanian Govern­
ment Railways; Mr. F. Back, General Manager, Tasmanian Government Railways; Mr. James Fincham; Mr. 
William Smith; Mr. E. D. Dobbie, Recorder, Launceston; Mr. James Stirling-, Engineer, Emu Bay Railway; 
Mr. William Jones; Honourable Charles Henry Grant, M.L.C.; Mr. Joseph Dillon, Clerk, Solicitor-General's 
Office: Mr. Walter Ormsby Wise, Parliam·entary Draughtsman; Mr. James William Norton Smith, Managing 
Agent for the V.D.L. Company; Honourable Nicholas J. Brown, Speaker of the House of Assembly; Mr.John 
Mitchell; Mr. William Bowman Arnold, Secretary of the Emu Bay Railway Company; Charles Mitchell, 
Commissioner of Taxes; Honourable William Hartnoll, M.H.A. ; Honourable Adye Douglas, President of the 
Legislative Council; Mr. Charles Cameron Nairn, Engineer, Railway Department; Mr. David Jones, District 
Surveyor, W ara.tah. 

REPORT. 

Y ouR Committee has the honour to report to your Honourable House-

That it has held several meetings, examined witnesses, and carefully considered 
all the evidence and correspondence which were obtainable. 

The proposals, in the Bill referred to your Comrnittee, are ag follow :-

(a.) To acquire, at a price named, the whole of the Emu Bay and Mount Bischoff 
Railway, and certain land contiguous thereto, rolling stock, and otl1er 
properties now under offer of sale to the Emu ~ay Railway Company, or 

(b.) As an alternative, to acquire certain lands at Burnie on which are erected and 
constructed the railway station, and part of the said railway ~·i.mni1;1g 
from the station along· the foreshore to the wharves and breakwater, and 
land contiguous thereto, as shown upon plan submitted. 

(c.) To vest in the Crown eertain land at Burnie necessary for public purposes, 



(No. '76.) . 
IV 

Your Committee was also instructed to inquire into and report upon the clispu tes 
that have arisen between the Government, the Van Diemen's Land Company, and the 
Mount Bischoff and Emu Bay Railway Company, and the complications arising there­
from. 

Your Committee has the honour now ·to report as follows-beg·inning with a 
reference to the liisto1·y and events preceding· and leading· up to the signing· of a certain· 
agreement by the then Attorney-General on the 21st May, 1889, on behalf of the 
MiniEter of Lands and Works, and the various events which followed in connection 
therewith. 

The evidence di~closes that in 1876 _a small jetty existed at Emu Bay, on which the 
Van Diemen's Land Company laid a tram-line, although it does not appear that any 
specific authority was given them for so doing. This line was completed in 1878. . In 
1880 (26th June), a letter was written by the Master Warden of the Table Cape 
Marine Board (see Appendix I), to the agent of the Van Diemen's Land Company and 
the Manager of the Mount Bischoff Tin Mining Compan_v, asking if they would join 
with the Marine Board in raising a local subsidy towards constructing an• extension of 
the· wharf, then first spoken of as a qreakwater. On the 19th October, 1880, the Van 
Diemen's Land Company's agent replied, agreeing to contribute One thousand Pounds 
on condition "that the Van lliemen's Land ~ompany wonld be allowed to extend their 
tramway to the end of the break.water, should they desire to do so. In case of such 
tramway being laid it would, of course, be worked in the same manner as that laid 
on the present jetty by the Company and the Marine Board conjointly." In 1886 
a contribution of £1500 from the Van Diemen's Land Company was made towards 
construction of breakwater. This was follmYed by further contributions of £2000 in 

. 1887, and £1500_ in 1888, a contribution being also received from the Mount Bischoff 
Company in the ye·ar 1888 of £1000. On 7th December, 1888, the agent of the 
Van Diemen's Land Uompany wrote to the Minister of Lands (the late Mr. Fillinger) 
offering to contribute "a further s11111 of £ I 000, provided that an additional amount 
of £5000 towards t.his work. be voted by Parliament during the ensuing session, and 
also provided that the right be granted to the Van Diemen's Land Company or 
their assigns, to run and maintain a railway through the land granted to the Crown 
in 1872 for wharf purposes and over the breakwater." This letter was referred to 
the Engineer-in-Chief" for his remarks," and replied to by the Hou. Premier of the day 
(Mr. P. 0. Fysh), on the 19th December, 1888 (See Appendix V.); the Premier 
pointing out that the Colony had, up to that time, expended £28,500, and stating that 
the proposal would receive full consideration. The Eng·ineer-in-Chief (Mr. J. Fincham) 
having· suggested that more information be obtained as to the alleged necessity for the 
further expenditure, minutes the letter of 7th December, advising that "the right to 
run over the break.water be granted, subject'"to the rig·ht of the Govemment to mn their 
trains on such railway at any future tirne-tlu~t the rails be laid so as not to impede the 
free use of any part of the jetty for cart traffic, and that the railway be worked under 
any such regulations as may be imposed by the Marine Board." 

In the meantime an Act had been passed (52 Viet. No. 6:3), Parliament voting· 
£5000 towards the lweakwater construction on condition that the Van Dicmen's Land 
Company contributed £1000; and the Ministl:lr of Lands (Mr. Pillinger) wrote, on the 
21st March, 1889, asking that the contribution referred to be made. It is stated, in 
reply (27th March), that the Van Diemen's Land Company "agreed to· contribute 
£ 1000 on certain conditions, and we shall be very pleased to carry out this agreement." 
f see Appendix VII]. Some little difficulty arose at the time with regard to the mode of 
payment [ see C_orrespondence, Appendices IX. and X., 15th and 17th April, 1889]. On 
the 2nd May following, a letter was written by the solicitors for the Van Diemen's Land 
Company (Messrs. Dobson, Mitchell, and All port) to the Minister of Lands ( Mr. 
Pillinger) saying that the£ 1000 was available, and could be paid over, and asking Mr. 
Villinger to "pleaia:e instruct the Cl'own Law officers to prepare the lease of the land 
required, on which the Railway could be laid down, constructed, run, &c." [see 
Appendix XI.J. ThiR letter was first referred to the Engineer-in-Chief, who advises that 
it is "only necessary _that the lease shall give the Company power to lay down rails on the 
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breakwater in terrni;; of my former recommendation (23rd January, 1889), so as not to 
obstruct the use of the same by the Government or the public, and also through land 
granted to Crown in 1872." 

A minute was then made by the Minister of Lands on the letter which appears to 
have been forwarded, with other conespondence in the matter, to the Attorney-General 
(Hon. A. I. Clark). Mr. Pillinger's minute [see Appendix XI.J asks the Attorney­
General to "have the necessary documents prepared for my signatme, guaranteeing the 
issue of the lease required by the Company, in accm·dance with Manag·er's letter of the 
7th December, 1888, and the Engineer-in-Chief's recommendation of the 23rd January, 
1889, and 3rd May, 1889." These instrnctions were endorsed on the 7th May by the 
Attorney-General, to be forwarded to the Crown Solicitor (Mr. E. D. Dobbie). 
Between that date (7th May) and the 17th May telegrams passed between the Minister 
of Lands and the Agent of the Van Diemen's Land Company,. resulting in the latter 
wiring that he agreed to contribute £ I 000, on the cond-ition that right ·be grarited to 
Company to run rail way. through land resumed by Crown in J 872 for wharf purposes, 
and over the Breakwater, provided that " Government pay proportionate cost of 
maintenance when running _their trains over the railway. In event of Marine· Board 
imposing harassing regulations, appeal to be made to the Minister of ~ands and Works" 
[see telegram 17th May, appendix XII.]. The endorsement of Mr. 'Pillinger to Van 
Diemen's Land Company's telegram is as follows : -" Conditions agreed to by Mr. 
Norton Smith approved." 

On the 20th May, the following letter passes:-" JJear Sir, Herewith draft receipt, 
on which, being signed by the Minister of Lands and Works, we can hand you the 
cheque for £ 1000. Yours, &c., • Dobson, Mitchell, & All port. To E. D. Dobbie, 
Esq., Crown Solicit.c,r" [See Appendix XIII.] 

This "receipt," which was the agreement to lease, was, contrary to the usual 
practice, drawn by the Van Diemen's Land Company's Solicitors, Messrs. Dobson, 
Mitchell, & Allport, and the draft as above recorded, was sent to the Crown Solicitor's 
Office. All that is shown is that it was there engrossed by Mr. J. Dillon, Clerk, whose 
initials endorsed upon it are the only evidence that it had then been seen by any person in 
the Crown Law Department.· This document was signed by Mr. Clark, on behalf of the 
Minister of Lands (absent), on 2]st May, 1889. Mr. Clark states that he asked the 
officer (the late Mr. Hannaford, Clerk in the Engineer-in-Chief's Office) who pre­
sented it-if it were in order and approved of by the Minister of Lands, and was 
informed that it had been. The document corning with a batch of formal papers,· he 
(Mr. Clark) ·did not regard it a-; being of great importauce, and, accordingly, signed it for 
his colleague. Mr. Clark is also of opinion that the matter had never been discussed 
in Cabinet. Following the signing of this agreement, a lease to give effect to it 
was drafted by Messrs. Dobson, Mitchell, & Allport, was submitted to and amended 
by the Crown Solicitor, and subsequently engrossed in the Crown Solicitor's Office. 
This lease gave all that had ,been agreed to be given with regard to the term 
and principal conditions in the agrC'ement of 21st May. On the 23rd September, 
1889, some difficulties arose : firstly, with regard to the time to be allowed the Van 
Diemen's !Land Company for the construction of the railway 011 the breakwater, it being 
pointed out by Mr. Dobbie, Crown Solicitor, that the Company '' might defer its con­
struction until the last year of the term," and thus prevent the Government constructing 
a railway; and secondly, as to the position of the railway track which the Company 
was to be allowed to use upon it. Although a reference is IJrncle to the term of the Lease, 
there is no legal objection raised. fSee Appendix XVII.J 

The principal difficulty at the time appears to have been the position of the line of 
railway upon the breakwater. The Minister subsequently agreed (11th October, 1889) 
"to alter the form of lease so that the Company might place its line of railway upon 
any portion of the breakwater which may be approved by the Minister." At this time 
(18th November, 1889) the matter was referred to the General Manager of Railways, it 
being considered that the Van Diemen's Land Company was endeavouring to .arrange for 
connection with the future extension of the Government railway to \Vynyard. The 

• 
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General Manager, evidently unaware that the agTeement had previously been signed, 
reports very strongly against the proposal, saying· that he was "of opinion that such 
proposal would be detrimental to the interests of the Colony, and a source of future 

. embarrassment to the Railway Department in the event of the extension of the Govern­
ment Railways to Burnie.'' [See ·letter, 21st Nov., 1889, Appendix XXII.J Further 
correspondence ensues, the Engineer-in-Chief holding that what was then being claimed 
with regard to the lease '' indicates more extensive· concessions than were ever conte1'n­
plated by the Department." Pressure was brought to bear by the Van Diemen's 
Land Company's solicitors, wlio write on the 7th March, l 890, calling attention to the 
continued delay in the issue of the Lease, and stating that the money was paid in good 
faith on the 21st May previously. On ihe 11 th March, 1890, the Crown Solicitor writes 
to the Company's solicitors (see Appendix XXXIIl), stating '' that the Minister, upon 

. the recommendation of the J~ngirieer-in-Chief, declines. to grant the Lease with the 
present plan attached, but is willing to execute the Lease with the plans marked 
'Jan .. 2nd, 1890, P.W.D,'" and further states "if your clients are willing to execute 
the Lease on those terms the matter will be at once completed." 

Further correspondence follows and other clifficnlties are raised on both sides, the 
Minister of Lands and Works seeking· to introduce a conditioi1 with regard to "certain 
turn-outs and shunts at Blackman's Point, not originally indicated by th~ Van Diemen's 
Land Company," but now stated to be necessary for the proper working of their line 011 

the Breakwater. The Minister also claimed the rig·ht to construct upon; across, or over 
any of the lines for which right-of-way was to be gTanted, such sidings or lines as· the 
Minister might require without payment of tolls or purchase. On the 21 st May, 
1890, the Company's solicitor made a counter propo.sal, and stated that if no settlement 
were come to within a week," action must_ be taken to have the ag-reement specifically 
enforced." On t~e 24th October: 189 I, Mr._ Dobbie, writing to the Company's solicitors, 
said that he had already explained to Mr. Mitchell that the agreement for a lease for 
1000 years was nltm 'vi?-es of the pow.ers of the Minister, who had no power to grant 
leases of the Crown lands beyond that conferred by the Crown Lands Act, and pointing 
out that the agreement. was not prepa,red in_ the Crown Solicitor's Office. This letter is 
the first record of any exception being taken to the term of 1000 years. 

Negotiations were then commenced fo1· a Bill to authorise the issue of a Lease in· 
accordance with the agreement of the 21st May, 1889; and on the 2nd November, 
1892, Mr. Dobbie wrote, instructed by the Attorney-General (Mr. Lewis), to the Com­
pany's solicitors, forwarding a draft of such a Bill, and stating that the Government was 
prepared to introduce it, conditionally upon a satisfact~ry arrangement being made with 
refere11ce " to the three acres of land to be granted by the. Company to the Queen." 

The Bill was originally drafted by Messrs. Blake and Rigg·all, · solicitors in Mel­
bourne for the Company, and was" settl_ed" bY, Mr. A. I. Clark (then Attorney-General) 
in Tasmania, for Messrs. Dobson, Mitchell,.& All port; and was printed either prior to or 
early in the Session of 1892, it being marked Bill No. 3. Copies and revises in the 
pm;session of the Crown Law Department have been exhibited to· your Committee, also plan 
accompanying the Bill showing position of the railway line to be leased across the Govern­
ment land and upon the breakwater. The Bill, however, was not submitted to Parliament, 
and it appears from the evidence of Messrs. J. W. Norton Smith, J. Mitchell, and E. D. 
Dobbie, that Mr. Hartnoll, Minister of Lands during the latter part of 1892, positively 
refused, at an interview with Mr. Norton Smith in November, to ratify the agreement by 
the issue of a Lease;' although the Bill prepared in the early part of that year was revised 
Ly the Parliamentary Dniftsman on the 1st November, apparently with the object of its 
being introduced to the Legislature. The grounds of Mr. Hartnoll's objecti.on to signing 
the lease are not quite clear; but there is evidence that some kind of compromise was 
sugg·estecl, by a letter .of his of 22nd November, replying· to one from Messrs. Dobson, 
Mitchell, & Allport. This letter implies that whatever proposal had been made was not 
regarded by Mr. Hartnoll as a failure to cany out the agreement. [See Appendix 
XLVIII.l 
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This fairly completes the history of the agreement, the matter having been 
practically left in abeyance ever since. 

With regard to the validity of the agreement, yonr Committee is satisfied that it is 
ultra vires, and, therefore, not legally biiiding. The Committee feels it to be its duty, 
however, to call attention to the facts- (l) that it was made for a consideration, the sum 
of£ I 000 being paid by the lessees, and accepted by the Government; (2) that although 
there were disputes about details, the draft leases and the Bills, which were either 
prepared by, or· at any rate, passed throug·h the Crown Law officers' hands,. practically 
were intended to give effect to the main concession invalidly gTanted by the so-called 
receipt ; and further, that, although the agreement was signed over 11 years ago, and 
has been the subject of correspondence and negotiation since, no formal repudiation of 
it has ever been made, nor has the Van Diemen's Land Company ever been asked to 
accept a retnrn of the money paid. 

Your Committee finds considerable difficulty 111 fixing· the responsibility for the 
entering into of the agreement of the 21st May, 1889, but are unanimously of opinion 
that that agreement, if legal, would have divested the Crown of rights which should 
never have been parted with. \Vit.h regard to the term of 1000 years, it would seem 
from the previous correspondence that, on the one hand, the Van Diemen's Land 
Company had aimed at acquiring certain perpetual rights, while on the other, the . 
importance of those rights had not been realized. But as to the term of the agreement 
which makes the right of the Government to nm its railways upon the breakwater 
subservient to that of the Company, there is nothing· in the evidence before your 
Committee to show that theintention to grant such h predominance to a private company 
ever existed in the mind of any Minister. The Committee has to express its surprise that 
a document conferring such extraordinary powers shoulrl have passed through the Crown 
Law Offices without more careful examination, bnt after the laµse of so many years it is 
not easy, with the evidence available, to discover which particular officer was to blame. 
It seems certain, however, that, prior to the agreement being signed, it had not been 
perused either by the Crown Solicitor or the Attorney-General, but. this may have 
been caused by a subordinate officer accepting an undue responsibility. 

Turning from tl!is subject to one which has been brought into association with ii, 
known as the "Three Acres" question, your Committee has perused correspondence too 
voluminous to print in its entirety, and only feels it necessary to deal briefly with the 
mattn, inasmuch as it is proposed by the Bill to vest the land referred to in the Crown. 

On the 3rd July, 1889 (see Appendix XV.), an application was made· by the 
Minister of Lands to the Van Di:emen's Land Company for a certain area of land near 
the breakwater needed for public purposes, " in consideration of an additional sum of, 
say £6000, being expended in extending the breakwater." This land, which was 
previously surveyed, was described in the letter referred to, )nd part of it is stated by 
the Minister to be " between high and low water mark," such description being borne out 
by the plans before your Committee, . 

Surrender of this land to the Crown has never been made, and, un.fortunately, the 
vote of £6000 was expended without the matter being· brought to a completion. 
Lengthy correspondence took place first of all as to the purposes for which it was to be 
used. Other difficulties cropped up in connection with some leasing rights held by 
Captain Jones, but ultimately the transfer to the Crown was refused by the Company ; 
the Agent wiring on 9th June, 1899, to the late Premier (Sir Edward Braddon) that the 
settlement which the Company would approve was the acceptance by Government of three 
acres applied for or some smaller area, and the simultaneous confirmation of Lease for 
running powers over break-water. It will thus be seen that the refusal of. the Company 
to transfer the land is based upon its claim to the execution of the Lease of railway 
1:ights over the breakwater, in accordance with the agreement previously referred to, and 
to the Government also declining. to acknowledge the Company's right to land below 
high-water mark by accepting· the area as originally asked for and surveyed. 
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Your -Committee having taken into consideration the above facts, then pi'oceeded to 
deal with the Bill, and having weighed the evidence in support of the allegations~: .con­
tained in the Preamhle of the Bill, has the honour to report that the said Preamble 
has been proved to its satisfactiori. · 

Your Committee having· ag·1~ed that the Preamble should stand. part of the Bill, 
then entered into consideration vf the se\·eral Clauses, and has the honour to recommenrl 
certain Amendments and additions. 

Your Committee has now the honour of submitting the Bill, with the Amend­
ments and additions, to the favourable consideration of your Honourable House. 

Committee Room, .fiouse of Assembly, 
17th December, 1900. 

lYIINUTES OF 

EDWARD MULCAHY, Chairman. 

PROCEEDINGS. 

SATU'RDAY, DECEMBER 8, 1900. 
'l'he Committee lllet at 12 o'clock. 
ldember.• present. -Mr. Urquhart, Mr. Guesdon, Mr. Ptttterson, and Mr. Minister of Land~ anrl \Yorb. 
The Clerk read the Order of the House appointing the Committee. • 
?lfr. Minister of Lands and Works was appointed Chairmim. 
The Chairman laid upon the Table :--

(1.) Copy of Telegram dated 8th December, 1900, from the Minister of Lands ,tnd ·works to J. Stirliug·, 
Esq., Engineer, Burnie. 

(2.) Copy of 'l'elegram da1ed 8th December, 1900, from the ~fo1ister of Lauds aud Works to Mr. Saunderso11, 
Van Dicmen's Land Company's Office, Burnie. · 

(3.) Copy of Telegram rlated 8th December, 1900, from the Mi11i,ter of Luuds and Vv'm,ks to J. "'· Norto11 
S~ili. ·- · 

The Committee deliberated. · 
Ordered, That Mr. ,T. M .. M 'Cormick, Engineer-in-Chiet; ·Tasmanian Governmeut Railways, be summoned to 

give evidence for 11 o'clock ; Mr. Frederick Back, General Manager of Hail ways for 12 o'clock ; Mr. James 
Fincham, for 12 o'clock; and Mr. ,v m. Smitl1, for 2·30 o'clock, ou 1'-londay next. 

01·de1·ed, That His Honour l\fr .. fnstice-Clark be requesterl to appear and give evidence· before the Committee 
nt 2·30 o'clock on Monday next. 

01·dered, That Mr. James Stirling, Engineer, Emn Buy Railway, aml Mr. \V. Joues, Burnie, be summoner! to 
give evidence tor 11 o'clock on Tuesday next. · 

Ordered, That l\fr. Arnold, Secretary Emu Bay Railway Company, and Mr. J. W. Norton Smith, Agent Van 
Diemen's Land Company, be suinmoned to give evidence for 11 o'clock on Wednesday next. 

Resolved, '!'hat Mr. Frank Mori on be uppointecl Shorthand Reporter to the Committee. (Mr. Gm1,,tlon.) 
At 12·50 the Committee adjourned till 11 o'clock on l\fonday next. 

MONDAY, DECEMBER 10, 1900. 
'l'he Committee niet ut 11 o'clock. 
lvlembers p1·ese11t.-Mr. :Minister of Land~ anrl "'orks (Chairman), Mr. Guesdon, Mr. Urquhnrt, Mr. P11tte1~son, 

and Mr. Nicholls. , · - . 
'L'he Minutes of the last Meeting were,read and confirmed. 

The Chairman laid upon the Table co1)ies of the following telegrams:-
(1.) From J. Stirling to the .Minister of Lands and W 01;ks, dated 8th December, 1900; and reply, dntctl 10th 

December. • 
(2.) Fro111 the Premier to the 1\-Iiuister of Lands and Works, dated 8th December. _ 
(3.) From the Minister of Lands and Works to W. Arnold, Secretary to Emu Bay Railway Company, 

Bur11ie, dated 8th De.cember. 
( 4.) From Minister of Lands and Wot·ks to Telegraph Operator, Montagu, elated 8th December. 
(ii.) From.the Minister of Lands to .f. W, Norton Smith, Manager Van Diemen's Land Company, dated 8th 

Deceniber; reply, dated 9th 1Jecember; and further telegram, of same date, from the MinisttJr of 
Lands to Mr. N 01'ton Smith. 

(6.) From Mr .. Aikenhead to the Minister of Lands, dated 10th December, with reply of same dute. 
(7.) Reply from Mr. W. Amold, from Melboume, dated 10th December; and further telegram from the 

Minister of Lands to Mr. Arnold, of same date. 
(8.) l~rom i\1r. Hall to the Minister of Lands, requesting that Mr. David Jones, District Surveyor, Waratah, 

_be called by the Committee to ·give evidence. 
Ordered, That Mr. David Jones, District Surveyor, be summoned to give evideuce; and that a telegram b11_ ~eht 

informing him of the fact, and requesting him to state when he could attencl the Committee. · 
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R(!s•>lved, That all evidence heart! before t.he Committee be taken on the witness makiug the Statutory 
Decla"ration prescribed in the Scllt'dulc to 35 Viet.No. ll. 

His Honour, Mr . .T ustice Clark, was callcd in, made the declaration prescribed, and was examined. 
Mr. Clark withdrew. 
Mr . .Tohn M'Neil M·Corrnick, Engineer-in-Chief; 'l'asnrnnian Go\·ernment Railways, was called in, made the 

declaration prescribed, and was rxamir1ed. 
Mr. M'Cormick withdrew. 
At 1 o'clock the Committee adjourned till half~past 2. 
The Committee met again at half-past 2. 
JJ1embers present-Mr. Minister of Lands and ,v orks (Chairman), Mr. Guesdon, Mr. Urquhart, Mr. Patterson, 

and Mr·. Nicholls. 
Mr. Frederick Back, General Manager 'l'asmanian Government Railways, was called in, made the declamtion 

prescribed, and was examined. · 
· Mr. Back submitted to the Committee certain departmental correspondence on ·the subjeet of the Emu Bay 

Breakwater Concessions, which was ordered to be printed. 
)fr. Back withdrew. 
Mr . .Tames Fincham, formerly Eugineer-in-Chief Tasmanian Government Railways, was called in, made the 

declaration prescribed, and was examined. 
Mr. Fincham withdrew. 
The Committee adjourned till 11 o'elock to-morrow. 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER ll, 1900. 
The Committee met at ll o'clock. 
Memberspresent.-Mr. Minister of Lands and Works (Chairma.n), Mr. Uuesdon, Mr. Hall, Mr. Aikenhead, 

Mr. _Patterson, and Mr. Nicholls. 
The Minut(1s of the last Meeting· Wf're read and confirmed. 
The Chairman laid upon the Table copie~ of the following telegrams:--

(1.) Frnm Davirl .Jones, District Surveyor, ,varatah, to the Clerk of the House, dated 10th December, 1900. 
(2.) From J. ,v. Nort .. n Smith, :VContagu, to tire Ministm· of Lands and ·works, dat11d 10th Deceu1ber, 1900. 
(3.) From R. Stuart Saunderson, to the Miuister of Lands and Worb, elated 8th Decembe1·, 1900. 
(4.) From E. D. Dobbie, Launceston, to the Mini,ter of Lands and Yforks, dated 10th Der.ember, 1900. 
(5.) From W. B. Arnold, Melbourne, to the Minister of Lands and ,;vorks, dated llth December, 1900. 
(6.) From the Minister of Land., and Works to Mr. 8aur,derson, uccour,tant, V.D.L. Co., Burnie, dated l0th 

December. 
(7.) From the Mini~ter of Lunds and ,vork8 to E. n. Dobbir>, Launceston, dated 10th Dc;cember. 

The Chairman also ]aid upon the 'Table an Estimate of Mr. M'Cormick, Engineer-in-Chief', Tasmauian Govern­
ment Railway~, of the total c,,st of relaying the Mount Bischoff Railway, which was orderer.I to be printed. 
I Appendix LIV.] 

Mr . .Tames Fincham was recalled, and further examined. 
Mr. Fincham withdrew. 
At 12·55 the Committee adjonrnerl till half-past 2. 
The Committee met ngain at ball-past 2. ,. 
Members present.-Mr. Nichol!~, 1\fr. Patterson, Mr. Hall, Mr. Aikpn\u,acl, n.nd i\fr. Guesdon. 
Mr. Patterson took the Chair, in the temporary absence of the Chairman (Mr. Minister of Lauds and Worb). 
Mr. Minister of Lanrls and Works subsequently took the Chuh·. 
Mr. Wm. Smith, formerly Secrntary of Public ,vorks Department, was called in, made the declaration pre-

scribed, and was examined. · 
Mr. Smith withdrew. 
The Committee proceeded to read through and consider correspondence relating to the Emu Bay Br·eakwater 

Concessions, and certain oftl1e documents were ordered to be printed. [Appendices I. to XLIV.J 
The Chairman Jnid upon the Table a paper showing the contributions by the Van Diemen's Land Company on 

account Emu Bay Breakwater. [Appendix XLIII.J 
Orde1·e-1, That Mr. E. D. Dobbifl be summoned to give evidence before the Committee·at 11 o'clock to-morrow. 
At 5 o'clock the Committee udjoumed till 11 o'clock to-morrow. 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 12, 1900. 

The Committee met at 11 o'clock. 
1l!femhers present.-Mr. Minister of Lands and Works (Chairman), Mr. Guesdon, Mr. Hall, Mr. NichoHs, and 

Mr. Aikenhead. 
The .MinuteR of the last Meeting were read and confirmed. 
Mr. Patterson took his seat. 
Ordered, That the Minister of Lands and Works-

(1.) Lay on the '!'able a copy of the Contract Plan and Section of the Sorell Railway. 
(.2.) Give instructions to have a diagram prepared, and laid on the Table, showirg the railway line 

from Strahan to Emu Bay. 
(a) Strahan to Zeehan;_il) black, apd.lepgth in miles. 
(h) Zeehan to Guildford Junction, in red, ditto. 

At a subsequent 
diagram. 

(c) Guildford .function to Burnie, in Llue, ditto. 
stage in the proceedings the Chairman laid upon 

(Mr. Patterson.) 
the Table the above-mentioned plan and 

:i\fr. Edward Davie! Dobbie, Hecorder, Launceston, was called in, made the declaration prescribed, and was 
examined. 

Mr. Dohbie withdrew. 
Ordere-1, That Mr. Joseph Dillon, Clerk in the Solicitor-General's Office, be summontd to give evidence at 

4 o'clock this afternoon. 
Mr . .Tames Stirling, Engineer, Emu Bay Railway, was called in, made the declaration prescribed, and was 

examined. ' · 
Mr. Stirling withdrew. 
At 1 o'clock the Committee adjourned till half-past 2. 
The Committee met again at half~past 2. 
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.11femhers p1·esent.-Mr. Minister of Lands and Works (Chairman);·_Mr. Aikenhead, Mr. Hall, Mr. Nicholls, and 
Mr. Patterson. _ 

Mr. William Jones, of Burnie, was called in, made the declaration prescribed, and was examined. 
Mr. Guesdon took his seat. 
Mr. Jones withdrew. 
The Honourable Charles Henry Grant, M.L.C., was called, made the declaration prescribed, and was examined. 
Mr. Grant withdrew. 
Mr. James Fincham was recalled, and further examined . 
.Mr. Fincham withdrew. . 
Mr. Joseph Dillon, Clerk in Solicitor-General's Office, was called in, made the declaration prescribed, and was 

-examined. 
Mr. Dillon submitted to the Committee a letter dated 20th May, 1889, from Dobson, Mitchell, & Allport to E. 

D. Dobbie, Crown Solicitor. [Appendix XIII.] 
Mr. Dillon withdrew. 
OrrleNd, That Mr. W. 0. Wise, Parliamentary Draughtsman, be summoned to give evidence before the Com­

mittee at 11 o'clock to-morrow. 
At 5 o'clock the Committee adjourned till 11 o'clock to-morrow. 

THURSDAY, DECEMBER 13, 1900. 

The Committee met at 11 o'clock. 
llfemhers 7,rese11t.-NI.r. Minister of Lands and Works (Chairman), .Mr. Aikenhead, Mr. Hall, Mr. Guesdon, 

Mr. Nicholls, and Mr. Patterson. . 
The Minutes of' last Meeting were read and confirmed. · 
Mr. Walter Ormsby Wise, Clerk to Law Department and Parliamentary Draughtsman, was called in, made 

the declaration prescl'ibed, and was examined. · 
Mr. Wise withdrew. · 
Mr. James William Norton Smith, Managing Agent Van Diemen's Land Company, was called in, made the 

d~claration prescribed, and was examined. 
Ordered, That Mr. John Mitchell be summoned to give evidence before the Committee at half-past 2 this 

afternoon. 
Ordered, That the Honourable the Speaker be requested to attend the Committee at half~past 2 this afternoon. 
Ordered, That a telegram be sent to the Honourable Wm. Hartnoll, requesting him to attend the Committee 

at 11 o'clock to-morrow. 
Mr. Norton Smith submitted to the Committee copies of the following letters:-

(1.). From the Honourable Alfred Pilliuger, Minister of Lands and Works, to Mr. J. W. Norton Smith, 
dated 3rd July, 1889. 

(2.) 11rom the Honourable.Alfred Pillinger, Minister of' Lands and Works, dated 21st January, 1890. 
(3.) From J. W. Norton Smith. dated 8th March, 1890. 
( 4.) A Summary of Statistics for 14 years, endiug 31st December, 1897, for the Emu Bay aud i\fount 

Bisehoff Railway Company, Limited. 
Mr. N"orton Smith withdrew. 

_At 12·55 the Committee adjourned till half-past 2. 
The Cop.1mittee met again at half-past 2. 
llfemberspresent-Mr. Minister of Lands and Works (Chairman), Mr. Aikenhead, Mr. Hall, Mr. Guesdon, 

l\fr. Nicholls, and Mr. Patterson. . 
'fhe Hnnonrnble Nicholas J. Brown, Speaker of the House of Assembly, was called in, made the declaration, 

and was exan,ined. • . 
Mr. Brow11 wirhdl'Cw. . 
i\l r. John Mitchell, ot thP, firm of Dol,son, Mitchell, and All port, formerly Solicitors to the Van Diemcn's Land 

Company, was calkd in, made the declaration prC'scribed, and was examined. 
~Jr. Nortou Smith gave his ronseut to Mr. Mitchell giving certain evidence to the Committee. 
Mr. Mitchell submitted to the Committee the following documrnts :- , 

(1.) Letter from Hon. A. Inglis Clark, Attorney-General to Messrs. Dol,son, Mitchell & Allport, dated 11th 
March, 1892. [ Appendix XLV. l · 

(2.) Letter from ditto to ditto, date<l 19t11 Morch, 1892. [Appendix XLVI.] 
(3.) Draft Lease of Land for Railway at Emu Bay, dated 1889. · 
(4.) Lease of Land for Railway at Emu Bay, datecl 1889 .. 

Mr. Mitchell withdrew. 
Mr. Norton Smith was recalled and further examined. 
Mr. Norton Smith withdrew. 
The Chairinan rPad a telegram from the Honourable Wm. Hartnoll stating that he was leaving for Hobart. 
Ordered, That i\fr. Charles "Mitchdl, Commissioner of Taxes, be called as a witness, to produce the valuation of 

the Emu Ilay and Bischoff J.lailway, as put in by the Emu Bay and Bischoff Railway Company. (Mr. Nicholls.) 
Mr. William Bowman Arnold, Secretary Emu Bay Railway Company, was called in, made the declaration 

prescribed, and was examined. 
Mr. Arnold withdrew. 
At 6 o'c:Jock the Committee adjourned till 11 o'clock to-morrow. 

FRIDAY, DECEMBER 14, 1900. 
The Committee met at 11 o'clock. 
Members p1·esent.-Mr. Minister of Lands and Works (Chairman), Mr. Aikenhead, Mr. Nicholls, Mr. Hall, Mr. 

Patterson, and Mr. Guesdon. · 
The Miuutes of last M~eting were read and confirmed. 
The Chairman laid on the 1 able-

( I.) An extract from the g,ant of land in the District of Emu Bay to the Van Diemen's Land Company. 
[ A ppeudix LII.] 

(2.) Copy ofletter from Hon. Wm. Hartnoll, Minister of Lands and Works, to Messrs. Dobson, Mitchell, 
& Allport. [Appendix XL VIII.] 

Mr. Charles Mitchell, Commissioner of Taxes, was.called in, made the declaration prescribed, and was examined. 
Mr. Mitchell withdrew. 
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Mr. John Mitchell was recalled and further examined. · 
Mr. Mitchell withdrew. 
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The Honourabl" William Hartnoll, M.H.A., was called in, made the declamtion prescribed, and was examined. 
Mr. Hartnoll withdrew. 
The Honourable Adye Douglas, President of the Legislative Council, who was present, on expressing his 

willingness to give evidence to the Committee, was called, made the declaration prescribed, and was examined. 
Mr. Charles Cameron Nairn, Engineer, Railway Department, was called in, made the dP.claration prP.scribed, 

and was examined. 
Mr. Nairn withdrew. . 
At 1 o'clock the Committee adjourned till halt~past 2. 
The Committee met again at half-past 2. 
-'lfembers pi·esent-Mr. Minister of Lands and ·works (Chairman), Mr. Urquhart, Mr. Nicholls, Mr. Guesdon, 

Mr. Aikenhead, Mr. Hall, and Mr. Patterson. 
Mr. Back was recalled, and further examined. 
Mr. Back withdrew. 
Mr. Nairn was recalled, and further examined. 
Mr. Nairn withdrew. 
Mr. David Jones, District Surveyor, Waratah, was called in, made the declaration prescribecl,and was examined. 
At 4 o'clock the Committee adjourned during the sitting of the House. 
The Committee met again at 4·45. 
JJfemberspresent.-Mr. Minister of Lands and Works (Chairman), Mr. Aikenhead, i\fr. I-fall, Mr. Guesdon, 

Mr. Nicholls, Mr. Patterson. 
Mr. Jones' examination was continued. 
Mr. Jones withdrew. 
His Honour Mr. Justice Clark was recalled and further examined. 
Mr. Clark withdrew. 
At 6 o'clock the Committee adjourned till 11 o'cloek to~morrow. 

SATURDAY, DECEMBER 15, 1900. 

The Committee met at 11 o'clock. 
Members present-Mr. Minister of Lands and Works (Chairman), Mr. Guesdon, iir, Nicholl,, ifr. Hall, 

Mr. Urquhart, Mr. Aikenhead, and Mr. Patterson. 
Mr. J olrn Mitchell was recalled and further examined. 
Mr. Mitchell withdrew. 
The Chairman read a letter from Mr. Justice Clark, dated 15th December. [Appendix L.J 
The Minutes of the last Meeting were read and confirmed. 
The Committee deliberated. 
Ordered, That a SLtb-commi_ttee be appointed to prepare a narration of the events leading· up to the disputes that 

have arisen between the Government, the Yan Diemen's Land Company, and the Mount Bischoff and Emu Bay 
Railway Company, and the complications therefrom: such Sub-committee to consist of .:VIr. Nicholls and Mr. 
Minister of Lands and Works. (Mr. Aikenhead.) . 

The Members of the Sub-committee withdrew. 
Mr." Aikenhea<l was appointed Chairman during the absence of the Chairman on the Sub-committee. 
The Committee proceeded to read through· the evidence, disallowing the alterations of witnesses in certain 

cases. 
At 1 ·5 the Committee adjourued till half-past 2. 
The Committee met again at half-past 2. 
MPmhers p1·ese11t-Mr. Aikenhead (Acting Chairman), Mr. Guesdon, Mr. Hall, and Mr. Urquhart. 
The Acting Chairman read a telegram from Mr. Hunt, Collector, Launceston, to the Commissioner of Taxes, 

Hobart. [Appendix LI.] 
The Committee further considered the evidence. 
At 6 o'clock the Committee adjourned till half-past 7. 
The Committee met again at half-pa~t 7. 
Memherspresent.--Mr. Aikenhead (Acting Chairman), Mr. Hall, Mr. Guesdon, and Mr. Urquhart. 
The Committee further considered the evidence. 
The Acting Chairman laid on the table the following letters:- · 

(1.) From Alfred Fillinger, Minister of Lands and Works, to J. W. Norton Smith, Burnie, elated 5th Augnst, 
1889. L Appendix XV A.] 

(2.) From Alfred Pillinger, Minister of Lands and Works, to Messrs. Dobson, Nlitchell, & All port, dated 5th 
September, 1890. · [Appendix XLIA.7 

(3.) From Alfred Pilliuger, Minister of Lands and Works, to J. W. Norton Smith, dated 24th l\farch, 1897. 
[Appendix XLVlIIA,l 

The Sub-Committee, to prepare a narration, &c., brought up its Report. 
'fhe :Minister of Lands and Works resumed the Chair. 
The Report of the Sub-Committee was read. · 
The Minutes of the day's Meeting were read and confirmed. 
At 12·10 A.M. the Committee adjourned till 9 o'clock on Monday morning. 

MONDAY, DECEMBER 17, 1900. 

The Committee met at 9 o'clock. 
- Memliers present.-Mr. Minister of Lands and Works (Chairman), Mr. Guesdon, Mr. Hall, Mr. Aikenhead, and 

Mr. Patterson. -
The Committee deliberated. 
Mr. Urquhart and Mr. Nicholls took their seats. 
Mr. Charles Mitchell, Commissioner of Taxes, appeared before the Committee, and put in the Assessment 

Return of the Emu Bay and Mount Bischoff Railway, which adopts the valuation of Mr. Norton Smith, Managing 
Agent for tha Van Diemen's Land Company. 
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The Committee considered the Preamble of the Bill. 
The Question being put-That the Preamble be found proved ; 
The Committee divided. 

AYES. 

Mr. Aikenhead. 
Mr. Hall. 
Mr. Urquhart. 

NOES. 
Mr. Guesdon. 
Mr. Nicholls. 
Mr. Patterson. 

'l'he Chairman, Mr. Minister of Lands and 
So it was resolved in thP, Affirmative. 

Works, voted with the Ayes. 

The Committee then entered upon the consideration of the various Clauses of the Bill. 
Clause 1 agreed to. 
Clause 2 postponed. 
Clauses 3 to 9 agreed to. 
Clause 10. 
Amendment made ( Mr. Urquhart), page 3, liue 18, after " Governor," by striking out "in Council." 
Clause, as amended, agreed to. 
Clauses 11 to 16 agreed to. 
Schedule agreed to. 
The Draft Report of the Committee, embodying the Report of the Sub-Committee, was brought up and 

considered. 
At halt-past I, the Committee adjourned till 2 o'r.loek. 
The Committee met again at 2 o'clock. 
Members prec<ent.-Mr. Minister of Lands ar:d Works (Chairman), Mr. Aikenhead; Mr. Nicholls, l\fr. 

Patterson, .Mr. Guesdon, Mr. Hall, and Mr. Urquhart. 
The Report was further considered, a,nd agreed to. 
The Committee further considered the Bill. 
Clause 2. 
Amenclmeut made (Mr. Nicholls), page 2, line 7, after "from," by striking out "Burnie to "\Yaratah, including 

the permanPnt way thereot: and all works, buildings, stations, am! erections erected or built on or connected with the 
said railway,'' and inserting- '' Crown Land (conti~uous to the breakwater), at Burnie to Waratah, including the 
the permirnent way therec,f, and all works, huildmgs, stations, and erections constructed or built upon, or con­
nected with the said railway, and also including any easement in connection with the said railway, exercisrd by the 
company or its predecessors in title, and all claims of the Company or its predecessors in title to any such easement, 
whether arising out of agreement or otherwise. 

Clause, as amended, agreed to. 
New Schedule (2.) brought up (Mr. Urquhart), and read the First time:-

''SCHEDULE (2). TOWN OF BURNIE. 
'' All that piece of land, so for as the same is not already the property of the Crown, commencing at the north 

angle on Bass Strait of two acres one rood twenty-nine perches as described in Schedule ( [.) and bounded by the 
north-Past boundary of that land and by a line forming a continuation of that boundary south-easterly to Emu 
Bay; thence by that Bay northerly to include Blackman's Point to Bass Strait aforesaid; and thence by tlwt Strait 
to the point of commencement." 

Read the Second time, am! agreed to, (to follow Schedule (1.). 
New Clause A brought up (Mr. Urquhart), ~nd read the First time:-
" A It shall be lawful for the Minister, if the Governor approves, to take and acquire for public purposes, the 

hLnd described in the Schedule (2.) hereto." 
Read the Second time, and made part of the Bill, (to follow Clause 16). 
New Clause B brought up (Mr. Urquhart), and read the l?irst time. 
"B The amount of compensation to be paid to the owner of such land so taken and acquired shall be referred 

to the determination of two arbitrators, one of whom shall be appointed by the Minister, and the othp1• by the said 
ownrr ; and, for the purposes of this Section, 'The Arbitration Act, 1892,' shall apply." 

Read the Ser.ond time, and made part of the Bill (to follow New Clause A). 
At halt~past 5, the Committee adjourned sine die. 
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EVIDENCE. 

MONDAY, 10TH DECEMBER, 1900. 

HIS HONOUR MR. JUSTICE CLARK, called and e:i:amined. 

Mr. Clark made the Statutory Declaration. 
, 

1. By the Chairman.--Your name is Andrew Inglis Clark, arid you are a Judge of the 
Supreme Court of Tasmania? Yes. ' 

2. Do you remember on 21st May, 1899, sending a document? Have you got that correspon­
dence that I sent to you this morning? 

3. No, it is broken up, but I can get anything you want of it ? Well I want to have the 
correspondence here, ·and I do not feel prepared to give evidence without it. 

4. I will send for it at once. lJo you remember anything about that document? I 
remember distinctly during one week that Mr. Pillinger was away from town-I do not know 
whether he was away the whole week; but at any rate he was away for some days, and I 
signed the papers for his department during his absence, as it was the common practice in my time 
for one minister to sign papers during another minister's absence. On this particular afternoon, 
Mr. Hannaford came over with a bundle of papers for me to sign. The majority of them were 
vouchers for payment of contracts. I do not exactly remember, now, what the others were ; but 
I do distinctly remember that there was an agreement with the Van Diemen's Land Company 
a.mong them, and that I asked Mr. Hannaford, before I signed it, if it was in 01·der, and if the 
Minister had approved it. · He said "Yes," and I signed it ; that I remember distinctly. For 
the rest, I must depend upon the correspondence. 

5. Do you remember who was the clerk that brought this over? Yes, Mr. Hannaford. 
6. By Mr Patterson.- He is dead now, is he not ? Yes, I believe he is. I believe he was, 

at that time, in the office of· the Engineer-in-Chief. 
7. Chief Clerk to the Engineer-in-Chief? Yes, I think so. 
8. By the Chairman.-ffave you any recollection, Mr. Clark, of the matter being 

discussed in Cabinet ? No recollection whatever, and my own private impression all, _along has 
been that it never was discussed in Cabinet? I would not be very confident in asserting that on 
my own unaided recollection, but my fate colleague, Mr. Bird, is of the same impression, and, 
having his recollection or impression to support me, I feel pretty confident that it never was 
discussed in Cabinet at all. 

9. Do you remember at any time subsequently perusing that document? No ; to the best of 
my recollection I never saw it again ; and I may add that I never saw it before I signed it, nor 
any draft of it. I never had a draft of it s1:ibmitted to me. In fact, 1 am confident that, had it 
not been for the accident of Mr. Pillinger's absence from town, I never would have seen it in any 
form or shape, either in draft. or in engrossment. 

10. You have seen drafts of the lease prepared to give effect to that document? That which 
you showed me, you mean ? 

11. Yes, and any others? I saw a document in your.:possession within the last day 
or two-a draft lease. That is the first time I ever saw it. I never saw, before, this draft 
lease which you showed me within the last few days. [ At this stage the correspondence 
was produced, and handed to witness.] Now, I wish to draw the attention of this Committee 
to the fact that on the 3t·d May, 1889, a bundle ofrpapers was sent ovet· to me, as 
Attorney-General, from the Minister of Land's Department, with this note or endorsement : 

"As it is necessary that the contribution of £1000 should be at once made by the Van Diemen's Land 
Compa11y in terms of Act 52 Viet. No. 63. the works at Emu Bay Jetty under such Act b_ei1;g now in 
progress (vide copies letters to Manage:-, Van Diemen's Land Company), will the Hon. the Attorney­
General have the necessary document prepared for my signature guaranteeing the issue of the Lease required 
by the Cornpauy in accordance with Manager's letter 7/12/88, and the Engineer-in-Chief's :renommenda­
tions of 23rd January, 1889, and 31·d May, 1889. On this understanding perhaps Messrs. Dobson 
Mitchell and All port will at once pay theamount." ' 

7th May, 1889. 
ALFRED FILLINGER, ~Minister of Lands and JVor·k.s. 

That is endorsed as having been transmitted to the Crown Solicitor. I· must direct attention to 
the fa,ct· that :J: ani there asked to ?ive instructions to have a document prerared strictli m 
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accordance with an Act of Parliament-in the terms of Act 52 Viet. No. 63, and it also says 
that it is to be prepared in accordance with the Engineer's recommendations on two different 
dates. The Committee will immediately see that I would not have the slightest ground for 
imagining that there was anything doubtful in this agreeinent-anything, that is, calling for inquiry. 
1 was asked to have something done strictly in accordance with an Act of Parliament. The 
matter had never been brought to my notice before. I had never been asked for an opinion as to 
the power of the Government to do what this agreement proposed, nor what the legal conse-
quences of giving effect to it would be. . 

12. By Mr. Patterson.-But that Act referred to: there is nothing in the agreement referring 
to it, is there? No, but I did not know that at the time; I found it out afterwards. As I say, I was 
never called on to give an opinion on the matter. I have brought clown the Opinion Book of 1887 
with me, and you will there find every opinion given by me as Attorney-General recorded there. 
Some of these opinions are on matters of great importance, and fill pag·es ; some are very brief, 
only two lines or so; but they are all recorded there. Anything that was ever put on paper by me 
as Attorney-General-and I believe that Mr. Urquhart would testify to the same practice having 
been followed in his time-everything, even if it was only three words, was always recorded in this 
book. 1£ I had been asked at any time previously to the elate I have named to give my legal 
opinion as to the power of the Government to make that agreement, or as to its legal conse­
quences and effect if it should be made, the opinion would be recorded here. I want to make 
that quite clear. Everything, from a couple of words up to two pages or more, is always 
recorded here. 

13. By ll'h. Guesdun.-That refers, then, to certain correspondence with the Manager of the 
Van Diemen's Land Company, and also with the Engineer-in-Chief? Yes. 

. 14. Have you ever seen the correspondence?- because, you know, if the Manager of the 
Company has .asked for a lease to be given in the terms of a certain Act of Parliament, the Act 
would be cited, and there should be something in the Act to refer to that. Have you seen that 
correspondence? No. I will draw attention, gentlemen, to the fact that here is a request to 
prepare a clocument in accorclance with a particular Act of Parliament, and, when I sent the 
papers to the Crown Solicitor, with instructions to prepare the document, I would rely upon him 
consulting the Act, as is the usual practice in the department. Mr. Urquhart will bear me out 
in that. 

Mr. U1·quha1·t.-Yes, that is so. 
Witness :-Well, the Act merely says :-'"It shall be lawful for the Minister of Lands and 

Works to expend a sum not exceeding Five thousand Pounds, out of moneys to be proviclecl by 
Parliament for the purpose, in and towards the erection, construction, and ·completion of the 
Emu Bay Breakwater : Provided that the Minister shall not expend any part of the said sum 
of Five thousand Pouni::ls unless and until the Van Diemen's Land Company shall lrnve 
contributed One thousand Pounds, and the Table Cape Marine Board shall have contributed 
Eight hundred Pounds respectively for and towards the erection, construction, and completion 
uf. the said breakwater." I think I am quite within my duty in pointing out to you, 
gentlemen, that this agreement which I signed makes no reference whatever to this Act 
of Parliament. It purports to be an independent agreement, under which £1000 is to be paid 
by the Van Diemen's Land Company in return ±or a specific co'ncession given to the Van 
Diemen's Land Company, allowing them to run their rails over the breakwater. On the face 
of this document, as it stands, it is an absolutely independent agreement for· a distinct £1000, 
altogether apart and separate from the £1000 given under this Act for another purpose; and, 
if the Van Diemen's Land Company wish to assert any rights under this agreement, they must 
prove that they have paid £1000 under this 3,greement. But I am informed that they have never 
paid any such £1000: that they have only paid one £1000, and that was under this Act. 

15. By the Chairman.-Who was the Crown Solicitor at that time? Mr. Dobbic,. 
16. He would be, under you, responsible for the preparation of· that document ? Yes. Of 

course, you will understand that I do not wish to repudiate the political responsibility of a 
minister-of a member of a Cabinet. When a man joins a Cabinet he takes his colleagues for 
better or worse, and so long as he remains with them he must take joint and corporate 
responsibility for everything that is done. I take up no other position than that it was by a pnre 
accident that I signed that document, in the absence of the minister concen1ed, Mr. Pillinger; 
that it was never prepared by my advice; and that I was never asked for my opinion as to its 
legal effects and consequences. 

17. W oulcl this document be prepared entirely within the Crown Law Office? The Com­
mittee will see, if they peruse the corresRondence, that Messrs. Dobson, Mitchell and All port were 
acting for the Van Diemen's Land Company ; and there are very plain indications in the 
correspondence that Messrs. Dobson, Mitchell and Allport had frequent interviews with :Mr. 
Dbbbie and Mr. Pillinger. These interviews were altogether unknown to me. 

18. By Mr. Urquhart.-That Act was passed in 1the year, what? In 1889-early in 1889. 
19. Have you looked in the parliamentary reports of the time when that was passed to see 

whether any statement was made in the House of the intention of the Minister to make that 
agreement? No. 

20. By JJfr. Guesdon.-1 would like to be satisfied upon this point-Is there any Act or 
Law in this l::md which would justify an individual Minister of the Grown in directing that snch 
an agreement as that which you signed should be prepared? I am not aware of any Act. Of 
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course, in the position I hold now, it wouid not perhaps be right £or me to give an absolutely 
emphatic opinion in thi_s matter; but I am unaware who authorised the preparation of an 
agreement in that form. 

21. Now, I think the Crown Lands Act provides that if a minister wishes to give a lease 
of sheds, or wharves, or other public works under Government control, it is necessary to obtain 
the permission of the Governor in Council, even if the l~ase is only for fourteen years-Is that 
so ? The present Crown Lands A et _was not in force at that time. You would have to look at 
the Act then in force : The Crown Lands Act-or the Waste Lands Act, as it was called­
which was then in force. 

22. At all events, you are not aware of any Act that would give this power 7 No, I am 
not. 

23. By Mr. Urquhart.-W ell, this right to put rails on a jetty is only a similar right to 
that enjoyed by carts going on a wharf-Do you consider this concession a very important one? 
It all depends on the surrounding circumstances. It is quite possible that if the thing had been 
deliberately brought before the Cabinet in May, 1889, in the surrounding circumstances then: 
existing, I might have been willing to grant it; or I might have been opposed to it. It is/all 
pure speculation to-day, a,ttempting to say what I would have done. But it is perfectly possible 
that, in the circumstances existing then, I might have thought it right and proper to have 
granted the concession. But whatever I or any other minister might have done, that would not 
have given us any authority to clo it unless we had authority in law. 

24. Is it in the interests of the public that the line should run right to, and on to the wharf? 
I suppose it is. It is not a matter of law, and it is not a matter of political policy; it is simply 
a matter of daily experience. It is not likely that the Van Diemen's Land Company would 
subscribe to the erection of that breakwater unless it expected to get some use out of it. 

25. Then the correspondence shows that prior to the agreement being signed there had been 
negotiations pending for a considerable time, does it not ? I have perused the correspondence 
during the last week, but I was quite unaware of it when -I signed the agreement. Some of the 
correspondence, of course, passed long before I was a Minister ; som(;l of it went back .as far as 
1880. Probably, almost certainly, Mr. Pillinger had made himself familiar with the previous 
co_rrespondence-and that is almost a certainty ; because it was in his department, and was not in 
mme. 

26. But you are awa~e, at any rate, that in 1888 and 1889, the development of the Wes_t 
Coast was very small, compared with what it is now ? Oh, yes. The development of the 
West Coast took a large stride during the time I was in office. I think it was in our time that 
we passed the vote for the Zeehan-Strahan Railway. 

27. By Mr. Patterson.-Practically, what you said just now agrees with the opinion of the 
Solicitor-Geueral.-You say that the Government of this country need not carry out the 
issuing of this lease ? (No answer.) 

The Chairman : I do not think we ought to ask Mr. Justice Clark for a legal opinion. 
Witness : All I have to do is to point out that that agreement does not refer to any Act of 

Parliament. It purports to be a special agreement, under which £1000 bas to be paid for a 
special purpose. The £1000 is a totally djstinct £1000, on the face of it, from that paid under 
the Act. Therefore, as a matter of fact, not of law, the consideration to be paid under that 
agreement appears to have never· been paid. I have no hesitation in admitting that at present I 
am not aware of any statutory authority at law directly authorising the issue of an agreement 
in these particular terms. . 

28. By the Chairman.-Practically, your knowledge, Mr. Clark, so far as your recollection 
goes, is confined to the signing of the document? Yes. By some freak of memory, I do 
distinctly remember Mr. Hannaford coming over that afternoon; and that is all I really do 
remember. But, of course, I am able· to trace previous steps from the correspondence, but 
not from recollection. But, I do distinctly remember Mr. Hannaford coming over that 
afternoon; and I remember asking him if the agreement was all in order, and if the Minister 
had approved of it. I_ simply brought down this book of opinions in order t4at the Committee 
might see that I gave no opinion in the matter of this agreement. . 

29. I might ask you if you can state, on your examination of that book, whether there is any 
record of an opinion beirig given upon this question at aff? I am quite sure there is not. 
I have looked through it for some months previous to the date of the agreement. [Witness 
referred to book.] On the 7th May there is an entry as to the reference of the agreement, to 
the Crown l:,olicitor, on which I have already touched. There is nothing between that and the 
date on which I signed the agreement, 21st .May. 

30. Have you a record of the signing of the lease ? No ; . I just did that, as Mr. 
Pillinger's substitute, you kriow. There is no opinion recorded, and I feel confident that the 
matter was never submitted to me for a legal opinion. It was simply sent on to me as- a thing 
that had been settled and actecl upon. I was simply carrying out a depa~tmental decision, 
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MR. M'CORMICK, called and ea:amintd. 

Mr. M'Cormick made the statutory declaration. . . 
31. By the Chairman.-Your name, Mr. M'Cormick? John McNeil M'Cormick. 
32. You are Engineer-in-Chief of Tasmania? I am Engineer of Existing Lines at pre~ 

sent. I am not yet gazetted, I think, as Engineer-in-Chief. 
33. You have prepared plans, Mr. McCormick, in connection with the resumption of 

certain land at Emu Bay, for the purpose of connecting the Government railway with the break­
water? Yes. 

34. And you liave advised the Government thereon? Yes. 
I am going to ask Mr. Patterson to conduct your examination first. 
35. By Mr. Patterson.-Have you not that tracing, Mr. M'Cormick? I have them in the 

next room. (Tracings pro.duced.) 
36. When it was finally determined to construct the line from Ulverstone to Burnie, how 

was it intended to work the traffic of the line when completed in connection with the breakwater? 
When it was finally determined to construct the line, I cannot say ; that was before I was 
Engineer of Existing Lines ; that was in the last Engineer-in-Chief's time. 

37. Are you aware how it was intended to work the line? The proposal was to join the 
line of the Emu Bay Company; the plan, as submitted, shows the survey to there. It was 
thought we would have our station-yard to assist us, and would junction with the Emu Bay 
Company. . 

38. You have been all over the line, and made an estimate of the cost-of what it is worth, 
that is ? Yes. . 

39. Have you the longitudinal sections of the line in_ Hobart? No, I have only seen 
the company's sections at its office. · .-- . 9 

40. Do you know the weight of the engines they are importing for that line ? I do not 
know the exact weight ; it is somewhere about 11 tons on the axle, I think-yes, 11 tons on the 
axle. But that is not necessary on the Bischoff line. ' 

/41. No~, in your opinion, can these engines be safely worked over the line fro.m W aratah 
to 'Emu Bay in ordinary weather?-not merely to work from Guildford Junction? You mean 
to work them over that line ; not merely to take them r;iv~r it? 

42. Yes ? No, I would not work them on the o;rdinary 40-lp. rail. The original weight, I 
might tell you, is 41¼ lbs. ;--that is the weigft given me 1by Mr'. Stirling. As an engineer, I 
should prefer to wotk with a heavier rail. 

43. 60 lbs? Well, I should make it the same as the Emu Bay Company's present rail, 
61 lbs. . 

44. Now, it has been said in the House, by Mr. Hall, the member for W aratah, that you 
estimated the co~t of re-laying that line with 61-lb. rails at £10,000: is that so? I made no such 
estimate. I have not made any such estimate at all. I did not at the time, and I have not since I 
returned. I did not consider it necessary, because I did not consider the question of a 41 or 61 
lb. rail came into the question at all, as connected with the Bischoff line. We are already 
working over 40-lb. rails, and, as far as our traffic is concerned, we should not need to re-lay 
the Bischoff line; nor,am I certain that the Emu Bay Company proposes to re-lay its line at 
present. It is likely that it will use its light rollinglstock from Burnie to Guildford 
Junction. I only wish to make myself clear upon that. As a Government line, there would be 
no necessity for re-laying the line at the present time between Burnie arid W aratah. We have 
rails quite as light on some of our existing liner,. 

45. Of course, we perfectly understand that all the present Government stock can be safely 
taken over that line to VVaratah in ordinary traffic, the permanent way being of the same class 
and type as on the· Government lines.-The point is this: that we cannot take these heavy 
engines on the Emu Bay and Zeehan Railway through; they cannot be safely worked over the 
41-lb. rails to Emu Bay-is that not so? Oh, yes, to Emu Ba,y; of course, I would not work 
over that portion of the line without a heavier rail. 

46. Very well. In that event, the moment these heavy trains, with these large and 
powe!:ful locomotives, get to Guildford Junction, the trains must be split up, and taken with 
lighter engines down to Emu Bay? That is so. 

47. Whatever the value of laying 61-lb. rails is, and importing heavy locomotives· for 
economical work, it will be largely done away with by the fact that they have to split up their 

. trains at Guildford Junction and take them down to Emu Bay with lighter engines-does that 
not follow? I would not go so far. 0£ course it would be more economical working with 61-
lb. rails, but they need not lay them at once. Of course, from Guildford Junction to W aratah 
will have to be worked as a branch line. I do not think that there can be any doubt as to that, 
and therefore it may be advisable to bring the light engines right through. By bringing half 
the load the big engines will take, and running two trains instead of one, they would deliver a 
full train at Guildford Junction for the big engines to take on. · 

48. In other words it is a handicap? It will, of course, be a matter of slightly greater 
cost, but that is a question for the Emu Bay Company, which they evidently intend to overcome 
by laying 61-lb. rails. 

49. What is the width of formation ? 13-feet cuttings and 14-feet banks; the same width 
a11 the Government lines. 
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50. Right through? Yes. There are one or two points where ther~ are projections of 
rocks, which would not permit the foot-boards to pass, but these are slight matters, easily put 
right. The most of their banks are fuller than ours. 

51. What is the ruling grade ? One in 30, or 1 in 33. There are some miles of that from 
the Burnie end. That grade continues for the first five miles, and then, I think, it· falls into the 
ordinary one. 

52. Now, i£ the Government buy this line, and if, from any circumstance, the Emu Bay 
people are not able to continue the payment of £8000~-Will you allow me to verify that 
statement about the grade? I am not certain whether it is 1 in 30 or 1 in 33. (Witness refers 
to papers.) The grade is 1 in 33 between Burnie and 5-miles-20. From that to W aratah, 1 in 

. 44 chiefly, but a portion of it 1 in 38. · 
53. What is the ruling grade on the. Main line ? The ruling grade on the Ma-in line is 

l-in-40. 
54. Now, I stated in the House la,t week, that the cost, in my opinion, of relaying this line 

to Guildford Junction with 60-lb. rails, taking out these steep grades and putting in l-in-40 
grades alf through-just as we are asking the Great Western people to do-and reinstating 
culverts and bridges of timber with more enduring structures--Very few of the bridges are of 
timber; most of them are substantially constructed of masonry and concrete. The few remain- . 
ing timber bridges are in very good order, and very strong. · · 

55. But the question is this, that to take out 5 miles of I in 33, and put in ·5 miles at 1 
in 40, would probably be a very costly undertaking, would it not?_ But why should you take it 
out when it. is only a straight run? 

56. My impression is, that to bring this line up to the Government standard, 60-lb. 
rails and proper grades and other appliances, the cost would not be less than £100,000-What 

" do you say? I have not.gone into that; but I would point out to you that the line is very well 
ballasted up. There are about 1500 yards to the mile, which is in excess of what we use; 
and as to the sleepers, the company is already renewing them in large quantities each 
year. I never went into the question of altering the grades, because I did not think it 
nec~ssary, but I have an estimate, which I have here, £or the relaying of the line and so forth, 
with . 61-lb. rails. I take that only as far as Guildford Junction, because I take it that 
on . the other branch it is not a necessity. We have eight engines and rolling-stock, and 

. must make it a branch from Guildford Junction. I have put down the cost of a mile of 
61-lbs. permanent way. I have put it down at the present. rates, in accordance with our own 
order, which has just gone home to England. Steel and iron are fluctuating at the present. 
Steel bridges have gone up as much as cent. per cent. The cost of one mile of 61-lb. steel rails, 
95·857 tons, at £9, is £863. 

57. Is that landed here, in Hobart? Yes, landed in Hobart. I think they would land 
them equally cheap at Emu Bay. Of course we may get these rails at a little less than that. 
Then there will be fishplates, at £10 ; bolts, nuts, and washers, £37 10s. ; and spikes, £22-£980 
in all. Then --. 

58. Give me the total-what is it? Well, it is £980 per mile. Against that, I deduct for 
the 40-lb. rails, representing the difference in value, £621. We can sell them readily for that, 
so that the difference in cost per mile will be £259. The whole cost of renewal I estimate at 
£374 per mile; and that, for 37½ miles, will be £14,025. 

59. Now, to go back to my question.--It is thi&: never mind whether you think it 
necessary or not to bring this line up, to the specification-,that we insist upon with the Great 
Western Railway Company-that is to have a ruling grade of 1 in 40-do you follow me? Yes; 
but, of course, to do that you would have to make extra calculations, which I have ·not made. 
I have not the drawings to do so. . • 

60. In your mind, might it be put that t4e approximate cost of taking out the 40-lb. rails 
altogether, and putting in 61-lb. rails right through to Waratah, w.ould be £100,000? I don't 
think so. I do not see how it could. I have nothing to add to my estimate but the fencing. 
It would be hard to say what it would cost to alter the grade, because there are long grades of 
1 in 33. There might not be a summit near, and so you might, have to make hard cuttings 
right through. That, of course, would be a costly undertaking; but I do not see the reason, in 
this case, for 1 in 40 grades at. all. · . 

61. But that is ·not the point. Do you see? Well, as regards the ruling grade, that, of 
course, is not the same. 

. 62. Now, I think you left out of this estimate several items. In the first instance, you take 
these 40-lb. rails as being worth £9 ? Yes, they are very easily saleable. 

63. But surely you have to take off from that the cost of removing the rails and so forth; 
and then to get them to port? Yes·; but we do that with men already in our employ : men who 
ar.e employed on permanent work in :uiy case. We don't have to pay special men to do the work, 
so that the cost of that labour is comparatively little. · 

64. But, if you are going to take up 40 miles of permanent way; you would surely have 
to put on special men? I have no objection to increasing the estimate in that direction. 

65. But you would have to add to this estimate ;. phis is fallacious? I do not think it is 
fallacious. . . 

66. Understand me.-The estimate is true so far as it goes ; but you must surely add the 
cost of Jabour.-Th'ere is no allowance here at all for cost of labour.-1 want yciu to understand1 

, 
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that when I used the term "fallacious," I did not reflect upon the estimate.-! simply said the 
estimate did not go far enough; something is left out.-As a matter of fact, Mr. M'Cormick, 
you would not like to say what the cost would be of reducing these grades to 1 in 40, without 
a proper survey to go upon ? No ; certainly not. 

67. vVell,· now, I come to another question.-In your opinion, is it absolutely necessary to 
purchase this ,V aratah line in order to keep the traffic going into Burnie from Ulverston(} when 
that line is completed? That is, i1-respecti ve of the others. 

68. Yes; irrespective of everythiug? Well, I don't think so. There are many alterna­
tives. It is a question of policy iil· this case. I want you to tie yourself to the traffic coming 
into Ulverstone from Burnie when this line is completed? Simply from Ulverstone to Burnie 
do you mean ?-to the existing station? · 

69. Yes? vVell, of course, it has nothing to do with that. 
70. Is there no other altema.ti ve to deal with except this purchase -to deal, I mean, 

simply with tlrn purely local clifiicnlty-Is the purchase absolutely necessary? It might be 
worked by .the Emu Bay Company. I say there are alternatives ; I said so in a report which 
the Minister has. 

71. Do you think it possible to meet the difficulty by the suggestion made in the House of 
Assembly last week, na.mely, to acq~ire running powers over the line.from the station to the break­
water, and lay clown additional lines? The difficulty that I see there iu that we have not any 
ground for additional lines,-that the whole width from the terrace to the foreshore, and from 
the station to the breakwater has been transferred to the Van Diemen's Land Company. I do 
not think that you can possibly get power to run over sidings if they are required by the other 
company. . 

72. But if it is not required by the other company? Then it is a matter of arrangement for 
the other company. .I do not think that you can get any powers hy law. 

73. Are you sure? No, I am not sure, I am only speaking from my own impression. 
74. I thought yon might ki10w from your own knowledge-do you not? No, I do not 

know of my o,vn knowledge. I am not a lawyer. I have no doubt that the legal gentlemen on 
the Committee will advise you better than I can on that point. I do not think you have a right to 
cripple the company by getting a right to run over their sidings. In such a case dual working 
and dual control is a matter of difficulty, almost an impossibility. 

7 5. Of course you cannot have dual control : that is impossible ? Yes. 
76. But the point I want to get is this-You will probably have two small trains a clay 

going into Burnie from Ulverstone? The difficulty is not on the Ulverstone-Buruie Line; the 
only question is the Blythe iron traffic, and that'traffic was not anticipated when we let this line. 

77. I want to ask you if this is not a reasonable alternative : provide for our own traffic, 
not for the small traffic that comes in for the Waratah people to deal with.-If we cannot get 
this breakwater alone, let them work it; is not that a reasonable suggestion? That or the 
original proposal when the contract was let. It does not touch the difficulty now. The difficulty 
now is as to the Blythe iron traffic. 

_78. Well, you can deal with that, can you not? No. I would sooner you went into that 
with the Traffic Manager. The difficulty of dealing with the handling of such a traffic at a 
clistance of l¼ miles from the breakwater must be very great. In my estimate of W aratah 
line I have not included-fencing. The value of fencing is about £100 a mile-£50 a mile on each 

.side. That is in the way in which we fence Government lines. That would cover everything. 
79. Of course you will require better buildings and a better station yard if it is a Govern­

ment line? Oh, whoever does it will have to spend a considerable sum in station buildings 
and such matters. 

80. By .Mr. Guesdon.-If this scheme is carried out, and Government decides to complete 
this purchase, do you consider that, as regards that portion of the line between the Ulverstone 
and Burnie Junction and the brettkwater, there would be any immediete necessity for any con­
siderable outlay? Certainly. There would have to be additional sidings laid clown, and there 
would have to be additional expenditure on the stations. Sidings, of course, must be laid down 
to meet the extra traffic. 

8 l. Can you give us, roughly, an idea of what you consider that additional expense would 
amount to? Well, very roughly, station buildings, &c., would cost, say, £10,000, and other 
expenses would be about £20,000. 

82. That is another contingency, beyond the purchase-money? Yes ; that is a 
contingency. 

83. By Mr. Urquhart.-Someone has to spend that, whether the line 1s purchased or not? 
Oh, yes, somebody has to spend it. 

84. By .Mr. G 1iesdon.-If the alternative is suggested of handing over your traffic to the 
Emu Bay Compa,ny to deal with it from their terminus to· the breakwater, what then? Then 
they would have to spen~l it. _ 

85. By the Chairrnan.-ln which case, they woqld have to pay for it, either by rent or 
otherwise? Yes, but the bulk of it would. come on us, I presume, to meet the Blythe traffic. 

86. By Mr. Guesdon.-You clo not consider, Mr. M'Cormick, that there would be any 
immediate necessity for interfering with the existing permanent-way between Guildford Junction 
and Burnie? I do not know. I cannot say whether they propose doing it immediately or not, 
but I do not think they do. You see, they have the_ eight engines and rolling-stock, 

. ~ 
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and I think that, in all pTobability, they will not do that at once. { lf course that is the workable 
WfLY of doing it, but there is no immediate necessity. 

87. Supposing we do extend the rnilway system of this Colony on to Plowerdale, clo you 
think that, speaking from an engineering point of view, it wonicl be desirnble to have that 
breakwater ?-For instance, if you brought the traffic on to the Bmn Bay Breakwater how would 
you get on to Plowerclale ? Of course, in any case that would not clo away with the difficulty as to 
sidings, and so on;· but, in any case, we would have to acquire either rnnning powers or land. 
Of course, we had no idea that the land was going to be trnllsferred to the Emu Bay Company. 

88. But, as far as that difficulty is concerned, there would be no difficulty in getting 
running powers over their lines ? (No answer.) 

89. It has been used as au argument in the House that it prevents our progress to the 
westward-what do you think? No, I do not think so. · 

90. This does not affect our powers? No, not for the through line. Of course, the diffi­
culty now is that, having been taken up by the Emu Bay Company for their own purpose, there 
would be a difficmlty in purchasing, I presume. 

91. B;,; Mr. Nicholls.-What would be the effect on the Emn Bay Company's traffic, or on 
the traffic of whichever company had the_ line from Burnie to vV aratah, if the Government 
absolutely resumed control of the breakwater: that is to say, if they repudiated' this agreement? 
Well, if the Government resumed control of the breakwater, I presume it wou1d mean that they 
would also have access to the breakwater. . 

92. I am not considering it from the Government's point of view, but from the point of 
view of the people who now have it.-Supposing they lost control of the breakwater? Well, if 
I were in their position, and yon took the breakwater from me, I would simply build a new wharf, . 
and make your breakwater useless. 

93. How? A new wharf wou1d give them more room,· and they could make your break­
water quite useless by building close up to it. 

94. You know there wou1d be no difficulty about the resumption from a legal point of view. 
-What I want to know is whether the resumption of their rights on the breakwaterwould affect 
their working? W.ell, I say there is nothing to prevent their building a new wharf. 

95. Except that probably the Government would not permit them to do it,-is not that so? 
Well, it is their land and foreshore. [vVitness made defatiled reference to plans.] 

96. By Mr. Patterson.-Then the statement is not correct that we are blocked here if 
running powers can be got over a single line? So long as we get running .powers over one of 
their lines that we may extend from, we are not blocked. There is no power at a11 to stop us. 

97. By JJ,f?,, Nicholls.-lf the company could build a jetty 'which would suit them as well 
as the breakwater, I suppose the Government could do the same, if they had possession of the 
foreshore.- Is a jetty as well situated for shipping as the breakwater? Well, if you start building 
wharves inside the breakwater, you will have to provide additional breakwater protection. The 
more you get landwards the more you are exposed to the effects of. the sea. 

98. The breakwater protects the parts inside it far more than it would protect the wharves 
alongside it? Yes. 

99. Then the breakwater is <;>f much more use to the company than a wharf would be? 
Yes. 

100. By Mr. Urquhart.-To the company and the public? Yes. 
101. 1£ the Government did withdraw this land, or refused to issue this lease, or cancelled 

the whole arrangement, the Emu B:iy Company would be in no worse position as regards 
produce than the Main Line Railway is in Hobart,-the public would be the sufferers? Yes, the 
public. would be the sufferers. , · · 

102. By Mr. Nicholls.-You do riot mean to say, do you, Mr. M'Cormick, that the use of 
the breakwater is valueless for the company? Oh, dear, uo !-it is of great value. 

103. The use of it, I mean? The use of it is of great value. 
104. I think its value has been estimated at £40,000 r I have not made an estimate. 
105. I want to make this clear, because_ in answer to Mr. Urquhart you said that if the 

Government re_sumed the breakwater the loss would be to the public and not to the company-is 
that what you said? That is because we were talki1ig about the making of another wharf. Of 
course, if you clo resume the breakwater it will be a great loss to the company. I did not take 
the ·question in that sense. 

106. By Mr. Urquhart.-! meant that the right to run over the. breakwater was of great 
value to the public ? Yes ; that is what I understood. 

107. By the Chairman. - vVoulcl the cancellation of that agreement, or the declaTation of its 
invalidity, relieve the Government at the present time with regard_ to its difficulty of getting 
-to the breakwater ? Well, I presume you could get running power over one road to the break­
water, but there remains all the difficulty of working the traffic ; you could not get a siding. 

108. Jn your opinion as an engineer, we would not have the necessary space at Burnie for 
dealing with a large amount of traffic without acquiring the land between Burnie breakwater and 
Burnie station? .I think that would be the most advantageous way of dealing with it. 

109. You are strongly of opinion that there should be, and could be, only one control, as 
between Burnie station and Burnie breakwater? Certainly. 

110. And, therefore, it is either a matter of the Government having that control, or handing 
~ver all its frei~ht to a :private railwa;r companr to deal with? I take that to be the alternative1 
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. ll 1. Although we could get running powers over the through line to W ynyard, would it, in 
your opinion, be preferable for the Governmen~ to own the line and not have to take running 
powers? l cn,n only say that it would be preferable for the Government to own the line in 
conn~ction with the working_ of the breakwater. I should say it does not matter a rap as regards 
W ynyarcl by itself ; still, taken into account with the other work, it would be desirable for the 
Government to acquire ft. It amounts to this-that if you do not have dual control you will 
acquire all the sidings, and that will include the_ ,v ynyat·d line. 

ll 2. Now taking the running powers which have been suggested as an alternative, would 
they, in yom opinion, enable the Government to take their own traffic to the breakwater? Not 
to advantage; the rlistance would be so great for handling the traffic. You would have to handle 
the traffic where we have stopped now, and all mixed traffic would have to be sorted again at the 
wl_iarf. 

113. You would have to do yom assembling and other work at the prese1it station-yard ? 
At the present station-:yard, which is l¼ miles away. 

114. As a matter of convenience for the local residents, would not the proposal of the 
Government be much better ? I should think so. · 

115. As an engineer, would you care to express an opinion as to the necessity of extending· 
the Burnie breakwa-ter? I would not care to express an opinion. I have not gone into the 
matter; but it appears to me that it will become necessary. 

116. And that it will have to be done by the Government? I presume so. 
117. Is it not desirable, therefore, that we should have full access to it and control over it? 

I thi11k it is most desirable. 
118. With regard to taking up the present 41-lb. rails, and relaying the permanent way with 

61-lb. rails, you th"ink that is a matter entirely for the company? I think so. . 
119. You know, as a matter of fact, that the Government is not pledged any more than the 

Emu Bay Company is pledged to rday with 61-lb. rails? Yes. 
120. And that it is simply a matter of convenience with the Emn Bay Company whether 

they relay the line to suit their heavy engines, or whether they woi·k it as you suggested a while 
ago? Or any other way ; that is a matter for their jndgment. 

121. There is no absolute necessity for relaying with heavier rails at the present time? No. 
l 22. You know that there is a contract between the Emu Bay Company and the Union 

Company for the transport of 25,000 tons of coke and coal during next year? I have heard 
that incidentally. I do not know any particulars of it. 

123. Do you think that, provided they have snffic ient rolling-stock, they will have any 
difficulty in handling that quantity of material on that line ? Ou the Emu Bay Company's line? 

124. Yes? I should think not. 
125. I am presuming they have sufficient rolling-stock. I will only ask you one more 

question, Mr. M'Cormick. Do you think it is desirable that the Government should l~ave full 
and complete control of a port· like .Burnie for public purposes? I think it is very clesira ble. 

126. And you think that the acquirement of this foreshore and railway, as proposed, would 
give the Government that control? I see nothing to prevent, it. I think it should clo so. 

AFTERNOON SITTING. 

Committee resumed at 2·30 P.M. 

MR. FREDERICK BACK, General iVlanager of Railways, called and e:i:amined. 

127. By the Chairrnan.-Y our name is Frederick Back, and you are General Manager of 
Railways for Tasmania ? Yes, I am. 

128. Have you any recollection. Mr. Back, of reporting upon a certain document-an agree-
ment-signed by Mr. Justice Clark? No. . 

129. Signed by Mr. A. I. Clark? No. 
130. Do not you remember a document being sent to you-referred to you-and your advis­

ing the Government upon it? I should say, to expedite matters, that a document was sent to 
me, and I took it to be a draft of a proposed agreement. The copy I had was no~ signed. 
Perhaps it will expedite matters if I read the correspondence that took place at the time. If 
you desire, I can do that; it will not take long. I arrived in this Colony in 1?86, bu~ I do not 
think I visited Burnie-I may be wrong-until I was asked to report uponth1s que~t10n. My 
letter, dated 21st November, 1889, was addressed to the Minister of Lands (AJ?pend1x XXI~. )­
From the tenor of this letter to the Minister, I consider that the document wlnch :;i,ccompamed 

· this letter was simply a copy of agrnement, or part of agreement, or proposed ag~eeme~t. 
I was justified, I think, in thinking this was simply a draft agreementJ because the Engmeer-m­
Chief here says, "I think it should be forwarded to him (that is myself), with any remarks he 
may chose to make, before the Minister signs it." I therefore think I was'justified in consider­
ing this a draft agreement. 

131. Before you go further: would that be a copy of the agreement-for you have seen it 
since-or a draft of the lease? The agreement; I am sure of that, and all my correspondence 
confirms that. I am not unaccustomed to deal with these documents, and should not have 
confused these· clocumf;'nts'. Following up the instrqctions 0£ the Ministei; 0£ the day, :I reporteq 
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as £ollows :--(Appendix XXII.). [My report is dated 21st November, 1889, and is addressed to 
the Minister of Lands and vV orks. J 

132. By lYfr. Nicholls,.:__ What is the date of that? 21st November, 1889. [This was followed 
by a memorandum_frmµ the Engineer-in-Chief (Appendix XXV.)]. The object in sending that 
memorandum to me was, because it-was proposed to lease to the Van Diemen's Land Company 
some strips of lancl which were the . entrances to the wharf-one from the W ynyard si<le, 
and the other from the Emu Bay side-and these are the portions marked red, which he 
says I have not replied to. It was then sent on)o me (Appendix XXV.). The Engineer-in-Chief, 
on the 10th of December (three days after) sent in the memorandum,•with sketch showing two 
portions of land which formed the highway to the breakwater, and_ wrote to the Minister under 
date 10th December (Appendix XXVI,). [This is followed by a memorandum from the Minister, 
Mr. Fillinger, which reads as follows-it is dated, also, 10th December, 1889 (Appendix XXV.)]. 
To which I replied on the 24th December (Appendix XXV.). I i:nay say that I had a long 
interview with Mr. Pillinger, and, I think, made clear to him what detriment the Government 
lines would suffer in the event of their being continued from another direction to Burnie. 

133. By Afr. Guesdon.--Then, even on the 24th December, the Minister had not informed 
you that the lease had been signed ? No, it was not till years after that I knew it. 

Witness, continuing.-Mr. Fillinger ceased to be Minister of Lands and Works, as you know, 
and Mr. Hartnoll succeeded him in 1892-I think in August, 1892-and I thought that this 
16th matter was of sufficient importance to bring it under his notice, and, therefore, wrote to him on 
November, 1892. (Appendix XLIII.). I am not quite sure what Mr. Hartnoll did, but, so far 
as my memory serves me, he was very much averse to 'completing. the lease. I think he wrote to 
the company, but I am not. sure. The matter then caine up again in 1897. It was proposed to 
build a Custom House in Burnie, and also that this Custom House should be placed on that 
gullet of land which is the key to the breakwater; and Sir -Philip Jfysh, I think, <;lirected that 
this should be referred to me, and I reported on the matter, and reported against it, and then 
took occasion to refer to previous correspondence. That is all I know about the matter. That 
completes my personal dealings with the matter. 

l::i4. And you did not everi then· know-in 1897-these leases were grant~d ? I dicl not. I 
knew in C11ptain Miles' time. · 

135. By the Minister of Lands.-That is all you know of the transaction? That is all I 
know, personally, of the matter. . 

136. Assuming that the agreement which you have read is valid and binding on the Govern­
ment, .would it be possible for the Government and the Van Diemen's Laucl· Company or any 
other company to join lines on the breakwater? Quite impossible. I should like to explain that 
the breakwater could only be approached by ships from one side. It is necessary that trucks 
should be run· along to the vessels so that they should be plumb with the yardarm or crane, so that 
they might take out or put in cargo, and the idea of shipping from a line on the other side of the 
breakwater is ludicrous, and moreover, with any large business, the wharfage is absolutely 
inadequate. I say this most unhesitatingly, after years of experience in shipping. 

137. Is the breakwater likely to be used for much, excepting as a railway pier? I should not 
think so. Once you begin to work it with considerable railway traffic you could not use it £or 
any other purpose, and even then, I should suggest that a timber wharf be placed alongside. It 
would be much preferable to bring a vessel up to timber, instead of bringing it up alongsidE: the 
concrete, as at present. 

138. You know there is a pier in construction? Yes. 
139. Do you think when that pier is constructed it is at all likely that any other traffic would 

take place on the breakwater than railway traffic? I do not think so. 
l40. If there was a large trade on the breakwater-much to be handled by the public­

would it be practicable to work it with drays and with the railway service as well? It would be 
impracticable, and the expense would prevent traffic. 

141. I mean, as a matter of public safety, would it be possible to use ·both? It would be 
impracticable. . · 

142. It would be practically a railway pier? Undoubtedly. 
143. What distance is your present railway station at Burnie from the breakwater? Rather 

over a mile. 
144. One mile fifteen chains, is it not-I want it put on re~ord? _Yes. 

_ 145. All that you bring to that station, or nearly all, will have to be taken to the breakwater. 
I presume the majority of it will go there-all for export, at any rate? All for export, 
certainly. . · 

146. Will you state, generally, to the Committee~ your ideas about the necessity of the 
Government acquiring the land to enable it to make yroper connection with its present 
station and the breakwater? I think it is very desirable that, instead of handing our traffic to a 
foreign company, we should have control of it ourselves. The present appliances are absolutely 
insufficient for any large amount of traffic. They are barely sufficient for present traffic ; and a 
large expenditure will be required in the immediate future, if the traffic at present suggested is 
to be dealt with.. I consider that from a half to one million of money will have to be expended 
on that harbour i£ the traffic we have heard of comes about. At present, it would be simply 
impossible to handle the iron the Blythe Company thinks it is going to forward ; nor could we 
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handle the fuel the Mount Lyell Company proposes to handle there. There 1s not sufficient 
siding room to handle the traffic ; nor will there be room enough" when the present ~vharf is 
built. The breakwater is inadequate for lai:ge ships, and, altogether, if the business increases, 
the harbour will have to be improved; and the Government will riever continue building houses 
on other people's pl'Operty, as they did when they built the breakwater at Bnrnie. 

147. Is there any possibility of any other port serving round Burnie-? No. Devonport is 
too far away. The expenses there would be too great._ There the expense of haulage would be 
large, and then there would ·be more mileage-fotir times the mileage. 

148. That is from the Blythe Line? . Yes. · 
149. By llfr. Gucsdon.-That is going back to Devonport? Yes; four times the mileage. 
150. By the Chairman.-You have carefully inspected the strip llf land which is under offer 

to the Emu Bay Company, petween its i·ailway station nnd the breakwiiter? I have inspected 
the land, yes. I know it ·well, but am not .quite clear as to its boundaries. 

151. ,vliat is your doubt? I am not quite clear as to how the land in this part is bounded. 
I have seen certain plans, and if the plans that have been shown to me are correct, we should 
acquire the land from the st.·eet in Burnie, in front of the Espln,nade, clown to the water's edge­
high or low water, I am not quite sure ; low watel', I suppose. I wmi.lcl like to say that I am not 
quite clear as to the boundaries. I have only seen them on the plans. It- may be quite right; but 
I am not in a position to say. 

152. Have yon not seeu the agreement? I. read the agreement, and from that it was not 
clear to my mind how far we went on the sea side. I understand there· are two interests in the 
land; part of the land is still held by the Van Diemen's Land Company, . and a part of the 
land is leased to the Emu Bay Company. 

153. But both are under offer of sale? So I understand, but I am not quite clear. I would 
not like it to go forth that I have said so; but I ha,:_e concluded that it is so. 

154. Do you think it practicable, Mr.' Back, to economically handle large bodies of ore at 
your present station, supposing that the Government should decide not to acquil'e the land between 
that and the Breakwater ? (No iwswer.) 

155. Let me make myself clearer. Supposing that" the Blythe .Mines develop as we are led 
to believe they n,i'e going to develop, and you have to handle a vel'y htrge 'body of ore every 
day-1000 tons a day is mentioned-would it be economical to lrnndle tlrnt at your present station­
yard, snpposing that you have to hand it to another company to take it to the breakwater? It 
would be possible, but would not be economical. In the first place, if we carried this ore in 
truck loads-to the Government station in Burnie or up to the junction of the Emu Bay Company's 
land, the company would require to be paid for conveying these trucks on to the wharf and 
bringing the e1ppty trucks back again ; and if they only charged ls. the ton, I think you will find 
that, speaking from memory, it will nm up to £15,000 or £16,000 a year. That has to be paid 
by somebody, and, as the ore is to be handled as cheaply as possible, it certainly would not be an 
economical way of handling. I would like to say here, that if we had the whole of the business 
in our own: lrnnds, the appliances n,t Burnie are quite inadequate to the handling of 1000 tons of 
ore a cfay. Neither the new wharves, nor the breakwater, not· the sidings, noi· anything beyond 
the Go:vernment Hail way Station, is fit .to cope with such a trnffic. You niay take it for granted 
that with the 1'>resent appliances the .Mt. Blythe ore cannot be shipped. 

156. You think, then, that fnrther wharfage accommodation is necessary, and further 
siding accommodation to that now in existence is necessary? Whoever works this traffic will 
ha,·c to make sidings and shunting-room on that foreshore. The acquirement of that foreshore 
is abolutely 1wccssary to the successful economical working of such a traffic as you describe. 

157. Do yon think that when it became necessary to handle snch a large amount of ore as 
that the harbour accommocl:ition at Burnie at present would be sufficient--I mean the shelter 
accommodation rather than the wharfage accommodation ? Certainly not ; quite inadequate. 

158. Yon think, then, that it will involve the extension of the ·breakwater at some future 
time ? I think so, or the constructio11 of ttnother breakwater. I would like very mnc11 that the 
Government should a.scertain what has been the effect of that breakwater since it has been con­
structed : whether the portion of the land sheltered by that breakwate1· is being reclaimed­
-whether it is shallowing. · I think I saw decided indications of that when I was up ·there. I 
think that that is a ma.tter that, the Government might consider iu their future dealings with this 
place. 

159. I think you have already tolcl us, have you not, tha.t Burnie must be the outlet for that 
particular district, ancl for the Blythe Iron Mine 7 I think that there is no other way of getting 
to the shipping. . 

160. You, in conjunction with Mr. M'Coril1ick, inspected the line from Burnie to W aratah? 
We did. · 

161. Yon know that the Em111< Bay and· Zeehan Railway Company are importing heavy 
engines? I have heard so. . 

162. You know, at any-rate, that they have entered into a contract to carry several thousai1d 
tons of coal next year? I clo ; ·yes. · 

163. Do you think it will be necessary to lay clown heavier rails to deal with that traffic 
It would be much more economical; and they ·would be able to use their heavy engine_s. 

164. Is. it a necessity ? Economically, it is a necessity. 
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164A. \iVell, iE the company is uot in it position to go to the expense of hea.vie1· mils, will 

they be able to handle the traffic, :ts fa1· ;is yo11 know, at the present tinrn ? They would lrnve to 
use lighter engines, aml ta_ke smaller loa,cls. i do not thiuk it would he economical or wise to use 
such extremely heaYy engines as they are impol'ting on so light a rnil; it could be clone, but the' 
road would go to pieces in a very short time. 'vV e run 8 tons on the axle on a 40-lb rail ; on 
the Fingal Railway we have run 10 tons on the axle on a 40-lb. rail. 

165. \Vonld that line, as it is now (the line between Wnratah and Bumie) carry your 
ordinary rolling-stock now? Oh, certainly. vV e arn rnnning oui: rolling-stock on similar lines 
now ; in fact, that line is equal to some of our lines. 

166. w·hich of your lines? The Finga1 line, the Sore11 line, and the Mersey line. 
167. And that seotion of this line could be worked with the Government rolling-stock? I 

think so. . . 
168. And a.t the same expense per train mile? Our "train mile" is a difficult factor to deal 

with. It is only of valne to railway men, who are familiar with the conditions nnder which the 
figures are_anived at. · 

169. VVill the steeper gra,dients on that line involve nmch heavier expense in hn,ubge? No; 
not more than the Main line, where we liave a grade of I in 40, in ·conjnnction with 5-chain 
curves, ancl where the resistance due to friction is great in prnportion. The resistance clne to 
friction is a very important matter. : 

170. Do you know the gfac1ient on the Waratah line? I t,hink thei1· 1,teepest is 1 in 35. · 
171. One.in 33, I think? There may be a little bit of 1 in 33, but 1 was given to understand 

that the steepest was 1 in 35. 
172. On a stra.ight gradient of l in 35 it would be as good as a curved gradient of 1 in 40, I 

think? You could haul as good a load, practically, and yon would not have the wear and tear of 
your curves. 

17:3. By Mr. Patterson-Refening to yom last answer, l\fr. Back, I clo not think yon can be 
aware, ,.vhen you say there is a very short grade of l in 33, of the evidence given by l\fr. 
M'Corrnick. He has told us, that from Burnie out to 5-rniles-10, there is a continnons gracle 
of 1 in 33? I thought it was 1 in 35. 

174. Do you think that it line like that, with a continuous gradient of 1 in 33, is eq1rnl to lines 
like the Government lines, with a rnling grade of 1 in 45 : such a,s the Sorell line, for insbmce? 
vVonld yon mind putting your question again? 

175. You say-you sa,id just now-that this line to ,v aratah is equal in all respects to a line 
like the Sorell line ? Yes ; I said eq1ial in its character of construction. · 

176. That is what I wanted to bring you to; I thought yon were not clear. You are, of 
conrse, aware, that it would be giving.extremely libel'al terms to this company-terms to which 
you very strongly objected in the :Lmenc1ec1 Great \Vestern Railway Act-if you gave powers 
snch as these. I mean to say, that you strongly objected to allowing the Great ,vestern Rail­
way Company to put in l-in-40 grades, and 5-chain cul'ves as well? You asked for the 
Governme,1t to be the judges as to where the use of these curves ancl grades was admissible? 
Yes. 

177. vVhereas the Act was carrieu thro11gh allowing the company to be juclges as to the 
incliscrim'inate use of these en eves a.ncl grncles ? Yes. 

178. Now, it is proposed to purchase this line with the extremely heavy hanclica,iJ of 5 miles 
of I in 33, which is not equalled in the Colony at the present moment ? Thern, I clo not agree 
with you. · 

179. You do not ag-ree with me ? No. . 
180. And yon thinl t.hat using, say 5-cha,in cul'ves, with tt grade of 1 in 40, is eqwtl to 1 in 33, 

also with 5-chain cm·v0s ? Oh, no, no ! You gave me here a compantti vely straight line of 
1 in 33. 

But this 5 miles we are referl'ing to has 5-chain ·cnrves upon it. 
frlr. Urquhart: l\fr. i\il'Cormick said it was a strnight run all through. 
i11r. Plltterson : I know he said so, but it. has these sharp reversed cnrves all the same. 
Witness: V e1·y few of them. r giye general principles only. I do not know the line very 

well. I said this, and I repeat it; tlrnt on a straight road of l in 33 you can hanl as good a load 
as on a line of 1 in 40 with a succession of 5-chain curves, such as the Main line ancl the 
Scottsdale line. 

181. By 1.vlr. Pattei·smz.-N obody clonhts that. You made the g·eneral statement that yon were 
uncler·the impression that there was a general gracle of 1 in :3.5. Now, yon know that the1:e is 5 
miles of l in 33 : cloes that altel' yom opinion ? Not that it is a st,raight line. It is the 
curvature that affects it, as ,Yell a,s the gntcles. 

182. How clid you intend to work the traffic of the Ulven;tone-Bnrnie Railwi-Ly bcfol'e this 
question of the purchase of the option of the .Emn Bay and Zeehan Railway ca,ne into discussion 
at all ?-How did you intend to work it when tenclerB were called fo1·? \Ve intended to hand it 
over to the Van Diemen's Land or the Emu Bay Company to cany on Lo the hren.kw,tter'. 

183. What prevents that being done now'? - Yon know it was one of i11y contentions in 
Parliament that that should be clone. \iVhy not allow t,hat line, stittion-yanl, and bl'eakwate1· to 
be under the single contrnl of the company ? 'vV ell, the prospects of the traffic lrnving alterec1 
tJO much, the appliances there at present are quite inacleq11ate for the handling of it, 
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.184. In what particular direction have the prospects increasecl? In the matter of iron and 

fuel, particulai·ly. . · . 
185. We have nothing to <lo with foel.-And the fuel is for the Emu Bay and Zcchan 

,Railway Company; it has nothing to do with us as a G-overnment.-1£ the fuel is landed on the 
breakwater, and goes up a private company's line to Guildford Junction, and then by the Emu 
Bay and Zeehan Railway to its destination, what has that to do with the Government? · I£ the 
Government traffic is to be shipped at Burnie--produce, timber, ·iron, and so forth-there is no 
room for them _under existing circumstances. 

186. But, you see, the iron is very much in the air, is it not ? It strikes me that everything has 
been very much in the air in Tasmania. It has been for years. We have never had fore­
sight ; never seen beyond our noses. Every action of the Public Works Department of the 
country, as I look back on its history, has shown one long want of foresight. 

187. You propose to work the local traffic from Ulverstone to Burnie by handing it over to 
the local company-That is what you. propose, is it not? . ·That was my view, knowing that we 
were blocked, and the Government being· fully alive to the fact that we were at a disadvantage 
in having to hand over the traffic at that point. If you will notice, my correspondence from 
time to time has drawn attention to that fact. The Government of the day has been fully alive 
to the fact tnat such a proposal will be disadvantageous to· the public, who will have to pay 
more. I accompanied Mr. Pillinger down on a visit of inspection to that district,· and I think 
th_at Mr. Mackenzie, the member for the adjoining district (the Master Warden of the :Marine 
Board), was with me; I explained this matter very .fully, showing them why I found myself 
obligeµ by the circumstances to adopt that view, and recommend that course. 

188. Coming back to the poin,t.-That line would be sufficient for the local traffic, would it 
not ? No, it would not be sufficient. The company, if it undertook this work, would have 
to increase its sidings and stations. 

189. That is their business, is it not ? Not altogether. I£ the Government undertake 
to carry people's stuff to a destination, the Government has some responsibility, and should by 
every possible means in it~ power see that its own clients' traffic is economically and expeditiously 
handled. 

190. You are aware that in England goods are frequently carried over the. lines of three 
different companies? Over five, sometimes. 

191. And the original company in that case has to do exactly what the Government in this 
case has to do over l¼ miles of distance ? The circumstances are entirely different. In my 
experience I have had to pass stuff over other people's lines, and I have sent more traffic to a 
port in one clay than is handled in three months in Burnie. I am talking on a matter as to 
which I have had long experience, especially as to wharves and breakwaters. 

192. It is in view of yqur extensive knowledge that I am asking you these questions? I 
say, undoubtedly. that with the limited traffic we anticipated five years ago, we should still be at 
a disadvantage. There are no proper facilities for shipping. If you think for a minute, you 
will recognise that. At present, a man has to run down with a truck and a couple of horses with 
a load, ancl then bring them back to the town for another load. No large. shippiug operations 
could be carried on in that way; because, if you cannot handle 25 tons an hour at the ship's 
hatch, you are carrying out your business at a loss to yourself, your customer, or the ship. 
The handling of less than that must lead to a loss to somebody. . 

193. I come back to the point again-You have a station outside the town at Burnie. It is 
in the town; or, at any1:ate, it was when we bought it. . 

194. My contention is that there can be no earthly reason ,why that traffic (supposing 1000 
tons a day start to come from the Blythe iron mines two years hence) should not be hanclled­
the mere fact of it being dropped in the station does not involve any handling whatever? No. 

195. The same engine and the same trucks will go straight on ? Yes, if there is a place for 
it to go to. You say that the same engines and trucks can g·o to the breakmiter; the same 
trucks can, but certainly not the same engine. . · · . , 

196. But that is simply a question of arra~gement, of putting down additional elbows, making 
it sufficiently strong, and giving sufficient accommodation between the station and foreshore? 
No, other circumstances have to be considered; we require a considerable amount of additional 
siding. 

197. Then is there no reason why the Government should not come to ·an agreement 
with the company to do that work and pay it a toll for doing it? Well, it could be clone, 
but I doubt whether it could be done economically. The company would naturally 
require to oe paid £or· the use of its stations and sidings, for clencal assistance, shunting, 
and so forth, which practically means another terminal. There must be extra expense. It costs 
nearly as much to forward goods five miles as 10 miles. I£ you have two handling operations in 
forwarding these goods through, the terminal expenses will necessarily be greater. This is not 
like running three or four miles in England, where there is a long haulage. Here you are 
running into another man's station-yard; you are simply running over your own line and taking 
advantage of another man's station. There, so far as I have ever heard, there is no such 
thing as taking running powers on a station yard. You may have a junction station where trains 
pass, but running goods on to another man's termin!!;l station I never hea,rd of. 
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· 198. But some members of this Committee have come to this conclusion, which, of course, 
may be changec1 by what they hear now.-Some of us think that we are going to pay an 
enormous price in orc1er to obtain possession of the Emu Bay station-yard ; we are asked to 
pay for that by buying a ]ine at a first cost of £205,000, with the probability of being called on 
hereafter to re]ay that ]ine anc1 put in Jighter grades.-Onr object in getting you here is to see 
whether the objections raised to allowing this company to act as agents -for the Government, as 
far as the station-yard is concerned, are insuperable ; in other words, if we canqot, by faL· less 
expenditure, secure the object we have in view? There are three a.1tenrntives in my mind. 
When you look at the breakwiiter at Burnie, what do you see? Yon see a very sma11 
piece of water protectec1 by a breakwater. Originally it WltS an open roac1steac1; but 
the Government has built a breakwater and rnnde a harbour-a poor harbour, it is trne, but 
a harbour of sorts; anc1 it has so gone to work that the harbour belongs to the Van Diemen's 
Land Company. Now Government requires for the public the use of that harbour, and it 
has either to give over a11 traffic to the Emn Bay Company, who are the lessees of that station 
and breakwater,-yon have to give the traffic over to them, arid the public have to be penalised 
(I use the worc1 advisedly), because it would have to pay a sum much greater than it would 
pay if the Government carried the line right through. The Government has either. to give over 
the traffic in this way, or to secure full rights to th-is breakwater and fore,;hore, and so acquirnthe 
harbour. Now, passing over the position first indicated, that we must hancl ovel' the traffic to the 
Emu Bay Company, by simply- remarking that the appliances at Burnie are absolutely inadequate 
at present, and I dot1bt whether the company is sufficiently in funds to make the necessary 
imp1'ovements, we come to this :-The harbour of Burnie is the heart of the railway, or practi­
cally of two railways-the railway from Zeehan to Burnie, via Guildford Junction, ancl the 
railway from vV aratah to Burnie. If, uuc1er any statutory powers, you take away from these 
companies the heart of their railways, you will have to compensate the whole lot of them, and it 
becomes questionab]e then as to whether the amount that you will have to pay for purchasing 
the harbour, including the foreshore rights-whether the money that you would have to pay for this 
would not be greater, pro rata, .than tlie amount you would have to pay for railway communication, 
with harbour and station-yard. 'l'he advantages, to my mind, of buying the railway are these :­
You have given statutory powers to the Emu Bay Company to make a railway from Zeehan to 
Guildford Junction, and you have in your Act powers of forfeiture and powers of purchase. If 
by any means the Government acquires that railway from Zeehan to Guildford Junction, you 
are met with the vVaratah to Burnie line, a private line. This private company is wide awake. 
Some time ago they wanted to get a Bill thrnugh the House, and when the Government insisted 
upon getting running-powers, it withdrew its Bill, preferring to ·go on as it -was. But 
the position of that line now, giving a through railway from Hobart to Queenstown, is a very 
important matter fo_r the State, and it seems to me that this is a very opportune time for 
acquiring.a large portion of the missing link between Hobart and the West. It is worth while 
considering, surely, whether the Government will not do well to extinguish all claims to the land 
they want at Burnie, ancl get this line at the same time. 

199. I suppose you are agreed that if we buy this line the purchase of the line from Guild­
ford Junction to Zeehan will follow? No, I do not think that has been definitely agreed upon 
as yet. I think it must come sooner or later, because, if the business of the country in the west 
progresses as it has done since we first saw it as a wilderness and bush I O years ago, it may 
become necessary to acquire that line. · 

200. Supposing you acquired this option from the Emu Bay and Zeehan Co., do you propose 
to obtain running powers over its line to Zeehan? No, we do not propose to obtain them, 
because we have the power to take them at any time. __ 

201. But you know that they dispute that? No, I do not know it. The Act under which 
the line was constructed from Zeehan to Guildford Junction distinctly gives the Government 
power to take running powers between Zeehan and Guildford Junction. 

202. Then there is no nec_essity to apply for that? No, we have those powers at any time 
we choose to exercise them. If we acc1uire that Company's lease at any time, we ought to have 
running powers over this line from W aratah to Burnie. If you are purchasing you can purchase 
on your own terms. · 

203. By J.llfr. Urquhart-Well, Mr. Back, speaking generally on the _broad issue ; knowing 
all the circumstances of the case, ancl knowing the price asked-do you consider it is to the 
interests of this Colony to acquire the _vVaratah-Burnie railway line from the Emu Bay Com­
pany for the sum of £205,000? Under certain conditions-yes. 

204. What conditions?, First of all, that all disputes with the Van Diemen's ·Land Com­
pany be at an end ; secondly, that we command all the foi·eshore ancl all rights to the water­
command the harbour, in fact. 

205. That is in the option, is it not? I am not supposed to know what is in the option. I 
say that if we can get these rights-extinguishing of all disputes, the whole of the foreshore, the 
whole of the land from the street to the water, the rights of the _harbour and the rights to 
run .our trains, and with it the acquirement of the Emn Ba.y line between Guildford Junction and 
Burnie, and the right to as much lanc1 a.s we may require to make a proper station-then I think 
it would be a goo.cl thing for the country. I am of opinion that these points are in the 
highest sense yal~able ; that is to say, all these land and water rights, with right of running ou~: 
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trains ~rom Gnilforcl ,Junction to Burnie; so val11.ahle that the amount wcfmight set aside as the 
cost of the line wonlcl be very small, 01· compn,rativeiy very Hmall in relation to the benefits 
received. 

2ll6. Yon say that as confidently as yon clep1:elmted the coneessions yettrs ago ? That 1s my 
YieW. 

207. You have the oorresponclence in front of you? Yes. 
208. Will yon look at Mr. Fincham's letter of the 5th December, 1889?. Yes, I have it. 
209. ·what al'c the first two lines? "The right to lay rn,ils, and price to be paid, has been 

approved ancl notific.d preparatory to the emboc1iment of prov isionH and a formal agreement." 
210. That menus tlrnt the ngreement hacl been concluded, does it not? It looks like it. 
211. Ancl yon ,mid that yon were not awn.re that there hail been any agreement? No ; ancl _ 

I do not know that this "'ill convey that to my mi11Cl now, or th:it my mind is influenced by this. 
Mr. Fincham's letter sn,ys, "the plan attached to the lease (which I see for the first time to-clay) 
inclica.tes concessions of a rather more extended characteL" tli.t11 I co11templatecl in my former 
recommendation--that the compan:Y should be allowed to lny tt rn.ilway down the Emu Bay 
breakwater. That is to perpetuate the present concession." Now, can :my agreement have 
been made. 

21-2. Yon say your former recommendation? 111r. Fincham's forme1· recommendation; I 
am reading his· words. This is the first memorandum that ever came to me advising me that 
this was in the air; and when I saw the Engineer-in-Chief of the Colony indicating viu-ia.tions 
in a proposal to make an agreement or lease of tbis kind, I was just.ifiecl in my conclusion that it 
was a proposal to lease. . _ 

2 l3. But might not that draft have been the draft leitse? It might have been; but not 
being a lawyer, it only appeared to me to be an innocent pieee of pttper. 

214. But does this not convey to you the idea or suggestion of an agreement alrnady signed? 
"With regard to the enclosed copy of a proposed agreement " it say~;. 

- 215. Then, agttin, in reply to that, Mr. Finchttm replies to yolll' observation? Yes. 
216. In which he says?. (A1jpeudix XXIII.). There is nothing there to show that a lease· 

had been made. · 
217. But there is the fact that on that date notification was 111ade tu you that the rig·ht had 

been g-ranted? There is nothing there t.o show to rne, as a layman, 01·, at any rate, I saw nothing 
to lead me to believe that the agTeement had been completed. But. the mere fact of the right being· 
acceded and notification made to them should be sufficient. 

The Cliainnan--N o; that would merely imply that the terms uf an agreement had been 
decided upon. · _ _ · · 

TFitness, continuing-Thei·e is a very much strong-er point. against your eontentio11, Mr. 
Urquhart. This correspondence was sent to me to ask my opinion as to whether certain pieces of 
land should be included in an agreement to lease. If they asked me that, was I 11ot ju~t;fied in 
believing· that the agTeement or lease had not been made? I concluded that, as professional adviser 
of the C1own, I had a perfect 1·ight t,i deal with the whole q1Jestion, and in my correspondence to 
the Ministei· I said that I had" duly considered Mr. Fincham's memo. in all its beari11~s. It was 
really sent to me in order that I might _express· rny views as to the granting or otherwise of two 
strips of land-to enable them to !fo to V/ aratah 011 the one side, and Burnie on the other side. I 
am very sorry if I inirnnderstood the mattei·, but that was my view at the tiwe. 

218. Mr. Patterson has asked you if some arrangements could not be made with the Company 
to take charge of the traffic at Burnie? Yes. · · 

219. But is it not the case that the principal profit of a Ene is in the terminal charges ? "r ell, 
whE:re we can charge te1"111inals we do so; but a great deal of om· traffic is station to station only, 
without terminals. There are no terminal charges on minerals in this co1111tl'J ; there :ire in 
England. 

220. And_ you would require to pay this company a large nrnrnal s11111 to take charge of this 
traffic? Yes, a rate pe1: ton. 

221. And, anyhow, you would have a staff at Burnie as. well as they would? Y cs. And 
under the other proposal one staff could work the lot as well as two staffs ? Yes. 

222. Can you form any idea of what the ann11al cost woulcl be to the Government if this 
Emu Bay Company were to take charge of the trnffic? I have not sufficient· data here to give 
you any figures. I mentioned just now, that if you took a shilling a ton on a thousand tons a 
clay, it would be something over £15,000 a. year. But I must emphasise what I have already 
said, ,that it is absolutely jmpossible to start handling snch traffic at Burnie in the present 
circumstances. · 

223. Bnt, anyhow, a large snm of money that the Government might earn would go into the 
pockets of the Van Diemen's Land Company? Quite so. . · 

224. Now, it was stated in the House that· undue favour was shown to the Ernn Bay Com­
pany, inasmuch as they had arranged in the event of this option falling through, to obtain---
! do not follow you. . . 

225. You ·know that if this option is not carriecl ont, the Emu Bay Company have the right 
to 99 years lease at £10,000 a yea.r ?-Y es.-Aml the Government proposes to let it for £8000 a 
year if it i:iurchases ? · Yes. 

226. Th~J1 there is an appai'en~ deficiency of £2000 a year f . .A.n alJparent s·avin{$ to th~ 
company, · · 
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227. Yes.-W eli now, do you consid.et· that £2000 a yea1· wonld pay for the loss of trade 
the company would suffer by handing the land-between the Burnie stittiou and the breakwater 
over to Government? (No answer.) , 

228. Yon see, the £10,000 a year carries all the trade from the Government Burnie station 
on to the breitkwater.-If the Government acquire this hmcl, it is the intention only to let the 
line from Burnie station to vV anitah, retaining it from Burnie station to the brea,kwater? Y G'S. 

229. Having control of it? Yes, and being paid for the work. · 
230. Now, clo you consider that that is worth £2000 a year to.the Government? It depends 

very much; because when we have a line working at rates which are payable, as soon fl,S the line 
begins to pay, :Members of Parliamerit come down ancl ask us to cut clown our rates. 

231. Do you consider it is worth £2000 a year to the company? It depends on the traffic. 
I should say it is· worth a considerable sum. I could not fix any sum without knowing what the 
tonnage was. 

232. But it is a good reason why the Government shonlcl get control? If the traffic goes 
on increasing a:s it is stated and hoped it will, there will be a large Government expenditure 
required, if the Government owns the line. B11t there is no doubt tlmt i[ I hfl,d a free hand, and 
these gentlemen who perpet11ally a~k us to reduce our rates would-leave me alone, I could ma.ke 
it pa)", If the company were in a position to crin·y their traffic-if they hacl yards, appliances­
they would make a consiclerahle profit,, even now. I quite understand what you want me to say, 
only I do not want it to be taken clown from my lips to be used in evidence against me at some 
future time if I make auy very definite estimate or results now. I clo not want people to say, 
" You are not dqing wlrnt you ,micl you w:ould." 

233. Is it unreasouable for the Government to charge them a less rate by way of rent for 
the line from Burnie Station to ,Varntah than from the breakwater to Vv amtah? Oh, decidedly 
not. 

234. By Mr. Guesdon.-vVell, Mr. Back, of course you know the discussion that has gone on in 
the, House. Members are very anxious to know a,ll the contingent possibilities in connection with 
this. I just want to put it in order, in this way :-You lrnve suggested as an alternative tha.t you 
would recommend to the Govetnment the acquisition of the line from the breakwater to \IV aratah ? 
Under certain conditions, yes. 

235. Of course, that involves an immediate expenditure of £205,500 r Yes. 
236. Then, in addition to that, Mr. l\i'Gorrnick estimated this mo·rning that there would be 

in the near future, urgent necessity for the expe'nditure of a further sum of money, which he 
estimated at £30,000, in order to provide extra station accomrhodation, sidings, ancl so forth. 
(No answer.) . 

237. Well, then, I gather from yom own evidence that if we ar.e going to cope with 
this iron traffic, this 1000 tons daily of iron from the Blythe Iron Mine, it will ultimately involve 
an expenditure of from half-a-million to a milliou in improving the harbour- am I right? ,V ell, 
of course, wheii one uses empirical figmes like that, mie does not w:111t to be bound by 
them. Your harbom there is a miserable failure at prc~e11t, bec:ci,nse the breakwater is not suffi­
ciently long to protect yonr shipping, and your wharf is so close to yom breakwater that in 
an easterly gale, a vessel ca,sting off from the breakwater would collide with vessels at the 
wharf. Then there is no proper accommodation for vessels at the breakwater itself, itnc1 the 
vessels lying there are grnund up against the concrete. If you will· think for a moment what 
1000 tons a day means conveyed in trnins on trucks, you will see that you must have three trucks 
moving for every one shipped; and an ordinary trnck stands over 17 feet. The trucks that ·the 
ore will be earriecl in will have it capacity of 25 or 30 tons, and stand ovel' 40 feet. I um trying· 
to give you some idea of the facts that whoever may uttempt to cany such cargo and ship it, 
must be at a very large expenclitme before long. And it appears to me that it is much 
better, if the Government has to make the ac1c1itions, that they shoulcl build on their own land 
rather than on the land of the Van Dienien's Land Company. · 

238. Still, you said that it would involve an expenditure, ultimately, of half a million or so? 
Yes. These are mere. empirical figures to express my views broadly on the whole question. 

239. I take yolll' figures as mere rough estimates relative to the 1000 tons a cla,y said to be 
coming from the Blythe Iron .Miue.-Is that so? It means this, there is no doubt about it: 
either you, will have to sh1 1t clown· your shipments of iron, or you will have to provide largely 
increased accommodation and wharfage. - · , 

240 . .My object in asking you these questions is that the House is anxious to know, not only 
what the immediate cost will be, bnt also what the ultimate cost will be.-That is one of the 
questions raised in the House, anc1 very strongly· commented upon.-! am only asking for this 
information for the benefit of those Members of the House who deputed me to get this informa­
tion.- W'"ill you nnclerstfl,ncl that 7 ,V ell, take the Port of Hoba.rt, history tells us tlrnt there 
was once a small jetty at Sullivan's Cove-once upon a time. Since then you have been building 
wharves and wharves, ancl you are building more now; so I take it that Emu Bay will require a 
harbour, ancl that her harbour requirements will increase proportionately as her trade 
increases, · 

241. Building a harbom i~ one thing, ancl building wharves is another.-! do not think hal£ 
a million was evee spent on wha1·ves you know? Of course I include all the appliances necessary · 
for shipping ancl protection. · 
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242. Now, have you ever been asked to give any opinion a.s to whether the Emu Bay Com­

pany is likely to command sufficient traffic between Zeehan and Burnie to enable it to 
fulfil its obligations to the Government, to pay £8000 a year in addition to its other obligations, 
during the first·few years of its running?._ Of course you are able to form some sort of an estimate 
now as to what the traffic would be? I <lo not think the proposal has ever been put to me. 
' 243. Of comse, in the event of the Company being unable to fulfil its obligations, the taking 

over of that portion of the line from Guildford ,function to Zeehan wo1ild also be another contin­
tingency we may possibly have to llleet? · 'l'hat is, if the Emu Ba,y Company forfeits its rights, 
they go into the hands of the Government. That i5 so. 

244. I am right in saying that yon endorse Mr. M'Cormick's opinion that it would take about 
£30,000 to make that station capable of carrying this traffic? Yes_, I think so; we have had 
it very carefully taken out. But expenditure in this matter is a variable consideration; it 
depenJs entirely upon the traffic.· To carry out anything like the traffic you propose-to make a 
workable station, such as we would do if it were in the hands of the Government, plain, and 
economica_l, and safe-it would take that money ; £25,000, I think I have iu my notes for the 
·immediate expenditure, with another £5000 or £6000 subsequently. , 

245. How, then, does the Emu Bay C_ompany propose to carry its fuel from _Burnie· to 
Queenstown ? They propose to receive it into trucks at Burnie, and convey it to Zeehan. 

. 246. And· then run on your line ? No, we haul it on to Queenstown in their trucks, and 
hand it over to the Mount Lyell Company. . 

247. By the Cltairman.-They ":ill take delivery at Regatta Point? Yes. 
248. By J.1:lr. Guesdon.-Are not the Mount Lyell Railway and Mount Lyell Smelting 

and Copper Company two distinct companies? No, only one company. 
249. Well, of course, there you have exactly the same difficulty in dealing with the transit 

of this fuel that you have in dealing with the Government's consignments of freight from Burnie 
to the breakwate~·? At what point? · 

250. Running from Burnie to Strahan? • Oh, quite different. Let me explain again. The 
Emu Bay Railway Company places its trucks alongside the ship at Burnie, and receive· the 
coal into its own trucks. It takes its ti'ucks right through to Zeehail. We hook our engines 
on to them there, only finding the right of the road. imd haulage, and run away with them to 
Regatta Point and leave them there. What I want you to understand is this-The right of 
running powers over miles and miles of railway, and the working of a station yard, are so 
utterly dissimilar that there is no comparison between them. All the trucks in a stationyard 
may make twenty movements each,.J should say, from the time they come in until they go out 
again. The trucks of the various companies get mixed and all boxed µp. It is not a question 
of mei-ely running backwards and forwards. · And then there is the safe working 0£ the 
station. There is only one controlling power possible in the station ; but on one line you can 
have four or five trains going with running powers from other lines without difficulty at all. . 

251. And would it be impossible for you, with this line in the ·company's hands, to do all 
your own shunting at the station, and send your trncks along to be hauled by the Emu Bay 
engines on to the breakwater? I do not say it is impossible, but it is economically impossible, 
both in point of time, _which is a serious matter, and in point 0£ tonnage. 

252. By the C/iairman.-:-Mr. M'Cormick said there would not be room. 
253. By J.1fr. Guesdon.-Do you endorse that ?-Would there be room in that 12 acres for 

your shunting ? Please understand that shunting on one station will not prevent the necessity 
of "shunting at the breakwater. Suppose we had fifty trucks, and handed them over to the com­
pany, it could not send fifty trucks at a time to the breakwater. It must send them a few 
at a time, as it has opportunity, whatever appliances it may use at the ship's side. Then, 
the empties must be sei;it back. You would require, at least, two running lines and three shunting 
lines to be able to handle the traffic. 

254. Then, would you regard the purchase 9f this line as being as urgei1t a necessity as you 
now seem to regard it, i£ it were not for the enormous traffic which is expected from the Blythe 
Iron .Mine? 'l'he traffic, generally, is promising I am looking, generally, to the future. I 
think if we could get all the advantages I have inq.icated by buying this line, it would probably 
be to the interests of the Colony to do so. Do not let out of your mind the point I raised 
about making the connecting link between Hobart and Queenstown. 

255. Do you know anything at all about the company as regards this lease? For instance, if, 
at the end 0£ 21 years, we· purchased the line from Guildford Junction to Zeehan. rhe options 
that we would be purchas_ing from the Emu Bay Company, gives it a lease of the land from 
Guildford Junction to :leehan £or 99 years ? Yes. · 

256. Supposing that Government finds it to its advantage at the end of 21 years to purchase 
that line, plui; :LU per cent. on the cost of constl"Uction, and that that purchase put it in a position to 
reduce the rates of freight all along,)t seems to me that we ought to be perfectly clear as to our 
power to secure the lease from Guildford Junction to Burnie? I should be satisfied that the 
conditions of taking over the option are such as would be satisfactory to us, because, first of all, if 
they failed to· pay their rent the liue becomes the property of the Government .. 

25,. I am not speaking about that? It appears to me that it· is advisable for the Colony to 
buy this option if the terms of the option first of all settle all disputes, and then give us the 
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absolute right to the harbour and all the land between the· street and the water, and the breakwater, 
and everything else we. want: if we· acquire the whole of that and if we acquire this line and the 
rig-ht of running· on the line between Burnie and Guildford Junction, thus secur,jng the main link 
between Hobart and Zeehan--the benefit will be so great that the amount 0£ the .purchase may 
be comparatively small. I hold that it is a good investment for the country, provided that the 
things I have emm1erated are secured. · · 

258. Now, as to the question 0£ fuel, Mr. Back.-Suppo~ing that the operations now being 
carried out at .Macquarie Harbour bar result successfully, and allo,y ships of large tonnage to 
get in there, do you consider that the Emu Bay Company could. ever deliver coke at Queens­
town at rates· that would compete with the coke brought direct from Macquarie Harbour Bar to 
Strahan? You mean if they had rJeep water there, sufficient to carry-what? 

259. I mean if the scheme is successful? What depth of water are you to give 7 
260. Say~ sufficient to accommodate vessels of 3000 tons? No, it would not do. You 

would never be able to ·compete unless you were able to get back-loading for your trucks. If the 
minerals along the line were sufficient to provide this loading, possibly there might be something 
in it. 

261. What is the percentage of iron in this Blythe ore? Something over 70 per cent., I am told. 
The Chairman-It gives, in some cases, up to 90 per cent. of what is called ferric oxide. 
262. By J1fr. Nicholls.-The expense of carrying this iron ore to the breakwater, if it is handed 

over to the company, would fall on the iron mine, would i.t not? Probably. 
263. It woulq not be a public charge? It would not be a charge on the Government. It 

would be merely a question whether it would pay the iron company to pay the extra carriage, or 
whether it would not? I think, in the end, it would be a charge on the Government. If it. wmi 
found that the company had to pay the Emu Bay Company for carrying its ore, we should almost 
certainly be squeezed, in order to induce us to lower our rates proportionately. The iron ore is of 
very low value, and sooner than lose the traffic, the Government woul<l have to subsidise the mines, 
just as it now doe,; with reference to the Fingal coal. 

264. Well, the extra charge on that ore should be paid by the people for whom it is carried, 
should it not? Yes, but it is no use of my begging the question. My fixed opinion is that the 
country would have to pay it. If there was a shilling to be paid, it would probably be squeezed out 

·of the Government railway revenue. 
265. Well, l•do not know. It does not seem to me that we ought to anticipate that Parlia~ 

ment and the Administration will not do their business in a profitable way? Mr. Patterson will 
tell you that it is an absolute impossibility, with our rate of wages, to haul Fingal coal as cheaply 
as we do now and not lose by it, and yet we have to do it. 

266. Mr. Patterson.-The coal belongs to a local company that can -bring influence to 
bear. This Blythe ore is extremely r,ich. 

Witness : I say this~that with the example before us of the Fingal coal and of other 
instances where we ha-ve had to cut down our rate to suit colonial interests, I think we should 
have to do the same thing again. 

267. By M1·. Nicholls.-But that_ assumes that the mine could not be worked if this extra 
shilling had to be paid. Supposing that the mine could be worked profitably and pay this extra 
can:iage, would not the mine pay it? Not if they could help it. 
_ 268. The answer you gave, that the Colony would be forced to pay it, now was not that 
based on the assumption that the mines could not be worked i£ they ·were charged_ this 
extra carriage 7 I have come to the conclusion that every industry and everybody that 
has anything to do with the railway will, ,if possible, get out of paying proper railway 
dues. If the railway was pwned by a privat£:: company your suggestion would be quite correct, 
but knowing how things are clone l think it is probable that we should lrn,ve to pay it, and I 
think it is right to regard the thing from that standpoint. 

269. You do not consider it possible, then, that the Blythe Iron Company will put this 
pressure on the Emu Bay Company instead of on the Government, and. compel the Emu Bay 
Company to carry its ore more cheaply? I do not think the Emu Bay Company are squeezable. 
I do not see how you cl1n put the pressure on a private company,· unless you are able to show 
them that what you want is to their advantage. -

270. But, possibly, the shareholders may consist of pretty much the same bodies? l do not 
know that they are, 

271. I have heard it said so? But the Emu Bay Company is not going to get very much 
out of this business, except this haulage for a mile. 

272. Is not one shilling a mile for a ton rather an excessive rate? No, I do not think so. 
273. Well, sttpposing the Government takes it over, would the extra Government charge 

arnottnt to one shilling a ton? I am not very confident, we would get all we could. 
274. But would the Government charge on a fair arrangement amount to that? We are 

taking it on a longer haulage, you see. , 
. 275. · But, of course, each portion of the journ~y could have its percentage of the cost appor• 

tioned to it? Minerals are charged with us at what is called station to ·station rate; that is, without 
· terminals. 

276. B_y the Cliafrman.-Mr. Back, with regard to this amount of £20,000 to £30,000, 
which, it_ is said, would have to be spent at Burnie; is that a fair charge against the line we are 
now buying, or against the Ulverstone.Burnie Line ? It should be divided between them, 
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277. How proportioned? · Well, I could not'say off-hand; probably, half and half, it being 
the terminus of both lines. 

278. It is an expenditure absolutely necessary in connection with the Port of Burnie? '\Vbo­
ever works the t;·affic there, it has to be done. 

279. And whether we work it ourselves 01; another body works it? It will be the same thing, 
that work has to be done. You can.no more talk of handling the suggested traffie there with 
present appliances than you could ask us to d.o the work ·of Sydney in our yard here. . 

280. Is it a fair thing to take into consideration in connection with this matter?-1s it to be 
done whether we buy the line oi· not? Yes, somebody !ms to do it. 

281. '\Vhen you were speaking of seeing a million or half a million expended at Burnie I 
suppose you meant you saw the necessity of expenditure to make it. a larger port? l meant more 
breakwater, railway, and wharf acconimodation, more harbour accommodation, more reclamation, 
and more such work generally. If B11rnie is to be the output of the Blythe iron you will have to 
have ,a proper wharf; with hoppers or hydraulic cranes-the first prf'ferably. They will get tbe 
most up-to-date American applianr~s, and you will have to spend a large sum in wharf accommo­
dation, sidings, and so on. Of course, if the traffic does not come you will n<jt want to make the 
expenditure. Bnt we have a rig-ht to look ahead, as I have on more than one occasion remarked 
in this room. 

282 .. '\V ell, apart from the purchase of the line, or the purchase of the foreshore, or the obtaining 
of running powers, or dealing witb traffic in a·ny possible way; is there, to your mind, a necessity of 
larger expenditure of public m,oney at Butnie? Well, either yon stop the traffic or you . make the 
expenditure. TherP. is no doubt about it ; larg·e expenditure must come. . 

. 2_83. Is it probable that the Government will extend their railway westward to Wynyarcl 
and Flowerdale? That is a question of policy. 

· 284. Apart from policy, is it probable thiit the Colony will do that? I should not like to 
say. . 

285. Is it probable, judging by what has been in the past ?-Is it a district that will justify 
a railway being made to it? I think some day or other it will come. 

286. If we do not settle this breakwater business now, one way or the other, will. it also be 
necessary to hand over our freightag·e and traffic from W y1Jyard and Flowerdale district to 
another body to handle at the breakwater? They deal with all the export and import there: 
certainly, yes. That is. why I opposed one of these strips of land being given up. 

287. By .Mr. Urqulu11·t.-This suggested expenditurP. of half a million-or whatever other sum 
may be necessary to improve the harbour accommodation of Burnie-is not a corollary expendi• 
ture caused by the purchase of this· railway ? Certainly not. 

288. But simply by the expansion of trnffic? Yes, by the expansion of traffic. I£ what we 
are told is going to happen in the next few years d'oes happen, you will either have to shut down 

. your mine or your business to a great extent, or go to ·a great expenditure. 
289. Then this large expendihire is not caused hy the purchase of this railway? Not at all. 
290. Now, this £30,000-will that come out of the £200,000 alread·y voted for the Burnie 

Railway? ·well, there is money there. ' 
291. Well, it practically is a portion of the work covered by the vote for the Ulve:rstone 

and Burnie line? It might fairly he ealled so. 
292. _How much money have you spent since the Ulverstone and Burnie construction was 

commenced?-What is the unexpended balance?-Do ymi know?-ls it abont £50,000 or 
£60,000? Oh, it is more than that. 

·293. By Jlh-. Guesdon.-How much? 'l'here ought to l;>e a balance of £60,000 to £70,000 
• when everything is completed. But you will please take that as "off the book.'' 

294. I would not like to have any misapprehension about this probable increased expenditure, 
0£ course, if the Government does not take it up, there is no doubt that if a mine of that sort is 
likely to make a profitable return, it is more tlrnn likely that some people privately interested 
will do as the .Mount Lyell Company has done-make such arrnngements with the Van 
Diemen's Land Company themselves as will enable them to get away their produce-and that it 
will pay a private company to do it better than it will' pay the Government? Take it from me, 
that there.is not room enough in the ·harbour for any more wharf at present. It would be 
interesting to have soundings taken, and see what the operation of the breakwater has been. I 
think the water is shallowing. There is a small port, swept by east and north-east winds, and 
they have made a small breakwater there; and the breakwater is so far inland that there is 
very little space left for building· wharves. 'rhey have only one wharf, which occupies all 
the water that is deep enough, under existing conditions, to berth a vessel in. Therefore, I say 
that they will have to have a larger breakwater and larger wharves, and I say that the har boul' 
should be in the hands of the Government. · · 

295. And you say that the Government should have a proper examination of the harbour 
before these important works are put in band? It would be ve.ry interesting· to know what the 
effect of the breakwatt>r has been. One breakwater I saw built is 2400 feet long, anti in 20 years 

. the detritus from the rivers has reclaimed the whole of that breakwater, and there is a bar now 
forming across the end of it. It is interesting to watch the effect of a breakwater in a harbour of 
that description. 
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MR. ,J 1\.MES FINCHAM called and e.wm1:ned. 
. . 

Mr. Fincham took the statutory declaration. 
29G. By tlte Chairman. - Your name is Ja.mes Fincham, and you were formerly Engineer-in-

Chief of the Government Railways ? Yes. · 
297. Yon helcl that office in the yearb 1888 ancl 1889? Yes. 

. _298. Do you recollect negotiations being conducted between the Van Diemen's Land 
Companv and the Government, or Mi11ister of Lrmcls of the clay, in conneqtion with acquiring a 
perpetual road, or a right, rather, to lay down rails on the Burnie breakwater-Do you remember 
anything of that, Mr. Fincham? Yes. Among the mass of things that were before me at that 
time, I cannot, of course, now, after the lapse of 11 years, be expected to remember cletaili,,, but, 
I am absolntely certain of certain salient facts. One is that I had no knowledge, in any way, of 
the initiative of the proposal for granting a portion of the. breakwater under a certain lease to 
the Van Diemen's L:tnd Company. I have been trying to tax: my memory as to how the matter 
first came under my cognizance, and although I would not positively state that I had not seen 
these plans and this agreement before, yet I seem to have a very strong impression that I first saw 
them in connection with a commnnication from the the11 Crown Solicitor. I remember the 
circumstances, because the matter came upon me as a sort of surprise. I am qnite clear that 
I had several · interviews with the then Crown Solicitor on the matter, when I objected-­
as far as I can remember I have always objected to the thing ( I alwa.ys did, from first to last, as 
far as my best recollection goes). I am· quite sure of this, that over and over aga.in, to the Crown 
Solicitor, I expressed mysel:£ in terms of disapproval on the ma.tter. My next recollection, 
although I cannot remember as to its following my immediately seeing the plans, was made in 
the interests of the Government. Seeing that the strip of line, as I remember it, was right down 
the centre of the breakwater, and therefore, meant, practically, giving the breakwater over to 
the company, and knowing that there was room on the breakwa.ter for two lines of rails, my 
efforts for some time were devoted to trying to get possession of the strip down the middle altered 
to one side. . 

299. r think it would be as well if we could get from you, by questions, what took place 
prior to the agreement being signed-Have you ever seen the agreement or a copy of the agree­
ment signed by Mr. A. I. Clark, the then Attorney-General, on behalf of the Ministry? Not 
that I am aware of. , 

300. Do you remember sending this letter of the 10th of December? (Appendix XXVI.). 
301. And Mr. Back's answer? (Appendix XXVII.J. 
302. Then, on the 10th December, you wrote to the :Minister? (Appendix XXVI. \. 
303. Now, that agreement is referred to there-Ha.ve you any recollection of what that 

agreement was? No; I have. not any recollection. I did not know I had written those letters. 
Of course, I cannot remember letters among an immense mass of correspondence; it is impossible. 
I have had no· opportunity whatever of refreshing my memory. 

304. I "~anted to ascertain from you, if your memory will permit, whether you had any 
recollection of the negotiations prior to the signing of a certain document by Mr.· Clark-have 
you any recollection of the negotiations of a right for running a railway on the breakwater? I 
have already said so. 

305. You could not remember the negotiations? Certainly not. My first recollection of the 
matter at all-and I a.m clea.r as to that point-was having certain plans not prepared in my 
.office, prepared, I presume by Mr. Norton Smith's people, and.a certain agreement placed before 
me.-I have already stated (I would not swea.r), but I believe the first occasion I saw those 
documents was from the Crown Solicitor. I am quite certain Mr. Dobbie can confirm my 
·objections to it, and I must have repeatedly pointed it out to the Minister 

306. By Mr. Niclwll~.-You sa.y you objected, to :i\fr. Dobbie-Dicl he never tell you who it 
was insisted it should be given ? I have some recollection of his saying once, a.nd it may have 
been more than once,·tha.t _Mr. Norton Smith's solicitors were pressing very much to get the 
thing settled. . 

307. By Mr. Patte1·sm1.-Yon do 11ot know who recommended the lea.se? No, certaiuly not. 
The first time the thing ea.me before me was in a cut-and-dried shape.· There were fixed plam; and 
an agreement, and I ha.cl no knowledg-e whatever of the negotiations for the proposal. 

308. By the Chairman.-When did you enter the Government service? In 1877. 
30!:I. Have yon any recollection of the time you first visited Burnie ? No, I could uot 

recollect. It would be·during the first year of my office, no clonbt. 
310. What existed at Burnie then in the shape of a jetty or breakwa.ter? vVha.t we 11secl 

to call the "bird-cage," an opcn---very light open-jetty of wrought iron. 
311. Wha.t followed that?· vV ell, if I may use the term, a solidification of that "bird-cage" 

by filling in with concrete. . 
' 312. Was not there a. sort of brea.kwater-a sort of T-head or hammer-hea.cl? Yes, that 

was added a.fterwards. 
313. Diel the Van Diemen's Land Company have any railway on that jetty or brea.kwa.ter? 

If you mean on the T-hca.d one, I think it is very likely, because they had one on the "bi I'd-cage." 
314. Was tha.t just a tramwa.y to the shol·e, or connecting with the town end? .T ust 10 the 

spore-the sort of thing that has alwa,rs existed there, · · 
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315. Have you nny recollecti0n whether they were given any permission to construct a tr:im­
way on the first bi·eakwater-a small one? .No, I a.m not able to tell yon whether any formal 
permission was given or not. 

316. The breakwater was constructed under yon? Yes, the whole of it, from designs by 
Na pier Bell ; I carried out his designs. · . 

317. Do yon remember being asked at any time, by them, to permit them running a line of 
railway on the breakwater? I conld not swear to that. They might have asked for permission, 
but- I cannot recollect. 

318. Do yon remember if they had a tramway on during- the construction of the breakwater? 
Prior to 1889, do you mean? 

319. Yes.-In 1889 the breakwater was very nearly done, if not quite clone, as it is now'? 
I cannot recollect ; bnt there was a rough, temporary tramway on the unfinished top of the 
breakwater to the last, and, certainly, the Van Diemen's Land Company used that trarnw:iy, 
chiefly because it was the principal exporter-shipper-but the general public would use it 
at the same time. 

· 320. Was it put up by both, or at their expense, do yon know'? I could not say. J\l(ost 
ptobably at their expense. I am quite certain that our Government officer would 1-iever have 
laid it down for them. · 

321. It was not used in connection with the construction of the breakwater? Except, 
possibly, for landing cement. 

322. You cannot say whether they had any priority of right, or claimed any priority of 
right? Oh, clear, no. To the best of my belief it was regarded as a purely temporary arrange­
ment. It was not used· by the Govern·ment. for construction purposes, bec:wse we required 
something very much heavier to carry our crane, itself carrying 23-ton blocks for building. 
This was only a temporary thing right along the edge. 

323. Have you any recollection of who laid the two.lines of railway now on the breakwater? 
Yes; I know all about that, although I have not seen them. "With your permission, I will go 
back and continue the answer to my first question. Subsequently, as I said, to my efforts to get 
the strip of line shifted, I made proposals that as there was room for two lines of rails on the 
breakwater the Van Diemen's Land Company should consent to one of these lines being a line--

324. The Van Diemen's Land Company should consent to what ? To the two lines. 
325. \Vhy should they be asked? Because their line blocked any line going on the break-

water. It was right clown the middle. . 
326. But why did you have to ask them? . Simply because this strip of reel, as I remember 

it on the plans-it was 10 oe 11 yearn ago-was clown the middle of the breakwater, and in my 
anxiety to preserve the Government interests-after objecting· to the Crown Solicitor-I. made 
efforts to get this strip shifted, so that th13re should be room for a Government line its well us 
the V au Diemen's Land Co. . 

327. But did you acknowledge that the Van Diemen's Land Co. had any right to object? . I 
could do nothing else, under this agreem_ent. 

328. Then you did know of the agreement? Yes. I said so. I said I knew nothing 
of the negotiations of this proposal. The first I knew of it was seeing a properly-prepared legal 
document, which I knew nothing of, with plans atfached. And I then went on to say that the 
matter came to me as a snrprise, and its coming to me in the way of a surprise has fixed it in my 
memory. Now, to go on about the two railways. My efforts were devoted to that, and I am 
pretty certain the late Mr. Fillinger had a conversation with Mr. Norton Smith,- and I am pretty 
certain Norton Smith was willing·to allow the second rail, but he wanted the Government to ta.ke 
the back seat, and I wanted the company to take the back seat, and the nrntter was left in abey­
ance. Now about the two rails : Some time before I left office, with the cons13nt of the Minister, 
I prepared for the Marine Board at Burnie-the request and all negotiations in connection with 
what I clid coming through Mr. Norton Smith, who was on the .Marine Board, I believe, at the 
time- I prepared for them a plan for finishing the breakwater ; I llicl it as a l:ibour of love. In 
consultation with Mr. Norton Smith, two lines: of rails, certain sidin,'.· s, together with a parapet 
and lighthouse on the encl. The specifications ·were prepared by Mr. Nor ton Smith's agent, or 
by himself. They were sent on to me for revision, and the contract for finishing- the bre:ikwater 
was let from these documents which I had prepared, but I have no personal knowledge as to 
whether these two rails have ever been laid clown. The fact that· Mr. Norton Smith agreed 
readily to the plan for two rails of this final contract, showed that he was willing to have the two · 
rails on the breakwater; but he wanted the pick for himself, and T wanted it for the Government. 

329. If that had been settled, was that all that prevented the execution of the lease? No. 
I would not say that. I objected altogether to it, but my object in getting the two lines was to 
save something from the wreck, or what I considered equal to it. • 

330. Was the survey that was made to Burnie made in yonr time-I mean the survey to 
W ynyard? Oh, yes. . 

331. On from Burnie? From Ulverstone to Burnie. 
332. Yes, you went on to Wynyrtrd? Yes,from Ulverstone to Wynyarcl, I meant to say. 
333. How did you propose getting through Burnie-do you remember? Y cs. And not only 

do I remember my original surveys-what have been termed Parliamentary surveys-hut I 
remember that after the Act was passed I prepared contract plans on a specially large scale 
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(working plans), showing how I proposed to deal with the raihvay through Bnrnie. I was aware 
there would be difficulties -with the Van Diemen's Laml Company; but I was pe.rfectly easy in 
my mind, knowing that Parliament had been so very liberal with the vote. When they cut off the 
portion between Burnie and Table Citpe I proposed to deal with the matter in this way : I joined 
the Van Diemen's Land line some,vhere above the present station, entered the station, and then 
turned off as soon as I was clear of the station, running my main line on the left side of the present 
siding, on to a station at West Burnie. The plans will show a fairly commodious railway station on 
level groimd ; and I arranged the sidings so that, practically, the bre:ikwater siding would form 
merely the extended portion of the railway sidings. I saw no difficulty in my proposal, because 
what I was doing was what I had known to be done in England. I£ you will allow me to say so, 
I have had more experience in. connection with the English Parli:unentary practice, and the 
Board of Trade sanctions to lines bem'ing 11p9n them, than R,nyone in this Colony, and I sa,w no 
difficulty in joining the station at Burnie, and running a main line, but parallel to a mere siding, 
until I reached my station at the breakwater·. I am quite sure of this, that, in England, if the 
public necessity demanded it, no hostile company in a similar position to the Van Diemen's 
Land Company at Burnie, with a bit of a siding, would be allowed to block the. extension in a 
similar position. There would be no difficulty in England. I lrnd sidings in view of future 
traffic to Table Cape. , · 

334. By Jli.r. Guesdon.-1£ that piece of land was taken away by the agreement, would that 
prevent your plans from being carried out? .I blocked the three acres first of all, because I 
arrang·ecl with Mr. Norton Smith, and when I saw the plans, I refused the sanction, though 
I pointed out that the Government were entitled to the land by the Act of Parliament, and I 
would not take water for land. Afterwards I tried, when this was on the tapis, to get t.he three 
acres transferred from.there, subject to the approval of the Minister of the day, and leave them 
to him-( witness refers to plan )-here, for the station ; but he would not do that, though, of course, 
I saw through the whole thing, 

TUESDAY, 11TH DECEMBER, 1900. 

Examination of MR. FINCHAM, continited, 

Witness.-Before the Committee proceed any furthe:r, I would like, with their kind per­
mission, to supply a small omis~ion in connection with my evidence in connection with the break­
water, as given before yo1i yesterday. On a cha,nge oi Government taking place_:_Mr. Hartnoll 
succeeding Mr. Pillinger_:__one of the first things I did was to bring this matter before Mr. 
Hartnoll, and. he fully concurred in_what was proposed to be obtained, and I am pretty sure that 
there are in the Public Works Office letters that passed between Nh. Hartnoll ancl Mr_ Norton 
Smith in reference to this rna,tter. I ~orgot that in my evidence yesterday,. though I meant to 

.have told you. 
335. By JJ;fl,, Guesdon.-I should like you to refresh your memory, Mr. Fincham, and 

would like to draw yonr attention to the evidence given by Mr. Justice Clark. Yesterday, he 
read a letter from the Hon. Alfred Fillinger, in which be saysJ ""Will the Hon. the Attorney­
General have the necessary document prepared for my signature, guaranteeing the issue of the 
lease required by the company, in accordance with Manager's letter 7 /I 2/88_, and the 
Enginr,er-in-Chief's recommendation of 23rd ,T anuary, 1889, and 3rd May, 1889. On 
this undertaking, perhaps Messrs. -Dobson, Mitchell, and Allport will at once pay the 
amount." Now, your memory seems to have failed you altogether, because you do not 
seem to recollect any of this. The first letters you seem to have any recollection of is 
one elated 10th December, and all your evidence goes to show that you persistently 
opposed this lease. This agreement of lease was signed 21 st May, 1889, and the letter 
here says,." the Engineer-in-Chief's recommendation." Do you think your memory may have 
failed you in any ·way ?-The two things clo 'not exactly fit in? I see nothing inconsistent in it­
I could not set myself up as a superior power to the Minister. Once it was decided that a thing 
should be clone, I should recommend it ; otherwise I should be flying in the face of the Minister. 
I clo not think any man could be supposed to remember, at a distance of 12 yettrs, the elates of 
official corresponclei1Ce, or anything about them but the salient points. I told yon yesterday that 
I could only remember salient .points, and if I am to answer questions on these letters I must ask 
the permission of the Committee for time to look through the correspondence. 

336. By t!te Chairrnan.-I would like to read this to you-(Appendix IV.) W.ell? No 
doubt that is a fair copy of my endorsement, and I have always contended that the Government 
should not be obstructed in the use of the breakwater. 

337. By Jlfr. Guesdon.-In Mr. Clark's eYidence, he said that the instructions came to his 
department to prepare -the conditions of the lease in conformity with a certain Act of Parliament, 
and he said he i·eccivecl a recommenda,tion from the Engineer-in-Chief. These instructions 
went up according to the Minute Book produced yesterday by the Minister ; these instructions 
went up, yet, in your evidence yesterday, you say "My first recollection of the matter is-and 

_ ! am clear as to that point-was havin$· certain plans in my oflice-:prepared, I :presume, 
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by nI r. Norton Smith's people-a11cl a ccrt,n.in agreement placed before, me. I have already 
stn.tecl (I woulcl llot·swen.r), but I believe the fil'st occasion I saw these documents was from the 
Crmrn Solicitor?'' I aclhern most positively to that evidence, but I do not follow you exactly 
in what yon said. There wn.s no Act of Parliament in connection with this bren.kwater, and there 
was none in connection with the three acres. 

338. But this letter I will read ~o you fully :-" As it is necessary that the contribution of 
£ 1000 should be at once made by the Van Diemen's Land Company in terms of Act 52 Viet. 
No. 63, the works at Emu Bay ~Jetty under such Act being now in pI'ogress ( vide copies letters 
to Manager Van Diemen's Land Company), will the Hon. the Attorney-General have the 
necessary clocnmeHts prepared for my signature, guarauteeing the issue of the lease.required 
by the company in accordance with Manager's letter 7/12/'88, ancl the Engineer-in-Chief's 
recommenc1a.tion of 23rd Jnnuary, 1889, :1,11d 3L·d May, 1889. On ·this understanding· perhaps 
Messrs. Dobson, Mitchell, ancl .Allport will at once pay the amount?'' I cannot understand 
that at all. 

.1111·. Patterson-I can easily explain that. :Mr. Clark told us yesterday this Act of 52 Viet. 
No. 63 was a tot:illy different Act. This memorandum is distinctly wrong. · 

fVitness: There were two items of £1000. 
The ( ltairman : There were fo,o Acts of Parliament. One said that the sum of £6000 

should be expended on the breakwatel', conditionally on the Van Diemen's Land Company 
giving 3 acres of lancl; the othr.r, that £5000 shonkl ,be spent on the breakwater conclitionally 
on the company spencling £ I 000. Now, neither of tJiese Acts were bincling on the company, and, 
unfortm~a,tr.ly, t.he money was expenclecl without the company being fiL"st applied to for its 
contribution. The company then said, "·we will give you £5000 on conditions," and also that 
they wonkl give 3 acres of laml on conditions ; but the conditions in regard to the land were, 
that it should be taken below high-water mark. 

339. By Jlfr. Guesdon.-I presume if you gave a recommendation of this sort you would give 
it in writing.. Would you give it in writing or verbally ? Bot.h. 

340 ... What is the practice? Generally we give it in writing, but in this case, most likely, I 
should see the Minister ancl discuss the matter verbally with him, and give him my objections, 
because I never have, while in the service, shirked putting my objection::; before ministers in a 
respectful manner, and not always to my own advancement;- I am prett_y sure that prior to this 
proposal being embodied in the Act ;there were letters from Mr. Smith, agreeing to supply 
the £1000, and n.greeing to the 3-acre business. 

:341, Of coui·se. The only thing I want to find out from yon was this : the letter giving 
instructions to .the Attorney .General's Office was sent on the 21st May, ancl that letter says you 
recommended the lease in two letters, 23rd January, and 3nl May, 18.89; you recommended that 
these should be given. Now, I think I would like an .explanation from you, as you told us 
yesterday yon never gave any such recomme11dation. 

342. By the C!tairman.-:-Y ou have the letters? As I have said, there is nothing whatever 
inconsistent. After I fought out the matter with the Minister, there was ~o inconsistency in my 
obeying· orders. But, I say, in the most emphatic manner, that the evidence I gave yesterday is 
absolutely correct, and, I did, over and over again, object to it. 

343. By .Llfr, Niclwlls.-Is it a professional officer',s duty to recommend a thing because the 
:Minister has decided to do it? It is sent to him for his offici:tl recommendation. 

344. Do~s not that stamp it as being given with his recommendation, although, in his opinion, 
it may be-bad? . .I should like to see my recommendation. The one tb,at is specially referred to 
now. 

345. By the. Chafrman.-23rd ,T anuary, and 3rd May, there is a letter; bearing Mr. Fincham's 
endorsement, from Dobson, Mitchell, & Allport: ;, Yv e are instructed to say that the £1000 is 
now available" (that is the £1000 referred to in the Act); this is endorsed by you? 
(Appendix Xl.). That, sir, tallys with the whole of my evidence yesterday, where I contended 
that they helcl the right to run over, hnt the difficulty was, that I could not consent to thr. 
Government taking a back seat. · 

346 .. Yon never recommi:mc1ec1 that the lease as actually sent should be sig·necl ? That is 
i11consistent with all i:ny recollections of the husiness, :ill my efforts being di1·ected to preserve 
the government right::;. . 

· 347. Have you any recollection or any means of suggesting who it was that made· the 
recommendation for the lease as it was actually signed-I mean the agreement? No; I could 
not tell that. It was backwards and forwards among·st so many I coulcl not tell how it· was 
arranged at last at all. · 

348. By .lYlr. 11all.-N ow, you say, in your evidence, that yon prepared plans-plans on a 
specially !al'ge scale. In your plans yon joined the Van Die111e11 's Land Line ~oniewhere above the 
station, entered the station, and then turned off as soon as you were clear of the station, running 
yom· line on the right side of the pi·esent siding-? · That should be left. 

349. At that time there was no mention of a railway running· to the West Uoast. Do yon 
think now, as an engineer of 1mrny yeal's' standing, that the effect of that extension to Zeehan ha!! 
enhanced the value of the Emu Bay-vVaratah Railway Line? I suppose so. 

350. Now, if the Government carried out your suggestion at the present time would it not 
~nterfere with the Emu Bay Company's traffic running throu$"h from the statton? Certainl! 
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hot. You are perfectly well aware t,he Main Liue Railway joined the Western Line 11t 1£vandale 
Junction, running over the Government rail-s to near Launceston, anJ then turns off at their 
station in Launceston. Now, I snbmit this proposal is a simila.r one, though, if anything, it 
strengthens my argument, because the piece on the Burnie Line js of comparatively small value 
as compared with the Evandale to Launceston piece, which is on a main line of railway. I 
submit, with respect, that no engineer in England would have difficulty in getting powers to enter 
a station like Burnie and even run :1long their line. 

351. Can you name any similar· cases where a company has obtained power to run 
through a station? Oh, yes, numerous cases. · 

352 .. In the c~se you mention the vYestern Company ran down the Government line, but 
it crossed the Tamar lower down on. its own bridge, and then into Launceston into its 
own station. It does not run into a GoYernment station; but you propose to rmi'right through 
their station? I proposP; to run through their station, yes. · -

353. And you do not think they would have any claim for compensation? No, I do not say 
- that, I believe provisions could be made by Act of Parliament. It is a usual proceeding in 

England for one company to run over another company's lines. vVhy, to take one very large 
case: Lhat of the underground railway in London. Here you have crowded trains running 
every five _minutes, and I remember that in my time the local trains on the Great Northern Line 
from St. Alban's; 20 miles out, used to come clown and mix with the nndergrnund traffic. But 
in this country we often lose all sense of proportion in dealing with railway matters. Our trains 
are limited, our traffic is small, and our speed is slow. We often make a bugbear of clanger 
where none exists. 

354. Is it many years since you visited Burnie, Mr. Fincham ? I have certainly not visited 
it fot· six or seven years. . 

355. You have not been there ,vithin the last twelve months? No, I have had nothing to 
take me there. 

356. I will ask you another question, Mr. Fincham: You know the Government propose 
to purchase this line under the Bill that has been referred to this Select Committee : I suppose 
you have an outline of that proposal? I know nothing of it, except what I have read in the 
newspapers. 

357. :But you have some sort of idea of it through the press? Yes. 
358. Would you, as an engineer, consider that that is a business-like proposal, inasmuch as it 

must do away with all difficulties with the Van ] )iemen's Land Company? Let me unde1·stancl 
the qnestion~the proposal to purchase the line, you mean? . 

359. Yes, and to take over the necessary strip of road, and so fo,th? It is a course I would 
never advise, were I in my old position, and for this reason: the company are asking the Govel'Il­
ment to pay too much for that line, which is a mere surface line of railway. 

360. Do you speak from careful examination ? I speak from having examined the line for 
the purpose of making a valuation. 

361. How many years ago? I examined it, and made a valuation for the Commissioner of 
Taxes. I do not know how many years ag·o that was--eig·ht or ten, probably. But allow me to 
go on with what I was saying. The line is really a surface line in every sense, without expensive 
stations, and without fencing·. There are two or three small bri<lg·es, which h,we lately had -the 
timber tops or trusses renewed by steel girders. The liue is about the same len12;t_h as the Fingal 
line. The Fingal line has long expensive viaducts; heavy earthworks, and numerous expensive 
stations, while a considerable sum was paid for the purchase of land. The Emu Bay Company is 
asking the Govel'Ilment to pay a price for its stirfaee-line in excess of what the Fingal line cost, 
including all capital charges. 

362. Now, following up that, Mr. Fincham, you _say that the line has one or two small 
bridges crossing small streams ? ,Vhere the line crosses it? 

3(:\3, Yes? Yes, I should. It is a very small bridge there. I know, as I say, that steel 
g·irclers were substituted for timber in the bridges over the Whyte and Hellyer(?). 

364. Would you be surprised if I told you that there was no wood in either bridges? That 
is what I say. Originally the bridges were wood, but they substituted steel. 

365. You say it is a smface line : th::;,t, I take it, shows that there are wooden culverts 
theie? The expression "surface line'' does not necessarily imply that. 

366. You made a careful examination of the line ? I went over the line to value it, becanse 
the Commissioner of Taxes of the clay wanted to have a check upon such information as he had 
supplied to him as to_the value of the line. · · · 

367. And,- of course you examined it, and valued it with regard to_ its traffic from. the 
Waratah District over it? Oh, dear, no; I merely took into consideration the intrinsic value of 
the works. 

36.8. And not with regard to the traffic at all? No ; he did not require that. 
369. He wanted the capital value ? Yes. 
370. By Mr. Patterson.-N ow, you to~cl us yesterday, Mr. Fincham, that you had had a 

very long Parliamentary (?) experience in connection with railways; probably the longest of any 
man in the Colonies? Possibly. Not in the Colonies; in this Colony. 

371. I believe you have. I have also had a large experience. I want you now to go back to, 
that experience, and to tell thi~ Committee your opinion on the following question.-First: It 
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was suggested by one witness yesterchy, that in England running powers o bhined by one company 
over another company's lines only extended to the niain line, so to spetik, ancl not to sidings and 
stations. Is not that 11 misunderstamli11g- of the meaning of running powers ? I think it would 
depend upou the nature of this ·applic11tio11 to Parliament. The powers might generally only· be 
for running through a station along one line; but certainly, in numerous cases, it is for the use 
of sidings as well. . 

372. One moment, Mr. :Fincham? The point is this : suppose that in England the Lonclon 
t1nd North- \Vestern have the right to nm through the station-yard of the Great-VVestern, and 
supposing there are, say, twenty parallel lines in that yard, woulcl they not have running-powers 
on any one of those twenty lines 'I Cleitrly. 

373. Now, will you look at tliesc ph111s, prepared by Mr. M'Connick, and tell the Committee 
this : we have both the plans prepared by the Engineer of existing lines, showing not only the 
method of dealing with the Bumie 1111cl Ulverstone traffic to ancl through the station-yard on to 
this :freehold, but also the propos.il for getting on beyond to \Vynyanl. Now, will you tell the 
Committee what earthly objeetion them is-or if there is any objection-to the Government 
obtaining, by an Act of Parliament, running powers from this junction, above the Emu B11y station­
yards here, going through them as shown here (Mr. Patterson refers to plan), and obtaining also, 
if necessary, a portion of this laud, by resumption by Act of Parliament? I certainly see no 
valid reason why it should not be done. It is ·not inconsistent with railway practice ; and it is 
rea1ly as l tried to explain yesterday to the Committee. I proposed that years ago in connection 
with my proposal for a terminal station at West Burnie. 

374. Well, no,v, there is another alternative: that which Mr. Back intended to avail himself of 
if this question of the purchase of the W aratah line had never cropped up ; that is to say, when he 
was going· to bring· his traffic to the station-yard there outside the limits of this Company's line; and 
hand over the limited traffic that may be expected from Ulverstoue for this company to deal with­
There is no difficulty as to that, 1 presume? No; it would be a matter of arrangement. 

375. Another alternative is that, in order to get rid of the difficulties that exist at the present 
moment with the vVaratah Company, the Parliament of to-clay should purchase, for £205,000, 
this line to Waratah.-ln your opinion, would that be a justifiable expenditure, as a means of 
getting over this difficulty you see before you? As a responsible officer of the Government, I 
should be very sorry to recommend such a course, for the reason, as I have said, that -I know the 
value -of this line pretty well. . 

376. Now, we were told yesterday by _the General Mana,ger of Railways that although this 
W aratah line ha~ a continuous grade for over five miles from Burnie of 1 in 33, yet, in his opinion, 
it was equal to many of the Government rnilways-notably the railwn,y to Sorell, which has a 
ruling grade of 1 in 40, and extremely few 5-chain curves. In your opinion, n,s an engineer, is 
that five miles of continuous 1 in 33 equal or comparable to these lines of the Government, some 
of which were designed by you, and carried out by me? Certainly not. Any engineer would 
know, that the difference between l in 33, for·five miles in length, and 1 in 40, even for seven 
miles, is very serious. 

377. You are aware that this 1 in 33 follows surface only? Yes; I have said so. :My 
knowledge of the line is that it is a surface line. There are a few little banks, but, practically, 
it is a surface line. 

378. Now, would the lowering of these grades from 1 in 33 to 1 in 40 over five continuous 
miles of line cost a great amount of money? · I would not like to sn,y without seeing the country 
through which I had to work, but, speaking generally, I think I should be safe in sayiug that 
the cost would be excessive. 

379. By the Chairman,-You have not hesitated to give an opinion on the present condition 
of affairs-may I ask if you are aware of the circumstances of Burnie at present? Do you 
know anything of the possibility of a very large trnffic? I think it is quite possible that there • 
may be a large traffic. 

380. -If you were aware, for instance, that thei·e is a definite possibility of having to cleal 
with 1000 tons daily in connection with one particular procluct-woulcl that alter your opinion in 
connection with the matters on which you have given evidence? Certainly not, sir. 

381. You think that the thousand tons of ore daily, apart from, and additional to other traffic, 
could be dealt with economically aud conveniently at Burnie, in two hands? In two hands-how 
do you mean? 

:,82. ,v ell, by the Government railways, and the privately-owned railways? Well, as a 
business man, I think it would be best for one person to have control of it, undoubtedly. 

383. But you think that the obtaining· of mere mnuing powers on the company's line between 
our juuctionii1g point and the breakwater would be sufficiei1t to enable the Government to handle, 
economically, 1000 tons of iron ore a clay? No, not without they had more sidings. 

384. ,Vhere '? In some convenient place to be arranged. 
385. You might say where. Yon know the loca'lity ? I see no difficulty. I can give yon 

some iclea of it. lVIy proposal )Vas, as I stated yesterday, to run the Government siding to 
the breakwater on the left of the present siding, between there ancl the road. 

386. Yes, I understand that? And .Mr. Hall, at all events, will know that the road is not 
parallel to the breakwater siding. There are brge spaces, which would allow of sidings going 
in there. I contemplated utilising these -spaces on the plan I made out. Then, again, I see no 
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reason why my idea 0£ the sidings for the station at West Burnie should not be utilised for the 
same purpose. . 

387. How are you going to get to ·west Burnie? I have already explained that to the 
Committee. 
· 388. By getting running powers? Not necessarily; by putting a line down alongside the 
Van Diemen's Land siding. 

389. But you have just said that running powers would be ample for all we have to do at 
Burnie ? No, pardon me, I did not say that. 

ii-fr. Pattersoti.-He said in conjunction with sidings. 
390. By the Chairman.-You are aware, Mr. Fincham, that all the land needed in the vicinity 

of the hreakwater is the property of the Van Diemen's Land Company and the Emu Bay 
Railway Company? As far as I know, the land upon which I proposed to lay the line is the 
property of the Van Diemen's Land Company. • 

391. Now, as an Engineer, having to lay out works for handling and dealing with 1000 tons 
0£ ore a clay, would you say it is desireable or necessary that that land between the Burnie 
Station ancr the Breakwater should be owned by the Government? Yes, I proposed to acquire 
it in the plans I made out. 

392. How n1uch of it? I cannot tell you the acrea,ge; but I belieYe it was all the space 
between the public road and a certain limit from the existing siding, to the breakwater. 

393. Do you think, as an engineer, that the Government and a private railway company 
could work that breakwater jointly? I do not see why they should not; on separate lines, as I 
proposed. · 

394. For railway purposes? I do not see why they should not. 
395. You know, of course, that only one side of the breakwater can be used as a wharf? 

Of course. 
396. And that only one line can be used for loading and unloading purposes? Only one at 

a time. But, as I explained to the Committee, and as I made plain in the plans I prepared for 
the Marine Board, the second line would give standing-room for trucks. 

397. In your opinion, could such traffic be worked as I have indicated before, i£ a shipment 
of a thousand tons tons a day had to be made on to the breakwater-could it be worked jointly ? 
Well, my plans and proposals were made before ever the Emu Bay Line came into existence ; 
but I have never said that I thought these two sidings on the breakwater would be enough for the 
supposed traffic of 1000 tons of ore a clay. 

398. You have replied to questions as an engineer. You know the width of that breakwater? 
Yes, about 23 feet. . 

399. I am asking you whether it would be safe to have a dual ownership of that breakwater, 
one of the owners having to deal with 1000 tons of ore a day. Could it be safely worked? No, 
it would be too crowded under those circumstances. 

400. vV oulcl it be safe to work it under those circumstances? I do not see why it should not 
be safe. 

401. W oulcl you recommend it as an engineer? I should not consider that the breakwater 
was sufficiently extensive for a shipment of 1000 tons a day. . 

402. Not at all ?-Not in any circumstances? I should not think so. 
403. Therefore you think that one owner with foll control could hardly carry out that work 

on that breakwater? I think it might be difficult. . 
404. How could two people work it, then, if one could not? Well, I suppose that two 

people would take each one half of the traffic, and work it as far as they could. 
405. In dealing with a large amount of traffic like that, is it desirable that your marshalling 

and preparing_sheds, your sidings and so forth, should be as near the breakwater as possible? 
Yes, I designed this very thing. 

406. Diel you propose to put them on this piece of ground we propose to acquire ? No ; on 
the piece of ground at \Vest Burnie, where I wanted to go-the 3 acres being taken there. 

407. A'nd to get through you would have to travel over this piece of land we now propose 
to acquire ? Quite. right. , · 

408. And will you state, as an engineer, that yon had ample room up there at North Terrace 
to deal with large quantities of cargo ? I had ample room in my design for the requirements of 
that clay. 

4U9. l am asking you uow, not so much about what you proposed yourself as Government 
Engineer at that time, as to what you believed under the circumstances now existing? I am 
unable to answer that without proper information and full study of the matter. I cannot tell 
you from memory wliether the plans I prepared 8 or 10 years ago, before the Emu Bay Company 
was thought 0£, are applicable to present circumstances. 

410. But you have given an opinion that the Government proposal is one that you, as a 
responsible adviser, would not recommend. I want, therefore, to know what your position really 
is? My position is very simple. No matter what accommodation yon propose to acquire or to 
get for working this supposed traffic of 1000 tons a day, it must, in any case, be che:i.per for the 
Government to follow the ordinary every-clay practice of acquiring running powers ovei- other 
people's railways and lands than to purchase, as I understand it is proposed to purchase.the 
Bischoff Railway. 
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411. You know the Burnie station pretty well? Yes, unless it has been altered since I 

was there. 
412 Is it a large station ? No. 
413. If station-yard accommodation is l'eqt1ired, where must it be fouud? \Vherc l pro­

posed it. 
414. I do not mean accommodation for the Bumie station, but for the comp:tny? I clo not 

know what the company's requirements may be. 
415. vVell, the ordinary requirements of a tel'minal station, at any rate? I cannot speak 

for other people. I do not know what they might require. 
416. I am not asking you what they might be likely to require in the future. Judge the 

raihnty as yon know it, and, taking into consideration the orclinal'y increase of products, apart 
from extraordinary products, is there any area suitable for a station-yard other than that between 
the present Burnie station ancl the breakwater? I could not answer that question without seeing 
the ground. · 

417. I will give you the plan'/ You witnt more than the plan to go on. 
418. I will give yon the plan at any rate (plnn produced): now, there are contour lines on 

that plan. You know, I suppose, that the line begin,:; to ascend itt once here at this point, nenr 
the station? Possibly. 

419. But you ha;,e examined and reported on this line, l\fr. Fincham? Quite right, but 
you clo not expect me to carry in my head all the gradients of a line, do you? The line does 
come clown somewhere near the station. 

420. Are you 11ware that almost immediately after the line leaves the station it commences 
to mount it little? I itm aware tlrnt soon after it leaves the station it begins to mount a little. 

421. Now I will ask you : For that railw:ty station is there any other proper accommodation 
for a station-yard beyond this land I have refcnecl? For whom? 

422. For the owners of this line? Yes. If I were the Emu Bay people I should try ancl 
get a siding out there. [Witness refers to plan.] 

423. B.11 Jlfr. Guesdon.-Is it shallow water out there, then, that can be reclaimed? Yes, I 
think so. It would be expensive, of course, but I clo not think it would be necessary to inci1r any 
prohibitive expense in order to find room. 

424. By the Clwirman.-Now, supposing that tlrn Govenrn1ent have to deal with 1000 tons a 
day brought t~p to this point, is it desirable that they should be in a position to take that ore them­
selves along· to the shipping·-place? I should say so; preferably to putting themselves in the power 
of another company. 

425. And, therefol'e, is it desirable that we shoul<l acquire what is necessary in connection with 
this station-yard and this foreshore ? And, therefore, it would be desirable that yon should acquire 
necessary accommoclation for your shuut.ing-sidings somewhere. 

426. Will you point out the most desirable place now? vVell, speaking· from memory, I see 
no reason why an extensive station shonld not be made there in West Burnie. [\Vitness refers to 
plan.] 

427. Of course, another engineer says it would be impossible? I see no objection; it is level 
ground. 

Jv.lr. Hall: It is basaltic rock up there. . 
T,Vitness: Pardon me, where I proposed to put the station· it was a sandy flat. 
428. By the Chairman.-And yon see no reason why we should 11ot deal with all the traffic 

up here at We,,t Burnie? Itis quite possible. 
-129. Then to get om· 1000 tons of ore a day through, we must come through the station-yard 

here, through other people's property, and bring it up this spot ? Just as you have to bring the 
ore down from Bischoff, a long·er distance. 

430. But is it economical and desirable that we should bring it here aud hand it to another 
railway company? I would not d11 that;· I said ;;o. 

431. You recommend that we ohould take it ourselves? By some means or other, certainly. 
I recommend that the Government should get their own traffic to their own shipping place. 

432. And you,think that in order to do that it is not necessa1:y for us to acquire this land aud 
breakwater? I say it is? it. is merely carrying- out my plan. 

433. B.11 J.11r P,1tterson.-Now, Mr. Fincham, if you are· told that, in nddition to the two 
lines on the breakwater, the i\iarine Board is constructing a jetty with five pairs of rails on it, 
and that the Blythe Iron Company has uot the least ·intention of seeking admission to the 
breakwater, but intended to use this high-level jetty, which will be furnished with _hoppers aml 
everything necessary fo1· expeditiously c11rrying on their work, would that alter the position? 
It alters the whole case. The Chairman put it to me that there was only one outlet for this 
iron-the breakwater. 

The Clwirnw.n. -I do not know where J'vlr. Patterson.has got those facts. 
· 434. By Jlir. Patterson.-!. got them from the Blythe Iron. Company itself. 1 "·ill 
bring all that in latci· ou. At prnsent I will repeat my question, in order that that may be clear. 
If you are told, Mr. Fincham, that, in addition to the two lines on the breakw11ter, the Marine 
Board constructing a jetty parallel to that breakwater, with five pairs of rails upon it, ancl 
that the Blythe Iron Company has no intention of using the rails on the breakwater for this 
imaginn,ry traffic of I 000 tons a day, but intend to construct a high-level jetty of its own for the 
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purpose of discharg·ing direct fi·om railway trucks--would that, in your opinion, simplify the whole 
question? Yes; I say that if you get :five lines of rails 011 the :Marine Boa1·d jetty, and the rails 011 

the 1,rea k water as well, it ought to be enongh for ordinary traffic, and for the· Blythe traffic too. 
435. Then there is no reason to take the extreme step of purchasing this railway in order to 

get. over these difficultie!l ? I would not advi,-e it. 
436. By the Chairman.-Will y')n explain to the Committee, .Mr. Fincham, how yon would 

use this jetty from the Government line? In the same way_ that I proposed to nse the other 
jetty-by running lines out from the station I would build there. 

437. And what of the line running on to the brenkwater, the property of the other compnny? 
The line running on to the breakwater, the property of the othee company, woulcl have to be 
arranged for, as it was shown on this lease-abont which all. the trouble lrns arisen-'-by a back 
shunt. They cannot possibly run their engines from their present tramway on to the brea,kwater. 
But Mr. N cirton Smith designed a line up here with a back shunt. 

438. Is it possible to adopt the same thing, with regard to this jetty? For the Van Diemen's 
Land Company or the G;ovemment? _ 

439. For any one at all? I should think so. I do not know what the jetty will be for. My 
own proposal is plain. [ Witness refers to pla11.J I propose to acqnfre land here, and to !'Un a line 
along here and through the quarry to a station here. From that station it. was a matter of the 
greatest ease to shunt trucks backwards and forwards to the breakwater. r see no reason, giving 
an extension of this station, why we should not do the same thing here. The e~tension ought to be 
perfectly practiC'able, although it may cost money. 

440. Could that be done witbout interfering with the rights of the other owners to get on to 
the breakwater? \Ve should vel'y likely have to cross their siding·. 

441. On a level? On a level. 
442. And for purposes of handling large quantities of stuff, would that be safe? I see no 

reason why it should not be safe, under proper management. You must remember that there is 
no fast-speed traffic along this line. 

443. Would the Board of Trade allow that? I have no doubt they would. I remember a 
case near Bedford where a main line crossed the sidings of another company. 

444. How long ago ? 25 years ago-more than that. . 
445. Do you know anything about any new Board of Trade regulations as to that matter? 

I cannot tax my memory as to that. I know that the Board of Trade have altered their regu­
lations as to some matters. 

446. Do you know whether the Board of Trade will not allow the crnssing of an outside 
line on a level? I do not know ; but I say again that we lose all sense of proportion when we 
discuss railwity matters in Tasmania. The traffic here is so small compared with the enormous 
traffic that the Board of Trade has to do with, that the two things have practically nothing in 
common. .,-

44 7. Would you call this 1000· tons a day a small traffic? No, that is not a small traffic ; 
bnt I see no danger in running waggons at one or two miles an hour across there, even with a 
larg-e · traffic of 1000 tons a day. There would be signal-men there, men in charge of the 
crossing, and so forth. .. 

448. By ilfr. Hall.-Y ou state, Mr. Fincham, that where you did propose to put yonr 
station is a perfectly level piece of land? My working plans would show the place. 

449. This is known aR Blackman's Point-here? [Refers to plan. J Yes. 
450. Basaltic ? Yes. 
451. How far does the basalt extend around? I would not like to say, not having seen it 

fo1· ten years. [Witness refers to plan.] With all respect, Mr. H al,l, I do not know what you 
have in your head; but I assert that where I propose to put the station it was level. My plan 
was made from a very careful survey. 

452: I understood you to say that when you. got through this station you would crnss the 
line-or was it that you would keep to the west side? I said I would keep to the left side ; the 
side next the road. 

453. Are you aware that the Emu Bay Railway Company's line goes up close to. that road 
in plac9s, sometimes within five feet of it'? It crosses it in one place. As I explained before, I 
run into the te1·minus, and through it. When I got sufficiently clear of it I should make a 
siding, which would be a Government siding, between the company's siding · and the main road. 
I run on to the rails until I clear the station, ·and as soon as I get room I tum off. There were 
double lines thrnugh the quarry theu. But if you refer to my wOl'king plan you will see what 
provision I made. · 

454. By Mr. Patterson.-Can you get these plans, Mr. Fincham, or any plans ?-Are they 
available? They ought to be available; they are big· enong·h. . 

The Chairman.-We can get thern. 
45_5. By Mr. AihenhMd.-Il/fr. Patterson has pointed out in the plan three alternatives that 

are open to the Government, in order to acquire access to and on·. to the breakwater, and to get 
beyond it for railway extension through to Table Cape. Which would you recommend as the best 
under existing circumstances, and having regard to futnre possible developments in traffic from 
variou~ sources, and will you give your reasons i vVell 7 I l13cve really answered that· question i~ 
m! evidence alread?'. · , 
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456. Well, I want to bring you to the point? I would still adhere, in view of the increased 
traffic, or the probability of increased traffic to the Emu Bay Company now existing, to an ampli­
fication of my original design, which was to take powers for running throngh the terminus of the 
Van Diemen's Land Compa11y, at Burnie; and then by an independe11t line or lines, running to a 
station ground to be acquired and formed at West Burnie; because a station in that position would 
hav:e easy command both of the breakwate1·-the 01·iginal strncture-a11d of the Marine Board 
jetty, as fa1· as l can judge from its position as just now sketched out for me by the Chairman. 

457. Yon speak of independent lines-do you mean lines constructed, say, alongside the Van 
Diemen's Land Company's present line? Yes, on either or on both sides of it,. 

458 . .And what wn.s the estimn.te of the intrinsic vn.lue of the ,v aratah Railwn.y which yon 
made in order to enable· the Commissioner of 'l'axes to estimate its capital vrLlue for taxn.tion ? I 
have no figures preserved, but I remember it was under £80,000; i1,nd, knowing the pmpose for 
which the Government (through the Commissioner) wanted the val nation, I wn.s ea reful not to 
ma.ke it unduly low. · . 

459. Can you state whether the intrinsic value of that line has incren.secl since you made 
that estimate ? I know it has inceeasccl to a small extent, by virtue of the substitution of steel 
girders for wooden trusses on the briclges. I know that fact; bnt, beyoncl that, I have no 
knowledge of the line-as to what improvements have been made, and so on. 

460. And you can give no idea? I have not seen the line since-I·have no knowledge-I do 
know that steel girders were substituted for wood, as I say. 

461. By J.Vl.1·. Guesdon,-W ere they 41-lb. rails when you examined the line? 'l.'hey were 
41-lb. rails-yes, 

MR WILLIAM SMITH, called and e:camined. 

Mr. Smith made the statutory declaration. 
462. B,y 111r. Patterson.-Your name, Mr. Smith? \.Villiam Smith. 
463. You were formerly Secretary of Public Works? Yes. 
464. Have you any recollection of any facts leading np to the making of an agreement by the 

late :Minister of Lands, Mr. Pilling:er, to lease for 1000 years the two line~ on the breakwater at 
Burnie? No sir, I have not; the matter was·not arranged through me, and I have no knowledge 
whatever of the transaction. 

465. Then, as a matter of fact, you cannot give this Committee any information as regards that 
question? No, sir; I cannot g·ive any. The matter was arranged through the Eng-ineer-in-Chief, 
and the correspondence was conducted by his clerk, lVIr. Hamrnford, who dealt with all papers 
relating to railway matters, taking them to the Ministei· himself. 

466. And you have never seen the draft of this agreement? I do not think that I 
knew that this document was in existence till some co'nsiderable time afterwards, when the Honour­
able l\fr. Douglas canie into the office, in Mr. Hartnoll's time, aud nsked if such a document 
existed. It was then produced. Until then I believe I knew nothing- whatever of the transaction. 

467. B11 Mr. Guesdon.-Producecl from your office? It was called for, and produced, in the 
Minister's offic_e. • 

468. But this breakwater is one of the public works of the Colony, is it not? Yes, sir ; 
unclonbteclly. 

469. What is the practice in the Service-Is it regarclecl as a practice that any negotiations 
in reference to works of this sort should be dealt with in departments other than tlrnt to which 
they belong? No; but I consider that it was an irregnlar proceeding. It was a cai1se of great 
friction-friction that has not healed to-clay-between Mr. Fincham, the late Engineer-in-Chief, 
ancl myself. He wished to retain the conduct of all correspondence relitting to railways. Of colll'se, 
I helcl otherwise, consiclering that I was Secretary of Public Works, and railways were public 
works; but I clicl not press the matter, as the Minister was satisfied. 1 often had a row, rrnd at 
one time it went so far that I was n.bout to ask Mr. Hartnoll to let me go. Still, the correspondence 
was conducted specially through Mr. ffannaford, and I was in utter ignorance of n.11 that was 
being clone; in £act, papers which shoulcl ha.ve been under my control were not brought to me. 
Anything that could be kept :1way from me was kept away. 

470; .Ancl this proceeding was in direct violation of the rnles of the office? In my opinion 
it was a violation of ordinary office management. . 

4 71. I suppose you have hacl occasions where the Minister has. dealt with Public Works: 
that is as to leasing them, cluring the time when you were in the service ? No, sir; I clo not call 
one to mind, ancl I have hacl an experience of 35 years in the office. 

472. I suppose there must have been leases of public works by the Government, if not by the 
Minister, during· your time? I do not recall 011e. 

473. B,1J M1·. Ailwnhead.-You say you did not know anything about this document until after 
Mr. Hartnoll was Minister of Lands and vVorks, when. Mr. Douglas eame in about it-that was 
the first time? Yes, I believe so. 

474. · Can you remem.ber what took place on that occasion? As far as my memory serves me, 
Mr. Douglas came in and asked if such a document existed, and it was produced. I do not 
know what took place. Some time after that I left the room, 
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475. Who produced the document? Mr. Hannaford, so fa1· as I can recollect. 
476. Do you remember anythiug being said 01· clone'? Not to my knowledg·e; not while I 

remained there. I did not stay very long. 1 left the room soou after Mr. Douglas came in. 
477. By the Chai1'man.-Did you net ns Secretary for the lvlinister of Lands, .Mr. Smith? 

I was Secretnry for Public Works. -
. 478. Diel you act as Minister's Secretary as well? No, sir. 

479. vVeH, I suppose this wouldn't go through yolll' Depnrtment, would it, being in the 
Engineer-in-Chief's hands ? It did not, sir ; it was conducted solely by the Engineer-in-Chief, 
nncl the correspondence was carried out by his special clerk, Mr. Hannaford. 

480. Diel any con-e~pondence t:ike place between the Minister, Mr. Hartnoll-within your 
recollection, that is-between Mr. Hartnoll and Mr. Norton Smith, on this question?' I clo not 
recollect any. 

481. Do you recollect Mr. Hartnoll taking any actioll about it ·at all? I have a recol­
lection of some action by Mr. Hartno11, bnt I cannot say now what it was. Of course, the 
records would show that. vVhatever eorresponclence took phce would be in the Letter Books. 

WEDNESDAY, 12TH DECEMBER, 1900. 

EDWARD DAVID DOBBIE, called and e.1:amined. 

Mr. Dobbie made the statutory declaration. 
482. By the Chairman.-Y our name and position, Mr. Dobbie? Edward David Dobbie. 

Do you want my foll titles? No. "\¥ ell, I am now Recorder at Launceston. 
483. You were formerly Solicitor-GeneraJ of the Colony? Yes, for a short period, and 

afterwards Crown Solicitor, when the offices were divic1ed. 
48'!. I will ask you attention fast, Mr. Dobbie, to a minute which the late :Minister of Lands 

and Works (Mr. PillingerJ has made, dated 7t]i May, 1889, forwai·decl to the Attorney-General 
of the Colony, Mr. A. I. Clark, as au endorsement 011 a letter from Dobson, .Mitchell & Allport, 
and requesting the· preparation of a certain clocmnent guaranteeing the issue of leases required 
by the Van Diemen's Land Compa11y. Have you any recollection.of recei.ving those instructions 
forwarded by the Attorney-General'? No, I have no recollection, all this occurring so many 
years ago; but I have no doubt that the pa,pers were received, with that endorsement, in the 
ordinary course of business. Of course, that was the ordinary practice, adopte<'\ generally with 
papers bearing instructions. 

485. What was the ordinary jH'ofessional course with regard to. the preparation? If the 
matter followed the ordinary course, and i-f the instructions wei.·e followed out, that document 
would have been prepared by me, :1nd forwarded on to Dobson, Mitchell, & Allport, who were 
then acting as solicitors for the Van Diemen's Land Company, for their perusal. 

486. Was it so prepared? .My impression is that it was not. In fact, since this matter has 
cropped up in public I have endeavoured to throw my memory back, ancl I have not been able 
to recall anything· in connection with it; bnt my impression is that I clid not prepare it. 

487. You have read that agreement? I have read a typewritten copy of it, many times. 
[Appendix XIII. handed to witness.] 

488. Is that a draft of it? Well, of course, one would require to compare it with the document, 
to speak with accuracy. It looks to me a draft of that document. 

. 489. By Mi·. 1Viclwlls.-Do you know the bandwriting? The writing is that of a clerk of 
Dobson, Mitchell, and All port. I do not know the clerk, but that writing· is quite familiar to me as 
proceeding from their office. . 

490. Aud the alterations? The alterations are in the hand of Mr. John Mitchell. [Witness 
examines papers.] Yes, this is a draft of the document. Certainly, this is a draft of this very 
document, and that has always been my impression about it., that it originally proceeded from 
Dobson, Mitchell, and Allport's office: and this document seems to confirm that view. 

491. B.11 the Chainnan.-Having- seen that draft, Mr. Dobbie, are you under the impression 
that the document was prepared in Dobson, Mitchell, and Allport's office ? Yes, I am distinctly 
under that impression. 

492. Was it submitted to the Crown Law Officers? That, of course, I cannot say. lt 
ought to have an endorsement, "submitted for perusal"; anc1, if pemsec1 by me, it ought to bear 
some mark. 

493. What is this? [Hands cl.ocument to witness.] 1'hat, I know, is in the handwriting of 
:Mr. Dillon (who wal!s a clerk under me then, and who is now a clerk in the Solicitor-General's 
Office). It is a memo. showing that he copied it, Is the docurpent, signed b,r, Mr. Justice 
Clark, in the vossession of the Committee 7 . . , 
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494. No, that is an original document? That wonlcl show whether he signecl the copy that 

was made by Dillon or not. On the back of this docnment, which evidently ,vas clrnftec-L in the 
first instance in Dobson, Mitchell, and Allport's office, there is the ordinary endorsement· of the 
Crown Solicitor's Office, which is in the handwriting of Dillon, who was it clerk in my office. 
But it also hn,s a note "Engd. "J-C-D .. ", which means that he made a copy of ~t. The 
engrossment would be macle in the ordinary comse of business, ancl unless he made it he would 
not have put the note there. On the 21st day of the fifth month of 1899 he made a copy of 
this document for some purpose ; of that there can be no cloubt. There is nothing on the 
document itself to show that I perused it. 

495. By 1lfr. A£lwnhead :-He was a clerk in your department? Yes, he wits a clerk," ancl 
he macle a 'copy of it. I:Ie is now a clerk in the Solieitor General's office; he has been there all 
along. A very capable clerk he is, too. · 

496. By the Chairman :-Does not the fact of this endo1·sement by a clerk in the Crown 
Solicitor's ofRce show, at any rate cloes it not imply-that this document hacl been perused by 
yon? Yes, I think it cloes. I think it is most probable that I saw that document-that draft­
unless I happened to be away. Of course, sometimes I was away. For instance, I might 
have been in Launceston in connection with criminal work. 

497. Have you any recollection, Mr. Dobbie, of having prepared any document of this 
nature at all for signature by the Minister? . No. 

498. No recollection? No. Of· course that does not say that it was not done, but I clo not 
recollect it; but that the copy was made is evident ; there.is the endorsement. 

499. Then have you no recollection of these clraft leases? I remembe1· the leases, there was 
a lot of bother about them. · 

500. I would like you to see if you can help us with that. [Hands paper to witness.] That 
appears to me to be the first draft lease; is it? I do not remember this handwriting· at all. The 
lPase itself~ apparently, in the first instance, seems to be marked " Dobson, Mit.chell, & Allport," as 
if they had drawn it; and I notice that it is also marked as drawn by the Crown Solicitor. In 
practice, the lessor's solicitor prepares all leases, and if the ordinary practice was followed, this was 
prepared in my office; but this dues not bear the marks that it ought to bear-the endorsement, 
" l<'orwarded for perusal by the Crown Solicitor." · 

501. Do you remember this memo. written by yon on 24th November, 1891 : "Your letter 
of 22nd October received clming my absence from office. I do not unclerstancl the request you 
make therein," &c: Do you remember that? Have you got the letter of the 22nd October 
that is referred to, here ? 

502. No, we have not that letter here. "Well? This letter was, no cloubt, written after the 
difficulties hacl arisen. As I remember this transaction, at some stage, ttnd, I think, before this I 
hacl an interview with- Mr. Fincham, or, rathe1:, he came tu see me, partly in an official aucl 
partly in a friendly way, and then he produced the plans that had been atta9hed either to the 
draft lease or to the agreement. At any rate, there were plans which showed the connection of 
the Emu Bay Railway with the tramway running on the breakwater ; ancl I remember :Mr. 
Fincham iJointed out two· very serious objections _on the plans, from a railway point of view, and 
one, I remember-and I have a vivid recollection of this,-was that the plans were of such a 
nature as woulcl be injurious to the Government railway, as it blockecl the extension westwarcl. 
Ancl he also pointed out that the position of the rails as shown on the breakwater was such as 
would, practically, g·ive the breakwater to the company; and he objected on both these grounds, 
ancl then the matter got, so to speak, blocked. At any rate, this lease, which was a formal tlocumeut 
to follow that which was pract.ically a receipt for the £1000, was never carried out, and there was 
a lot of trouble. Dobson, Mitchell, & All port were threatening proceedings to enforce the agree-. 
ment. Then t.his letter was written ; and, in pointing out that the agreement was not prepared 
in my office, my object, apparently,. was to rewind them that they had themselves drawn it up, 
and therefore, could not complain of me taking the legal objection to its validity, as I then did. 

503. Have you auy idea when it was suggested that the document was not valid? I have 
no inclepenclent recollection of the circumstances at all, now ; it is such a long time ago; and 
that then the matter has passed out of my mind. But I have no doubt that the explanation wonlcl 
be this : difficulties hacl arisen, and Dobson, Mitchell, & Allport were pushing the matter in 
the interest of their clients. This would cause one to look at the position iegally, and see how 
rn,atters stood, if there was going to be litigation, to know ·where we were. Then, probably, 
looking-a.tit in that way, the question of the Crown Lands Act would come up, and it would be 
seen that this agreement went beyond the powers of the Ministe1·, ancl must have the sanction of 
Parliamei1t. . 

504. Should not that have been looked into at the Crown Law 0fRce at the time the 
agreement passed through it? Yes, I think, properly, it should. 

505. Auel there is no record 0£ objection being taken to it on legal grouncls until that 
appears? When the business came to the office the matter had been apparently arranged, 
and the whole thing settled. · I£ the matter 11ad been referred "£or advice, all questions 
would have been gone into; but, apparently, -the arrangement had been made, and the 
question was-Was the document drawn up in accordance with the arrangements en~ered into?-
~nd th~ legal side of the ~uestion, appareutl!, did not ~rise~ · 



31 
(No. 76.) 

506. Is there evide1-ice on these Crown leases that they were perused in the C1:own Law 
offices? A fair copy of the draft was, I see, made in the office. I forget the clerk's nanrn, but I 
remember the handwriting, and I see some pencil mem,oranda in the ha.ndwriting of Mr. Remy, 
who was the conveyancing clerk ; and then there is an engrossment, in Mr. Dillon's handwriting, 
with a memorandum of Mr. Fincham's in the margin. I have no doubt that it went backwards 
and forwards from the Minister of Lands· office and the office of the Engineer in Chief. 

507. These leases, at any rate, have been through the Crown Law Office? Oh yes, there is 
no doubt of that. I believe the whol_e. thing was very irregular, because, I believe that the 
first document was prepared in the office of Dobson; Mitchell, & Allport, and I have a distinct 
remembrance of Mr. Henry Dobson bringing over a draft lease-I think it was this one; he 
handed it to me himself, and I objected, at the time, to his preparing leases of Crown property : 
that he had no right to draw them up; they should be prepared in the Crown Solicitor's office. 
Apparently, this document was prepared in their office, but, I could not be certain of that; it 
may have been some other lease. 

· 508. I£ that agreement, prior to the draft of these leases, signed by Mr. 'Clark, had been 
properly prepared in the Crown Law Office, whose dnty would it be to present it to the MinisLer 
for signature? My pr.actice was to ta~rn such documents myself and get the Minister's signature 
and witness it. 

509. Do you remember Mr. Hannaford? Yes, well, he was clerk to the Engineer-in-Chief. 
510. Would such a document as that be put into his hands from the Crown Law Department? 

I do not think so. 
511. Mr. Justi0e Clark has told us that it was Mr. Hannaford that brought the document for 

him to sign. Could you explain that? Of course, that might be so if he brought it from the 
Engineer-in-Chief's Office. . 

512. Would the Engineer-in-Chief have anything to do with it-as a legal matter? Well, I 
do not think he w_ould. The only way it would come from any department under the Minister of 
Lands, would be in the way of a payme!1t voucher-as a voucher for money that had been paid. 

513. Would it be likely that a document like that would be sent from Dobson, Mitchell, & 
All port's office to the Minister for signatu1·e, direct? It is quite possib'Ie, because that document 
would be regarded as to be followed by a regular and formal lease. It would be reg·arded more 
in the light of a voucher for the £ l 000. It might have been submitted to the IVIinister of Lands so. 

514. You think such a thing is likely, seeing that the Crown Law <Jfficers were instructed 
by the Minister to prepare an agreement ?-Do you think it likely that, without the intervention of · 
the Crown Law Officers, a document could have been presented to the Minister? 1 can only say 
that if the business was done in a rngular way it ought not to have been. That document, in the 
regular way of business, oug·ht to have been presented to the Crown Solicitor, and the sig·nature 
witnessed by him. . 

515. You were present at au interview between the Minister of Lands and Mr. Norton 
Smith? Yes. 

516. Can you tell the Committee what took place at that interview? Yes. There was an 
interview at which the whole of these matters were discussed ; and the object of the meeting 
was to get the matter settled, and the lease· signed. There was a long discussion, and the 
whole thing was gone into, and it finally ended by l\fr. Ilartnoll emphatically declaring that 
he would not carry the arrangement out; that, in his view, it was a bad arrangement, and not 
in the interests of the Colony, and as long as he was Minister of Lands he would. not be a party 

. to it ; and, that if it was to be carried out, there would have to be another Minister of Lands, or 
something of that sort. 

517. Was that in connection with the signing of the leases? In connection with the whole 
matter. The lease and the other matters mixed up with it. There was also a question of the 
three and a half acres. It was all being discussed-the whole question; breakwater, and lease, 
and everything. 

. 518. Have you any recollection of a Bill being prepared to validate the agreement? I do 
not think I had anything to do with the preparation of ,rny Bill; but, probably, when it had 
been discovered that the thing had gone further than it could legally go, a proposition would 
· be made by Dobson, Mitchell, and Allport to get the necessaty a'uthority from Parliament 
to carry it out. . 

519. You do not recollect, I suppose, whether Mr. Hartnoll's proposal was to have a Bill 
prepared ? In my opinion it ·was a distinct refusal to carry out the agreement. I have a distinct 
recollection of that interview, because I have spoken to Mr. Norton Smith about it since. 
. 520. By ilfr. Guesdon.-Practically, he said that he could not carry it out? He regarded 
it as against the interests of the Colony. He wµ,s very strong about it. · 

521. Then, have you any recollection of seeing these Bills before, Mr. Dobbie, or any drafts 
of them? It is quite likely that I saw them ; but, then, one sees so many Bills that it is impossible 
to have a distinct recollection a few years after about any particular one. I fancy that Dobson, 

' Mitchell, & Allport wrote to me about iJreparing a Bill, and that I fold them I clicl not prepare 
Bills; and then, no doubt, they communicated with the Attorney-General. 

5'22. Can you give a.ny idea .of the time· of the year when t,hat ·interview took place? ,v as 
it early in Mr. Hartnolrs time? I have no recollection of the exact· elate. I remember the 
interview very well. · 

523, And the year-Was it 192 or '93 ? I could not say. 
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• . 524. There is evidence here 0£ Mr. Lewis preparing a' Bill, or a Bill being prepared, in the 
latter end 0£ 1892, revised by Mr. Lewis on the 31st October, l 892, and second revise on the 
2nd November, and, finally, the Bill as revised. Do you think that interview was prior to that 
Bill or subsequent to it? I could not Sity. I am 1mn,ble to fix it-I made no record. I was 
simply sent for. There was to be .an interview, and I was sent for to be present. 

525. Have you any idea why yon were sen·t for? . Oh, I wa,s sent for, presumably, because 
I was Crown Solicitor, and had to do with the matter. I was probably sent for to advise 
the .Minister. . · 

526. By J.llr. Guesdon.~ w·hen Dobson, Mitchell, & Allport dealt with this question 0£ the 
leases, they must have known, as Rolicitol's, that no Minister or no Cabinet would grant this lease, 
save by Act 0£ Parliament ? Yes, they ought to have known that. 

527. Thei must have known-Is that your idea ?-Is it a fair assumption that any man 
capable of acting as solicitor to represent such a company would have looked into that point ? 
They oug)1t to have looked into it. · Unless, 0£ course, the document was regarded as a voucher 
for payment 0£ money, then that side of the question, -no doubt, would not occur. · Then, as 
solicitors, they ought to have known, 0£ course, that the thing could not be clone without an Act 
0£ Parliament. Although one could easily understand that solicitors who have dealings with 
owners of properties daily would fall into the error 0£ supposing that the Minister was practically 
the owner of the land, Of course he was not; he is subject to the provisions 0£ the Crown 
Lands Act, and he could not go outside that. · 

528. Now, these instructions which came to your office referred to an Act 0£ Parliament, 
a particular Act-52 Viet. No. 63_.__now, that Act contains no reference whatever to a l(;lase.-I 
do not know whether you recollect that Act ? No, I do not. · 

529. I think there is the Act ? [Witness refers to Act.] That was authorising the work 
to be done-I see-yes. Well the document, apparently, never was prepared. 

530. But the document was forwarded on, to the Crown Solicitor's office ? 'l'he 
instructions were-. -- · 

531. Then, the first business would be to examine that Act? Yes, to look at that Act; 
but one would require the whole. previous correspondence, before doing anything, which set out 
the reasons upon which t4e lease was· to be granted. These would be the instructions: this 
Act is simply nothing._ · · . 

532. But leases 0£ this kind can only be granted under the Waste Lands Act? That is all. 
533. And the powers to grant thaf lease woulcl also be examined by the Crown Law 

Officers ? Yes. . · 
534. And, evidently, in this case, this has not been clone? Apparently not. 
535. However, do you think it has. been done, Mr. Pobbie, and the lease not prepared 

because the department had its doubts as to its legality? 0£ course, I cannot say now. 
There is only the fact that the document was not prepared, and that subsequently the question 
arose, and the point was taken. How is was, of course, I ca.nnot say now. 

536. There is no doubt, I supJJose, tha
0

t the whole transaction was beyond the scope 0£ the 
Minister or Government to grant--:-it is a matter that must be authorised by Parliament? Yes. 
The Minister, .0£ course, has no anthority outside the law. 

537. Nor the Governor in Council? Nor the Governor in Council. Whatever goes beyond 
what the law allows is invalid . 

. 538. And do yon think that a company like the Van Diemen's Land Company, owning a 
large territory, and being represented by a firm ,0£ solicitors 0£ the standing of Messrs. Dobson, 
Mitchell, & Allport, must have been fully awa.re that this lease was valueless unless it was con­
firmed by a special Act of Parliament-was outside the powers of the Minister or the Governor 
in Colmcil? I could not say. We all make mistakes. They might have been honestly under the 
impression that the Minister could.grant such a lease for a thommnc1 years. They would easily fall 
into that error, because a solicitor in ordinary practice is dealing every clay with absolute ow11ers 
0£ land, and he might natnrally fall into the error of supposing that the Minister was practically 
o,vner of that land. I think it is quite natural. We are all liable to make mistakes, E:Ven the 
best 0£ us. 

539. You say that a Ministet· has the power to grant leases under the Mineral Lands Act 
and under the Waste Lands Act. I do not know how this idea presents itself to you, but to my 
mind, it woulcl be a monstrous thing for a mining company to come and ask for a lease which 
they know is beyond the scope of the Minister to grant under the Minernl Lands Act. 0£ 
course, i£ they asked any such thing, what they practically asked for would be that Parliament 
would sanction it, [No answer. J · 

540. And a company like the Van Diemen's Land, .doing· a big business, ·and holding a vast 
territory, s~ould have been aware that the concessions askerl could only be granted either by the 
Minister or by the G-ovemor in Council-that it must have been a matter for the consent 0£ 
Parliament? Yes; probably. They should have known the faot. · . 

541. Is not that the construction you put upon it-the construction, I mean, that they 11111st 
have asked for what they knew was illegal'( No, I think they honestly made the error that they 
seem to have done. I think it is unreasonable to suppose. that a company or a firm 0£ solicitors 
would come to the Government and ask for something which they knew to be illegal. 
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542. By M1·. Nicholls.-Do you mind looking at that again, Mr. Dobb{e, that draft? There 
are one or two points in it I want to call your attention to. Have you got it? Yes. 

543. You notice that there is no endorsement in the same handwriting as that of the body ? 
No, there is not. 

544. The endo1:sement is in the handwriting of Mr. Dillon, whereas, the body of the document 
is in the handwriting 0£ a clerk 0£ Messrs. pobson, Mitchell, & Allport? Yes. 

545_. That is a very unusual tµing, is it not? Yes. · 
546. The endorsement ought to have ·been made by the people who prepared the document? 

Yes, undoubtedly.· The ordinary practice is to pnt an endorsement on every document, shortly 
describing it, and to write at the foot the name 0£ the solicitor who prepares it. . 

· 547. I suppose that when you approve any deed or document in the Crown Law Office you 
follow the ordinary practice, and make a tick on it in red ink ? When I passed a document I 
always marked it "Approved." That was my practice. That practice was always followed. 

548. You notice that the agreement was engrossed on the 21st 0£ May? Yes, on the 21 st 
May. 

549. That is the same day on which it was signed? I did not know it was signed on that 
day. . 

550. Well, you see, taking all these three circumstances together-the fact that there was 
no endorsement on it, that it was engrossed on the same day that it was signed, and f1,ll the other 
circumstances---:-there are evidences 0£ very great hurry? Yes, it appears to me to be quite 
evident. 

551. Now, could you find out, in any way, whether you were away on that day, the 21st 0£ 
May? I can endeavour to find it out . 

. 552. Do they keep any Instructions Book in the Crown Solicitor"s office? No; the common 
practiee was this : the instructions for any document, lease, or conveyance, came on a pr1nted 
form, with all the papers connected with it, and when the business was transacted, the whole 0£ 
the papers, with the completed document; were sent back to the Public Works Department, and 
a receipt taken for them in a book. That was the praqtice. There was a printed book, setting 
out what the instruments. were. That was brought down with all necessary instructions, and, 
accompanying it, the papers that gave the history 0£ the transaction up to that point. 

553. But no books were kept?_ Only a book containing entry of the document handed over. 
554: Supposing you were out of the office, would Mr. Dillon have taken instructions from 

anybody else to engToss a document? I should hardly think so. Of course, Mr. Henry was 
then conveyancing clerk, a competent man, who was quite able to attend to a matter of this sort. 
What might have happened in this case-1 do not say it did happen -is, that this document was 
taken over to .the Public Works Department, brought over to my office by an officer from there, 
copied, and taken back ; and I may never have seen it. . . 

555. It looks very much like that-does it not? That is what may have been, because it 1s a 
curious thing that I have no recollection whatever of this document. 

556. If you got an agreement to lease by the Crown, I presume you would inspect it as rigidly 
as if it were the lease itself'? Certainly; the regular· c·ourse, which should have been followed, 
was for-it to have been passed in the ordinary way from one office to another for perusal, and when 
it was finally approved as to form, the document should have been taken to the Minister for 
signature, and witnessed by myself or some other competent officer. vVhat you point out to me as 
to the date is a thing I was not aware of: it evidently points to g-reat hurry somewhere. . 

· 557. Should there be any entry in the books of the receipt of that agreement? No, I do 
not think so ; because it has not been the practice to keep a diary like an ordinary practitioner 
does ; there are no charges made. I£ some responsible officer of the Public· Works Depart­
ment brought this document over, it would be copied . and handed back to him, and there 
would be an end 0£ it.· It would be regarded as merely a receipt for so much money. . 

558. Then 0£ course there is no record as to where the instructions came from relative to the 
term of lease being a thousand years, and as to the Government having a use 0£ the breakwater, 
subject to the convenience 0£ the company? That would be in the earlier correspondence. 

559. Well, will you try and find out whether you were in the office on that day, on the 21st 
May, 1889? Yes. 

560. I suppose you might be able to find it out by going to tJ.ie office? Yes, I might be 
able to trace something that would enable me to ascertain the £act. . 

561. Ando£ course you might be.able to assist the Committee by going over the paper,: 
there with Mr. Dillon? Yes, I might be able to find out something. 

_562. By Mr. Ailtenhead.-Mr. Dobbie, what would be the ordinary rule or practice in con-· 
nection with any memo. or document referred by the head of a department, say, to the Attorney­
General, and then, in return, referred by him to the Crown Solicitor ?-Would not the practice, 
be for the Crnwn Solicitor to return that to the Attorney-General, who in turn would give it 
back to the Department concerned? That is the ordinary course; but I do not know that it 
would be followed in a matter of this kind, where there are two offices involved. Probably the 
document would be sent to the other office £or their perusal. I£ a matter were referred to the 
Crown Solicitor to prepare, he might prepare a document the other party would utterly reject. 
The arrangement would be that it would be prepared according to instructions, and submitted to 
the solicitors on the other side :for theh- perm1ii,l. 'l'hen1 when they had agi·eed as to the form of 
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it, the next step would be to take the document, the form having been settled, and engross it, get 
the signature of the Minister to it, and then go over to the other office with the document, and 
get the money. That is the ordinary regular course which, in this instance, does not appear to 
have been followed at all. . 

563. · Supposing the .Attorney-Geuerar had requested the Crown Solicitor to draw up an 
agreement in certain terms ? Yes. • 

. 564. Would the Crown Solicitor return 'tlrnt to the Attorney-General? Not necessarily. 
He would make a jump, so to speak. He would draw. up a document according to instructions, 
:u~d then if the instructions showed him that there was a solicitor on the other side, he would 
submit his draft direct to the solicitor; and when the two solici.tors, the Crown ::;olicitor and the 
solicitor for the other side, had agreed as to the form, the document would be copied, and instead 
of sending it back to the Attomey-General it would go direct to the Minister and get his 
signature; then he would notify the other side that he had the document signed, and they 
:would pay the cheque and get it. That is the regular course-the course I have adopted in 
numberless :instances. 

565. By 11£1~. Patterson.-Seing the suspicious circumstances that attend and surround the 
preparation of this agreement, are you of an opinion that the Government would be justified in 
still refusing to issue the lease ? vVell, of course, that :is rather a big question. It involves a 
question of policy into .:which many'considerations enter. 

The Chairman : I do not think the question should be asked. I do not think it is exactly 
a ~ai_r position to put a g·entleman in who comes here to give us evidence as to facts rather tlmn 
opm10ns. . 

566. By Mr. Patterson.-The question is this-I repeat it-Seeing the suspicious 
circumstances that surround and attend the preparation of this agreement for issuing the lease for 
1000 years at a rental of one/ shilling a year-that the agreement was not prepared in the 
Crown Solicitor's Office-that the Minister had no power to make such an agreement-that 
subsequent ministers steadily refused to issue the lease-are you of opinion that the Govern­
ment would both ethically and legally justified in still refusing to issue the lease, and that the 
repayment of the sum of one thousand pounds, together with cornponncl interest, would meet 
the equities of the case? vVell, that is a question I am hardly prepared to answer. It involves 
very many considerations, and I should want a great deal of time. 

567. By llfr. Niclwlls.-Of course you can itnswer it as to the legal position at once? "' ell, 
that involves considerations too. 

568. By 1111·. Patterson.-But you have already advised us as to that-have you not? I 
have already put on record my opinion that the arrangement was ultra yi1·es as to the Minister's 
powers. 1 

• 

569. You are not prepared to answer the other question I put to you? I am not prepared 
to give an opinion straight away. It involves so many questions of policy-questions, fen· instance, 
as to the desirablity of Parliament ratifying that agreement. 

MH. JAMES STIRLING, called and examined. 

Mr. Stirling made the statutory declaration . 
. 570. By the Chairman.-Yonr name and position, Mr. Stirling? James Stirling, Engineer in 

charge of the Emu Bay Railway. . 
571. By llfr. Patterson.-How many trains a day go into Burnie from Waratah? At the 

present time? · 
u72. · At the present time ? One, as a rule; sometimes there is a special. 
573. What is the average tonnage of goods ai'id miuera+s brought into Burnie? Over the 

W aratah line we rnn about 5000 tons, exclusive of line-construction traffic. 
· 574. Per year? Per year. . 

575. What is the average construction of the train as to the number of velncles, &:c. We 
generally rnn about two carriages, and four to five cattle or goods-trucks. 

576. I snppo::;e you have not the tariff of g·oods and passengers with yon? I have not got the 
tariff with me ; no-that is cost per ton, and so forth? . 

577. Yes? No. 
578. You do not know from memory? Mostly, about three pounds per ton, I think. 
579. Wha,t are the working expenses, and what the earning·s of this line, on the last return 

you have ? For H100 ? 
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580 .. For 1900, as far as you have gone? On the W aratah section, for the 10 months of 
1900, up to the end of October, the receipts were £] 5,038. 

581. What were the earnings for the same period? Those are they-the rec'eipts. 
582. Of course; I beg your pardon-wha.t were the working expenses? £13,747, including 

rent, general charges, maintenance of road, and traffic expenses, &c. 
583. That is the proportion of the rent?. Yes. 
584. At the rate of £10,000 a year? At the rate of £10,000 a year- yes. 
585. How is the traffic from the Burnie station to the breakwater conducted ?-Of course, I 

know personally, but I want to have it on record.-H ow do you take the goods? In trucks. 
586. By what motive power? Engine-haulage sometimes; but mostly horse, at present. 
587. Will your engines go round that 3½-chain curve from the siding to the breakwater? 

No ; but that is not a 3½-chain curve. _ · 
588. What is it ? One and a half. 
589. It is shown 6n the plans here as 3½? No; the 3½ is that on to the new wharf. We 

have an engine that will go round that. 
590. What s~ze are the sleepers on the railway ? About half of them are 9 x 5, and the 

remainder 9 x 4½. Since 1891 they have been relayed right throughout the whole line. They 
were put in 9 x 4½ in section. Since I have been here we have_ put in 30 odd thousand; and 
we have more to put in yet. They are.all 9 x 5 since I have been here. 

591. I presume the object of laying 9 x 5 sleepers was the contingency of relaying with 
60-lb. rails ? No. When I came over we were putting 9 x 5 sleepers on the new line, · and in 
letting the contract for this line I,.did not trouble to look what the original sleepers were, and 
put in the same. · , 

592. What is the length of line from Guildford Junction to~Zeehan ? 48 miles 50 chains ; 
that is, to the Junction. 

593. What is the class of railway construction you have adopted-is it equal to that on the 
Government lines ? Practically, the Government standard. 

594. Built to Government specifications ? As nearlJ as possible. 
5P5. To the satisfaction of the Government engineer ? It has to pass the Government 

officer. 
596. It is a superior class of line to this surface line from Burnie to W aratah ? Merely in 

having the rails heavier. 
597. Are the g-rades heavier on the Burnie-Waratah line? With th~ exception 0£ \he five· 

miles out from Burnie, they are the same. 
598. What is the average_ grade on the new line ? The ruling grade. is 1 in 40. 
,599. How long is that grade that has been r'eferred to out from Burnie that Mr. M'Cormick 

says is 5 miles 20 chains? The 1 in 33 does i.10t extend the whole distance of the 5 miles, but 
beyond the 5 miles there are no 1 in 33 grades. It runs out from Burnie about two miles, and 
then we have a lesser grade, and there is a bit 0£ level in places. But the ruling grade up in the 
5 miles is 1 in 33 ; beyond that there is nothing hmwier than 1 in 40. 

600. Have you the plan with you? No, Mr. Smith would have it. 
601. What is the weight of the locomotives imported for the Emu Bay and Zeehan line? 

They were specified at 78 tons; but by the weights we have received, they would be 72. 8-wheels 
coupled. 

60'2. Is there a bogie ?-A 4-wheel bogie in front? Weight on the drivers, average about 
9 tons. The heaviest is about 9 tons 7 or 8 cwts., then they come down to 8 tons 16 cwts. I 
think. Anyhow, they average about 9 tons. 

· 603. These four axles would cari'y the bulk of the load, would they .not? They would carry 
between 36 and 37_ tons ; average, 9 tons to the axle -4 axles. · 

·· 604. Then how do you make it up to 72 tons in weight? Between 36 and 37 tons on the drivers, 
and a little over 10 tons on the bogie. And then there are· :>.5 tons in the tender loaded. Of course, 
71 or 72 tons is the loaded weight. · 

605. The engine itself does not weigh 72 tons ? · No, the engine and tender ·complete in 
working order, loaded with coal and water. 

606. By the Chairman.-That weight is spread out over how many wheels ? Well, the 
tender is on two 4-wheel bogie, that is four axles. And then there are 6 axles under the engine. 

607. By M1;. Patterson.-Of course, what controls the thing is the weight on the drivers ? 
Yes. · 

608. Now will these engines be allowed to work on the section .·from Guildford to Burnie ? 
No, I do not intend to work them there. 

609. As a matter of fact you could not· on 41 lb. rails? Well, you could, but it is not 
advisable. 

610. Had you or your company-any intention, under this option of the purchase of the line; of 
continuing their 60 lb. permanent way, and relaying the line to Burnie? 'l'hat was left over for 
future consideration by the Board, ~o far as I know. When I took charge there was no intention 
of relaying. 

61 I. But does it not seem strange that yon should have a heavy permanent way for 50 
miles, and then that for 38 miles you _should be suddenly handicapped by a light permanent way? 
You have to split up and divide y0ur train, ~ou see. It may seem strange in a way, but when we 
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were making the new line, we thought it desirable to make it thoroughly good. Everything had 
to be of standard quality, and it only meant getting- the heavier rails to make it a thoroughly good 
line. If traffic had increased sufficient to warrant it, the other could have been done. But the 
traffic at the time did not warrant relaying the other line. . 

612. If you thought it advisable you would relay with 61-lb. rails-if you had the money ? 
No ; if the traffic warranted it. · 

613. By J.11r. 1-lall.-M r. Stirling, J.\fr. Fincham stated in evidence yesterday that the grade 
was continuous for 5 miles-a continuous grade of l. in 33 from Burnie to 5 miles 10 chains-is 
that right? Not. quite. You will see when you have the plans. It it generally considered to be 
1 in 33; but, as I say, it varies. Sometimes it is 1 in 60, sometimes 1 in 40, 1 in :-rn, l in :36, and 
in one or two places 'there is a level. 

614. By the Chai1·man.-Are there any down grades? One or two short bits only. 
615 ... What altitude do you reach in the .5 miles? I cannot tell you from memory. I would 

not like to say, althongh I have seen the section. 
616. By J.1fr. Hall-What is the width of the formation rig·ht through? About 14 feet, 

with the exception of three cuttings, I think. 
fll 7. Now, in your opinion, as an engineer, supposing we decided to relay the line with 60 lb. 

rails, would it be necessary to add to that formation or strengthen it in any part ? No. 
618. What is the condition of the 41-lb. rails ?-Are they in good order ? In very good 

order. · 
619. Now, it has been stated, l\ir. Stirling, in the House, and at every street corner about 

this Colony, that the whole of the culverts are wooden, and some of them not in good order-is 
that correct ?-Will yon tell the Committee how many wooden culverts there are, and what the 
others are? The generalrun of the culverts are pipe drains. There are two wooden culverts: 
one at the Main Creek and one over the Bischoff Company's race that runs into Waratah. There 
is a concrete culvert at one of the larger streams, ·which I built, replacing a wooden bridge; and 
there is a masonry culvert at the creek, somewhere near Guildford Junction. I think that, with 
this exception and the bridges, all the other culverts are drains, except, of course, cattle-pits,· -which 
are wooden. 

620. As a matter of fact, there are only three wooden culverts?· Two, I think. . 
621. And the bridges? There are four main bridg·es: one over the Wye, concrete abut­

ments and steel girders: one over the Hellier, masonry abutments and pier with wooden super­
structure; one at the lVIt. Bischoff dam, a wooden bridge entirely, wooden piles and superstructure; 
and there is the vVaratah bridge, of which the abutments are piles, the superstructure steel, and 
the pier in the centre concrnte and steel-concrete foundation with a steel pier on top of it. 

622. Have you had many years' experience in connection with railway construction? 1 have 
been 2,5 years, now, at railway work. . 

623. This line has been referred to as a surface line only.-Of course, I am not an expert. 
I do not pose as an expert.---! would like your opinion as a railway engineer on that question.­
vV ould you call and consider that line a surface line? Yes, it is_ built on the surface; but that 
makes no difference to the line.- It is a surface line, because there are hardly any deep cuttings or 
banks. . 

624. One witness points out that that depreciates the value of the line.-in your opinion 
does the fact that it was referred to as a surface line detract from the value of the line? Not as a 
line-No. 

625. Now, what trains is this line capable of ca1Tying? '\Vell, with our present heavy 
engines of 25 tons you could run as many trains as you liked; the line is thoroughly fit to carry 
ili~. ~ 

626. I suppose you know, Mr. Stirling, that there is a prnposal to purchas~ the Em~ Bay 
Cvmpany's concessions from the Van Diemen's Land Company ?-It has been pointed out that, if 
the negotiations fail, the Government can by some nwans-it has never been explained how-pass 
through your statio11 at Burnie-claim a right to pass through your station, cross your line, and run 
along to ~he breakwater: that is, of course, by paying you compensation.-Can you give an instance 
of where a Government or private railway has past,e<l through another company's station yard or 
station buildings? I could not give any instance jnst now. I see no reason why running powers 
over one line should not be given; but beyond that I do not think anything· could be done without 
interference with our traffic. . 

Ci27. Yom contention is, that by running _through your station they would impede your 
traffic? If they went off the main line. You could have running powers for one line, but you 
would not have any right to take om· station siding-s. 

628. You have stated, Mr. Stirling·, in reply to Mr. Patterson, that your charges on that 
line are £3 per ton-do yon make that charge for silver ore, or for any ore, except tin ore, from 
\,V aratah to Burnie? No, we have special arrangements as to some other ores. 

629. For low-g-rade ore ? Yes. 

630. And for all other g·oods that is the charg-e? For _most other goods. There are a few 
special things, but, taking it as a general rule, I think £3 is what we charge. 

631. Hy the Chairman.-From your obsr.rvation, Mr. Stirling, how dues that line compare 
with the general lines of the Colony? I should say it was quite equal to them, from the standpoint_ 
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of running or maintenance. We do not have any severe maintenance. Of course it is impossible 
to compare lines without comparing traffic. 

632. Would it be possible for Government engines and rolling stock to travel over it? Yt>s. 
633. Wnuld it carry any rolling· stock we use in Tasmania? I think so. I do not know 

your stock; ·but, as far as I know, it is possible .. 
634. Would it be possible for an engine to take as large a load as on the Gov~rnment lines? 

No: the grades would come in there. 
635 .. ,v uuld the difference be very great?-vVhat lines would you compare ?-'l'ake lines of 

equal grade our line will carry the same as the Government line·, according to the engine-power 
you put to it. . 

636. ls there anything in connection with your first seetion from Burnie to the 5-miles that 
makes it more advantageous than the Government lines with regard to curvf's ?-Have you many 
curves on that section of line? A fair number, but not so bad as others we have. 

· 637. "That radius are they generally? . 5 chains. 
638. Many 5 chains? A fair number of 5-chains. You will get this exactly from the plan ; 

I can't speak from memory. The line, of course, is controlled by its curves. One grade or curve 
will control a line. It is very difficult to speak on the matter without I have the pla11 before me. 

639. You have entered in to a contract to carry a large amount of coke and coal next year from 
Burnie to Zeehan? Yes, ~vith the Lyell Company. 

640. Or with the Uniou·Company? Yes; we are with the Union Company, but it is for the 
Lyell Company. · . 

641. How do you purpose dealing with that-I mean with regard to hauling it from Burnie to 
Zeehan ·? I intend to run the heavy engines from Guilford to Zeehan, and . the light eI],gines-our 
present heavy ones-from Burnie to Guildford. 'l'he new eng'ines will take about two loads of our 
present engines. 

642. Will not that be uneconomical? 'l'o a certain extent; but it will be less expensive than 
relaying the whole road for that quantity of traffic. 

643. Have you been anticipating during your management having control of this line, either as 
owners or lessees, for a number of ye;.irs? Yes; I have been looking· forward to working it. 

644. And have you bee11: with reg·ard to the maintenance of ihe line, making preparations in 
that. direction? We have been keeping it thoroughly up to its original conclition. If anything, it is 

• better than befor"l; we have p•1t the heavy sleepers in, for one thing. 
645. Have you improved it? Yes, l have improved the vVye bridge, put in a concrete culvert 

and a bank for one of the wooden bridges. 
646. Have you replaced any by steel bridges ? No; a wooden bridge has been replaced in 

my time; and we have strengthened one steel bridge. 
647. In the return of traffic you gave us awhile ago, you have included, I suppose, the 

Zeehan traffic ? All traffic over the vVaratah line. 'l'he way we keep our accounts will show 
all traffic on the W aratah line as belong-ing to the W aratah line. . . 

_ 648. 'l'hen your statement, that the ruling rate is £3 a ton, would be hanlly correct? It 
would be hardly correct for the whole of the traffic. 

649. In these returns all the z·eehan traffic, to and fro, would be at a lower rate than £3 
per ton ? Yes. .. , . 

650. What has your experience been on the line since you have taken it over, with regard· 
to traffic ?-Has it increased or decrea~ed? A very little increase-very slight. . 

651. That is in connection with Waratah? I spoke of the W a,ratah line alone. On the 
new line our own traffic has incre3,sed considerably. 

652. Have you entered into a contract for carrying ore from the Magnet mine?. I do not 
know whether the contract is sign~d ;- but, I believe, the preliminaries are signed. It was to 
cany 1000 tons a month after the firgt 12 months, and 500 tons a month for the 12 months. 
That is to ~:ive them, time to open up their mine. 

653 .. What is the extent of that contract? I do not know how many tons, 
654. How m<iny years? I could not say exactly, but I believe•for several years. I have 

not seen any contract myself. I only know the rates. 
655. But you are pretty sure the preliminary contract has b_een sign<;id ? As far as I know, 

the whole thing is complete. But, as it was done in Melbourne, I would not know until the final 
arrangements were made. 

656. Have you seen the Blythe Iron .Mine yourself? Yes ; I miide a report on it. 
657. Do you know anything of the present proposals with regard to it? Well, I do know 

something about them. . . 
658. Is there a probability of that ore being exported from Burnie? Yes, I think so; a 

very great probability. . · . · 
. q59. Is there any other place to export it from? No, not that I know of. 

660. Any other place ·so economical, or so good ? No; that is the best place for it. 
66]. :\,Vil! special port appliances be necessary in connection with handling that ore? Well, 

perhaps, and perhaps not. That will be a question entirely for the Blythe Company; They 
could provide rolling-stock which would do away with the necessity of auything, except 
cranes, on the wharf. It would he quite possible for them to have hopper trucks, which could 
be lifted by the cranes, and deposited in the ship. 
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662. If tl:ie mine is opened, will the ore have to be dealt with in large quantities? The 
present proposal is 6000 tons a week, ancl I believe they do not contemplate doing much less than 
that at the start. 

663. I do not like asking you questions that ought not to be put to you, perhaps, because 
you are a representative of the Emu Bay Company, and personally interested; but I will ask 
you, if that ore is to be dealt with, how must it be brought to Burnie? Over the Government. 
line, as far as I can see. · 

664. Then I will ask yon: In the event of the Government having to deal with 6000 tons of 
ore per week from that mine in addition to the other traffic, will there be proper accommodation for 
dealing with that in the present Government station-yard ? I really clo not know what 
accommodation there is. 

665. So far as the area is concerned, I mean ? Barely enough, I should think. 
666. Has that ore got to go to the breakwater to be shipped, or to the jetty, or both, Mr. 

Stirling? Oh, I should think, to the jetty. 
667. In preference to the breakwater? In preference to the breakwater, yes. 
668. In going up to the jetty, would it not be necessary to have shunting accommodation 

between your present sta1ion and the jetty ? It would be necessary. But then our station 
practically goes to the jetty. I regard our station-yard as going right up to the jetty. 

669. Yon do ? Most decidedly; for, dealing with oar coke and coal traffic, all the sidings we 
intend to put in we intend to put along· thdt portion. · 

670. Is there any area suitable for a station-yard, except that? No. 
671. I will ask you, as a railway engineer, Mr .. Stirling, is it desirable that that section 

between your present station and the breakwater (in view of the probability of handling large 
traffic) should be dually controlled? Most decidedly not. 

672. It should be controlled by one Jjart.y? By one piirty. I know I should accept no 
responsibility if anyone else had the worl,ing of it. . . 

673. Therefore, if your company retains the responsibility of working it all we could expect 
would be to get the single line through to vV ynyard? Yes, that is what l think it should be. 

674. And w·e would otherwise have to ha11d you our traffic ancl let you deal with it? 
Otherwise, you would have to let us deal with it. As a matter of fact you could not get in ; we 
might have every siding occupied. vVhere would you go? 

67 5. Your line is not open through to Zeehan yet? Not yet. 
676. Have you reason to anticipate much increase of traffic when you open through to 

Zeehan? I hope for a good increase in passengers ancl cattle, at present. 
· 677. Are you bringing ore from the Mount Farrell district now ·1 Yes, a certain quantity-. 
678. Are you aware that a tramway is to be constructed in the Mount Farrell District? Yes. 
679. Have you seen the mines there? I have not seen the mines ; but we are making a 

statiou- for them to start from, at the junction of our line. 
680. Do yon know, as a matter of fact, that there is a quantity of ore waiting at Mt. Farrell? 

I am told so by the buyer. I have seen him pretty often. · 
681. By Mr. Patte1·s011 .. -Practically,,in your opinion, Mr. Stirling, the only thing required 

to bring the Bischoff Railway up to the Government standard would be the lowering of this 1 
in 33 grade to the G;-overnment ruling grade of one in -10, so tbat it then should take the same 
traffic as Government lines with similar curves and grades? As far as the standard is concerned, 
it is equal now. ' · 

.· 682. I .am only talking of the loads you can take up, as between 1 in 33 and 1 in 40? That 
is a new distinction ; I do not know your grades. 

683. The ruling grade on the Government lines is 1 in 40. If ,vou brought that l in 33 
grade down to that it would bring you exactly to the Government line 7 You could take the 
same loads if you hacl tlie same grades, of course. 

684. I suppose the cost of lowering this grade to 1 in 40 would be extremely large, involving 
extremely heavy .cuttings 7 I should say so . 

. 685. vVell, _Mr. Stirling, you know the country and. the contour-is it not a fact that if the 
grade was lowered to l in 40 you wonlcl have a cutting at the top of the five miles 1.40 feet in 
depth ? ,v ell, you could not keep the same track at a I in 40, and I do not think the Van. 
Diemen's Land Co111pany would allow us to go off the present route. 

686. If it had to be do11e, it wonld be an exceedingly costly undertaking ? There is 110 

Hece~sity to to do the work; but if it had to be done, I !-uppose it would. 
· 687. ,vhat will be the ultimate cost of the Emu Bay and Zeehari Railway ? I can hardly 

say rio·ht off. 
688. Can you say what it is without the rolling-stock? vVe have spent £300,000 odu~I could 

not say the exact amount. . 
689. Would it cost £400,000, including rolling-stock, when completed?. About that; I should 

think. 
· 690. By the Chairman.-Diu yon ever make an estimate of the cost of laying the line from 

Gniltlfonl to Burnie with 61-lb. rails? Yes. 
691. What would it cost? £18,000 to £20,000 . 

. (j~ 2 ,v ou Id that include taking II p the old rails and everything ? Yes, sellin.g the prese11t 
rails, supplying new sleepers-everything, 

• 
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693. This first section of steep grades extends how far? Five miles. 
694. Is it likely that any company will ever find 'it necessary to g·o to a great expense to alter 

that ? No ; because the intention was, that if we had to take up heavy loads we would bring a 
pusher engine up from Burnie to the 5-mile station. It means an extra engine, that is all. 

695. That would be more economical than taking another load ? If you were doing a large 
traffic, it would cost very little, because you would have to keep a shunting engine at Burnie, and it 
could easily do the work. At one time it was proposed to have a marshalling station up there, but 
it was represented that that would be more expensive. 

696. By. M1._ Hall.-Mr. M'Cormick estimates the cost of relaying with 61.-lb. rails at 
£14,025 ; is that a fair estimate? I think it would cost £18,000 or .£;20,000. 

697. Do you know whether the Magnet Company is about to construct a tramway to- connect_ 
with your line at W aratah ? Yes; they asked me to recommend an engineer to take charge of the 
work, and I recommended Mr. Anketell. He has since told me t_hat it is practically agreed that 
he should do the work. · 

698. Is it correct that North Mount Farrell is also taking steps t~ construct a tramway 
to junction with your line? Yes; I. was informed by Mr. Armstrong that they had ordered 
rails and rolling-stock, and were going to start very shortly. 
• 699. By Mr. Patterson.-W·ith regard to the question about lowering these grades, are you 

not aware that the Government 0£ New South Wales is now spending enormous sums in lo'wering 
grades so that they can get extremely heavy engines to work? They have a di:fferent problem 
to solve altogether. Ours is simply a mile or two out of the station, ·and the difficulty can 
easily be solved by keeping an extra engine as a pusher. The heavy grades they are lowering 
in New South Wales are a long way from head quarters. · 

MR WILLIAM ,TONES, called and e:i:amined. 

Mr. William Jones made the statutory declaration. 
670., By the Cltairman.-Y our name is William Jones? Yes. 
671. You are a.resident 0£ Burnie, Mr. Jones? Yes, sir. 
67.2: And acquainted with the proposal to purchase the Railway? Yes, I know a little 

about 1t. 
673. The Railway from Burnie to W aratah? Yes. 
674. How long have you been at Burnie? Nearly 40 years. It is 40 years -smce l first 

went to Burnie, but I was _at sea for a good many years afterwards. 
675. How,long have you been a permanent resident? Ahout 27 or 28 years. 
676. Has the town advanced very much? 0£ late years it has. 
677. Has trade increased in the port? Oh, yes. 
678. You can speak as a nautical man, can you? A little that way. 
679. You are a sea-captain? Oh, yes. · -
680. Is there any other port up there that will serve as an outlet for produce _from that part 

of the Island? Where? . 
681_. Within 25 or 30 miles ? l\othing nearer than Devon_por(-oi:-Stanley. It. 1s about. 28 

or 30 1mles to Devonport, and about 40 miles to Circular Head. . , : - · 
682. :Burnie has an artificial harbour, has it not? 'fo a certain. extent, yes. 
683. Are you interested in th.e Blythe Iron Mine? I am. - _ · · , 
684. Will you tell the Committee, without divulging anything contidential, the. particulars as·.­

!o t~e pr~sent positio:i, with regard to the working and developm~nt of the_ mine? .Well, perhaps 
it will _be JUSt as well 1f you gentlemen spoke tu Mr. N urton-Sm1th, who 1s orie _ of_ the directors. 
He might give you information with reference to the flotation, and so· forth, better. than·, J can. I 
know a little about it. - . · · , . , ,. 

685. Will you tell us what you know? The proposal is tu -float the company with a capital 
of £1,000,000 sterling. £30,000 is already paid. .\I r. Keats is now at home .--to ,meek Mr. 
Darby. The intention is to erect works in New South Wales to manufacture the iron: ·:'£10 ·ooo 
has been paid to the New South w ales Government as a deposit,' to show good Hith-,--,-to ,:show ·_ 
that they will carry out these works. The Government 0£ New- South Yff ales, on:the other,,hand, 
has ~greed, to a certain extent, to give the company an order for 100,000 tons 0£ steeL·rails, 
runnmg over four years. ·:.: 

686. Is that the extent 0£ the order? And for any other i1'on that may be required by,the 
New South Wales Government · .,- _., -

68i. Has that been accept;d by the New South Wales Go~ernment? 1 believe-w. 
688. Have you any idea 0£ what amount of ore it will involve being dealt with' at· Burn1e? 

The present scheme-Mr .. Darby's scheme-is for handling 1000 ions a day,- as; tar as I 'know 
aboutit. _- >: .:·-, .--

689. And how must that reach Burnie ? - It must reach it, first, by the railway; ,ff½. niiles 
and then about 5 miles over the Government line. · - · • · .·• -- - .,; ' ' 
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690. It has to go over the Government line? Yes, from the Blythe. 
69 l. You think it is desirable that the Government should be in the position of taking the 

ore straight to the shipping pface? I really cannot see how they could do otherwise. If they 
do, I am afraid the venture will be hampered very much. In fact, I doubt whether they will be 
able to carry _it out, if there :1re two or three dragging the stuff about-the company and the 
Government. I do not see where it would encl. . · 

692: Have yon :1ny idea of the intrinsic value of the ore? As raw m:1terial, it is worth, as 
nearly as possible, 14s. or 15s. per.ton. . · 

G93. \Viii it give economical handling? If not, the matter will be at a clead stop; there is no 
doubt about it. vVe are usi11g every precaution, and saving· expense. 

694. You know this strip of land pretty well, between the Burnie Railway Station and the 
breakwater? I do . 

. 695. Is there any other route which could be taken in order to get to Wynyarcl? Not so far 
a8 I know ; c:ertainly not. 

696. Is there any other piece of land at Burnie that will form a proper station-yard for 
working this traffic for export? No, there is no room anywhere. 

967. ls it likely, in the future of Burnie as a harbour, that wharves could be built much further 
in shore than the present jetty? One or two, perhaps ; not more. 

698. ·will they have deep drift of water, or will it be shallow? One of them would not be 
deep enough drift for ordinary Australian traders. 

699. How far inlantl from the new jetty you are now erecting would that be? Oh, say, 
a couple of hundred feet. 

700. That would be about 400 feet off from the breakwater? That is right, roug·hly. 
701. Can you construct wharves further in towards the head of the bay? That is, in-

shore. 
702. ·Jn-shore? Oh, yes. 
703. I mean :for your ordinary I ntercolonial steamers? Oh, yes ; but, of course, we cannot 

go too far out. We must keep within the protection of the breakwater, for eastedy weather. 
704. Then, each pier as you go in will have to be shorter? Yes. 
705. And, therefore, the water will be shallower? Quite so. 
706. You know the districts of Flowerdale and vV ynyard ? Yes. 
707. Table Cape ? Yes, fairly well. . 
708. Is that a good agricultural district ? 
709. Have they a convenient port ? No, 

harbour there, but it is quite a failme. 

No better {n Tasmania. 
they h_:Lve uo port. They constructed a new 

710. Is it desirable, supposing a port could be made there at a comparatively sru.dl cost, 
that one should be made ? Certainly not. 

711. You regard the port of Burnie, theri, as being the port of :Flowerdale, vVynyard, and 
Table Cape districts ? I am sure there is no other. 

712. Then, will the export traffic, in your opinion, from Table Cape and Flowerdale 
Districts, have to b_e brought to Burnie for shipment ? Certainly ; the bulk of it is brought 
there now. 

713. How is it brought? Why, by carts and lighters from the river. 
714. In the event of a railway being constructed to Flowerdale, ·do you think it would all be 

brought ? Oh, yes; certainly; no doubt at all about that. 
715. If it is brought from there, where will it be shipped from ? From Burnie. 
716. From what part of it? From the present breakwater, or the new wharf. 
717. That.will be a question for the local Board-the .Marine Board-- to deal with. It 

all depends on what traffic there is to the wharf. In my mind, the local trade should be. from 
the breakwater. 

718. You know the breakwater very well, don't yo~1? I do. 
719. Do you think, from your knowledge of loading and unloading ships, tlrnt, with ships 

of large tonnage being loaded at the breakwater, the two lines of railway there could be used by 
two different authorities-two different owners? On two lines of rails, you could not work, as 
far as loading and discharging ships is concerned. . You can only use one rail. 

720. You can only load oi· unload vessels from one rail? That is so. 
721. Therefore, there could not be a dual working of the breakwater or a railway pier? 

No. You might have two ships loading at a time: one, a la1· ge one, at one end, and one at the 
other end ; but otherwise you could not. 

722. Now, apart from the working of two different lines, could this breakwater, or railwity 
pier, be worked, with a large traffic, by two authorities? Why, certainly not; there is 
no room. 

723. Do you know all the facts in connection with this thing pretty well ? I think so. 
72'1. In your opinion, as a nautical man, who has control of the port of Burnie at the present 

time? That I cannot tell you. · 
725. Well, has the Government got control? No. · 
726. Should the Government have it? Certainly, without any question about it. 
727. Is it necessary for that part of the Island of Tasmania that the control of that port 

i;hould be absolutely in the hands of the Government? The1·e is no question about it at all. 
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'728. E11 11-11'. Pattdson.---'-Has not the Marine Board got control of. the harbour? To a 
certain extent, they have. 

729. By the Chairman.-What part of the harbour has the Marine Board got control of.? 
At present, they have the whole control, except this line on the breakwater, which is handed by 
Mr. Norton Smith. 

730. How dio. the Marine Board obtain control of that little piece of land 9n which the 
wharf is erected? After a public meeting held at Burnie, Mr. Hall and myself were deputed to 
interview you. 

731. And what gained the Marine Board the control of this particular piece of land at the 
wharf? Why, they got it by taking the piece of land. 

732. Compulsorily? Yes, it was compulsorily. 
733 .. From whom did they get it? From Mr. Norton Smith. 
734. Who is he? The manager of the Van Diemen's Land Company. 
735. Who exercises the controlling influence !)Ver the ha1:bour at the present time? Well, 

the Marine Board. 
736 .. Has the Marine Board the right to stop the Van Diemen's Land Company from 

using that pier as a railway? No. . 
737. How clo you say, then, that the Marine Board exercises the controlling influence? 

Sirnply because the trade of the port works through the Marine Board. Mr. Norton Smith is a 
Member of the Marine Board. The question of a dispute between Mr. Norton Smith and the 
Marine Board is a question that never cropped up as yet. 

738. By Mr. Patterson -You said just now, Mr. Jones, that 1000 tons of iron ore a clay is 
supposed to be exported from· Burnie from the Blythe Mine shortly-has a contract been 
entered into to supply 25,000 tons of steel rails a year, for four years, to the New South Wales 
Government : that is, at the rate of 1000 tons of rails a week ? Yes. 

739. Very well-you said it is proposed to export 1000 tons of ore a day? 0£ ore ; yes. 
740. In other words, 300,000 tons of ore, or so, a year, for anindefiniteperiod of time? As 

far as I know. 
741. Who is going to purchase this 300,000 tons of ore a year in Australia? I cannot tell 

you. 
742. No, I should think not; nor anybody else, either? I am only telling you what Mr. 

Darby's scheme is, and 1 suppose that is a good authority. 
743. The Chairman asked you a question, and, from your reply, I understood that if you 

cannot get an exit for your ore at Emu Bay, the company is practically _blocked-Is that so? 
Quite so. · 

744. Do you know that the length of line from the present Government station at Emu Bay 
to Devonport, where there is a first-class harbour, is only 35 miles? That I could not tell yon. 

lib·. Patterson.-Well, I will tell you. Deducting the five· miles that you will have to 
traverse, anyway, the distance to Devonport will be only 25 miles. Now, the General Manager 
of Railways charges ld. a ton per mile for the carriage of ore on the West Coast, and coal at the 
rate of one half-penny per ton per mile. 

The Cliairman: Where is that? 
Mr. Patte1·son: On the Fingal line. · . _ 
The Chairman: The rate .there for coal is three farthings per ton per mile, 
745. By M1·. Patterson.-W ell, then,· we will make it three farthings. Now, it is o~ly 

natltral to suppose that, if a traffic so enormous as this supposed output of Blythe iron were taken 
to Devonport, valuable concessions would be given. You see, concessions must be given to a 
company producing infinitely more traffic to the Government lines than the present traffic from 
the West Coast ahc;l all the other railways put together. Do you not think so? No, I do not. 

746. vVell, if this 1000 tons a day were taken to Devonport at a charge of three farthings per 
mile per ton, it would come to less than two shillings a ton for the journey, would it not? Well ! 

747. W 01ilcl such a charge as that block you? Certainly. 
748. Then this ore cannot be worth 15s. a ton as raw material? It is for fluxing purposes 

only; the ore we have sold to the Broken Hill and the Newcastle people. The price we 
give is sixteen shillings. 

749. What is the value of the ore at Emu Bay? It would be sixteen shillings, less six 
shillings for freight-say, ten shillings. 

750. ·what is its value, not for a flux, but as iron ore? I could not tell you. That's beyond 
me. 

751. By J'Jb·. Nicholls.~lt is for use as iron ore that it is -axported, is it not? Yes. 
752. By fl!lr. Patte1·son.-N ow, :is to this assumption of an export of 1000 tons a clay­

that would be, in ~ve years, a total of a million and a half tons:_ of course that is simply 
chimerical ; it conlcl not be disposed of ? I don't know about that. 

753. ·why, you would supply, not only the whole of Australia, but the whole of Indi:i, with 
rai.ls ? So we may, perhaps, by-and-bye ; China, too, perhaps. · 

754. Myself and my friend here, Mr. Nichollsi have been led to believe, perhaps mistakingly, 
tlmt 1000 tons a day wiH·certainly be exported for an indefinite length of time; but, of course the 
thing is absurd. You cpnlcl not get rid of such a quantity of ore anywhere in Australia. 
Taking all the imports of iron into Australasia and India, they won't approach these figures ; 
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why, we have not ships to carry it. How many vessels would it take to take away 1000 tons a 
day from Emu Bay ? Two ships-ships of the right class. 

755. By .Mr. Guesdon.-Two ships a clay? No; to get it going, you want two ships that 
carry 4000 tons each going backwards and forwards. They could take it iLll. 

756. By Jt,fr, Patterson. -Then, you believe thrtt two ships carrying 4000 tons could do 
it? They wo.ulcl not need ships even that large .. Two ships carrying 3000 tons could do it. 

757. By }J,'fr. Hall.--Why don't you read that telegram you have, and settle that question'! 
I wired to Mr. Jamieson, and he wires me back "Prospects early, Blythe Iron flotation very 
good, Darby's estimate quantity of ore to be shipped from Burnie 6000 tons a week, and possibly 
large quantity of limestone, also likely to be considerable inward traffic for Blythe iron steamers, 
as they will doubtless give low return freights for coal anrl coke -William Jamieson." 

~Mr. Patterson : It has been assumed as a fact all through this inquiry, that 1000 tons a 
clay would be forthcoming. 

The Chairman: The whole thing has been. dealt with as a probability-as a very strong 
probability; but no one has ever said to this Committee, or in the House, that this was an.absolute 
certainty. · 

Mr. Patte1,son: I heard it stated in the House two or three times. 
The Chairman : It was stated in the House that the New 8outh Wales Government had 

given them a contract for 100,000 tons of steel rails, at the ra,te of 25,000 tons per year. 
75~. By 211.r. Hall.-Do you hold a master mariner's certificate, Mr. Jones? I do. 
759. And have you had charge of vessels trading to nearly all the ports of Australasia? 

I have. 
760. Do you know whether the freight from Burnie is higher than from Devenport? The 

same. 
761. By the Clwirman.--To where? Anywhere. 
762. By Mr. Hall.-To any port in the Colonies? Yes. 
763. Is the insurance higher? The same. 
764. Can you speak of your own knowledge?- Are you agent for any company ? Yes ; I 

am agent for the Derwent and Tamar. 
765. And the insurance is not higher from Burnie than from any other port? No. 
766. Now, if Mr. Back makes the following statement, would it be correct, Mr. Jones?­

Here is the statement made. [The Chairman objected to the form of the qne,:tion.J 
767. By Mr. HaU.-Well, I will pnt it this way-listen to this statement: "Your 

harbour up there is a miserable failure at present, because the breakwater is not sufficiently long 
to protect your shippii1g, and your wharf is so close to yo~n· bren,kwate1· that, in an easterly gale, 
a vessel casting off from the breakwater would collide with vessels ::i.t the wharf. Then there is 
no proper accommodation for vessel'> at the breakwater itself, tLncl the vessels lying there are 
ground up against the concrete "-ls that statement correct? I do not exactly follow you, Mr. 
H:tll: which statement do you mean? 

768. vVell. take the first statement-" Your harbour is a miserable failure at present­
Is that correct·? Certainly not. 

769. Then, "There is no proper accommodation for vessels at the breakwater itself, and the 
vessels lying there.are gTound up against the concrete"? That is quite com~ct, because there are 
no fenders. . · 

770. But fenders, I presume, would protect the vessels? Certainly. 
771. Can you give the Committee any idea of what are the largest vessels brought to 

Burnie-the largest vessels, I mean, that have been into the harbour? The largest vessel, to my 
knowledge, is the "Willyama '' s.s., of the Adelaide S.S. Co.; something over 4000 terns register. 

772. She came in to the breakwater? Yes; she lay there for some couple of days. 
773. And do you know the tonnage of the Intercolonial vessels trading there? Yes, from 

2000 to 3000 tons. 
774. And they get in and ont without trouble? Well, I have 11ever seen any trouble yet. 
ii5. Have you ever known large ve$sels lying there to ml:let with an accident during an 

easterly or north-easterly gale? No. 
776. You have had considerable experience, Mr. ,Jones, in connection with auctioneering 

and the valuing of la.ncl ?-You are, I believe, a commission agent, at present? Yes. 
777. Can you give the Committee any idea of the value of land now and compared with land 

in Burnie and the vicinity five years ago? , It absolutely depends upon the state of the land. 
778. w· ell, say land in the vicinity of Burnie five years ago? You do ·not mean town land'? 
779. No? The town land has, of course, increased tenfold, or more, and the farm land 

around has i11creased 20 or 25 per cent.-that is as to cleared farms. 
780. Now, it has been stated, Mr. Jones, that there would be great difficulty in handling this 

quantity of ore in the present state of the harbour and wharf accommodation_:_clo you anticipate 
any great trouble? Not the slightest. But it is intended to have a wharf specially constructed 
for the working of this iron ore. 

781. I£ a statement has been made, Mr. Jones, that the harbom is silting up since the 
coustruction of the breakwater, is that correct? It is the first I have ever heard of it. 

782. Have you noticed· any indication of any silting np? None. 
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783. What i.s the depth of water now at the extreme encl of the breakwater ? 28ft. 6in. at 
low water. 

784. A vessel of, say, 2000 tons.:.._-is there sufficient accommodation along that water to 
provide for, and for how many vessels of that size ? One ship only-one large ship. There 
would be berths for two large ships at the jetty. 

785. It has long been stated, Mr. Jones, that before this increased traffic can be provided 
for it will be necessary to extend the expenses from, say, a quarter to half a million sterling, in 
the construction of a breakwater-do yon think such an outlay is necessary ? No ; not for the 
trade we are talking about now. With the facilities for loading iron ore, we have room for 
double the trade we are talking a bout. · -

786. Now, Mr. Jones, suppose it is necessary, in the near future, to construct a breakwater, 
or add to the present one: do you think, as a large property-holder of that district, and knowing 
the people-do you think the residents would be prepared to pay the interest for the money 
borrowed for that purpose ? Yes, to a certain extent, I am certain they would, provided the 
work was needed. 

787. I£ it was necessary to improve the port? I have not the slightest doubt about it. I 
know I would, for one. 

788. You know the country between Burnie and Bischoff? Yes. 
789. You know the quality of the land? I do. 
790. Do you think if that .lanri was thrown open fM selection it would be taken up? 

Certainly. _ . 
791. You are certain ? Yes. 
792. Can you give any idea of the price realised for m~de farms, 10 or 12 miles out, on this 

line? £10 or £12 an acre; that is, land that was bought prior to the construction of the railway 
at 30s. per acre. 

793. By Mr. Guesdon.-W as that land bought from the Crown or from the Van Diemen's 
Land Company ? The Van Diemen's Land Company. 

794. Do you know, Mr. Jones, on the line of the railway, any Government land-any 
agricultural land-within a reasonable distance of the line? Yes ; away to the west, there is a lot 
of land-ind a lot of which is already taken up-a bout four miles from the railway. 
· 795. That would be 20 miles up the line? About 18 miles. Striking due west you get 
good land, about four miles from the railway. · 

796. And all the' Government land there is being selected and occupied? No, not all of it. 
797. All the good land? No, certainly not; there is plenty more good land th~re yet. 
798. By M1·. Guesdon.-Has it been selected at the .ordinary upset price, or at a premium? 

No premium. 
7!:19. By Mr. Nicholls.-Are you a director of the Blythe Iron Company,Mr. Jones? No, 

I am not. · 
. 800. Do you know who a.re the directors? Yes. Mr. Jamieson, Mr. Keats, Mr. Tollhurst, 

Mr. Norton Smith, and Mr. J. S. Read. 
801. You are a shareholder, and apparently know something of its concern. Is that so ? 

Yes, rather-I ought to-I have been I O years at it. 
802. Is the company floated with a large capital yet? No, not yet. 
803. Well, what is the capital of the present company? Over one million of money. 
804. And they are trying to float it again at the present moment? Yes. 
805. In Loudon, I presume? Yes 
806. By lhe Chairman.---Is it not underwritten to the extent of half a million? That is the 

way to put it. Mr. Keats did that when he was in London. 
807. Well, now, is there any contract with the company by any one to buy this ore, Mr. 

Jones? :No, sir. vV e have no intention of selling it. 
808. I do not understand the position. You say that the New South Wales Government 

has a co11tract with some one to take a large number of tons of steel rails-with whom is that 
contract? With the Blythe Iron Company. . . 

809. What is the precise nature of that contract? That I cannot tell you. Mr. Norton 
Smith will be able to give you that information to-morrow. 

810. Do you happen to know who the Directors of the Emu Bay Railway Company are? 
Well, I know two or three of th~, that is all-Mr. J. S. Read, Mr. Jamieson, and Mr. Grice. 

811. By Mr. Guesdon.-I gather from what yon say, Captain Jones, that .the Blythe Iron 
Company is quite prepared to provide its own accommodation for shipping this ore when the 
occasion requires it? That I could not tell you, Mr. Guesdon, because I do not know exactly 

"what Mr. Darby's scheme i:;:. · 
. 812. I tho;'ig•ht you stated they intended to build a jetty of their own at high level? 

Possibly, that was their intention; a narrow jetty, n,bout twenty-five feet wid~. 
813. And I presume you would sooner have n, jetty like that if you are going to have the 

large outµut you expected ( That I could not say ; that is for the directors to consider. 
814. "\Vell, If you hacl to deliver 1000 tons a day on the breakwater, do you think there 

would be much opportunity of taking other traffic? From the same jetty? · 
815. Yes? No, sir, ' 

' ' 
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816. Theu, if your operations are going to be as extensive as anticipated, there must he a 

special jetty? Quite right. 
817. And if you do not build a jetty of yom own you will, practically, require the exclusive 

use of the breakwater? Or another jetty. 
818. By JJir Pattei·.wn.-Is there room for two or three additional jetties? Thel'C is room 

for two only; and only one for a fair-sized ship. 
819. By JWr. Guesdon.-From your experience of the harbour, does it strike you that the 

harbour is silting up at all? No. Why, on the last visit of Mr. Na pier Bell we got a boat and 
took soundings right round the breakwater, and he was very pleased, because there was no silting 
whatever. 

820. But there is no doubt that, to enable you to carry out your operations, there will 
require to be erected, either by your company or the · Government, extensive accommodation to 
ship the ore away? Certainly ; enough to berth a couple of ships, in ariy case. 
round to the breakwater? From the Emu River will be about two miles, as nearly as possible, 

821. By the Chafrman.-How much foreshore is there in Emn Bay from the Emu River 
roughly speaking·. 

822. How much of that do you think would be suitable for the constrnction of wharves? 
In addition to· what we have got? 

823. No-supposing there was nothing but the breakwater there, how much of that two 
miles is suitable for the construction of wharves ? Twelve or fifteen chains. 

824. How much of the foreshore does the Government own at Burnie at the present time? 
Only a very little strip indeer1. · 

825. How much in length ?-Would it be possible to construct another wharf at Burnie from 
the land already owned by the Government ? Oh, certainly not-oh clear, no. 

826. Then if another wharf is constructed in-shore from the breakwater, on whose land 
would it he constructed? Well, there is very little land there at all. 

827. And would there be proper means of access to it? (No answer.) 
828. Would it be possible to get mean·s of access to it? Oh, yes. Of course the ground is 

widening as you come down the bay. 
829. Now, with reg·ard to the jetty you think it will be necessary to build for the handling· of 

that iron-ore if it comes along-from what land would that project? It would project from the 
company's land ; either from the Emu Bay Company's or the Van Diemen's Land Compimy's, 
and, of course, to get the approach rroperly you would have to take the land between the street 
and the foreshore, 

THE HON. CHARLES HENRY GRANT, called and e.i·amined. 

Mr. Grant made the statutory declaration. 
830. By the Chairman.-Your name, Mr. Grant? Charles Henry Grant. 
831. Yon are a Member of the Legislative Council of this Colony ? I am. 
832. And a railway engineer? I am. . 
833. By Mr. Hall.-Do you know this railway, Mr. Grant, that it is proposed to purchase, 

now known as the Emu Bay Railway? Not in detail; but I have seen it, of course. Ever 
since it was first begun to be constructed, more or less. 

834. You have travelled over it? I have travelled over it many times. 
835. Do you know, Mr. Grant, that a difficulty exists at the present time between the 

Government Li1,e-that is, the Westem Line to Bumie-:-ancl the Emu Bay Company, with 
regard to the control of that portion of the foreshore and land over which the Emu Bay Com­
pany's Line runs, from the Emu Bay Company's station to the breakwater ?-Now, in your 
opinion, Mr. Grant, as a railway man, do you think that portion of the line should he under dual 
control or under one control? It should be under one control, undoubtedly. You cannot have 
satisfactory dual control. But one party might have control subject to the user of the line by 
another party, under certain restrictions. 

836. The Government line will junction with this Emu Bay Company's line some distance 
west of the station, and it has been suggested that the Government should, by paying compen­
sation, pass through their station and go on to the breakwater ; can you name any instance of 
where a similar procedure has obtained-one company has_gone right through another company's 
station, or where any Government 4as ever taken such a step? It is an awkward question. The 
Government trains would not pass any station in going to the breakwater. 

837. Yes, Mr. Grant.-You see, this junction -will be made some distance beyond the. 
company's station, along the line to vVaratah? . I do not understand why that is. [W.itness 
examines plan.] . 

838. Now, having examined the plan, Mr. Grant, are you of opinion that it would be better 
for the Government to acquire the line, between the junction of the Emu Bay line and the break­
water? I think the Government might acquire it, or they could have an understancling with the 
present owners by which they should have all the facilities they could desire ~ncler reasonable 
control. · 

.~ 
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839. ,v ell, Mr. Grant, with regard to the line from Burnie to Waratah; do yon know it is 

proposed that the Government purchase the option at a, price of £205,000, whic};t includes the 
whole of that line, the station at Burnie now occnpiec1 by the Emu Bay Company, and the line 
to ,v aratah, on the underst11,nding that the Government leases the line from that stittion to 
Warntah at a rental of _£b000 a year.-W onlcl you favour taking nmning powers ancl giving 
compensation, or purchasing tbe liue, \is proposed? I confess I have not sufficient information 
before me to justify the purchr,se ; but there is no doubt the Government are entitled to get all 
the fa.,jilities they require, and it is only a question of terms, I think, with the company; and the 
terms should not be unreasonable. 

840. By JJfr. Guesdon.-You have read this agreement fo1· leases that has been signed by 
Mr. Clark? Yes. , 

841. In which it says that the Government shall have the right of running trains over the said 
railway, &c.? Yes. 

842. Now, would not you regard that, supposing you were representing a private company, 
such as the Van Diemen's Land Company-would not you regard that agreement for lease made 
in those terms as 0110 that was binding· un your company to assist the Government by carrying any 
traffic sent to you for dispatch to the breakwater'! Undoubtedly. Of course, when that agreement 
was made, the possibilities _of the traffic to Burnie could nut be imagined, and, no doubt, it was a 
very reasonable agreement at that time. But now that the traffic prnmises to be so large, throngh 
this Blythe Iron :Mine, coal and coke, and other things, further terms should be entered into by both 
parties; and the best po~sible should be made of the circumstances, acting on that agreement. 

843. But in your knowledge of difficulties arising between companies do you not think that the 
matter shonld be snbmitted to arbitration, and that that arbitration would lead to a proper adjust­
ment of the rights of the two parties? I do not know. Of course the parties would have to 
agree upon the terms of arbitration, and the result of arbitration mig·ht be less advantageous than 
the present offer of sale. I am not able, now, to give an opinion as to which would be ·the better 
course, but I have no doubt that either course would result in the Government getting all that 
they require. 

844. And from your experience you see no reason why arbitration should not result in an 
equitable adjustment between the two parties? No, I do not. _ . 

845. By J.J.fr. Ailwnhf'ad.-Furtber on, .Mr. Grant, that agreement goes on to provide that the 
Government shall be allowed to run on to the breakwater at times convenient and suitable for the 

, company, and so forth? I think the Minister of Lands is the ·arbitrator in case of any dispute 
as to that. 

846. There is nothing about him being arbitrator, I think, except in cases of dispute where 
the Mersey Marine Board is brought in ;-what compensation would the Government pay in the 
case I have quoted to you ? In my opinion, a very large expenditure would have to be made to 
to meet the circumstances. It might involve obtaining the· foreshore. I see no absolute difficulty 
in carrying out this agreement as made. But I am not expressing my opinion as to which would 
be the better course 

847. B1J M1'. P~tterson.-N ow, Mr. Grant, it is a far cry from the tin-pot traffic on this 
Bischoff line-that has to convey one train a day, with an engine, two carriages, and four 
waggons-to a great English railway system, but you must of course know as a £act that the 
Midland Company has thousands of trains in a day, and that some of them are run over the lines 
of the Great Northern, the Midland, and Grnat Western Companies' lines, running through 
those stations.-In these cases there is no dual control? No, you cannot have dual control. 

848. But there is such a thing as a joint control under a single management ? Oh, yes ; 
take the Chester station. There you have joint control by a committee. 

849. Is there any possible objection to the joint control of the Burnie station ya.rd under 
a single stationmaster? No, I think it might be arranged for ; but it would he far better tha_t 
one of the powers should have the absolute control, giving all the facilities the other requires, 
and being made to do so. - _ 

850. Do you know that these English companies lrnve running powers through these 
stations and station yards? Yes, certainly. · 

851. In cases where thousands of trains run out of a great station yard? Yes, take the case 
of the Metropolitan. 

852. And here is a line, with one train a day, sr.rving all requirements? Well, ·in England, 
with numerous trains rnnning· out of great stations, there are running powers on nearly every line. 
What o~jection would there be, that this Iiue, which is· served by o'ne train a clay, should have 
running·-powers over it, if proper compensation were g·iven ? If it were only a matter of one train 
a,day it would be a_ simple matter; but then we know that an agreement has been made, which 
will entail the carriage of a ·great quantity of coke and iron-ore. Of course the existing 

· traffic is only a mere flea-bite, but the probable traffic is very large. 
853. But even with the anticipated traffic, could there be any objection to the Government 

having running powers, and having a station under joint control? I do not think so. 
854. Well, as to this proposal -to purchase this line for £205,000, as a means of getting 

over the difficulty : does it not seem to you to be straining at a gnat to swallow a, ca~el~ 
(The Chairman objected to the ci,uestion.J - ·· 
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Tf'itness : It is a rn:ttter 0£ terms only. I -shonlcl lrn,vc to know a great cle:il more before I 
could fo1·111 an opinion as to that. A fow thousands is a small matter in clealino- with a compa.ny 
having a large prospective traffic. On the other hand, it might be better that"' the Governmei;t 
should nse the powers they now have, :111cl which, I am very much surprised, they have not 11scc1 
hitherto If these powers were nsed, a very rcasonabl0 arrangement might be obtained. 

85,5. By J.vlr. Guesclon.-I_ will ask to put the question suggested just now in a different form. 
Exception was taken to the question by tbe Hou. the Ministe1· of Lauds, on the ground that Mr. 
Grant might have to give an opinion in anothe1· chamber. Now, I would like to put the matter 
to lVIr. Gnrnt in this way: if instead of this line from BurniL1 to Ulverstone belonging to the 
Government, supposing· it belonged to you as representative of a priYate company, and these 
difficulties arose, would yon couside1· it. more expedient to a1Ta11g·e under a lease of this sort between 
the two companies to get access to the breakwater, _or would you consider it more expHdient, in order 
to acquire those rights, to purchase the whole line of railway ?-I am speaking now, leaving the 
policy entirely out of the question. I am pu·ting it before you as a dry business trnnsaction. If; 
instead of it being a ·Government matter, yon were a representative of one compa11y and the Emu 
Bay was another, and negotiations_ stand as they do now between the Government and the 
company, would you consider it a niatter of business expediency-which alternative would you 
prefer as a business expedient-to buy the whole line to Waratah, with the possibility of a very 
large outlay, and a contingent outlay upon that, or would you consider it better to arrauge with the 
other company under terms of your agreement for a lease, a11d obtai11 running power~, aud get 
access to the breakwater ? It is purely, a question of terms. I have 110t considered the matter 
sufficiently to g·ive an answer. If I could get the railway on my own terms I should consider it 
advisable to.get the railway. 

856. Do you know the price asked? I have not heard evidence as to what value you would 
get for your money. I do not really know what the consideration is. 

857. By the Chairman. - Mr. Grant, I will ask you a few questions,_ merely as an engineer, 
and not on questions of policy in any way. This land, bounded by red lines here, is a Government 
station yard at the present time. This 1uarked in pink is land which, recently, the Government 
desired to acquire and decided they would acquire. 

858. I want to ask you, as an engineer, if we should, in any future time, near or distant, ha\'e 
to deal with the output of a large mass of produce which mnst go to this station : is it desirable 
that we should have better access to the shipping· position here than will be afforded by mere ruuniug 
powers through that station ?-Ruuning powers, you know, mig·ht be taken of a very extensive and 
superior character? It is rathe1· a difficult question to answer. 

859. I will put it in a more conci·ete form. Supposing we had a thousand. toms of ore a day 
to deal with, coming to this station? Yes. 

860. You know the station is l mile 15 chaius from this breakwater? Yes. 
861. vV ould that be a proper place for shunting· and marshalling· to deal with _our stuff for 

shipment? It would not be cunvenient, undoubtedly. 
862. Would it be economical? It might be done, but it would not be convenient. You must 

have your own rnnning line. 
863. You know .Burnie, do you not? I do. 
864. You know the statio11 ? Yes. 
865. You would regard this property, marked in pink, up to here, as a very valuable property? 

Undoubtedly. A very valuable one indeed, under the circumstances. As I first knew it, it was 11ot 
valuable. 

866. "\Viii it be more valnable in the future than it is now, do you think ? Undoubtedly. It 
could not be otherwise. 

867. Is it the only route to the shipping place ? Yes, as far as I know. By great expense 
coming through the town another route might be obtained, but it would be enormously costly. 

868. This locality is practically the j Li11ctio11 of two rail way systems, is it. not ? That is so. 
869. Then, do you know Burnie as a port ? Yes. 
1:170. Do you know the ports 011 the North 'vVest Coast? Generally. 
871. Do yon know of any other likely port for the outlet of producp, mineral or other, from 

this neighbonrhood ? Devonport, of course. 
872. I mean from this district-Devonport is 30 miles away ? That is not far. I look on 

Burnie as a must important port; but, with a' bfltter port at Devon port available, if you could not 
ship from Burnie, you could ship from Devo11port. 

873. By Mr. Hall.-vVhat do you think, as a Manager of Railways, wonld follow if the 
Government did not acquire thesfl rights ?-Would we be likely to hand over our traffic to the 
controlling body here to deal with it for us, or not? No, the Government should exercise running· 
powers, whatever they cost. · 

!:;74. VVould such rnnuing powers as you would need give yon a single line? Yes; an extra 
throug·h line. · 

875. Would you want shunting lines and sidings? Yes, some. 
876. On the assumption that we will have a larg·e amount of miuernl traffic, would vou 

require a large amount of shunting accommodation? Not so much. You would certainly reqt1ire 
three lines of rails, at any rate. 

877, You know this locality ? Yes. [Witness examines plan.J 
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878. Is a wide strip ofland? No, it is not particulal"ly favourable for railway purposes, still 
it can be ,made available at a certain cost. 

879. Do you think that this section of a line from here to this breakwater can very well be 
worked under dual control or under joint control ? If the Government took running powers, such 
would be under the control of the party from whom they were obtained. But you would still g·et 
facilities for all you desire. 

880. Running powers for a t4rough line is one tli.ing, is it not, and for shipment, an~ther? 
No, I think you take them in the same way. 

881. There is a difference between running powers to take you right through to W ynyard, 
and running powers to deal with a large qu:mtity of export produce at this breakwater-Is there 
a difference ? U ndoubledly, a very considerable difference. But this difference, of course, would 
only be with regard to sidings and the joint use of that bi·eakwater. 

882. Do you know the breakwater? I d'o, 
883. Do yuu think it could be controlled dually? Not dually. But it might be used by 

two parties. 
884. With a large shipment'? With a large shipment; I think so. With a strong­

minded station-master or traffic agent the traffic might be very well controlled. But it might, 
on the other hand, be cheaper and more desirable for the Government to have the whole thing in 
their bands. 
, 885. By Mr. Patterson.-On this breakwater, on one side of it there is a parapet, and on 

the other there is simply room to load one ship. There are two lines of rails only, with a l½ 
chain curve? That would have to be altered, of course. 

886. Now, if I tell you:that here the Marine Board are 'erecting a jetty with 5 pairs 0£ 
lines, and that this Blythe Iron Compariy inte1id to build another jetty for their own use, would 
that simplify the question at all? With more facilities for traffic, the more easily yott 
would control it. But access to these piers would take up a lot of ground. 

887. Well, here is this jetty with five pairs of lines ?-Yes, I know it. 
887 A. And the Blythe people propose to, buidl a third jetty? Yes. 
888. Would not that simplify the question of dealing with the traffic which, as the Minister 

said just now, would go from this breakwater? Yes, it would make a much greater use of that 
foreshore. The r_unning facilities would have to be quite different; it would require, a large 
embankment on the foreshore to get access to the piers. 

MR. FINCHAM called, and re-examined. 

889., By the Chairman.-W e have recalled you, Mr. Fincham, at your own reque.st, to ask 
you if the valuation that yo,u put on the Emu Bay and Mt. Bischoff Railway, when you, formerly 
valued it, was at the instance of the Commissioner of Taxes, and for land taxation purposes? 
Yes, for that purpose. 

890. Did it include or exclude rolling-stock? It excluded rolling-stock. My instruction from 
the Commissioner of Taxes was to exclude rolling-stock, because that could not properly be 
accessible £or land tax. , 

891. By Mr, Aikenhead.-Can you give any statement a.s to the value of rolling-stock? No, 
1 could not. 

MR. J. C. DILLON called, and examined. 

Mr. Dillon made statutory declaration. 
892. By the C!tairman.--Y our name is Joseph Charles Dillon ? Yes. And you are a clerk 

in the office of the Solicitor-General? Yes. 
893. Did you hold that position in the year 1889? No, I was clerk to the Crown Solicitor 

at that time. 
894. Practically, in the same office? Well,' of course, the offices were amalgamated after­

wards. 
895. Are these your initials on that draft, Mr, Dillon? [Witness examines document.] 

Yes, these are my initials. 
, 896, Do you recognize that as a draft or document yo:u have ever seen before? I have a 

ecollection of having engrossed it. , 
897. Is it in your writing? This is not my writing. I think it resembles the writing 

of some one in the employ of Messrs. Dobson, Mitchell, & Allport. These interlineations are 
· Mr. John Mitchell's. 

898. What was the object of your putting your initials on that document? That is the 
practice when you copy or engross any draft in a lawyer's office. You mark it "engrossed," and 
the date of it. 

899. Have you any idea how that would come iFto the Crown Law Office? I have since 
found a letter which forwards the draft receipt. [Witness produces document.] 

900. I will read this letter. CA ppendix XII I.) Then, that draft would be submitted to 
Mr. Dobbie, would it not? Yes, I should think so. 
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901. W oulcl ·the engrossecl cleecl a.ncl copy"of this be approvecl by him, or ,;,ouicl this be 
approved? Well, that letter, evidently, cloes not sencl it for approval. It is not worded in that 
way. It simply sends it for signatnre. · 

902. Then, would it not be submitted to Mr. Dobbie? Yes, it should have been. 
903. ,Vhat would follow in your office the receipt of this draft? Would you engross it? 

I would engross it, if instructed to, either by the Attorney-General or the Crown Solicitor, or 
Mr. J . • T. Henry, who was the convcy'.1nc111g clerk at that time, and i.·esponsible for this. 

904. Well, do these initials signify that you did engross ·it? Yes, there is no doubt about 
th:.tt. 

905. And that deed, when signed, would be in your handwriting; or would it be returned 
again to Messrs. Dobson, lvl itchell, & All port, and rewritten? Oh no, it would be in my 
handwriting. That would be in the possession of the company. 

906. Have you any recollection of having erigrossed it? A very dim recollection. Of 
course, I have clone so many. · _ 

907. You have got no specific recollection as to whether it was submitted to ,Mr. Dobbie or 
not? No, I have no recollection. Mr. J. J. Henry was conveyancing clerk in the Crown 
Solicitor's office at the time ; and he was responsible for a good many of these conveyancing 
matters. · 

908. Were tliey not perused always by the superior officer? Not always by Mr. Dobbie. 
Mr. Henry used to take charge of a good many of these matters; and, it iR possible, that he may 
have approved of this draft, without .Mr. Dobbie having seen it. 

909. That letter you have produced would be given to Mr. Dobbie, w.ould it not? Yes, I 
should think it would, as it is addressed to him. 

910. Well, after that agreement was engrossed, what would become of it? vYonld it be 
sent to Dobson, Mitchell, and Allport again in that form ? The next letter we have after that 
is a letter from Mr. Dobbie forwarding a cheque for £1000 received from Messrs. ·Dobson, 
.Mitchell, and Allport, through t,he Director of Public vVorks. · There is no further record of 
this-document being forwarded anywhere. _ 

911. But, as a general rule, in case of a draft like this being sent to the office, would the 
draft be retumecl to the lawyer sending it in unsigned, or would it be returned signed ? The 
usnal practice is to approve of a draft, and return it for engrossment. 

912. But this was engrossed in your office ? Oh, yes, it was engrossed by me. 
913. Then is it probable that it would have been returned to Messrs. Dobson, Mitchell, & 

All port, or sent straight on to the Minister for signature ? [No answer. J 
914. It is known that the agreement itself is a copy of this? Yes; I have a dim recollection 

of Mr. Hannaford having something to do in connection with it. It is possible that the docu­
ment may ha,ve been hanclecl to him. He used constantly to come over to the Crown Solicitor's 
office about matters ; in fact, he used to be over almost every clay. 

915. By ·1.vlr. 1.Viclwlls.-Of course, he had some legal experience, had he not? Yes. 
916. You notice that the endorsement of the draft is in yonr handwriting? Yes. 
917. Can you remember how that came abouP No. The only way I can account for it 

is that the draft came from Dobson, .Mitchell, and Allport without endorsement, and we put an 
endorsement on it to show what the document was. 

918. The difficulty I have about it is this; I cannot believe that Messrs. Dobson, Mitchell, 
and Allport wrote a letter, and sent it across w}th a draft without any endorsement on it. I 
suppose that you have no letter written to Messrs. Dobson, Mitchell, and All port about this clay? 
No. I have looked carefully. There is no record of any reply to that. 

919. J .. uppose you will agree with me that it is almost impossible that they sent over a 
document without endorsement? [N_o answer.] 

920. The draft was sent over for perusal. Of course the first thing would be to peruse it 
Yes. 

921. Then would you mark it "approved," or, after making any necessary alterations, 
mark it "approved, its altered"? Yes, that is the practice, but apparently the letter doesn't send 
it for apprnval. _ 

922. l t looks as if the negotiations had been done verbally? Yes. 
923. By the Chairman.-Have you ever seen that draft lease before? ['Vitness exammes 

draft.] Yes, I have a dim recollection of having seen it. 
9~4. Is that your writing? No. . 
925. Do you know the writing? "No, I cannot say that I know that writing. 
926. Look at the writing in pink-can you recognise that? No, I oannot; it looks to me 

something like Mr. Fincham's. 
927. Do you know this writing, Mr. Dillon? [Witness examines document.] This was 

written by a junior clerk in the Crown Solicitor's office, named Doolan. He is now in the 
Transvaal. 

928. By Jllr. Niclwlls.-You said something abelut Mr. Hannaford just now-I was not 
clear whether you said you remembered him as having been concemecl in the preparation of this 
document, or whether you said that you remembered it-do you distinctly remember Mr. Hanna­
ford being concerned in its preparation ? I have a recollection of Mr. Hannaford having some~ 
thing to do with the matter. 
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929. Do you remember what it was he had to do ? No, I do not. I could not say. 
930. By Mr. Guesdon.-Then, on what lines would Mr. Henry deal with it as a con­

veyancing clerk ?-The instructions are to prepare tµe agreement in terms of an Act of Parlia­
ment, and in terms of the recommendation of the Engineer-in-Chief.-How do you deal in that 
office with· questions like that ?-Mr. Henry, as conveyancing clerk, I s~ppose, would simply see 
that, from a conveyancer's point of view, the document was correct? Yes, he might have · 
thought it was a simple form of receipt. He might not have attached any value to it. 

931. And it involved a legal contract between the Government and a private individual, or 
company? Yes. 

932. That is outside the province of a conveyancer., is it not? Yes. _ 
933. Such matters would not be dealt with by a conveyancing clerk? Very important 

matters have be6n dealt with in that way. 
934. Where legal points like this have been involved? Oh, yes. Of course it was Mr. 

;Henry's practice, when any difficulty occurred, to consult the Crown Solicitor. 
935. Has :vtr. Dobbie seen this letter you have produced? Yes; I showed it to him this 

morning. _ 
936. By the Chairman-Have you been able to ascertain whether Mr. Dobbie was in town 

at the time when this agreement was signed? Yes, he was; because there are letters in the book 
showing· that he wrote them on that day. 

937. Then you can say that Mr. Dobbie was in 1.own when this letter was received? Yes. 

THURSDAY, DECEMBER 1_3, 1900. 

WALTER 0. WISE, called and.e.-i:amined. 

Mr. Wise made the statutory declaration. . 
938. By the C/wfrman.-Yonr name, Mr. ·wise? Walter Ormsby Wise. 
939. And your position? Secretary of the Law Department and Parliamentary Draftsma1i. 

, 940. ·what position did you hold in the years 1890, 1891, and 1892? I held the position then 
of Parliamentary Draftsman. . 

941. Were yon, as clraftsman, instructed to prepai·e a Bill to authorise a lease being issued, 
of certain lands at Burnie, to the Van_Diemen's Land Company? I have found a Bill, which was 
prepared in 1892 ; but I have no_ recollection of having been instructed to prepare it, nor can J. 
find any instructions. I may say that it is not ,tn unusu)cl,l thing for me to prepare a Bill without 
any written instmctions whateve1;. I vei'y often get verbal instructions from a Minister, and 
prepare a Bill. This Bill appears to have been prepared very early in the Session of 1892. It 
is No. 3 on the list. It was never issued to Members. 

942. Which Bill are you now referr.ing to? I am referring to a Bill to authorise the 
grant of a lease of certain pieces of Crown land, and the grant of an easement to the Van 
Diemen's Land Company. 'l'he Bill recites that the company had contributed £6000 to the 
cost of the breakwater, and had made cei-tain surrender of material and other valuable 
concessions for the constrnction of the breakwater ; and that it was desirable that a lease of a 
piece of.land 10 feet wide referred to in the schechile should be granted to the company, and also 
the right to run over the breakwater a line of rails. The following sections give effect to these 
recitals, and there is also another section reserving the right of the Government to run their 
trains or any trains over the rails of the company. 

943. By J.lfr. Aikenhead.-What is the term'( 1000 years. 
944. Practically, to give effect to an agreement, which, I presume, yon have perused? 

I have not seen the agreement since I have seen the Bill-knowing from memory the terms of 
the agreement, I have no doubt that that agreement was· before me when. I prepared this Bill, 
because I believe I have used here exactly the wordR of the agreement. For instance, that the 
company were to have the right to run their trains upon the breakwater "or any futme ex.ten­
sion or addition to ~he said breakwater, or any piers corn;tructed in connection therewith." 
vV ell, I think you will remember that these words are used specifically in the agreement, and I 
have no doubt that the agreement was before me when I prepared that Bill. l think it would 
be either in the recess or early in the Session that that Bill was prepared, originally. 

945. By the· Chairman.--.:.The ,vorcls in the Bill are not exactly the same as in the agree­
ment ; but they are the same as they are in the draft lease? They are not· the same as in the 
agreement; the meaning is exactly the same, but the wording is not. The wording was altered 
in the draft lease. 

946. :From whom would you receive instructions to prepare that Bill, verbally or otherwise? 
I receive instructions direct from any of the Ministers. I should receive them· in this· case, I 
should think, either ·from the lVI inister in charge of the Public vV orks Department, or from on~ 
of his responsible officers. 
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94 7. You cannot remember having received any instructions? No, I cannot; ancl it was 
not until you showecl me a letter on Tuescla,y hist, which disclosecl the existence of the Bill, that 
I rnacle a search for these pitpers, ancl founcl them. I hacl no r_ecollecti.on of it at all. 
. 948. By ilfr. Ailwnhead.-You mean that you hacl forgotten that a Bill hacl been.prepared? 
I ha.cl quite forgotten it, 'Mr. Aikenhead. 

949. By the Chairman.-Ancl you cannot say whether Mr. Clark gave you instructions to 
prepare that Bill or not? No, sir. · · 

950. He was Attorney-Genera.! at the time? Yes; I should say he was Attomey-General 
because, as I said, the Bill was prepared very early in the Session, or in the recess. n'Ir. Clark was 
Attorney-General at that time, and· until the 17th of A ug·ust of that year. Them appem·s to have 
been 24 Bills in type. before he left office. The 25th was the first that was issued after the change 
of Ministry. · 

951. There is a letter there to Mr. Lewis? This one-on the 3rd October, 1892. 
952. Yes. \,Vill you read that letter? It is a letter· from Messrs. Dobson, Mitchell, and 

All port, Jated 3rd October, 1892. "The Honourable N. Elliot Lewis, Esq., Attorney-General. 
Dear Sir. Referring to the Bill empowering the Government to g-rant a lease to the Van Diemen 's 
Land Company, we suggest that the same be passed in its present shape, leaving any details to be 
settled when granting· the lease. Should this not meet with your approval, please ask the En­
gineer-in-Chief to formulate his objections at once, and send same to us, to be submitted to the 
Manager of the company for consideration. Yours very truly. Dobson, Mitchell, and Allport." 

953. Do you remember.Mr. Lewis, as Attorney-General, giving any instructions following 
on that letter? None whatever. · 

954. Have you a letter o{ a _later elate? There is ·another letter here of later elate. It 
is 27th October, from the same firm, ancl aclclrnssed to the Attorney-General. That merely says, 
"vVe hiive not yet received the clraft leases herein. Please expedite the matter." That letter 
woulcl seem to indicate that they thoug'ht the Bill had become Law. 

955, But have not you a Bill somewhat modified from that, of a later date ? That Bill wits 
revisecl on the 31st October, 1892 _: here is the copy l sent to the Printer. The revision excisecl 
all reference to the recital by which the company is said to have contributed £6000 ; the seconcl 
recital starts, "whereas it is cleemed expedient that a lease should be granted.'' 
. 956. "When woulcl the revised Bill be prepared? The revisecl Bill is clatecl October, 1892; 

that would be after Mr. Lewis came into office. 
957. Ancl your memory does not a,icl you as to that'? No, there is not a reference here in 

any way in Mr. Lewis' writing which would recall it; there is a memo. in Mr. Stops' handwriting. 
He was Secretary to the Law Department at the time, aucl there is another memo. in :Mr. 
Dobbie's handwriting. 

958. You have no idea at all, why this Bill was not introduced to Parliament, Mr. 
Wise? No; I have none whatever: whether it was that the Ministry of the cla_v declinecl to do 
it, or that there were any terms that clid' not suit the company, I cannot tell you. I clo not know 
the reason why it was chopped. , 

959. By 1111'. Ai!tenhead.-What becomes of the manuscript of Bills sent on to the Govern­
ment Printer? The manuscript is ttl ways returned to me; a.ncl it is my practice to enclose 
manuscript in a sheet, with endorsement on the back, and all the papers in connection therewith; 
but I cannot fincl any manuscript in connection with this Bill. \,Vhether the Bill was prepared by 
some one else ancl handed to me I am not prepared to say, or whether it was my own manuscript. 

960. By tlie C!tairman.-W oulcl it be at all probable that a Bill of that kind, dealing with 
a matter in connection with a private company, woulcl be clrafted by a firm of solicitors outside 
the Crown Law offices? I harclly think so, sir. . 

961. You think it was clraftecl by yourself? I think it was, sir; that is my opinion. The 
language seems to indicate that it was clraftecl in the office rather than outside, 

962. By 11fr. Niclwlls.-Have you got the .manuscript Bills immediately before and after 
that Bill ?-Diel you notice? What Bill do you mean, Mr. Nicholls? 

963. \,Vell, the Bills in the same Session, immediately before ancl after that? I clid not 
look for them. But the Bill immediately before it, I know I drafted myself; that was the 
Private Streets, Launceston, Bill. The Bill after that l did not draft myself; it was the Church 
of Engfaud Bill, prepared by Mr. M'lntyre, on behalf of the Church. 

964. Do you attach any significance to the fact that the manuscripts cannot be found? No, 
none whatever. I am satisfied that these papers have never been tampered with. They are put 
away in the strong-room, and I think no one but myself knows of the existence of them. 
I have kept these records myself, and put these papers away ; :tnd it was not until Tuesday 
morning, upon seeing the letter, that 1 becnme aware of the Bill being· in existence .. I may say 
that many of the Bills prepared are not distributed, but one does not attach the same importance 
to such Bill,;, :u1cl they are not impressed on one's memory with the Rame force hS in the case of 
Bills that are distributed, ancl go through the Hom,e. . 

965. By 1111·. Ailwnhead.-But can yoi.1 account for the manuscripts being missing, or not to 
be found ? No, I cannot. 
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.T. W. NORTON SMITH, called and e.r:amined. 

Mr. Norton Smith made the statutorv declaration. 
966. By tlte Chairman.-Your nam~is,TamesWilliam Norton Smith? Yes. 
967. And you are managing agent for tlie Van Diemen's Land Company? Yes. 
!-168. Do you also represent the Emu Bay Coin pany and Mount Bischoff Company? Yes. 
969. Have you an agreement, Mr. Smith, with you, signed by Mi•. Andrew Inglis Clark on 

behalf of the Minister of Lands? I have sir, yes. 
970. HavA you it here? Yes. 
971. \Vill you, Mr. Smith, kindly tell the 'committee what led up to this agreement being 

prepared and signed? vVell, I think about 1888 or 1889-[This was later on pointed out by the 
Chairman as an error, and Mr. Smith correcteu the mistake to 1878 or 1879]. The first commence­
ment was a letter fro.m the Master vVarden of the Table Cape Marine Board, who asked the 
company if it· would subscribe towards the erection of a breakwater at Emu Bay. I think it 
was called a wharf at that time; yes, it was. The company agreed to subscribe, provided it was 
allowed to run its tramway, as it wa,; then, on to the wharf. At first it was spoken of for all 
tiine. · 

972. Pardon me, Mr. Smith, was it :-poken of "for all time" in any correspondence? Well, 
there was no time limit, sii-, at all. I think it was Mr. Nicholas Brnwn who first put ·me on the 
time limit; in fact, I am certain it was. When we wern discussing the matter-it was once when 
:Mr. Brown and Mr. Fiucham ·were through on the Coast, and I remember this discussion very well, 
because it was at Mr. Ford"s house-lVIr. Brown asked to see 111e, and the drawing-room and the 

. dining·-room being· foll of people we had to go into the hall, and there was a small table there. It 
was then Mr. Brown made the stipulation that we must give the Government power to have 
co-occupancy in the case of a railway coming along. There has been a very considerable amount of 
corresponde11ce over it. · 'I'he subscriptions went on, and altogether we contributed £6000, and when 
the last £l000 was being· paid in through the company's solicitors in Hobart, I instructed them to 
take a receipt in accordance with the correspondence that had being going- on. They advised me 
that they could not well take it for the £6000, and that is the reason why the £1000 gets to be 
mentioned; that is the reason for it. At the time this thing was going· on there was very little 
thought about it, and there was never anything thought about this being a big concession g·iven to us, 
until Mr. Back came down to report on the extension of Government Railways to Table Cape. 
'l'hen, I believe, it wa,-at all events immediately after his then coming down there-I first heard 
any complaiut of a concession having been given, or any notice drawn to it. I have brought 
originals of all correspondence with me. J think you have full copies. 

973. Have you any correspo!idence between the year 1880 and 1888 on this question with 
you? No, sir. I do not think there is. Of course, a great deal of this was done verbally. 
The first letteds the 26th June, 1880, from the Master \Varden of the Table Cape Marine 
Board. 

974. I think you made a ~istake in ·your dates in the beginning-I think you stated it 
began in 1888? It began in verbal conversation in 1878 ; 1878 was the beginning of it. It 
should be 1878 or 1879, not 1888 or 1889. I think it was about 1886 or 1887 that Mr. Brown 
was down, when we made that arrangement about.giving the Government power to run over 
the breakwater. Of course, up to that time there was no thought of the Government extending 
its railways along there. 

975. Do you know who draft:ld that receipt. Well, sir, somebody from Dobson, Mitchell, 
and Allport's office. . 

976. Drafted it? Yes, sir, the whole transaction was clone through them. 
977. On what authority were they instructed to make the term 1000 years, Mr. Smith? I 

believe, sir, that w.as clone in the conversation 'that I had with Mr. Nicholas Brown. Mr. 
Nicholas Brown pointed out that he could not give a fee-simple, and there would have to be a 
time limit. 

978. But Mr. Nicholas Brown had been out of office £o1· several years before, you know ? 
Yes, sir, but I am almost.certain•that it was he who put that time limit i11. Of course, although 
there is no correspondence between the years 1880 and ; 888, there was a good deal of verbal 
correspondence. I was down in Hobart occasionally, and this thing was referred to; but that 
was the principal meeting I remember, the one I referred to just now, in 1886 or 1887. I think· 
it was when Mr. Brown was Minister of Lands. 

979. By Mr. Ai!tenhead.-Do we understand, Mr. Smith, that you say it was Mr. Nicholas 
Brown who first sugge!'ted I 000 years as the term:? Yes. Well; f really asked for the fee-flimple, 
but Mr. Nicholas Brown said we must have some time-limit, and he fixed 1000 years. 

980. B;i; .111'. Guesdon.-Did he give you tu understand that he had the power, as a Minister 
of Lands, _to grant you a 1000 years' lease? Oh, yes. He said he had not the power to grant a 
fee-simple, but had the power to give a le,ase. 

981. That he had the power to give a lease? Yes. 
982. By the Chairman.-Were you under the impresi-ion,personally, Mr.·Smith, that without 

special enactment a lease of 1000 years could. be given on any land? I was. Naturally, the 
question was raised when I paid that money. I was quite nuder the impression, wh~n the receipt 
was e;iven, that the M:inister ha;d qnlimite<l power to grant leases1 • 

' . ' ! l 
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983. Will you tell us what followed after that agreement was signed and given to you, and 

you paid JOU!' £1000: did you ask to have that agreement ratified by the issue of a lease? I 
think I only asked you, sir, if you would introduce a Bill. 

984. No, you did not ask me? Yes; when you were down at Burnie, last year. 
985. Oh, I beg your pardon, yes.-Are you aware whether a Bill was prepared, or not, at 

any time? JS o, sir; I am not awa1·e of any Bill being prepared. 
986. Diel you ask any Minister to ratify the agTeement by the issue of a lease, personally, or 

through your solicitors? VF ell, if I did, it was just in conversation; I have no distinct recollection 
of it. I remember speaking to you about it last year, when we were discussing other matters. I 
asked you if you would introduce a Bill, and you refnsed to do so. 

987. I was referring more particula1·ly, now, :M1·. Smith, to the two or three years subsequeut 
to the signing of that agreement? Well, no, sir; I do not think there was. .Because, after that, 
and apparently in connection with that, the 3-acre trouble sprang· up, and things got mixed all up. 

988. Do you remember an interview with Mr. HartnoJl, in this office, in connection with this 
matter? Yes: a very short one. 

989. Do you remember who were present? Mr .. Mitchell. 
990. Anvone else ? I do -not think so. 
991.- Do" you remember Mr. Dobbie being present on that occasion? He might have been, 

I do not remember. Mr. Mitchell and I went round together n,ml saw Mr. Hartnoll on the 
matter, and Mr. Hartnoll refused to give us the lease. I forget exactly what was done. 

992. Do yon know on what grounds he refused? Well, I think he refused to acknowledge 
the receipt. He refused to acknowledge the legality. 

993. As being a valid document? Something 0£ that· sort. Yes. I know Mr. I-Iartnoll 
was rather warm over it, and the meeting was not a very pleasant one. 

994. Diel yon instruct your solicitors to take action about it? "What do you IIJean, sir. 
995. Take action to compel the Government to ratify . the agreement. by issuing a lease? 

I do not think any instructions 0£ that sort were issued. 
996. Are yo11 aware that they threatened action? No; I do not remember. It is possible; 

because at this meeting I ·was very annoyecl by the tone I was received in, ancl Mr. ffortnoll 
lost his temper, and it is quite possible I may have given instructions at the time. 

997. By 111r. Guesdon.-Have you had many dealings with the Government under the 
Waste Lands Act and the Crown Lands Act? No, none whatever, till a couple of years ag-o. 

998. Then, of course, you would not be familiar with the provisions of the Act? No. 
999. Are we to understand from you that Mr. Nicholas Brnwn led you to believe that he had 

the power, as l\1i11ister of Lands, to grant you a lease for a l 000 years ,\'ithout Act of J>arliament? 
At this time there was some little talk of railways going along the coast, and he asked me if I 
would accept the power to run over there with the Govemment also having power in the event ·of 
its railway being extended along, and I consented to this. Then he told me that he could not give 
us a fee simple, but he would give us a lease-the Minister would g·ive us a lease, do you see-and 
the term was then fixed at I 000 years. · 

1000. Then he evidently led° you to infer that he had the power, as Minister of the Crown, to 
grant you a lease for l 000 years? Yes. 

1001. That was what he led you to infer? Yes, and not only that, but the agreement itself­
and the whole thing. 

1002. By the Cha'i1-man.-Which agreement? .This receipt, you see, was not from one 
Minister only. This thing ran along for some years. 

1003. By Mi·. Guesdon.-Did you have any inteview with M1·. Pilling·er on tl1e subject? Oh 
yes, various ones. · 

1004. And did he ever discuss with you whether he had the power, as l\'[inister of Lands, nuder 
the Waste Lands Act, to gTant this lease, or did he make reference to the Act? Yes ; that ca111e 
m. I cannot tell you at what time, but I und8rstood it would be necessary to g·et an Act. 

1005. At this time, when you wer!=) pressing· for a lease? No, sir, I never pressed for a lease. 
1006. Your solicitors pressed for it? No, that was this agreement.. 
1007. Did you have any conversation with Mr. Pilling·e1· before this was signed by Mr. Clark? 

You mean immediately p1·io1·? 
1008. Immediately prior? No. I did not come to Hobart at that time. I sent the money 

to my solicitors, and told them to hand it to the Minister of Lands, on getting· the _receipt in the 
terms of the correspondence. 

1009. You had no correspondence? None whatever. 
1010 .. By Mr. Nich<1lls-In what year clicl your company first run any line on the jetty at 

Emu Bay? In 1878 ; that is, what there was 0£ it, because that breakwater has beeu built from 
a little b1t 0£ a jetty, known first 0£ all as the "Bird Cage," and we ran 011 there at that time, 
and from that time the breakwater has been extended. 

1011. You began in 1878? Yes. 
1012. That was the first time rails were put on the jetty from Emu Bay ? Yes-No ; I 

think they were really Iaicl in 1876, but the tramway was completed in 1878, although we were 
really carrying stuff in 1877. 

1013. By the Chairman.-That is1 horse-tramwa;ys? Yes; on the horse-tramway. 
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1014. By M1·. Nicholls.---Thatwas a Government jetty then? No, I do not think it was; 

it was a Marine Board jetty. · 
1015. Do you remeu)ber how yoU:1· right was g·iven to you, by writing· or otherwise? Yes. 

Well, it was an understood thirig at first, and then there is this letter of the Master :\'Varden of the 
Table Cape Marine Board, 26th June, 1880. [Appendix I.]. 

1016. Was that in 1870? My letter of 19 October, 1880. "In reference to your application 
for assistance from the Van Diemen's Land Company." [ Appendix Ill._] 

1017. Well, that is the first writing un the subject? That is the first writing-yes. 
1018. Then you had been for four years running without any writing? 1877 was the first 

year-about that. 
1019. I only want it approximately? Yes, that's it. 
1020. In that year was the pier extended from the Bird Cage, so that it became a break­

wate1' ?~-It was filled in, I believe? No; the first thing that was clone was_a concrete mass sunk 
at the encl, and the filling in was done afterwards. I remember the circumstances, b'ut I cannot 
give the elate. These elates can easily be got from the Lands · Office. Mr. Cresswell .was in 
charge, and it was some years before the breakwater was extended. 

1021. Would it be before or after the year 1880? It would be after 1880 and, I think, 
prior to 1886; at all events, prior to 1887 : . I should think about 1883 or 1884, but I am never 
very good at dates. I remeinber the succession of circumstances, but I cannot fix the date from it. 

1022. And when the breakwater was extended yo.u simply extended your line with it? 
That was it-yes. . · 

1023. Under no holding at all? 

Yes. 
1024. You say you saw Mr. Nicholas Brown-did you apply to him for an absolute grant? 

1025. He told yon that it could not be given? Yes. 
1026. I suppose you were quite sure it was Mr. Nicholas Brown? Quite certain. I remember 

the place where it occurred particularly. _ 
1027. He told you that a grant could not be given? Yes. 
1028. And, accordingly, it would have to be for a term? Yes. 
1029. I suppose you consulted your solicitors then? No, sir, I did not. 
1030. Where did yon first hear the phrase " One .thousand years" mentioned as beipg the 

term? I believe that was the time; the first time any term was being fixed. 
1031. And who do you think suggested it? The 1000 years? 
1032. Yes? Well it is very probable that I clicl. I could not be certain of this; only, you 

see, when Mr. Brown said it must be confined to a period, I _should suggest as long a period as I 
couicl get. · . 

1033. Yes, naturally. When the correspoD:dence took place, in 1888-1889, you were in 
communication with Dobson, Mitchell, and Allport, of course. That is, immediately prior to the 
receipt being given? Immediately prior to the receipt I was not in communication with them 
about this correspondence, but as to the receipt being taken; as regards that, I gave them my 
instructions. • . · · 

1034. You gave your instructions, yes? And there was a little trouble about the terms. 
That had to be arranged. There was some correspondence about that. 

1035. I suppose they advised you that a lease for 1000 years was an advantageous thing? I 
do not think it was necessary for them to advise nm to that effect. 

1036. I do not mean merely as to the term, but a'S to the nature of your title to this right to 
such. I presume they advised yon as to that? Well, of course, I knew it. At all events, it is 
quite probable that they did_. 

1037. Did you ever mention to them, as a fact, that you had originally asked for a grant, but 
that 1000 years had been sugg·ested instead, as the Government. had no power to give an absolute 
grant? I should not think so. I should merely give them the instructions. · 

1038. By the Chairman.-vV ere you, throughout, under the impression, Mr. Smith, that the 
right you were asking to run your tra,mways in the first instance, ancl the railway subsequently, 
was a right in perpetuity? Yes, sir, that was the first understanding to myself. You saw all 
this correspondence prior to the date of the receipt. There is no term men~ionecl at all; and it 
was at this particuh~r meeting that Mr. Brown suggested that there should be some term. 

1039. Should you regard the term of 1000 years as practically giving you· this right in 
perpetuity? Practically. 

] 040. By. J.11.r. Aikenhead.-Can you not say in what year that interview took place with 
Mr. Brown ? No, sir. I could not clo so. . · 

1041. During his term of office ?-while he was Minister of Lands? Yes, he was down on 
the coast on an official visit. 
· 1042. He vacated office on the 9th March, 1887-N ow could you fix it ?-W oukl it be long 
before he vacated office? Really, sir, I would not say. But there is no doubt if the date is 
required it could be got from the Lands' Office, because he was on an official visit down the 
coast, and this arrangement was made at.Mr. Ford's house at Circular Head. It would be easy 
to find when. he was at Circular Head. ' , 

1043. By the Chairman.-Can you give us any idea of the date of your interview with Mr, 
Hartnoll ? It was very shortly after 4e took oaice1 • · · 
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1044. Of course you will lrn.ve no objection to mv exammmg Mr. Mitchell on tlrn.t point? 
No, sir-oh clear, no. " 

· 1045. Have you seen this plan before,-Mr. Smith'! [Witness examines plan.] Yes, I have 
seen a simila.r plan. _ 

1046. Does that conespond with what you consider was g-ranted to you- in the agreeme11t 
signed by Mr. Clark? Yes ; it is very similar. · If you take this plan here, it is almost" identical. 
[Witness produces plan.] 

1047. Arn you aware that after you had seen Mr. Hartnoll-that is, after you saw him 
immediately after his taking office-this Bill was prepared t [Witness examines document] No, 
sir ; I do not think I would know that any Bill was prepared to provide for the lease. Indeed, 
Mr. Hart11oll's reception of me was such that I did not think it was worth while doing any more in 
the matter with the Government. Of course, this might possibly have been done at Dobson, 
Mitchell, and Allport's suggestion . 

. •1048. Was this· Bill read before the House? No; anyhow, I never heard of it. · 
1049. I wanted to get the reason from you why, after it had been prepared, it was not brought 

before the House? · · 
1050. Did your company lay down the present rails on the breakwater? No, sir, the Marine 

Board did that. 
1051. Have you been using them? Oh yes. 
1052. Under what arrnngement? No arrangement other than this. 
1053. But was it not provided tfiat you _ were to lay down these rails? We had puwer 

to d·o so. 
1054. Not the obligation ? Not the obligation, I think. 
1055. Have you been paying the Marine Board for the use of the rails? No sir; oh, no. 
1056. Have you been charging any wharfages? What, the eompany ? 
1057. Yes? Oh, no. 
1058. Then, as a matter of fact; you have not been put to any expeilse in connection with this 

ag-reement ? Not lately, at any rate . 
. 1059. At any time? Oh, yes Originally, we laid the whole of the rail~, and then, when the 

breakwater was being made our road was torn up for the sake of the big rrane going· down, and 
when the thing was done the Marine Board relaid the rails. 

1060. Did you have any permission from the Marine· Board-or anyone, originally, when you 
first laid the rails 011 to the wharf? No·, sir, beyond what I have shown you from the Master 
Warden. 

1061. I mean when you started first, when th~re was only a jetty there? No. 
1062. You simjJly laid the rails on it for your own convenience? Yes. 
1063. I have asked you something about the three acres, Mr. Nor ton Smith. Do you 

remember ir. 1889, a Bill being passed by Parliament voting the sum 0£ £6000, on condition that 
the Van Die111en's Lancl Company gave a certain area 0£ lancl? I remember a Bill being passed. 
I cannot say about the year. I have no doubt it was in 1889. 

1064. Yqu will remember this Bill 0£ 5th Decemper, 1889, providing for £6000 being voted 
conc1itionally upon the gTant from the Va.n Diemen's Lancl Company 0£ three acres 0£ lancl at 
Blackman's Point for public pnrposes? Yes, sir.; oh, yes. 

1065. vVere there any negotiatio"ns with your company prior to that Bill for the acquirement 
0£ that lanc1 ? No, I do not think so. My recollection 0£ it is that that Bill was introdur.ed to 
the Parliament, and while it was in the Committee, Mr. Fenton got that clause introduced. 
That is my recollection 0£ it. The clause, I mean, that the Van Diemen's Lancl Company 
should be made to give three acres 0£ lancl. · 

1066. Diel you afterwards agree to give the three acrns? Yes, sir. 
1067. Why did you not give it? We were prepared to, but we did not give it because the 

Law Officers of the Crown would 11ot accept it. 
I 068. The whole of it or part of it ? The whole of it. They would not take our conveyance. 
1069. :For what reason ? For the reason that the Law Officers of the Crown disputed our 

title to part of the land. I have the chart here which was sent me at that time. [ Chart produced. J 
That was the chart sent to me from the Lnnds Office at the time. This survey was made by 
the :i;;ng-ineer" 0£ the department while he was in charge of the breakwater, and it was submitted· 
to me, and I was asked if the company woulcl grant A, B, rtnc1 either BB or pai·t 0£ C, ancl if 
the company refused to grant BB, then it was to give a11 equiv:tlent area out of C ; ancl 
also Government asked for the right to quarry on C; that is a statement from memory; but I 
will reacl you the letter. [Appendix XV.] ' 

1070. Is Block B above or below high-water mark? Well, it contains a part of the land 
above high-water. 

1071. And part of it is the land we have since resumed, which we claim under the orig·inal 
grant to the Crown? That is so. 

1072. And part of it is b_etween the land g-ranted to us an<l the Emu Bay Company's land? 
Yes. [Witness refers to plaus.J 

I 073. Is a part of block A, also below hi~·h-water mark too ? It .just rnns out to low-water 
1nark'. 



· (No. 76.) 

55 
1074. And yoi.t say this is' the land you were originally asked to grant? Yes; here is the 

letter dealing with that. [ Appendix XV.]. 
1075. The letter is from whom? From the Minister of Lands and Works, the Hon. Alfred 

Fillinger, dated 3rd July, 1889. 
l 076. This letter precedes the passing of this Act? llere is the amended letter, dated 21st 

Jan nary, 1890. . . 
] 077. Wait a minute-I want the letters to come in chronological order? VV ell, first of all, 

there is this letter of :Mr. Pillinger's, dated 3rd July, 1889. · 
·1078. That is followed by what? That is followed by another letter. . 
1079. Well, to come to the point-did you consent to grant that lanu? Well, in my 

acknowledgment of Mr. Pillinger's letter I say, "I do n_ot anticipate, any -hesitation on the part 
of my directors in granting any portion of their land for public purposes, provided it can be clearly 
pointed out to them _that such grant or grants are necessary for public convenience, but I must 
admit that I do not realise how so la1·ge an area as three acres can possibly be required adjoining 
the wharf, at present." · 'I'hen there is anothe1; letter from the Minister of Lands, on the 5th August: 
1 will read it. [Appendix XV A.]. 

1080. By JJ.fr. Guesdon.-What vote would that refer to, Mr. Smith? Well, the date is the 
5th August, 1889. It seems to be just before-

The lYiinister of Lands: Before the bill was discussed in the House? Yes. 
1081. By Mr. Ailienhead.-That is in reference to the Parliamentary Vote of £6000? Yes. 
1082; By the Chairman.-Then, did you get a reply to t,hat letter, Mr. Smith ? I got a reply 

from the London office. I know there was some little trouble about this. My :fi.rst official reply 
was dated the 1st March, l 890. On that date I wired to the Minister of Lands :-" Have <Wm­
munication from London. Kindly wire consent to width of road frorn North Terrace, as indicated 
in my letter of the 17th ultimo." 'I'hat was the road through the land here, coming away round to 
the wharf. They wanted a road through here 20 feet wide, and I pointed out there always had Leen a 
road a chain wide, and we wanted the sarne thing. I telegraphed accordingly, and I got a reply from 
Mr. Filling·er :-" Do you mean the company consents to give the three acre;; required if the north 
terrace is ma<le the width you want?" To that I wired, in reply :- " Practically, yes. Wished 
your_consent to this before writing to save farther correspondence." Then I got a further telegram 
from bim :-" Your wishes. re north tenace road being· one chain in width acceued to." Then 
follows the letter of the 8th. Some trouble arose about that, and eventually I said I should 
cut off the land altogether. ,Members of the Committee will understand by looking at the 
plan. [Witness refers to plan.] We said that if the Government did not do what we wanted we 
would be compelled to cut off the corner. Of cours~ I think that Mr. Fillinger could not really 
ha,:e understood the proposal. You see, we already had· a promise of the lease of the g·round, and 
if we hail not insisted on this point we would have .heen cut off from access to our ground, and 
blocked altogether.· I think Mr. Pillinger could not have understood the position when he wrote 
~E~~ffi . 

1083. Were the particular matters in dispute finally arrang·ed between yourself and Mr. 
Pillinger? No, sir; that is the last letter I had from him ; that is the last letter I can find-the 
letter of 18th March, l 890. I think everything· else was done by conversation. The matter, of 
course, is still standing in abeyance. . 

1084. Do ·you remember, Mi·. Norton Smith, l'eceiving· this letter of the 24th March, 1897. 
[Appendix XL VII IA. J /-Does not that indicate, Mr. Smith, that all other differences. had been 
arrang·ed between you? Mr: Fillinger agTeed that he understood this, and that there was no 
objection to olir going across there; but there was this difficulty of the objection of the Law Officers 
of the Crown. 

1085.' I want to ascertain first whether all other· difficulties but that as to the land between the 
street and low-water had been arranged? Yes, sir, as to the land itself, without reference to the 
breakwater. · 
• 1086. Do you still object, Mr. Norton Smith, to grant· the land down to high-water mark?-

Do you still refuse to grant it? I submit, of course, that the grounds on which the Government 
refused to accept that-piece of land are really grounds that would make the company say:­
" We will give you the piece of land first applied for, but we will not give you anything else." 
I have not submitted it at present, because if our company now consents to give you the piece 
of land above high-water mark it would simply be acknowledging that you are in the right as 
to this case that is going on. -

I 087. I want to know is that the only objection at the present time to the handing over of 
these three acres? vV ell, we shall certainly ask you to give us t.he lease of the breakwater at the 
same time. 

1088. But what conneetion is there between the lease of the breakwater ancl the granting of 
these three acres ? vV ell, the two thi11gs have been running togethel' ; they have been treated as 
one thing, practically. The whole of the company's contribution:; were to be paid in conse- . 
quence of, and on the presumption of, their having this right to the breakwater. 

1089. Was there any real association between these two things at all ? Oh, yes. Our con­
tributions, right away through, were given under consideration of om having powers over the· 
breakwater. 1 

1090. Was not the Act of Parliament requiring you to assist with the £1000 prior. to the 
question of these three acres coming up at all? I think the three ac1"es had-to do with the last 
contribution, · • 
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1091. But that Act as to yom contributing £1000, and the Table Cape Marine Board £800 

have nothing· to do with this 3 acres at all? No. 
1092. ,v as there a su]Jsequent Act then, under which the Government were to spend £6000 on 

condition t;hat you gave these 3 acres? Yes. 
1093. Did the Government spend this £(WOO? I believe so-yes. 

. 109+. And you still refuse to give up the 3_acrest We simply say that we are willing to carry 
out our part of. the ag-reernent, when ·the Government will carry out theirs. 

1095. ,viii you tell me, M1·. Smith, what connection there is, or can be, between these 3 acres 
and the agreement for tlw leasP., exeept that you have yourself joined them together?. Well, the 
land was given in con11ectio11 with the breakwater, and in consequence of our having the right to 
run over it. 

I 096. What? Do yon mean to say that would affect this question of the 3 acres of land? 
Oh, the 3 acres-yes. 

J 097. Can yon tell us of auy co1Tespondence or documents showing· that? As a matter of fact, 
were not the two Acts of Pal'liament passed on different lines altogether-for two specific pur­
poses? The Acts of Pal'!iament did not interfere with the reasons for the company conceding this 
land. 

I 098. \~That I want from you, Mr. Smith, is this-can you show me any letter or correspondence 
of any sort or kind which associates these two questions tog·ether? I think I have a lette1· here. 
There is a letter here, addressed to Messrs. Dobson & Mitchell, from the Public \V orks Office, 
dated September 5th, 1890. [Appendix XLIA.J. I think tha,t letter shows there was a connection' 
between them. 

1099. By Jfr. Hall.-I understand that is a letter to your solicitors? Yes. 
1100. ,Vith instructions to them to convey certain propositions to the Government? Yes; 

this is practically a recapitulation from the Minister of Lands of the case as it then stood. 
1101. By the Clwirm,zn.-Was not the association of the two matters brought about by your 

refusing to give this land n ntil the lease had been given you for the breakwater? It is possibly so. 
,Ye certainly consider that the whole thing· should be done together-these transactions of the 
breakwater and the matter concerning the land. We, on our side, proinise to g·ive three acres; the 
Government, on their side, promise to give the lease of the breakwater; and we think the whole 
thing· should be em bodied in one agreement. 

1102. Do you quite think that there is a moral obligation on yom company, the £6000 having 
been duly expended by the Government, to give that land under ·that arrangement'/ Yes; but I 
also consider that there is a moral obligation on the part of the Government to give us that break­
watei·. The obligation is as m nch on one. side as the other. 

1103. By JYir. Patterson.-! asked a question of a witness yesterday, but he did not seem to 
be able to answer it; so I ask you, Mr. Smith. vVho controls the harbour at Emu B.ay? The 
Marine Board. 

1104. vVhen you asked the present Minister if he would ratify the lease by bringing a Bill 
into Parliament, what did he reply? He refused to do so. 

] 105. Absolutely? Yes, sir. 
1106. ,vhat was the apprnximate elate of that interview? I should think it was in January. 

It was when he was down at Burnie-about that time. 
1107. By the Chairrnan.·-ln the option of purchase lield by the present Ern_n Bay Railway 

Compauy there is some land included which is the property of your company, is there not? Yes; 
that is in the event of the Emu Bay Company buying the railway. Then they had the option to 
buy some of the land also. 

1] 08. \Vhat is the position of that laud about Burnie ? Well, there is a piece of it at the 
back of the present passeng·e1' platform. lt is fenced in at present with a fence consisting· of a top 
rail and wire underneath at the back of the station; and also any land belonging- to the company 
between the street rnnning up there past l\'lr. Wisemau's and the railway; and there is, also, I 
think, 10 chains of foreshore land. 

1109. Have you in rinded in the option to purchase,. the right to make lines to this piece of 
gTound here? Yes; we hand them over the rights we have from the Government. 

1110. ,vlrnt rights? Such rights its we have to run over the breakwater. 
1111. Such rights tts yon consider were given by this agreement? Yes, we have sold the 

Emu Bay Railway Company our right to r.un over the breakwater under that agreement. 
1112. And this is really part of the option to purchase? Yes. 
1113. Included in that l Yes. 
1114. '\\Till the acquirement of th~ option or the lease-it pritetically amounts to the same 

thing by the Government-release t,he Government from any responsibility that you think it has 
with regard to yom Company'? Oh, tlrnt is tt question I ·would like time to consider. That is 
rather a legal question. 

1115. I want to kuow from you what you, as agent of the Van Diemen's Land Company, are 
transferring to the Emu Bay and Bischoff Railway Company? Well, if we sell to the ·Emu Bay 
Railway Company, we sell them that agreement. They would be entitled to that as our title .. 

1116. \1/hatever that confer::;'( Yes. 

1117. Have -yon g·naranteed them a right to go through this land? vVell, no sir ; you would 
hardly expect us to do that. We have sold them such right as we possess, 
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1118 . .At any rate, whoever acquires this railway from Burnie to ,varatah, acquires whatever 
right you consider you possess under this document? Yes, sir--auything· that the Emu Bay 
Railway Company possesses. 

1119. Now, I want to have that brought clearly out; that, so far as that particular thing is 
concerned, this breakwater matter is settled by the purchase of that line.-Y ou transfer whatever 
rights yon have up to these red lines here? [Witness refers to plan.] Yes. 

1120. ·what property does the Government own at Bnrnie in connection with the port ? 
vV ell, I do not know that the Govemment own anything at all there, sir. 

1121. Well, say the Marine Board? The Marine Board owns this piece here. [.Witness 
refers to plan.] , 

1122. That is, the Government owns it? Well, I don't think it has ever been formally vested 
in the Marine Board, but the JVIarine Board has control. I think the actual conveyance was to 
the Minister of Lands for wharf purposes, or something of that sort. 

1123. Then there is a piece they have acquired recently here? [Witness refers to plan.] Yes, 
1124. That is all the property the governing bodies posses,, at Burnie? Yes. 
1125. Is that adequ,tte for the necessities of a port such as Burnie at the present time? Our 

directors consider it is.' 
1126. Does Mr. Norton Smith consider it is, as a member of the Table Cape Marine Board? 

W ell--no, sir, I do not. 
1127. That is for present requirements? I do not consider it sufficient. 
1128. Do you think that the wharfage accommodation being provided by the new pier and 

·the breakwate1· combined will be more than sufficient for the necessities of that port, next year? 
I think it will be quite insufficient. . 

1129. You think it will be insufficient for next year'? Yes, I do. 
1130. Is there any pos,;ibility of acqniring land there for purposes of wharf extension? The 

only possible way is to buy from the Van Diemen's Land Company. 
1131. Well, can they buy from the Van Diemen's Lan<l Company ?-Has the Van -Diemen's 

Land Company g'ot it to sell? There is a piece there, ,mbject to the Emu Bay Company's option, 
l Witness refers to plans.] They have the optiou below high-water mark : and further along they 
have a short piece on the seaside. 

1132. How is this described-have you really sold down to low-wate1· mark? We have sold· 
down to low-water mark. · 

1133. Have you expressed it so? No~ we_ have not expressed it so. While this thing is before 
the Supreme Court we would be very foolish to do _so. . , . 

1134. But the thing was·not before the Supreme Court when tlus was on? vVell, practrcally, 
it was. Our title was disputed, and it was only natu1:al to suppose that we should protect ourselves. 

1135. Well, l was asking you about the accommodation at the port ?-From whom must the 
Goverurnent purchase if land is required for future wharf extension 01· construction? Anything -
under the lee of the break.water must come from the Bischoff Railway Company. 

I 136. 1'hat is, from land concerned in this option? Yes, sir, just so. 
1137. Is it the onlv land at Burnie suitable for wharf construction? It is the only land. at 

present with the slighce~t protection. It is the only land that touches the railway. It 1s the only 
land that has any adequate protection from the breakwater. 

HON. N. J. BROWN called ctnd examined. 

Mr. Brown made the statutory declaration. 
By the Chctfrman.-Mr. Norton Smith, this morning, in giving us_ some account of this 

lease, stated that he interviewed you in connection with a right to run over a wharf or breakwater 
somewhere about 1886 or 1887 at a time when you were visiting the North West Coast; anu. that at 
that interview the first suggestion of the terms of that lease being for a thousand years was made. 
I thought it better to explain to. you what has been said first in order that you might tax your 
memory in relation to it. . · 

1138. Your name is Nicholas John Brown? Yes .. 
1139. And you are Speaker of the House of Assembly? Yes. 
1140. And formerly Minister of Lands of the Colony of Tasmania? Yes. 
~141. Do you remember during your term of office paying a visit to-the North West Coast-to 

Burme, Stanley, and Circular Head? I paid several visits to the North West Coast-I think I paid 
two visits to Stanley. · 

1142. Well, do you remember having a conversation with Mr. Norton Smith, at Circular Head, 
at Mr. Ford's house, in connection with a grant of a right to run a tramway on to the breakwater? I 
ha:ve a recollection of spending an evening at Mr. ·Ford's house in Mr. Smith's company ; and I 
thmk it is very likely the question which was then being discussed between the Government and 
Mr. Norton Smith may have been referred to in the course of conversation. · 

1143. Do you remember that there was a proposition of some kind at the time before the Govern­
ment as to that? I have a very clear recollection of certain general matters. I think it was about 
the first time I had met Mr. N°orton Smith, and I remember being particularly struck by his zeal 
and lJertinacity in advocating the interests of his employers, I have also a recollection that he very 

~ ' . ·- ;:;: . . . . ~ 
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persistently asked me to consent to giving his company a freehold right to some portion of Govern­
·ment land adjacent to the breakwater; but what the precise area or the precise situati_on of the land 
was I could not tell you without refreshing my memory by referring to documents and plans. 
I know that I very distinctly refused to consent to recommend what Mr. Smith was trying to 
persuade me to recommend. 

1144. Have you any recollect.ion of their asking for certain rights to take a line of railway or 
tramway through Crown property abutting on the breakwater? :No, I have no recollection of that . 
.All that is in my mind is the pertinacity with which Mr. Norton Smith endeavoured to get me to 
say that I would recommend that his company should have the freehold of certain land adjacent to 
the breakwater. And I may say that there was no formal conversation at all on that occasion. 
Whatever took place was in the freedom of social intercourse, and certainly nothing of a business 
character, as far as I remember, took place at all. In fact, it is utterly contrary to my usual habit 
to discuss seriously any business matter under those circumstances. 

1145. Mr. Smith states that yon left the drawing room, there being no room eit.her in that 
room or the dining room, to converse, and went into the hall to talk this matter over : and that you 
pointed out to him the impossibility of getting a freehold, which was what he wanted to get, and 
suggested or proposed to him that the rights conferred should be for a term of years instead ?­
Is that so? Very likely, as I refused to discuss the matter of granting any freehold. 

1146. Have you any recollection of suggesting 1000 years for the rights? Not the slightest. It 
is extremely improbable. 

1147. By .kfr. Gitesdon.-What I asked Mr. Smith was, whether in the conversation between 
him and yourself, you conveyed to him-having refused him a freehold-that you had the power 

· to grant him a lease for JOOO years; and Mr. Smith replied that you did-What do you say to that? 
Such a statement is absolutely ridiculous, and I am surprised at any one in the position of Mr. 
Norton Smith making such a statement. I may point, out to the Committee, that, having absolutely 
refused the freehold, it is perfectly ridiculous to suppose that I would be a party to granting the 
freehold in another form, or recommending.it in another form. I can give a probable explanation 
if the Committee will permit me to do so. I think members of the Committee will understand 
that in informal conversation like that, it is very probable that I pointed out the impossibility of the 
:freehold being granted, and that, on that refusal, suggestions for a lease for a term of years were 
discussed. On that, it is quite possible I may have said-" The rapacity of the Van Diemen's Land 
Company is such, that even 1000 years would not satisfy them "-That is the only way in which I 
can account for my name being dragged into the matter in the way in which it has been dragged 
in. I am very sure,_ that if I had proposed to limit the term, it would be to limit it in a very distinct 
and definite way- probably 20 years, or something like that. 

1148. Then! I presume that you would never have suggested ·anything outside your power 
without the sanction of Parliament? I have not the slightest doubt that all I said to Mr. Norton 
Smith, in any way, was that I would recommend the matter to the consideration of the Cabinet. I 
would not dream of taking upon myself the responsibility of making a definite bargain with anyone 
_on such. a subject, without consulting my colleagues. It would be highly improper for any 
Minister of the Crown to do it. 

1149. By Mr. Niclwlls.-Do you remember, Mr. Brown, whether at the interview with Mr. 
Norton Smith the powers of the Government were discussed ? I can not say that they were. Of 
course it is 16 or 17 years ago, and one's memory_ is .not precise as to details after that time; I may 
say that I think the date given must be incorrect. I think it must have been earlier than 1886. I 
think it must have been about 1884, My recollection is, that probably it was about 1883 or 1884. 
I left office in 1886, 

MR. JOHN MITCHELL, called ctnd exam·ined. 

Mr. John Mitchell made the statutory declaration. 
1150. By the Ohai'rma.n.-Your name is John Mitchell? Yes. 
1151. You are a member of the firm of Dobson, Mitchell, & Allport, Solicitors ? Yes. 
1152. Formerly solicitors to the Van Diemen's Land Company? Yes. 
1153. I may mention, Mr. Mitchell, thl!,t Mr. Smith has been asked if he had any objection to 

your coming here, and he -replied that he had not-do you understand that ? Mr. Smith has 
himself informed me that he has no objection. . · 

1154. Do you remember an interview taking place between. Mr. Hartnoll, the Minister of Lands 
at the time, and yourself, and I believe Mr. Dobbie was present? I cannot call it to rny mind. 

1155. Have you any record in your books? Well, I was only asked to come here at a quarter 
past two, just a few minutes since, and I have had scai•cely time to look up my books. I clo know, 
that on the 10th Novembei· I had an intei·view with Mr. Hartnoll. 

1156. Do you remember what took place? Subsequent to what took place, I wrote to Messrs. 
Blake and Riggall. I imagine the matter turned somewhat on the position of the rails on the 
breakwater. We contended that we had a right to choose where they should be placed, and the 
Minister of Lands said no-that was his privilege. Some negotiations were going on with the Crown 
Solicitor's Department. It was only when the refusal to carry out the agreement came about,, I 
think, tha.:t reference was made to the Minister, · · 
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· li57. Do you remember a Bill being prepared to enable the Government to give effect to a 
cerfain agreement ? Yes, I do. . 

1158. Was that Bill drafted in your office ? l think p_ot; but it was drafted, I believe, on 
behalf of the company.-! ha"\'e the draft Bill here. 

1159. In type? No, it is in manuscript; I got that from Melbourne, I believe, from, the 
solicitors over there, and so I cannot say anything about that. Of course, if Mr. Smith authorised 
me to speak, or to say anything about this matter, I would act on his instructions. I might suggest 
that it would be more satisfactory to me if Mr. Smith should state formally that I might answer any 
questions put to me. 

1160. Well, we did not ask him whether we could examine you on general questions.-What 
we said was with regard to the interview with Mr. Hartnoll----:-you understood that ? As to anything 
else, I should claim my privilege, and I do not think anything I have said should be tahm down 
without Mr. Smith's consent. It is Mr. Smith's privilege-it is not my privilege. 

[Mr. Smith was called, and formally asked by the Chairman whether he consented to Mr. John 
Mitchell answering any questions put to him. Mr. Smith expressed his consent, and remained 
present throughout Mr. Mitchell's examination.] 

1161. Do you produce a draft of that Bill, then, Mr. Mitchell? Yes, I produce it. I believe 
this is the original manuscript of it. As I say, I have not had any time to compare anything. But 
this is the draft of a Bill to authorise the grant of a lease of certain pieces·of Crown land to the Van 
Diemen's Land Company. I have also a copy of the draft Bill in print. [Manuscript draft and 
printed Bill reaJ. and compared.] 

116?, That is much fuller than this, Mr. Mitchell? There were alterations made in Melbourne, 
I believe; those in red ink, probably. It is the same through the Bill. Section 2 is very much 
longer. That is a different Bill to this. This is a much fuller Bill ? That, of course, is three years 
after the original Lease was prepared, approved, and engrossed. 

' 1163. This is in 1892? Yes, three years after the draft_lease was prepared. I have that draft in 
the handwriting of Mr. J. Henry, but some of the words here-some of the alterations-are .Mr. 
Dobbie's handwriting, I think. I myself made a suggestion on this-a note suggesting that it should 
be accompanied by complete plans. The lease went so far that it was actually signed by the 
company .. 

1164. Do you know why.it was not executed? Yes, I know why; because the Government 
would not sign it. 

1165. Was a reason given? Oh, yes. We had rather stormy interviews with Mr. Douglas, I think. 
1166. By Mr. Patter.son.-It was not Mr. Hartnoll ? The stormiest interview-well, I will not 

say the stormiest- but the firmest interviews were with Mr. Douglas in 1892. When Mr. Douglas 
was shown the agreement he made some very pertinent remarks about it. Then the lease was again 
re-drafted. . • 

1167. _The agreement, Mr. Mitchell, was drafted in your office, was it not? I think it must have 
been. 

1168. By Mr. Nicholls.-Whose is the endorsement on the agreement, Mr. Mitchell·? That is 
our clerk's handwriting. 

1169. By the Ohctirman.-That is the draft? [Witness examines document.] Yes, that was 
drafted in the office of Dobson, Mitchell, agd Allport. Here is my handwriting in it. 

1170. Did your firm have anything to do with getting it signed? Only in the ordinary way, 
They would communicate either in writing or verbally with the Crown Solicitor of tl;ie day. Mr. 
J. J. Henry was the person we nearly always saw in connection with it. 

1171. You did not see Mr. Dobbie in connection with it? I could not state from memory 
whether I did, but I have some letters from Mr. Dobbie-one letter certainly. [Appendix XLIV.J 

1172. What is the date of that? 2nd November, 1892. 
1173. Was that subsequent to your stormy interviews with Mr. Douglas? No. 
1174. That letter was received before your interviews? I think so. The· later interview was on 

10th November. 
1175. Was Mr. Hartnoll's objections to sign the lease based simply upon the question of the 

position of the rails ? Apparently, judging by the letter I wrote to Messrs. Blake and Riggall it 
was ; I have not verified that in any way. Of course I can get that letter immediately. 

1176. I shall be glad if you will get it? [Letter produced.] The date is the 17th November. 
"The Honourable William Hartnoll. 

"WE are instructed to ask if you will carry out the ·agreement of the former Minister in this 
matter, and if not, kindly state your reasons fully." 

1177. Did you get a reply to that? I cannot tell you without looking it up. That was the letter 
I referred to. Another letter written on the 22nd November to Mr. Hartnoll, was of an entirely 

. different matter. · 
· 1178. By ~Wi·. Guesdon.-Would the subsequent letter show whether he replied? The books at 
the office would show. I have not got them here. 

1179. By Mr. Nicholls.-You know, do you not, Mr; Mitchell, that no one had power to make a 
lease of Crown lands for 1000 years? I got what I was instructed to get. 

1180. What am I to take that to mean? Oh, I was not aware at the time, Oh, no. 
1181. But, acting as solicitors for the lessor, was not the power of the Crown that to make 

lease examined? I did not examine it, so far as I can recollect. 
1182. Would it not be a natural thing to refer to the Act in dealii:ig with the Crown, to see 

what the powers were ? Apparently, it was not. I presumed that the landlOl'd's solicitor would 
know much more about it than I would. 

1183. Of course.-rl'hey are specialists in that, and you are not supposed to be.-But in this 
case, the promise contained in it was for a lease for a thousand years ; and is not that a political 
promise and not a legal promise ? I draw no distinction .. If the Crown in black and white had. 
signed the agreement, I think they should carry it out. Don't you think so too? 
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1184. Well, if the Crown did.-Do you contend that the Minister had p·ower to bind the Crowri. 
ln a matter of that sort? Well, everybody acted in a perfectly bona jide manner at that time, 
thinking the'Orown had the power. 'rhe money was paid and the agreement made in that belief. 

1185. Did you not think there is a difference betweeIJ. a political promise and a binding legal 
promise ? I do not think there ought to be. . 

1186 .. Why, you would not have the Minister bound by anything that a previous Minister 
might have done ? Don't you see the distinction ; I think that if a man in office makes a promise 
~hat it is binding upon him. ,, 

1187. Is it binding on his successor;-ithough? I think so, or else they ought to get a proper 
compensation. I do _not think there is one man in a hundred that does not think the same. 

1188. And was it in that light that you took the documents ? What light? 
118~). In the light that it was a promise and that morally it should be performed ? I hold. that 

legally and honourably the Government of Tasmania arA bound to carry out tha..t agreement. They 
took the company's ;money, and they have had it for eight years. 

1190. By J.vir. Guesdon. -Is it the professional practice, Mr. Mitchell, in dealing with a client's 
money and handing.it over as a security for a lease to ascertain whether the lessor has a title? Oh, 
yes. That is the law. . ' -

1191. Is that the professional practice ? Yes. Oh, it is the practice. 
1192. Then, was there any particular reason why you departed from that practice in this 

instance? No. Everybody assumed that the Government had power to do it. 
1193. Then, yon did not examine the title ? Oh, no. 
1194. Then, yon departed from usual professional practice? Oh, I don't know. Wh~n we got 

the documents from the Crown Solicitor's office we assumed that they·knew more than we did. 
1195. But the document from the Crown Solicitor's office does not set forth the title ? No lease 

ever does. · 
1196. But, do not you satisfy yourse-lf ? That is the rule. 
1197. ·But, in this ca13e you departed from it? I do not say I departed from it. It was not 

carried- out. 
'1198. But, do you consider that a -lease granted as this was, ultra v-ires, would be binding upon 

a succeeding Government to carry out? I think it ought to be. Of course Governments always 
look back at the.last ones, and assume that they know very much more than their predecessors. 

1199. By J.vir. Hall.-I take it, Mr. Mitchell, the view you would take of this matter was that, 
as the Crown's right was never questioned, you did not examine as to the question as to whether 
the ministers were in a position to grant the lease or not? If the Crown assumes phe Act, the thing 
is not inquired into only in one case in a thousand. · 

'1200. By 1vI1·. Hall.-Mr. Guesdon led the Committee to understand that you departed from 
the usual practice. I take it that, knowing the Crown's right is never disputed, you did not think 
of questioning it? It never occurred to me, it never occurred to anybody. 'rhe same remarks that 
Mr. Guesdon asked of me would be asked of the Crown Solicitor. 

1201. By .iJfr. Guesdon.-Does Mr. Mitchell endorse the opinion advanced.by Mr. Hall, that the 
Crown's right is never questioned? I think, if the Government takes a man's -money under an 
agreement, the agreement. should" be carried out. In that opinion I am not alone. · We have letters 
from Mr. Clark, which the Chairman will read. [Appendices XLV. and XLVI.J 

1202. By ]!Jr. N1:clwlls.-Do you know why the Bill was never introduced ? I cannot say. • 
Possibly it·was attributable to the change of Ministry. · 

J.'Jtfr. N01·ton Smith: You will remember, sir, that this mo1'ning I was not very clear as to 
what had been done in this matter. Will you be good enough to ask Mr. Mitchell whether it was 

· on· the general or -special" instructions that he carried this thing through ? 
1203. By Mr. Patterson.-! will put that question to you, Mr. Mitchell? I got very long letters 

Mr. Smith, ancl'I acted on those instructions. · 
1204. Were they general ·or special? They were all in connection with the lease, 
1205. By iJfr. Hall.-We were not quite clear, I think, about proceedings being threatened? I 

could not say whether proceedings had been threatened, not until I looked it up. Of course, if I 
looked for proce~dings, I would be acting in the interests of the company, but do lmow that I would 
go to that extent without special instructions. · 

1206. By M1·. Nicholls.-Here is' a letter, Mr. Mitchell, which I will reacl.. It is addressed by 
your firni to Mr. Fillinger. I want to call your attention specially to what it says : ". We sent a 
copy of your last letter herein to Mr. Smith, and he instructs us that the new position taken up by 
your cannot for one moment be entertained. He is willing to come to. an arrangement, allowing the 
Government to run ·their trains over the lines at the breakwater on a proportionate cost of main~ 
tenance being paid. Om instructions are that if"no settlement is come to within a week then action 
must be taken to have the agreement specifically enforced.. We trust that in the time allowed you 
will see your way clear to meet Mr. Smith in what he offers. Of course this letter is without 
prejudice."-Do you rememb'3r that letter? Well, I cannot say whether there were special 
instructions or not. The ordinary instructions would carry it. 

1207. By .iJ:fr. Nicholls.-Do you not think that the letter I have quoted indicates pretty clearly 
that special instructions have been received? Yes. 

1208 . .ilfr. No1·ton Smith.-Would you be gooci enough, sir, to ask Mr. Mitchell, before he goes, 
whether the lease was actually prepared giving us the right to run over the railway, and whether 
such lease was approved by the Law Officers of the Crown ? 

1209. By the Ohct-irmcm.-I did ask him that question. -However, from your knowledge, Mr. 
Mitchell, was such a lease actually prepared ? There• is a draft lease from the Commissioner of 
Crown Lands sent to the company. That was prepared by the Crown Solicitor. 
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1210. In whose liandwrit1.ng was it? That is Mr. J. J. Henry;s handwriting, and the notes are 
in Mr. Dobbie's handwriting, I think. 

- 1211. That is the original drafi;? 'l'hat is the original draft.. Here is the engrossment of it. I 
am speaking without my book, but I believe both parties had their lease engrossed ; and here iFl 
mine, ready, signed, and waiting to be handed over in return for one signed by the Minister. 

1212. And this was sent to you for perusal about the 23rd July, 1889? Yes, it would be about 
tlrnt time. I believe that that was the date. Here is the receipt. [Documents produced.] 

1213. Was that the first draft of the documents known as the agreement? I suppose it is. 
'1214. Whose handwriting is that_? Mr. J. J. Henry's. · 
1215. Do you know whose handwriting, Mr. Mitchell, that is on the draft of the lease? Yes. 

It is written by a clerk in my office. 
1216. Do you know the handwriting in pink ? Yes, that was written by Mr. Fellowes, who 

was our conveyancing clerk at the time. 
1217. Will you read the side-note that Mr. Fello,ves makes there, Mr. Mitchell? I did not 

know about that. 
1218. Well, attention is directed to it by an indexed finger. It says, "Note for Mr. Mitchell 

privately only, and not to be copied in Crown Solicitor's draft. There is nothing compelling the 
lessees to construct, &c., in the agreement. But perhaps it had better remain as drawn, as we have 
taken a little more than the agreement gives us in one or two matters. Mr. M. knows best."-Who 
would Mr. M. be? Well, now, probably that would be myself. But I don't know whether the 
alterations we thought it better to include were admitted by the Crown Solicitor. 

1219. Yes, they eventually were. The lease, as we have it here, seems to have been engrossed 
finally in that form. It seems to have been engrossed two or three times. 

MR. NORTON SMITH, exarnination continued. 

1220. Witness.-There is one thrng, Mr. Chairman, I would like to make an explanation about-as to 
that last question you asked me just before lunch, about there being no other place where wharves could be 
made except where you indicated. My reply was perfectly correct at the present time, although by 
building a breakwater outside of the present breakwater, you could extend the shipping accommodation 
there. 

1221. Who owns the land outside the breakwater? The company. 
1222. The Van Diemen's Land Company? Yes. 
1223. Is the company likely to give it for the purpose? For a consideration, I expect. 
1224. What I wanted to elicit, however, is-what land the Government got to make wharves, and 

to whom they have to go to a,cqnire it? It must be either oue company or the other. 
1225. By il!lr. Patte1·son.-Before we go into railway matters, Mr. Smith, I want to ask you one 

question-I doa't think the Committee are quite clear on tbis point.-You say as to blocks A, B, BB, that 
whoever -bt1ys the option of the Emu Bay Company can have the option of these three pieces of land? 
No. The Company have always held, although they have never <lone anything· with the land since the 
arrangernent was made with the Crown years ago, that this land was theirs. 

12Z6. \/\,'ell now, Mr. Smith,-of course yon are aware of the object of the Government in trying to 
induce Parliament to purchase this thing from the Emu Bay Railway Company, yon understand that? 
To a certain extent I do; but I have been away for some time, and have seen very few papers. 

1227. Well, I will take it in another way?- 'vYhen the Govemment called for tenders for the con­
struction of the railway from Ulverstone to Bnmie, it was the intention of the General M~nager of Rail­
ways, as proved in evidence before this Committee, to have joined your line somewhere about the point 
where it joins it-now, and to have made an arrangement with you to take over and deal with at that point 
all of the traffic coming from Ulverstone to Burnie? Yes. 

1228. That was a perfectly feasible thing, I suppose? I should imagine so. It is a thing that is done 
elsewhere, Of course, at that time I had not control of this railway. 

1229. As a q nest.ion of priuciple, would you have any objection to an arrangement of that sort ? No, 
I was never approached on, that matter at all. · , 

J 230. The traffic that may reasonably be expected to exist between Waratah and Burnie will be very 
small in amount? No, I do not think it will. , · 

1231. I leave out the Blythe iron for a monient? Even if you leave out the Blythe ii-on, the traffic 
will be considerable during the produce season, when all the grain and potatoes were coming in. Of course, 
I am :µot in a position to state exactly how mnch there would be. 

1232. Now, I wonl<l ask you about two altematives relative to this propos1t1011 to purchase this Emu 
Bay option ontright,-I suggest two alternatives :-'l'he first to 11iake anangements, when the traffic 
arrives at Bumie, that the Emu Bay people being paid a certain toll, should take it tj1e remaining diEtance 
from the junction to the b1·eakwater,-is that feasible? Oli, I think that is feasible-yes. 

1233. Then, the other alternative is to <lo what is customary in England with the great railways, and 
take mnning powers through the statiom,.-You know in England they have a_ clearing house, and they 
l'Lm their whole traffic over other companies' lines, as necessity arises, and then, adjust the whole business 
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monthly. Now, would an arrangement like that be feasible he1·e? Yes, it could be done. Either thing 
could be done. 

1234. Another question is this : I have been informed b,v a member of the Biythe Iron Company--
By the way, are you a Director of the Blythe Iron Company? Yes. . 

1235. I am informed that when that mine is so far developed that they can put out a thousand tons 
of ore a day, it is the intention of the company to erect a high-level jetty of its own at Burnie, so that 
the ore can be tipped into the steamers without the necessity of handling it at all.-Is that so? It has not 
been definitely arranged. It has been spoken of privately ; bnt it has not been discussed at any Board 
meeting, so far as I am aware. It was, ·when Mr. Darby was over, that the thing was discussed. I pointed 
out, in co1,versation, that I thought we might get a high-level jetty there; but, .although it has been 
mooted, there has been no arrangeme11t about it. 

1236. But that is ·probably what will be carried out? . I should think so. To ham.lie the large quantity 
of iron which we hope to handle there, it won Id be necessary to get an overhead wharf from somewhere, 
so that the ore could be shot into hoppers, and pu_t into the vessels. Of course, at the present time, we do 
not le.now what will be done. 

1237. By tlte Cltai-rman.-As a direct'or of the Blythe Tron Company, would yotl mind telling us 
,vhat tentative arrangements have been made wif.h the New South "\Vales Government? I·am not certain 
about this, but I believe that the New South Wales Government are to take 100,000 tons of rails in two 
years. 

1238. Two or four years ?-I thought that it was in two years, However, the agreement with the 
New South Wales people is not definitely fixed yet·; that is the proposal. Then, after that period, if there 
is any other competing company, they give us an order for half of their requirements, and they also take 
other material in addition to the rails; and if there is no other colonial company competing, they will take 
the whole of their requirements from us for a further period. That is, provide·cl we take up works for the 
treatment of the stuff over in Sydney. · . 

1239. What percentage of Tasmanian ore are you allowed to deal with u,nder that contract? Seventy-
five per cent., I think it is. . 

1240. You have brought an expert from England to report on that mine : did you do that? Yes, sir. 
1241. Has he outlined a scheme for wo·rking it? No, excepting just conversationally. He has pro­

posed nothing which is definitely fixed; but his general propos·aJ, as I understand it, is to get special 
steam boats made which will carry the ore to some place in New South Wales, and load back with coal or 
coke, so as io reduce freights as much as possible. We undertook -to smelt in New South "Vales in 
consideration of the people there taking this large quantity of ore from us, and also because we will have 
a very good1market for our surplus energy developed by the furnaces. 

1242. Have you any prospects of a market for the 01'.e as a flux? Well, we could sell it as a flux at 
the preBent time; but we do not think it desirable to enter inio these little contracts pending the arrange­
ment for the big rolling mills, and so forth. We thought it best to arrange that first, and then to let the 
other thing be nm as a subsidiary business. 

1243. What quantity were you negotiating to sell as a flux some little time back? I think it was 
1000 tons a week, to the Broken Hill Company. 

1244. Has any particular quantity of ore to be dealt with and handled eve1·y day been suggested? 
Mr. Darbv considers that we shall want to handle 6000 tons of ore a week under this scheme. 

1245: Do you know on what data he based that estimate ? His calculations of the necessities of the 
various colonie;:, and also of a v~ry considerable trade with China and Japan. 

1246. Do you yourself think there is a_ prospect· of that scheme being brought to fruition? I am 
guided principally by Mr. Darby's opinion in this matter. He was recommended to ns after a careful 
inquiry, as the ablest man in England to advise us in these matters, and generally to lay out the works· and 
all that sort of thing : ,i very emine~t man in England. 

1247. Was his report satisfactory as to quality and quantity of the ore? We have not got his written 
report yet. He left for home almost immediately after looking through the sections. He first of all had 
a look over the sections, and then asked for a little moie work to be done. He came down to Hobart for 
a time aud then he went to have another look at the mines. He expressed himself very well satisfied with 
the deposits and the quality of the ore, nnd he also wanted further work done, which is being done at the 
present time. He had not written out his report when he left. He went home, vicZ America, where he 
was goir:g to-look at some of the latest methods of handling large quantities of ore. I do not think he 
would write his report until. he was cros~ing the Atlantic on his way home. .. 

1248. Have the developments that have taken place since he went been satisfactory? Very satisfactory. 
One thing he wanted us to do was to drive in the basalt at the top of the hill. I think yon have been up 
there, sir '/ 

· 1249. Yes? Yon rem em her the place where the ore was taken for flux? . · 
. 1250. Yes?. Well a little bit to the south of that you get into basalt, and all the ore is lost sight of. At 

Mr. Darby's request we have put a tunnel into the basalt, and we have struck ·17 feet of solid ore there. 
1251. Now with reg·ard to the port of Burnie.-You said, in auswer to Mr: Patterson, that the Marine 

Board had contl'Ol of the port.-What have they control of? 'l'hey lrnve control of the breakwater subject 
to the agree.ment with the company and of the wharves. -

1252. How much land is under their control? Oh, under an ac1·e, 
1253. Is it not under half an acre? No, it would be rather over half-an-acre. Tbere is quarter acre 

and some roods in the first piece, and there is block D which has recently been taken. 
-1254. And that was under quarter of an acre. Yes. 
1255. At any rate it is about half an acre altogether? Yes, a little over half an acre. 
1256. Is not the greater portion of one of these blocks a road? Yes. 
1257. A road on to the breakwater ? Yes. 
1258. On which it is impossible to put any large buildings? Oh, there is no room for buildings there. 
12-59. So that, practically, all the port accommodation they have amounts to the wharves? Practically. 

There is a little corner that the Customs sheds stand on. 
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1260. You claim, practically, the control of the breakwater under this iigreement? ·we claim tl1e right 
to rnn our trucks at any time. 

1261. Whenever yon want to? Yes. 
1262. Now, give~ that your Blythe Iron Mine is opened up, and that this export traffic in ore follows­

is it desirable that ore should be handled by one or by two bodies? By one body, no doubt. 
1263. Will there be any neces~ity, a~ soou as possible, for considernble siding accommodation close to 

the breakwater for dealing with that ore? Yes, i11 dealing with any trnffic whatever. 
1264. That will. be a large trnffic? Yes, and a t1·affic that will want to. be handled as close to the 

wharves as possible. 
1265. By ]Jfr. Paitei-son.-The Chairman said as close as possible to the breakwater? Well, I said 

wharf, because the two are so close together, and I was· thinking· of the breakwater which is used so much 
for shipping purposes. ~ · · ,_ 

1266. By the Chafrman.-I will repeat the question that I put .to yon this moming-Is the wharf now 
being constructed, and the accommodation of one side of the breakwater, more than adequate for the present 
necessities of the port of Burnie? Yun meau up to the present time. 

1267. Yes? I think it is a little in excess of absolute prese11t requirements; bnt not nearly sufficient 
for what will be wanted within the next 12 months. 

1268. Within 12 months it will be inadequate ? Yes. · 
· 1269. 'fhere is no other place on which the Govemment can constrnct a wharf? Well, it must be 

done along that shore. . 
1270. And whether it was inside or outside the breakwater we should have to purchase from your 

eompany? Yes. Well, of course, as a matter of fact we have prncticaily no more land; only the ,;trip of 
land included in the option. . . 

1271. We would have to buy some po1·tion of the land included in that option? I suppose so. 
1272. If we went outside and constructed another breakwatel' we should still have to purchase from 

you? Yes. 
1273. Is there any possible alternative? I do not think there is any altemative .. And even if you 

built a breakwater outside vou would want room for wharves in~ide. 
1274. Would the mer·e obtaining of running powers from the Emu Bay Company over portion· its of 

line from where we junction to the wharf or breal~water enable the Government to adequately deal with 
such a quantity of traffic as you expect from the Blythe Iron Mine? · No, sir, not unless you paid the 
railway company to handle it for yon, and to make extra sidings to carry the traffic, and so on. In other 
words they would have to lay special sidings for your traffic. 

1275. Do you remember, Mr. Smith, the first syndicate which obtained an Act to construct a line to 
connect Guildford Junction with Zeehan ? Yes, sir. 

1276. Did they approach your company, or the Emu Bay and Bischoff Riilway Company rather, to 
get an option of purchase? Yes, the terms were very similar. 

1277. How long ago is that? It would be either nine or ten yeai·s ago. I think it is nearly ten years. 
1278. Did you put a price upon the railway then? Yes, there was a price put upon it, I think it was 

for absolute sale then, and the terms differed to that extent. 'l'liere was no talk of a lease at that time ; it 
was entirely a question of purchase. 

1279. Do you remember the price? Speaking from memory, I thillk it was £200,0U0 for the railway 
and rolling-stock then. 1'hat is £200 more than now. 

1280. Is that railway as valuable now as then? Oh certainly, more so, in my opinion. At that time 
even Bischoff was verv bad. 

1281. Can you re
0

member what it cost the company to construet that line, Mr. Smith? Yes sir, I 
brought particulars down with me. 'l'he total cost of the railway was£ 189,452, that is, of course, with the 
rolling-stock. 

1282. By il1fr. A-ihenhead.-'l'he actual cost of construction? The actual cost of construction. 
1283. 'l'hat does not include any land purchased? Oh no, there was no land at all. 'rhere was, at any 

rate, only one little bit of land bought. · 
1284. By the Chairman.-Did yo Lt not have to acquire some land in W aratah for a station? No, that 

was got under our lease. From RoL1se's camp into Waratah we hold under lease. 
1285. About two miles? Over two miles. About 2¾ miles-nearly 3 miles. 
1286. Did the company that constructed that line make a profit out of it? The Van Diemen's Land? 
1287. No, the Emu Bay and Mount Bischoff? Oh yes. 
1288. Did it pay a dividend? Oh yes; not in 1890 and 1891, the time when traffic wa_s so very small. 

One year they did not pay a dividend at all ; the other year they only paid a very small dividend. 
1289. But then they had to pay the interest on the debeutni•es the whole of the time? Yes, they were 

paying 6 per cent. on debentures. 
1290. What ainonnt of deuentures? I think £140,000. 
1291. 6 per cent ? 6 per cent. 

. 1292. And was the line always sufficie11tly profitable to pay that? Oh, yes, it always paid that. I 
think, although I did not bring clown particulars about that, tl1at there was onl_y one year on which we did 
not pay a dividend on the ordinary shares. 

1293. By Mr. Hall.-In addition to paying interest on debentures? Oh, yes, ,ve paid interest right 
away_ through. 

1294. By the ChainnfJn.-So that while the company itself was working the line it earned .£8400 a 
year interest, and in every yea1·, excepting ·one, it paid dividends on ordinary shares also?. I do not think it 
was as much as that-I have got wrong on the debentures, or something of the sort. I can give you the 
actual profit on workiug. [Statement produced.] 1890 was our worst year. We had to draw on a 
reserve fund then to pay the interest. 

1295. By llfr. Patterson.-1'his statement does not inch1de i11terest o.µ debeµtures? No, t)lese ar1: 
simply our colonial fi~m·es as to actual working. 
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1296. Now, Mr. Smith, I take it that the Bischoff Railway Company and th~ Van Diemen's Land 

Company are very closely related, are they not? Yes, si1·. . 
1297. So that it is largely a matter of arranging accounts in Loudon as to how 1he profits of the two 

,./ companies are distributed? What is that? 
12!18. ls it not a matter of fact that the apportionment of the profits of the Van Diemen's Land Company 

and the Bischoff Company are made in London? No, sir, not so far as the retum is coucernecl. Although 
the two companies are managed br the same office, 1he revenue of the two companies is kept entirely 
separate. They have separate banking accounts. 

129!1. I did not know that. Now, this cost of construction you have given us included everything 
spent on the line from the start? 

1300. The cost of the original horse tramway? Yes. 
1301. And the subsequent widening offormiitions and cuttin!l,'S and bauks? No, not the whole of 

tlrnt. I did a lot of that out of maintenance. 
1302. It includes the co~t of takiug up the old tram roads and putting down the new ones? Yes. 
1;303. Probably, if you did that now, yon would be able to do that cheaper? Yes, although the tram­

way was of g·reat assistance to us in getting forward our materials. 
1304. Have ,vou got the plan and section of the Bischoff line with you'! Yes, but the plan, I am 

afraid, is not very complete: . 
1305. It is the section I want mo·re particularly, although I want the plan too? [Witness produce~ 

plans,l . 
1306. You i;ee this] in 3!3 grade just out of Btll'nie : if you remember, I went up some five or six 

years ago, and you gave me an engine, and allowed me the run of the line, so_ that I might iuspect it in 
detail. I observed then, you will rem em her, that you followed strictly the contour o'f the country? Yes, 

1307. I asked the question, the other day, of a witness as to whether he could- estimate the cost of 
reducing this I in 33 out of the 5th mile to the grade of 1 in 40, which governs the Government railways : 
do you follow me? Yes. . 

1308. If that was done, it would mean u cutting ofl40 to 150 feet in depth at the fifth mile, and 
would be an extremely arduous and costly piece of work, would it not? Oh, you would have to pick a 
different route altogether. . 

1309. And in that case you would have to have a lot of heavy cuttings and a greater length of line? 
Of course. 

1310. But I want to bring you to this point-to lower this grade out from Burnie, from 1 in 33 to 
1 in 40, would be an extremely costly uudertaking? Yes; it would be au extremely costJ5; undertaking. 
I would not be prepared to say where it would have to go. 

1311. The reason I ask this is, that in the House I stated that to bring this line up to the Govemment · 
standard, relaying it with 60-lb. rail«, and lowering this heavy gm<le to' 1hr l'uling grade ofthe Government 
Railways, would •involve .a cost of at least £100,000 in addition to the first cost of £205,000 for the pm·­
pose. Do you agl'ee with that? 1 have not the least idea. I would not know which way to start to cut 
that line. 

1312. I am talking about the present location. To lay dow11 a l in 40 gl'ade on that line, along that 
route, would be very costly? Oh, you could not do it-you could not think of it. 

1313. It would be prohibitive? Well, practically. 
1314. By t!te 0/wirman.-Will ,voujust tell the Committee what are the grades actually on that 

5-miles out from Burnie? [Witne~s examines plan.] Well, at the 1 mile 12 chains there is a grade of 1 
in 32·72- a pretty long grade; there is 78 chains of that. The 1 in 33 ends at 3-miles 45 chaint', From 
4-5 to 4-65 it is I in 3t. Then there are 3 chains of l in 36. 

1315. Now, there is no more 1 in 33, is there, beyond the 5 ,miles ? There· is a bit of 1 in 3il just 
about the 5-miles. The,·e is a big spur that you have to get over. 'fhere is not a reverse curve on the line. 

13Hi. Is there another gradient as ~teep as 1 in 33 afrer you pass the 5-miles? I do not think there is 
anything steeper than 1 in 40 beyond the 5-miles. If there is it is only a ve1·y short piece. 

1317. Was that railway constructed under yom supervision? Yes, sir. . 
1318. Do you think it is necessary, iu conuegtion with that line, to alter the grade? No, sir. 
1319. Could it he worked with that steep gradient of 1 in 33 economically? 'l'here will be the extra 

cost of a pilot engine or a marshalling yard at the top of the hill. Of course it is self evident that au 
engine will not pull as big a load up a I in 33 as up a l ,in 40. My idea was either to put a marshalling 
yard on the top of the hill, which I consider the best idea, or to run a pilo_t engine. 

1320. B.1/ ; he Chuinn~m.-Is there provision iri_ this option for a marshalling yard? Yes. 
1321. B;IJ M·r. Puttersun.-What load can you. take up this 5-miles, with the present engines'? 

That I cannot answer, berause I have not got control of the big engines-never had. The Emu Ba~­
Company bought two heavier engines than anv we had on the road. 

1322. What woula be the weight of four· trucks and two earriages ?-What is the weight of youl' 
trucks? Six tons, and they carry a _load of six tons. 

1323. They ·do not weigh six tons, sul'ely ?-They cannot weigh more than three tons, 01· three tons 
five hundred weight? I am not certain about that. 

1324. At any rate, they carry- 6 tons? Yes., 
1325. So that four of them will ea rry 24 tons? Yes. 
1326. And two caniages, you do not know their weight, I presume? No, I would not like to make 

a statement a bout the weight of those cal'l'iages. · · 
1327. By the Chairmun.-Can you, with the assistance of another engine, sen_d up on that first 5 miles 

as large a load as yon could deal with if passing up an ordinary grade with one engine? Yes ; with 
another engine up to the 5-miles yott can take a load such as any ordinary eng_ine will pull up a 1 in 40 
grade. 

1328. Do you think it at all necessary to try and overcome that steep grade, even ifit could be overcome 
\\t \\ cost of £50,000? N o1 I do not th~nk it wo-qld be worth £50,000 to do ~t; it is ~? muc~1 cheafer to 
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put on an extra engine. If you had a mar3halling yard at the top of the hill you would still want another 
engine to run your stuff up there ; then you would make up your trains in the marshalling yard at 
the top. 

1329. Yon kl}ow the Flowerdale and Table Cape district do you not? Yes I do. 
1330. Will yo1.1 describe that district, with regard to its prospects? 
1331. You know it well do you not? I know part of it very well. I know that it is a very valuable 

agricnltu1·al district. 
1332. Is it a large district? It is a very large district. It is both a potato-growing dish·ict, and a 

dairying district; more of a dai,rying district than a potato producer, at the present time, on account of the 
cost of cartage of pot'ltoe,, and so on. · 

1333. What would be the outlet for export from that district? Either Emu Bay or Devonport, at 
the present time. Of course, the natural port is Burnie. 

1334. In the event of_ the Government continuing its railway system westward, would the Flowerdale 
and Table Cape produce be brought for shipment to Burnie? Oh, yes, there is no doubt about that. It would 
all be shipped from Bur•~ie. 

1335. It would be easier for the Government to deal with that produce from that end if they had 
access to the wharves for their railway? I think the Government could de_al much. better with all the 
traffic, if they had control of the breakwater. · 

1336. By Mr·. Gitesdon.-I have been looking at these accounts, Mr. Smith, and perhaps yo11 might 
be able to explain what has been the ·rate of freight you have been charging to get these eamings? £3 a 
ton. It was originally £4, but we dropped it to £3. 

1337. £4 up to when ?-When did you drop it to £3? I did not come prepared for anything of that 
sort. I do not remember. 

1338. Nothing less than £3? Oh, no. 
1339. And I suppose the bulk of the earnings is for the carriage of freight? Yes; freight and 

· passengers. 
1340. The bulk is freight? _Yes, freight. 
1341. At £3 per ton? Yes. . . 
1342. In making up these figures I suppose that careful supervision has been exercised in order to see 

that the expenditure had been debiuid with the fair proportion of wear and tear and maintenance. !_suppose 
that none of it has been capitalised. For instance, I see, with the cost of construction of £140,000; and 
by 1885 this has increased to £153,000, and in 1888 it is .£176,000-does that increase repay extra con­
struction, or is it capitalising for construction which ought to be debited to wear and tear and main­
tenance? No, ,;ir, Of course in the expenditure is included the erection of iron bridge~, replacing old 
wooden ones, and that I consider to be a legitimate charge against construction when you put a permanent 
b1·idg·e in place of a tern porary one. · 

·1343. There are two large bridges, oµe over the Wey and one over the Waratah, with concrete 
abutments and iron girders? These were charged to construction, but no others. 

1344. Then there are_ other figures I do not understand? In the first three years your earnings are 
£16,000 to £17,000, and your expenditure £6000 to £7000. Then in 188~ your earnings are still 
£17,000, but your expenditure jumps to £10,913. Then, after that, your earnings go down and lessen, and 
the expenditure goes up-can you explain that? Well, in the first place, the culverts, the wooden oues, 
put into the tramway, were quite good when the line was first m.Lde, then they began to need 1·1•newing, 110. 
the wooden culverts were all taken away and others put in with more permanent material ; in some 
cases· pipe, in one case brick, and so on. Then we had to renew sleepers throughout. 'l'hese and other 
things ran uµ the cost, and they account for the increase of working expenses. 
. 1345. I was asking, Mr. Smith, if you can tell us how these rates of freight, £3 per ton, compare, on 
an average, with the rates of freight for the same mileage on the Government lines? It would take some 
time to wo1·k that out, because on the Government lines there are various tariffs and classes. 

1346. With reference to the Blythe Iron Company, M1·. Smith, if the output is what it is ~xpe,cted !o 
be, namely, 1000 tons a day, do you think that the present b1·eakwater and the wharf exte11,s1011 now 111 

course of construction would be able to cope with the traffic if there were no other traffic at all on these two 
wharves? I think not. It would strain the accommodation to the utmost. 

134-7. It would be impossible for any other traffic to be dealt with at all? I think so. Until there is 
more accommodation, I do not see· how this Blythe traffic is going to be conducted at all. . 

· 1348. Then, if this 1000 tons a day is put out there, the Government or the company will have to 
construct a wharf expressly to deal witn it? Further shipping accommodation will have to be supplied. 

134!), To meet the traffic? I think so, undoubtedly. . . 
. 1350. Do you think it would be possible to cope with a traffic of 1000 tons a day, and to leave room 

for any other t1·affic at all on any one jetty? Uh, yes, I think so. A little, with proper appliauces. But 
I do not consider that the present jetty accommodation will suffice . 

. 1351. B.1/ Mr. Patterson.-We were informed by a witness from Burnie, yesterday, that two 
additional jetties can be put up there, one, a first class one, and the other not so deep and serviceable. · Is 
that so? Well, you can put out more, but they would only be of 1.1ervice in westerly weather; You would 
have to get the breakwater extended to protect them. Of colll'~e there is lots of room ; there is half a mile 
of frontage from the present breakwater to the railway gates. But you must have something to protect a 
jetty to be serviceable in all weathers. 

1352. One other jetty could be put up and get fair protection now, could it not? You would get a 
little protection ; but.every one hundred feet you get away you get less protection from the present break­
water. 

1353. Until you reaph a point where you get no protection at all? Exactly. · 
1354. By ,Ur. Guesdon.-Yon are pretty·thoroughly·pl"otected·, I suppose, in westerly weather? Oh 

yes ; we are thoroughly protected from any weather, except between east and north. 
1355. Does south-east weather affect you? No; Emu Bay lies right in the bight of that coast, and 

south-easterly weather does not hurt us. When we get it from the north-east it hurts .us most. 
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1356. By t!te Cltairman.-You leased the line to the present company in 1897, did you not? Yes. 
1357. Is it a fair question to ask whether the rent has been paid upon it? Yes, punctually. 
1358. Have yon been over the line lately? Well, within three _ months ; I don't know exactly the 

date ; I have been away for five weeks or so. , 
1359. Is one of the conditions that the present company has to_ maintain the line and rolling stock? 

Yes. 
1360. Have they done so? Y el'. 
1361. Is the line in as good order now as when you gave it over to them? I think so. I have not 

walked the line to examine every sleeper, but from my general inspection I _think it is in quite as good 
order as it was. It is in fhst-class order. · 

· 1362. By llir. Ball.-At the time the tenders were accepted for the construction of the Ulver;itone 
and Bnmie line, was your company in possession of this Emu Bay and Waratah line, or had· it been 
handed over? It had been handed over ; we handed it over in 1897, and thaL contract was let in 
November, ]898. 

1363. Can you say, Mr. Smith, whether the Marine Board up there have made application for a 
further loan for the constrnction of a wharf? I think they did-yes. 

1364. Now, it was stated here, Mr. Smith, in examination, that the effect of the proposed Blythe 
Iron Company putting on the market 1000 tons of ore a day, or 300,000 tons a year, would more 
than meet the consumption of the whole of the Australian Colonies and India included-do you think 
that is conect? No, I_ do not think it is correct ; and, apart from that, I think there is a large market in 
China and Ja pan. _ 

1365. Yon know Mr. Montgomery, the late Government Geologist of Tasmania ? Yes. 
1366. W onld you accept his authority as reliable? Yes. 
1367. Well, here is Mr M ontgomery's report on the Blythe iron deposit in ] 894. Will you kindly 

read the figures he quotes as to the consumption of iron in the Colonies? He takes the grand total for· five 
years at £27,000,000, and he estimates that if we include Queensland and West Australia we might 
safely assume a grand total for all the Colonies of £30,000,000 per annum, or £6,000,000 worth. 

1368. "\Veil, yon do not expect to put out £6,000,000 worth per annum, do you? No. 
1369. What is the value of your ore'! As nearly as we can ascertain it runs to 66 or 67 per cent. of 

pure iron. 
1370. Well, you do not expect to get £30 a ton for it? No, si1·. 
1371. Then, if that statement as to the 1000 tons a day was questioned, you would say that sufficient 

consideration had not been g·iven to it, I presume? No, I should think the information was drawn from a 
w1;ong hasis . 

.11fr. Niclwlls.-These figures you have quoted are for iron goods, including agriculturnl machinery and 
everything. 

1372. By 11'fr. Hall-If that Blythe iron is manufactured it will be just the same-well, Mr. Smith, 
have you looked over the Statistics of N.S.W. for 1898? I have a memorandum in my pocket which may 
be of service to you. I have the imports of iron from England to Australia for 1899. 

1373. Yes, that would Le very valuable information; well? It consisted of 28,000 tons of pig iron, 
57,000 tons of railway iron, 12,000 tons of tin plates, and 60,000 tons of galvanized sheets; a total of 
157,358 tons. These imports were for the one year of 1899. 

1374. Have you any idea, Mr. Smith, of the value of the iron imported, leaving out locomotives and 
that sort of thing-the value of such matters· as steel rails, ang·le and rod iron, hoop iron, and so forth, 
imported into New Sou:th Wales? No, sir; I got these figures for the whole of the Colonies, just because 

• they happened to interest me. · 
··- 1375. Then, according to these statistics, it would amount to half a million tons imported into New 
so·uth Wales alone? I should say that New South Wales would consume pretty well one-third of the 
whole. 
_ 1376. So that you are quite satisfied that Mr. Darby, before he recommended English capitalists to 

erect smelting works in Sydney, satisfied himself as to being able to get a market for all the iron produced 
in the Aiistralian Colonies? Yes, and he takes in China as well. 

1377. By .1l1lr. Patterson.-And Japan? Yes. 
1378. By 1lfr. Hall.-But, according to these figures, you can only produce about one-fifth of the 

whole quantity of consumption? Yes; but you asked me, practically, what Mr. Darby had taken into his 
~onsidei·ation, and Mr. Darby, as I said just now, has made no rep·irt as yet; but I know that he con­
sidered the foreign trade as well as the internal trade of Australia, and that he contemplated a very much 
larger output later on than he is expecting at the present time. · 

1379. He contemplates a much larger output than 1000 tons a day? Yes, 
1380. Satisfying himself that a market can be found for the product? Yes. 
1381. Do you know, Mr. Smith, that vessels of large tonnage trade to Burnie throughout the 

year? Yes. 
· 1382. Do you know of any accident that has occurred to any of the large steamers at any time·? Oh, 
·no, there has never been ·any accident to any large vessel. One small vessel did get up against the end of 
the breakwater some time ago, through careless navigation. 'rhat i•as all I ever heard of. 

· 1383. ·And have you noticed, Mr. Smith, any indications of the harbour silting up since the breakwater 
was finished? The last time I· liad soundings taken the foundation taken out for the breakwater was quite 
intact. There was even a little trench between the bottom and the breakwater. 

1384. By 11:fr. Aiken!tead.-When does the option expire? Early next year, I think. I have not 
referred to it, and I have not the information with me. 



/ 

f 

67 

MR. W. B. ARNOLD, wlled and exctrnined. 

Mr. Arnold made the statutory declaration. 
1385. By the Cha'irrnan.-Your name, Mr. Arnold? William Bowman Arnold. 
1386. You are secretary of the Emu Bay Railway Company? Yes. · 

(No. 76.) 

1387. Your Company holds the option of purchase of the railway you are now running from 
Waratah to Burnie ? Yes. 

1388. And some adjoining land (the foreshore) ? Yes. 
1389. Are the options contained in these two agreements, }Ir. Arnold ? [Witness examines 

documents.] Yes, these are the two agreements. 
1390. Did you bring with you a plan? I have a plan of the foreshore and the Burnie station­

yard here. [Plan produced.] 
13!:ll. Has your Company.got the plans of the railway throughout, from tI;e station at Burnie 

to W aratah ? Not that I know of. 
• 1392. That railway is described in this agreement, is it not? Yes, that· is the only description 

that I know of. ' 
1393. In what way did t~e proposal of .the Government to purchase this line come before you ? 

I underst.ood it to have originated from the Government to Mr. Jamieson, one of the directors, 
who was on a visit to Hobart. 

1394. And Mr. Jamieson--? Then brought it before the Board. 
1395. With the result-? That a letter· was sent, stating that if the Government wished it, 

the company was prepared to open negotiations in accordance with the verbal conversation with 
Mr. Jamieson and yourself: 

1396. Your Board communicated the position to the trustees for the debenture-holders, did 
they not ? Yes. 

1397. And got their consent? Yes. 
1398. As parties to the transfer of the option? Yes. 
1399. At the time the correspondence was taken, when was it considered the option would 

expire On the 28th of February, next year-1901. . 
1400. You havesince learnt that an opinion has been expressed that the option extends beyond 

that? Yes. · 
1401. And, as a fact, you have informed me to day that your solicitor has ari.:a:nged for an 

extension of it? Yes. • 
1402. Until what time? Mr. Riggall has had the date fixed for the 28th February, 1902. 
1403. There is no doubt about that? When the negotiations irere opened Messrs. Blakff & 

Riggall advised us that there was some cloubt as to whether the time for option could be 
extended, and as to the date on which the options would expire, and we were led t9 understand 
that the date would be the 28th February, 1901. Mr. Riggall was in England, and has only 
returned recently, and since his return his firm has advised us that the date has now been fixed for 
the 28th February, 1902. . ., 

1404. By mutual consent? Well, he has not entered into details, but I understand it so. 
1405. If it is a fair question to put, was there a probability, Mr. Arnold, of your company being 

in a position to take up the option? 
1406. Was there? The company had not funds then to take up the option. 
1407. And was it in consequence of that they entertained the proposal of transfer? Partly. 
1408. Have you accounts of the receipts and expenditure .of the railway after you took it 

over? Yes. · · 
1409. Have you them on you ? Yes. 
1410. Will you kindly explain expenses? I have got-the traffic receipts and expenditure from 

October, 1897. From October to December, 1897, the receipts were £3691 18s. 7d. Did you want 
that exclusive of construction traffic? · 

1411. Yes, ordinary traffic? The receipts in 1898 were £14,634 12s. 3d.; in 1899, £16,996 
10s. Id. ; and in 1900. up to the 31st of October, £14,908 18s. 7cl. 

1412. By Mr. Patte1·son.-Have you the working expenses corresponding to these periods? 
Only for 1899 and up to the 31st October of this year. It is very difficult to apportion expenses. 
You can do it with receipts, but it is very difficult with expenses. These :figures have been taken 
from our Burnie office .. The traffic expenses in 1899 on this line were £7116. 

1413. By 1Wr. Guesclon.-That is the actual working expenses, exclusive of rent? Yes, but 
including rates. Then for the 10 months of this year the expenses were £5137. 

1414. By Mr. Patterson.-Then you have to pay £10,000 a year for rent-that must connG as 
expenditure ? Yes, but it is not part of traffic expenses. 

1415. By lrlr. Guesclon.-Mr. Stirling's :figures for the 10 months were in excess of yours-why 
is that? That is due to the fact that he quoted :figures, which include certain revenue received from 
other sources. The figures I have given are purely traffic revenue. It is only right that I should 
point· out,. Mr.· Chairman, that you are taking the receipts exclusive of construction, and the 
expenditure includes the cost of running, construction, traffic, which is not fair. 

1416. Then these figures do ~ot represent the actual profits on that line? They do not. 
1417. By Mr. Patterson.-Of course, that construction traffic is a merely temporary matter? 

Yes; temporary as regards both revenue and expenditure. I have the construction figures .. 
1418. By the Chairmcin.-Has your co:rr1pany entered into any contracts ,vith the Magnet 

Compa1iy for the carriage of ore, Mr. Arnold? We have entered into an agreement for the carriage 
· of certain quantities of ore. 

1419. Have you a copy of the agreement, or can you give us the quantities? Not les;s tliau 500. 
to1is a mouth for the first 12 months, and not less than 1000 tons a month· afterwards, · 
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1420. Then you have reasonable prospects, from that source alone, of an increase in yom• 
business ? Yes. 

1421. Your line will be open to Zeehan next year? We have junctioned with the Mount 
Dundas and Zeehan line, and the nrst passenger train goes through on the 21st. 

1422. Have you any hopes of considerable business from Zeehan? We anticipate large increase 
of traffic as soon as the line is open, not only from passengers, but also from goods. 

1423. You think that, probably, goods will be sent from Burnie -shipped there from Melbomne 
or elsewhere? We anticipate so. · 

1424. Do you think that is likely, seeing that goods can be sent vi:a Macquarie Harbour? There 
are several reasons for anticipating that the traffic, or a certain amount of it, must come by Burnie. 
The time for transit will be about half a day from Burnie, and the fact of coal being brought into 
Burnie will make more shipping thfre, and freights should be better than on to Strahan. 

1425. You have a contract, have you not, with the Union Co.? Yes. 
1426. To bring a certain quantity of coke and coal f.roni Burnie? Yes. 
1427. Can you tell us the extent of that contract? The Company is to take half of the tonnage 

of coke and coal required by the Mt. Lyell Company. 
1428. Carry it from Burnie on to Regatta Point ? Yes. 
1429. By M1·. Patte1·son.-That contract has been varied during the last 2 or 3 days, has it not? 

I was not aware of it. 
14;io. By Mr. Guesdon.-25,000 tons a year, is it not? That is the estimated quantity. 
1431. You simply act as carriers for the coal and coke, You have nothing to do with it until. 

it comes into your hands at Burnie? No. 
1432. By Mr. Patterson.-Do you know the reason why this coal does not go round to Macquarie 

Harbour, but half is landed, half at Burnie and the other half taken round ? I understand it is on 
account of the difficulty of getting into Macquarie Harbour. 

1433. By Mr. Guesdon.-That is, practically, that they have to lighten their draft by so much 
before they can cross the bar ? Yes. 

1434. By Mr. Patterson.-The General Manager of Railways, in a report to the Minister c:lated 
8th October, 1900, recommending the purchase of this option of your company says, "Provisions 
should also be made in the usual way for the Government to take running powers over the line 
from Burnie to Waratah." Are you aware whether your company have acceded to that request? 
They have not. 

1435. And I presume that they have no intention of agreeing to it ? They cannot, under any. 
circumstances, agree to that. 

1436. By M1·. Hall.-Mr. Jamieson is your Chairman of Directors, is he not? No, Mr. John 
Grice is Chairman. 

1437. Well, when Mr. Jamieson was communicated with by the Government of the Colony, was, 
he in Victoria or Tasmania ? 

1438. Did he receive a wire, when in Victoria, to come over. Can you say from your own 
knowledge? No, I cannot. · 

1439. In reply to a question put to you by Mr. Guesdon, in reference to this coal traffic, as to 
why the Mount Lyell Company were arranging to get it by Burnie, you say that you presumed it 
was owing to the difficulty of entering the Macquarie Heads ? I did not give that as the sole reason. 

1440. Do do anticipate any similar difficulty at Burnie ? No. 
1441. Will there be any trouble there in discharging coal and coke into your trucks ? I. never 

heard of any. 
The Committee adjourned at 6·5 P.M. 

FRIDAY, DECEMBER 12, 1900. 

CHARLES MITCHELL, called and examined. 
Mr. Mitchell made the statutory declaration. 
1442. By the Ohairman.-Your name is Charles Mitchell? Yes. 
1443. And you are Commissioner of Taxes for Tasmania? Yes. 
1444. Have you the Valuation Rolls for the district of Emu Bay? I have, sir. 
1445. Can you furnish the Committee with the valu~tion placed upon the Burnie-Waratah Rail­

way line, or the Emu Bay and Mount Bischoff Railway line? The last roll was prepared in 1899. 
The valuation then was £62,500 Capital Value, and £4750 Annual Value. 

1446. Is that over the whole line? That is over the whole line, but would not include, of 
course, rolling-stock, &c. ; it would only include the lands, buildings, &c: 

1447. By whom was that valuation made? By the "Local Authority," consisting of local 
justices. 

1448. Have you any records of valuation being made by Mr. Fincham, formerly Engineer-in­
Chief? I have not, sir. 

1449. By Mr. Nicholls.-Have you the 1889 valuation, Mr. Mitchell?· Yes sir. It was valued 
for years, at £72,000. It was erased in 1898 from £72,000, and re-inserted at £100,000, and £5000 
annual value. 

_ M~r. Giwsdon.-That was when the new company took it over. 
1450. By Mr. Hall.-And reduced? Reduced when the justices made t.lie roll to £62,500. 
1451. By M1·. N-icholls.-Have you any record as to the company's contentions as to the value? 

No sir, I have not had time to find any. I did not get my subpama until past six o'clock last night. 
H52. If you find any before the Committee rises, you might let it have them. I will. I have 

telegraphed for the company's own return. 
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1453. bo you think you will have them by to-morrow morning? I should have. Of course it 

has to go to Em\! Bay, and it is a question whether it would catch the post. 
1454. By 11fr. Hall.-Have you the assessment of the Van Diemen's Land Company'.s Emu Bay 

blocks? Which road division? · 
1455. Emu Bay Road Trust? [Witness handed document to Chairman, which showed-''Forest 

land, I~mu Bay, vacant, 27,500 acres, capital value, £10,000 ; Surrey Hills, 150;000 acres, ~15,000; 
and Hampshire Hflls, 10,000 acres, £1000."J . · 

1456. By the Ohainnan.-The. Surrey Hills block was valued at £20,000, and reduced to 
£15,000 on appeal?. It must have been on appeal ; it is the only way it could be altered. 

1457. By 111.r. Hall.-Do you recollect, the assessment of the Mount Lyell Railway Company's 
railway? No, sir, I could not tell you from memory. 

1458. By the Ohcdrman.-It is land tax payable on that railway? Most of it is on Crown pro­
pe1 ty, therefore land tax is not payable. It is assessed by the local Justices. 

MR. JOHN MITCHELL, recalled. 

1459. By the Oha,irman.-Have you found aru further correspondence, Mr. Mitchell, dealing 
with the matter before the Committee? I have a letter from Mr. Hartnoll. [Appendix XL VIII.] 

1460. Have you got the letter to which this is a reply? I wrote the letter, and I got that 
in reply. 

1461. Have you got that fetter you wrqte? It was put in yesterday. I refened to it in my 
evidence. [Witness reads extract, Appendix XLVIIA.] As far as I know that is the reply to this 
letter, ·although the dates do not seem to tally. I cannot find any other letter, anyhow. 

1462. What do you take this letter of Mr. Hartnoll's to mean, Mr. Mitchell? Merely that Mr. 
Hartnoll referred to what took place. . 

1463. By JJir. G·uesdun.-Who was the Attorney-General? I believe, Mr. Clark. Mr. Clark, at 
all events, settled the Bill. Whether he was Attorney-General or a private Member I do not know, 
I have not looked up the date. . 

1•164. By the Oha,irman.-'rhe Bill was prepared early in the 1892 Session, and it is No. 2 Bill; 
so that it would be prepared prior to the Session by the Attorney-General ?-It would be prepared 
prior to the House sitting, and, consequently, must have been prepared in Mr. Clark's time? Very 
likely; possibly we sent the proposed draft over to Melbourne. 

1465. By Mr. Guesdun.-Then, as the Bill was not presented, it is presumable that the in­
coming Government refused? 'rhat is the reason why; of course, I have no knowledge of that 
point ; but the lease was prepared in 1889, and altered, and both leases were approved. · 

1466. But with regard to his refusal or otherwise to ratify the agreement, does this mean that he 
had refused to ratify the agreement, or that he had not? I only know that he did not. Evidently, 
what took place at the interview was, not satisfactory to the company. , . 

1467. B,11 t!te Cltai'l'lnan.-Was there any further evidence that you wished to. give us, 
Mr. Mitchell ? Only this : the lease was engrossed in 1889, and it was engrossed, subsequently, with 
a number of alterations, and I gather from my books that the second lease was approved o_f by the 
present Minister. The first lease was approved of, I understand, and not acquiesced· in, and then 
certain alterations were made and acquiesced in ; then the change of Ministry took place, in 1892, if 
I mistake not, and then the matters were gone into, and Mr. Douglas and Mr. Hartnoll took up the 
position that the leases could not be signed. There is one other matter, too, I think ought to be 
mentioned-that draft Bill. I do not know whether it was drafted in Melbourne or not, but the 
Bill was settled by Mr. Clark, I believe. . 

1468. By thfl Oha,irm.a,n.-In all the alterations the term of 1000 years remained? So far a;; I 
know-but, this will be found in company's leases. I was to draft some new clauses, and, I think 
Mr. Smith was to discuss the alterations with Mr. Fincham. 

l-!69. Was the condition reta1ned that the Government use of the line was to be subject to the 
convenience of the company at suitable time? I could not say as to that. I have filed the leases. 
I had both of them here yesterday. They speak for themselves. 

THE HON. WILLIAM HARTNOLL, ccilled ancl examined. 

Mr. Hartnoll made the Statutory Declaration. 
1470. By the Ohmir11wn.-Your name is William Hartnoll? Yes. 
1471. You are a Member of the House of Assembly? Yes. 
1472. And you were Minister of Lands and Works during a portion of 18!J2 and 18!J3? Yes. 
1473. Mr. Dobbie has given evidence of an interview between yourself and Mr. Norton Smith, 

and, as we have learnt since, with Mr. Mitchell, at which Mr. Dobbie was pi·esent. I think I had 
better read that to you. This is the evidence. [Chairman reads extract from Mr. Dobbie's 
evidence.] I want to ask you, Mr. Hartnoll, have you any recollection of that interview ? I have 
none whatever. 

14 7 4. No recollection of it ? No. . 
1475. Would this letter recall it to your mind ? [Witness examines document, 22 November, 

1892 [Appendix XL VIII.] It does not fortify my memory in the least. What is ever present in my 
mind is this: that I wrote a letter to Mr. Norton Smith, _or his solicitors, traver;,ing the whole of 
this position ; and that I distinctly declined to be a party, . in any_ way, in carrying out the 
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complications that had ZLrisen through the previous administration; that I took up the position that 
even at the worst, with regard to this agreement, he only had a right to run a set of rails on to this 
breakwater ; and I demanded, on behalf of the Colony, that the right of the Colony should be 
exercised in the direction of maintaining over it a line of rails on the southern side of the 
breakwater, and, if the Van Diemen's Land Company wanted a line of rails on the breakwater, that 
they would have to put up with them on the northern side. · 

1476. That is on the sea side? On the sea side. I should imagine, now, that this interview must 
have been the result of a letter at that time ; the usual process, of course, is that a kind of deputa­
tion to endeavour to squeeze a Minister out of some position he has taken up ; and although I have 
no recollection of the existence of that interview I am quite sure that I must have taken up precisely 
the same position in that interview that I did in this letter. 

1477. I understand, Mr. Hartnoll, that you would not have objected to that agreement if the 
company had been satisfied to take the outer line of rails? I was in no way agreeable to the 
agreement in any shape or form ; but I took up this position-that if, at the worst, it was a legal 
agreement, then the Colony should have all the advantage it was entitled to from their expenditure. 
I am quite sure that that matter was either discussed or was in the letter ; that on account of the 
very large sums subscribed by the Colony, as against the very small sum advanced by the Van 
Diemen's Land Company, that the Colony was entitled to every advantage it could possibly have. 
Ancl this I regarded, at that time, as a very great !advantage-that the rails on the south side should 
be preserved to the Colony. I had had very many interviews with Mr. Fincham, and that was the 
line of policy we laid clown. I might mention, that there must be, somewhere, some public 
reference to the position I took up, because Mr. Moore-the Hon. Wm. Moore-called upon me, 
and thanked me very eamestly indeed for the. position I had taken up with regard to this break­
water ; and Mr. William Jones, of Burnie, also saw me, and thanked me for preserving the break­
water to the people of Burnie. There must be, somewhere-it may possibly be in the newspapers 
of the time-some reference to that particular deputation, or interview, that Mr. Dobbie mentions 
there. It must have been made public in some way. 

1478. This letter which I just handed you, Mr. Hartnoll, was in reply to a letter of the 21st of 
November of that year, as follows: [Appendix XLVIIA.] That letter is signed by Dobson, Mitchell, 
and Allport-I suppose it is a reply to your letter? Yes. Then my reasons must have been given 
very clearly in a former letter, as I believe it was at that interview Mr. Dobbie speaks of. 

1479. Well, reading these two letters together now, Mr. Hartnoll, clo you think that your 
intention at that time was to absolutely refuse to ratify that agreement, or to ratify it with the 
condition that the Government was allowed the right to run over the inner rails of the breakwater ? 
I am quite sure that my intention was absolutely to refuse to ratify that agreement. 

1480. By .1rir. Patterson.-That is the agreement to give a lease for 1000 years? Yes. My 
idea was that, if the Courts ratified it, I was determined, as far as I was able, only to allow them to 
have the line of rails on tlie sea side of the breakwater. 

1481. Well, this letter refers to something you had stated the Government were prepared to 
do-Will you read that last sentence ? · "I fail to see that it can be construed that what I then stated 
the Government were prepared to do fails to carry out the agreement to which you refer "-I do not 
know at all, at this time, what that means. 

1482. Do you not think it indicates, lVIr. Hartnoll, that you had made some proposal, which you 
thought would carry out the agreement? Oh, I do not ·]mow-No; I may have set forth what I 
thought ought to be a compromise in this matter, and so set forth what the Government was 
prepared to do. I am quite sure-I know perfectly well-that I would have nothing whatever to 
do with ratifying that agreement for 1000 years. . 

1483. By .Mr. U1·qithcirt.-Your proposition was that they should have the outside of the 
breakwate1· ? 'rhat·was one of them ; that one is very clearly impressed on my mind ; yon may 
remember that I referred to that in the House. 

1484. By the Chairman.-Are you aware, Mr. Hartnoll, that a Bill was prepared to legalise the 
issue of a certain lease? I do not remember it. Was it by the Dobson-Henry Admini:otration ? I 
will show you this correspondence. 
[Witness examines documents]: I believe that it was upon that that this letter I have lJP.en 
alluding to, that set forth my own ancl the Engineer's objections, was sent to lVIr. Norton Smith, or 
his solicitors. 

1485. You have looked yourself through the file of correspondence in the Public \Yorks Office:­
Yes; but I have only looked at the·index of the various ledgers given to me for letters io 1\fr. 
Norton Smith. Now, I am inclined to believe that this letter to ·which I refer must have been sent 
to Mr. Norton Smith's solicitors, Messrs. Dobson, lVIitchell, & Allport. 

l '1.8G. I may tell you that I have had the utmost and regular search made for this letter to the 
solicitors. It seemed to me thait there ought to have been some correspondence ·with you on the 
matter, ,.md I have had more than one clerk searching ? '!'here was such a lette1·, certainly. Do the 
solicitors say they never received one'? 

1487. They cannot trace·any, Mr. Mitchell tells us? ·well, I have a very clear recollection of 
writing a letter after consultation with the Engineer-in-Chief. 

1488. Do you recollect seeing that plan? [Witness examines plan.] No, I do not. 
148!:J. 'l'his is the Bill and the "revise," Mr. Hartnoll. Have you seen them before:' [Witness 

examines printed documents.] I have no recollection of seeing the Bill, but if I did I am quite 
certain that., knowing the attitude I had previously taken up, that I would have nothing whatever 
to do with it.. 01' comse if I had consented it would have been intrncluced to Parliament. 

· 1490. ·well, ye::; : hut there is a refusal-not on record, but there evidently was a refusal-lo 
introLlnce the Bill. But here we have the Bill itself, which was revised during your term of oflice, 
although drafted during lVIr. Clark's ? Yes. 
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1491. Have you any recollection of seeing any of these documents .before, Mr. Hartnoll-the 

draft leases ? [Witness examines documents.] No ; they do not refresh my memory in the least. . 
1492. You do not remember specifically refusing to sign any lease ? Oh, I do remember 

distinctly taking up the position, either to Mr. Norton Smith Ol·· his solicitors, that I would have 
not~ing whatever to do·with this lease for 1000 years. · ·· 

1493. But you do not know U:pon what occasion that was ? No, I do not remember ; my own 
belief is that it was clearly set forth in a letter, either to Mr. Norton Smith or his solicitors. I 
wanted to drive them into Court ; and even then, if it was proved that they had a legal position, I 
contended that they would be only entitled to the line of rails o,n the northern side of the break-
water. · · · 

1494. By Mr. N'icholls.-On the northern side did you say? On the northern side, yes. That 
would be the si_de farthest.from the shipping. · _ 

1495. By Mr. Patterson.-! have just one question to put to you, Mr. Hartnoll. Aithough you 
are unable to recollect the interview narrated to the Committee by the late Crown Solicitor, Mr. 
Dobbie, are you of opinion that this statement, which I will read to you, clearly expresses the views 
you held on this subject : "There was a long discussion, and the whole thing was gone into, and• it 
finally ended by Mr. Hartnoll emphatically declaring that he would not carry the arrangement out; 
that, in his view, it was a bad arrangement., and not in the interests of the Colony, and as long as he 
was Minister of Lands he would not be a partner to it; and, if that was carried out, there would have 
to be another Minister of Lands"? Is that correct? I am quite sure that_ that position would be 
substantially correct. I thought, and think still, that-the same position is taken up in the letter as 
well as in that. I should imagine that Mr. Fincham would also be present at that interview. It 
was· upon various consultations with Mr. Fincham that I got the grip of the position, and determined. 
to protect the breakwater for the people of the· Colony, ahcl the people of Burnie. 

1496. By Mr. Urquhcirt.-What interpretation do you put upon these words, Mr. Hartnoll,­
" I fail to see that it can be considered that what I then stated the Government were prepared to 
do fails .to carry out the agreement to which you refer ''-That would only refer to· the one agree­
ment ?· · Yes, I should think so ; but my own belief is that I must have made some suggestion of a 
compromise to the Van Diemen's Land Company. 

1497. But if you put it in the terms of a compromise, would that be carrying out an agreement ? 
No, not in its _entirety; of course not. 

_ 1498. Well, then, how do you explain this letter? Of course, I know that it is a good many years 
ago, but what was written at the time would be more reliable than one's memory of what took place 
after a lapse of years. . 

149~). ):ou have told us that you wanted the Van Diemen's Land Company only to have the 
right to the rails on the north side of the breakwater ? Yes. 

1500. Well? If you adopted the position that you were going io wash your hands clear of it 
altogether, why should you take the trouble to suggest that the right of the company should b_e to 
the use of the rails on the north side ? Oh, I thought that it was probable that I might not be able 
to wash my hands clear of the thing. I thought the Court might decide, possibly, that it was a valid 
agreement, and had to be carried out, and then-

1501. Would not the Court in that case determine in connection with it? Would not the Court 
suggest whether the right of the company was to the north side or south side ? I do not know that 
it would. I should think it would not. 

1502. Then you would suggest that the Van Diemen's Land Co:npany should have the north 
side? Yes. 

1503. Would it be consistent with this letter to believe that by taking. the north side you would 
be still carrying out the agreement? I think it far more probable that there were a great many other 
things discussed outside that. 

1504. You see _we have to q.ecide this case 'judging from the facts and figures before us. Would 
it be reasonable if we came to the conclusion that you, at the time you wrote this letter, were agree­
able to carry out the agreement on behalf of the Government in the light you presented it then ? I 
would not say that. I would want to know all the matters that were discussed at that interview. 

151 ,5; Well, assuming that you took up the position that you would have nothing to do with it, 
as Minister,' until you were forced-would you not have written to the effect that you declined 
further correspondence ?-Seeing that you had taken up that position_:_that you had washed your 
hands of the matter, in the interests of the Colony-would you not, in writing, as a business man, 
decline to enter into any further correspondence with the company ? No ; as a business man I do 
not think I would. I might have seen the advisability of carrying out some such arrangement as 
this to get over these difficulties tl\at might, in my judgment, have been advantageous to the country. · 

1506. Well, here is a letter. Would not what you proposed, in your opinion, be equal to carrying 
out the agreement'?· Evidently, what I proposed was not good enough for the solicitors of the 
.company. . 

1507. Exactly ; but still there is in this letter no repudiation of the agreement on the part of 
the Minister of the day ? Probal)ly, under certain conditions I made some proposal which might 
be taken as an agreement. I expect that that agreement, in all probability, was for very much less 
than a thousand years. 

1508. But that would not be carrying out the agreement ? I quite understand that questions 
. might arise as to whether the company could go on the whole of the breakwater or any part of it : 
questions connected with IUatters in dispute. 

1509. But you say whether the company had rights to the north or the south breakwater the 
agreement might still be carried out; but if you reduce the term from a thousand years to, say, 
tw_enty lear~1 that woqld uot be carrying out the agreement, Do you see what l mean ? l see 
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what you mean, very clearly. Is there not some letter there pointing out th~t the lease ought to be 
for a less period than a thousand years? 

1510. By j_"Jlfr. Patterson.-Yes. Mr. Justice Clark suggested 14 years. That is the utmost 
period the Ci•own can give a lease for. 

TV-itness.-Well, evidently, that is what must have taken place. I must h'ave suggested certain 
modifications in place of this lease for a thousand years. 

1511. By 1l11·. Urquha1·t.-We are not estimating probabilities, Mr. Hartnoll, we are dealing 
·with facts. Can you say, of your own knowledge; that such things were clone ? Oh, I cannot. 
But it is very clear that what I proposed did not suit the Van Diemen's Land Company. 

1512. Yes, but what you proposed, in your opinion, was carrying out the agreement? Carrying 
out an agreement. 

1513. Not carrying out the agreement? (No answer.) . 
1514. By the Ohairman.-You say that it was an incorrect construction to say that your proposal 

was failing to carr·y out the agreement-Is not that the inten)l·etation of that letter ? ·I think that 
what I proposed must have been something that the company did not approve-they did not 
consider it carrying out the agreement, and what I proposed was the agreeme_nt I wanted carried out. 

1515. But would not the compelling them to take the back line of rails, and _not the front line 
of rails, bring about a state of things of much less advantage to them than what they wanted ? Oh, 
of course it would. But I also think that I or Mr, Fincham wrote, giving them proper facilities for 

. the use of those lines to the southern side, but I understood that the Government requiremen.ts 
were to take precedence of anything connected with the company's use of the breakwater. 

1516. Well, you really state, Mr. Hartnoll, that you did not make the proposal to the company 
that they should have the north side of the breakwater, and that the agreement should be ratified ? 
For a thousand years? 

1517 .. Yes ? I do not think I offered to db that. 
1518. You would not say so positively ? I feel perfectly confident that I never would be a 

party to the carrying out of the agreement. 
1519. By .il11·. fr1.tesclon.-Of course, there is the evidence of the late Crown Solicitor, and then 

the evidence of Mr. Mitchell goes to show that this interview resulted as Mr. Hartnoll says. This 
evidently confirms Mr. Hartrioll? Yes, I am quite certain about that. 

1520. You understood, when you were discussing this matter, Mr. Hartnoll, that the lease was 
for a thousand years. I must have understood that.. 

1521. I suppose you equally understood that, as Minister of Lands, you. had no right to grant 
the lease for such a period? I always unclerstood that I had no power in the matter, and my whole 
iclea was to drive the company to the courts, in order that they might make good their rights there. 

1522. Or go to Parliament and get their rights that way?. That is really what I intended. 

THE HON. A. DOUGLAS called and emarnined. 

Mr. Douglas made the statutory declaration. · · 
1523. By the Chairm.an.-Your name is Adye Douglas? Yes. 
1524. And von are the President of the Legislative Council? Yes. 
152-5. You ~ere a Member of the Dobson-Henrv Government? Yes. 
1526. During a portion of the year I t392 and the whole o{ the year 1893? Yes. 
1527. Do you remember, as a member of that Government, Mr: Douglas, the question of ratifying a 

certain agreement brought before you ? I have been trying to recollect this matter, and I have a very 
imperfect recollection of what took place, and I should like to have my memory refreshed by hearing the 
evidence of Mr. Harmoll read. 

1528. By 11£r. Guesdon.-The only evidence I have as to that, Mr. Douglas, is Mr. John Mitchell's, 
the law,rer. [Extract read from evidence of Mr. _John Mitchell.] Do you remember that? . I prernme 
he was concerned for the Yan Diemen's Land Company. . 

1529. Yes. I remember seeing that document, and I thought it was the most extraordinary document 
I ever saw, and my opinion then was, and is now, that it was the duty of the Government to insist upon 
its rights and set the Van Diemen's Land Company at defiance alt,1gether. That was my opinion then, 
and it i<' my opinion now : that the thing was altogether• wrong and ought not he recognised . by the 
Government in any shape or form. It seems to me to be a most abominable thing. 

1580. By J.lfr. Guesdon.-Mr. Douglas, you .regard it as·an improper thing for the Government to 
carr_v out an agr·eement· of that sort? I. would not· recognise it in any shape or form. · I cannot under­
stand why the Government <lid not at once resist anythin~ in that shape. I cannot understand why the 
Government of the day did not insist upon its rights. ·What is the difference in a matter of thi~ sort 
between a private individual and this Company. 

MR. BACK recalled. 

1531. By 11£r . .liall.-:--In yon!' evidence, Mr. Back, the following words oceur·, in reply to a ques­
t.ion :- "You think, then, that it will involve extension of the break water· at some foture time'/ I think 

- so, or the con~trnction of another breakwater. I would hke very much that the Government should 
ascertain what has been the effect of that brnakwater since it has been constl'ucted-whethel' the portion 
sheltered by that breakwater is being reclaimed, or whether it is shallower? I think I saw decided 
indications of that when I was np there. I think the GovemmenL might consider this when dealing with 
this matter:''-Is that correct, Mr. Back? · That is quite correct. · 
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153:2. What visit, did yon refer to, Mr. Back,-the last? Yes, and on ever·y occasion that I have 

been there. 
1533. What indications did you see-you say you saw decided indications of shallowmg? J think 

the foreshore is being reclaimed in front of Mr. Norton Smith's house. ' 
1534-. Oh, in front of Mr. Smith's house? I think so. 
1531:i. Did yon see anything: there that would lead you to believe that the portion of the harbour m 

the vicinity of _the breakwater· is shallowing? Certainly not. I could not. 
· 1536. You say," I think I saw decided indications of that when I was up there."-You say, "I 

would like very much that the Government should ascertain what has been the effect of that breakwater." 
-Well, now, if yon say you saw indications of shallowing in front of Mr. Norton Smith's honse, that is 
at least 500 feet from the line on the end of the .break \"ater? That is so. 

1537. That is not sheltered hy the breakwater at all.-I wish to know, now, how you arrive at this 
opinion that the harbour is shallowing? Well, I rlo not know that I have anything more to sa? than that 
I noticed, then, that there is a considerable deposit of sand at the angle of the road opposite Mr. Chap­
man's, to Mr. Norton Smith's house, and I have been taking notice of that land every time I have been 
down there, because, if the Government make a station there, probably some reclamation may have 
to be done on that point. And I noticed that, apparently, there has been some deposit of sand there. 
I recollect that those rocks were fairly bare in places. ' 

1538. Well, I may say that I have resided there nine years, and I have seen no change in the eharactei• 
of the place from what it was nine years ago? Well, I may be mistaken. 

1539. Now, the next thing you say is this: " When you look at the breakwater at Burnie, what do 
you see? You see a very small piece of water protected b,v a breakwater. Originally it was an open road­
stead; but the Government have built a breakwater and made a harbour-,a poor harbour, it is true, but a 
harboll!' of sorts, and they have so gone to work that the harbour belongs to the Van Diemen's Land Com­
pany." Now, would you consider Mr. Na pier Bell an authority on harbours? Yes. 

1540. Well, I hardly think he ~ays it is an open roadstead? (No. ans,ver). 
The Clwfrman: Mr. Back said it mas an open roadstead; not that it is an open roadstead. 

Certainly it was an open roadstead before the breakwater has made. 
1541. By Jltr. Hall.-Well? Mr. Napier Bell, in his report of 1882, says: "The bay is an open 

roadstead; well sheltered from all winds to the West of north, but completely exposed to all winds from 
north to east."-That is the way he explains it.-Is that so ? In my evidence I said that Lefore the 
b1·eakwater was built it was an open roadstPad. 

1542. And you described it as "a poor shelter indeed," Mr. Back·? Yes. 
1543. Has that knowledge been gained from an extended visit to Burnie, or merely from what you 

have seen as a casual visitor? From the use 1 have made of my eves. 
1544. Well, is it usual for vessels of. 2000 to 4000 tonnage t~ ei1ter and leave a poor harbour without 

an.v accident ?-Can you _name a single accident at Burnie? -oh, I nsed the expression "a poor harbour'' 
to imply that the harbour is to_o small. The accommodation, protection, and everything else is too small, 
and you will have to do something for shipping in the way of providing fnrthel' protection, by-and-by, if 
this business we hear of now comes on. You will have to build the breakwater right away out from 
Blackman's Point, and this present breakwater can then be used as a wharf, in which case the heavy 
expenditllre put into that breakwater by the Governme;it will be lo~t, tu some extent. 

1545. In your opinion the extension of the breakwater anothe1· 500 feet would not meet the require­
ments? I doubt it very much, because I cannot see where there is room to put additional wharves in that 
case. 

1546. Not inside the breakwater? You have not any room for any more, as far as I can see. Your 
present wharves are too close to the br·eakwa.ter now. 

1547. Then, Mr. Back, there is this remark of yours, in repl,v to Mr. Guesdon -: " Well your harbour 
up there is a miserable failure at present, because the breakwate1· is not sufficiently long to protect your 
shipping, and your wharf is so close to your breakwater that in an easterly gale a vessel casting· off from 
the breakwater· would collide with the vessel at the whar-f"? Quite so. · 

1548. And you go on : "Then there is no proper accommocla tion for vessels at the breakwater, and 
the vesse18 lying there are gronnd up against the concrete"? Quite right. 

],549. You do not give any proof of such an extraorJinary statement as that? Which part of it do 
you mean? 

1550. Well, where you say" Your harbour is a miserable failure at present"; do yon still maintain 
that that is so? Yes. 

1551. C:m .vou name any vessel, Ml'. Back, trading to Devonport that does not trade to Burnie? Oh, 
you can get a vessel in there; lrnt, if you are going to get this large trade that we hear about, the h:irbour 
is quite inadequate; I can only say that that is my opinion. It is a failure in so far as that breakwater 
will not be sufficient to shelter your shipping as the trade increases. Therefore, yon wi'.l have to bL1ild 
another breakwater, and this one, in that case, can only be used as a wharf. 

1552. You go on to sa.v that vessels in an easterly gale would collide with vessels at the wharf? That 
might be very likely, I think. ·. · 

1553. Are yon aware that an easterly gale very seldom affects the harboL1r at all? Well, we will say 
a north-easterly. 

1554. Here you are cred_ited wi1h saying ari easterly gale? I said north-e,1sterly, [ am sure. There, 
must h,ive been a mistake in taking it down. 

1555. Well, if we come to the north-easterly gale, the wharf, as you know,.is 190 feet shorter than 
the breakwater·? Yes. 

1556. The breakwatar i~ 690 feet lo:1g, and the wharf, on completio'n, will be 500 feet long ? Yes. 
1557. My reason for recallinc; you, Mr. Back, is this : That you hold a very high and responsible 

position in this Colony, and it is·only natural that any statements made by you and sent broadcast -.yoqlq 
have verr great weight.-Or, that in giving rour evide11ce--. 
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The Ohni-nnrm-I think, Ml', Hall, you ought to give evidence rather than make statements. 
By Jtfr. /foll.-1 think I am within my rig·hts. Mr. Back said hel'e, in one portion of his evidence, 

that he saw indicntions of the silting up of the harbour at Burnie, and I -rlo not think such statement~ 
should· go unchallenged. 

1558. Well, Mr. Back, I will just examine you on this question-mi those worlh, whe,·e you say t.hern 
is no propel' aecommodatiqn for vessels on the hl'eakwater, and that they grind np against the concrete.­
What do vou say to that? Quite tme.· 

1559: But is it not known to you that, as a rule, il'on fenders are kept all over the breakwater to pro­
tect ve~sels? That would not be sufficient, I think, for vessels coming alo11gside. 

1560. Can you name any captai_n of a vessel who has objected to lying along·side that breakwater? 
No. As·r said before, I only used my eyes, basing my observations on what I have leamt ·when I have 
had charge of the traffic in harbonrs with breakwaters. 

1561. Do you consider that, in your cr.sual visits to Bnrnie, you1· e_yes will convey to you very much 
fuller knowledge of the harbour than those have gained who have lived in the place 35 01· 40 years? Yes, 
if those people have not seen other hreakwaters and other harbours ; I suppose that my eyes might be 
better tor. t1ie purposes of observation, because I would know where to look and what to look for. . 

1562. One witness ( Captain Jones) who kr:ows a great deal about harbonl's, and has traded to harbours 
in all parts of the Australian Colonies, differs from yon, anyhow.-Then you said that a new breakwater 
would have to be built, amounting to an approximate cost of half a millioi1 of money? I did not say that 
any breakwater alone would cost so- much as that. What I said, I. said because I thought, and still think 
that it is right that the Committep. should know that the mere acceptance of this option from the Emu Bay 
Company will not prevent any expenditure in the future on harbour works-expenditure, possibly, oi' half 
a million of money ; in fact, .I rr:iight almost say more. I think I am well within the mark when [ say 
half a million. 

1563. Well, Mr. Napier Bell certainly stated that the breakwater could be run out to Blackman's 
Point for not more than £100,000. You know that? Well, I do not suppose Mr. Napier Bell has 
precise figures to guide him in arriving at these figures, any more than I have. I wish to be clearly 
understood. You now have a breakwater that will still serve your purpose in a small way; but, if you 
begin to·get a large trade, and have to accommodate a large amount of shipping co11sta11tly in that po1-t-say, 
the number of vessels that we are given to understanrl will come from connection with this Blythe iron 
trade, then it is my duty to point out to this Committee, that I can clearly see the necessity for this extra 
expenditure in the future. 

1564. Now, you are credited with saying-" Take it from me, there is not room in the· harbour for 
any more wharves at present. It would be advisable to have soundings taken, and see what the operation 
of the breakwater has been. I think the water is shallowing." Now, that refel's, I presume, to water 
in .the vicinity of the breakwater? No, it would shallow from the sbore first, you see. 

1565. I think your remarks would be taken to apply to the water in ihe vicinity of the breakwater, 
because you have it here:-" There is a small port, swept by east and north-east winds, .and they have 
made a small breakwater there; and the breakwater is so far inland that there is very little space left 
for building wharves. '!'hey have only one wharf, which occupies all the water that is deep .enough 
under existing conditions to berth a vessel in,"-what do you say to that? That is quite right. 

- 1566. Could you put another wharf on the inside of that that would take this 3000-ton ship? 
1567. We have put in evid.ence from both Mr. Norton·Smith, who is a member of the Marine Board, 

and Mr. Wm. Jones, who was harbourmaster for many years, and also a mem her t,f the Marine Board ; both 
these gentlemen assert positively that a second wharf can be put out to give the same accommodation as 
the present new wharf-what do you say to that? . Well, if there is a difference of opinion, I think my 
suggestion that soundings should be taken is a very good one. 

1568. I may explain that soundings were taken only lately-only about two months ago-did yon 
know that soundings had been taken? I thought it would be a reasonable precaution to take sonnclings 
there. · 

11:lr. Rall: Well, soundings have been taken. . 
The Clw.i'.-rman: If you desire that fact to be brought in, Mr. Hall, Mr. Back is not aware of it. If 

yon want it placed on record in the evidence,· it is quite a usual thing for a member of a Select Committee 
to give evidence himself. · 

1l£r. U1·quliart: Instead of the evidence being confined. to facts, they are goii1g to probabilities and 
potentialities, ·and all sorts of things. . 

1569. B.1/ 1lf1·. Hall.-Mr. Back has to admit that he has made errors in his evidence. For instance, 
he says that the harbour .is exposed to ea,;terly and north-eal<terly winds, and it is well known that easterly 
winds do not interfere with the port at all. . He has also made the stu'tements that I have quoted with 
reference to the inadequacy of the port. Well, I think it has been set out over and over again that they 
will be able to birth three large vesseis at a time when the new wharf is finished-is that so, Mr. Back'! 
I believe so; one at each side of the wharf, and one at the breakw·ater . 

. 1570. By 1l1·r Urquhart.-Mr. Back, you used these words," The _breakwater is a miserable_failure ·-it 
present." 

1571. By M·r. Guesdon : No, he said the harbour was a faiime; not the breakwater. 
1572. By llfr. Urqu!tart.-As far as the breakwater is concernetl,I think it h~s 'answe;·ed all reasonable 

e·xpectations ofit? Yes, I suppose it has ·up to the present. · . 
1573. As for as the expenditure of public mo11ey is concerned on that. breakwater it has proved 

a great advantage to the public? Up to the present.. What is in my mind is this : that we 
are told that we must acquire this lan_d in order to enabl~ usto can·_y on this large bnsiness­
thousands of tons of ore, and SO' forth. Then I say that to cope with thai your harbour is a 
failure at present, inasmuch as it will not permit of the carryi11g out of that business. You will§ have 
to !;0 to the expense of <;OJ:\Structing another breakwater1 and this one will become- a pier. And J 
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hink it is due from one m my position in the service to point out that this expenditure must be looked for 
and anticipated. I should not like in a fow years time for people, looking back on this Committee, to 
say, "Why did you not point this out to us? You knew that there was not adequate accommodation for 
shipping,-had you said so, we might riot have done as we did." · 

1574. I will put the question this way-this expenditure you speak of will have to come if the trade 
increases as is anticipated? Yes. 

1575. Will .the expenditure have to come if the Government purchases this option? Very likely .. 
J.11fr. Hall.-It is well known that that Harbour-- · 
.Mr. Urquhart.-Has been a splendid success. 
J.lir. Hall.-Mr. Back knows that as well as anybody. 
1576. Wituess.-All the same, you will probably find yourselves placed in the necessity of making a 

big expenditure for another breakwater, and it i,; my duty to tell the Committee so. 
1577. By the Ciw-irman.-Was your idea, Mr. Back, that the necessities of the port of Burnie would 

require larger accomodation in the future? Yes. 
1578. And that. they could not be acquired except by going farther out to sea with a breakwater? That 

is my opinion ; quite so. 
1579. And you think that this expenditure will inevitably be required, apart from this option altogether? 

Yes; if the business grows as we have heard it is going to grow, that will be necessary. 
1580. That is if the Blythe Iron Mine is developed? Yes;· and if other works and interests in that 

district go on as we are given to understand they will-shipments of produce and shipments of ore from 
the various mines, and so on. 

1581. I would like to ask one more question-In the event of another breakwater being constructed 
seaward of the present breakwater, what greater length of wharfage accommodation would we have without 
constructing morn wharves? You could remove the coping from the breakwater and put a timber wharf 
alongside of it. 

1582. On both sides? On both sides. 
1583. Tiiat would give us about 600 feet extra wharfage? Something about. that. 
1584. How many additional piers could be constructed inside the present Marine Board jetty? Yon 

mean on the side of Mr. N 01ton Smith's house? · 
1585. Ye&? I gather that there is not sufficient water there for taking ships of any considerable 

tonnage; we were told so only the other day. . . 
1586. ·By J.111·. Patterson.-One witness here has told u~ you could build two additional wharves 

there now-what do you think? I do not think so. 
1,587. One of the same depth of water as the present one, and the other shallower? Well, if you are 

moving about these very big vessels you require room to swing them and room for them to move. You 
want space for manamvring the ship in bringing her to and from the wharf. 

1588. By LJ1r. Uitesdon.~Mr. Back, we have here the returns of the earnings of the Emu Bay 
Railway for the 14 years, from 1884 to 1897 inclusive, and they show an average roughly of £16,000 a 
year for earnings, and an average of about .£9300 a year for expenditure ; I snppose that would include 
maintenance and anything like that.-Now, these earnings have been !0eceived on a tariff of .£3 per ton 
for freight-.£4 first, and afterwards reduced to .£3.-0n a Government line of that length, say 48 miles, . 
what would be your average tariff for taking produce down ; of course I know that you have different 
classifications and so forth, bt1t what would be the average tariff under the Government system ? Do you 
mean for agricultural produce? 

1589. All classes on mileage? It would run from fo. up to 20s. a ton, or thereabout, I could not 
tell you more precisely without a tariff book. -

1590. Supposing we put it this way: that 20s. a ton is the maximum you charge, and the minimum 
they charg·e is £3 a. ton.-That would reduce these receipts, supposing that your rates were charged, from 
£16,000 to ahout .£,')000 a year. (No an~wer.) . 

1591. Well, do y0u think yoLi could work that line more economically than the company have worked 
it? No, 1 do not think so. 

1592. Well, their accounts show that it costs £931JO a year to work this line. So that if you were to 
charge your maximum tariff of 20s. a t\Jn, supposing that the Government purchase this line the receipts 
would apparently be reduced from an average of £16,000 a year to £5300 a year, and you do not think 
yout· expenditure would be less.-There would consequently be a loss on the workin,g- of the line, I suppose? 
You overlook the fact that part of that l'evenue comes from passengers. 

1593. I drew attention to that fact when Mr. Norton Smith was giving evidence yesterday,and he told 
me that the bulk of their eaming,; c,1me from fteight.-So that the bulk of these receipts have Corne from 
freight at .£3 a ton.-Now, do you think it is a fair de<lnction from these figures, that the average rate of 
earnings of this line from 1884 to 18J7 would have been reduced as I have said, if freight had been taken 
on the Government tariff? (No an·swer.) 

1594:. The evidence that was o·iven by Ml". Norto11 Snith was that the general freight charge was £4 
a Lon, and that afterwards it was re

0

ducecl to .£:3.-Now, will you tell me if it is a fair deduction to draw 
from these tigures tlH deduction I have pnt to you'? Y,1s ; taking 011t whatever yom passenger earnings 
were, yoLll" receipts wo1Ll<l certainly be rech1cecl by two-thirds. 

1595. Thes.e figures show that, on the rates of the Van Diemen's Land Company, say £::I per ton, 
this line lrns yielded a revenue ot, broadly, £16,000 a year. The expenditure fo1· the 14 years has 
amounted to .£9300 a year, roughly.-N ow, if we took your maximum, Mr. Back, of £ I a ton, thos.e· 
receipts would have been reduced from .£16,00U a year to .£5300, assnming that all the receipts come 
from freight? Yes, I suppose so. 

The C!iairmaii : l do not know that there has been any proposal before the Committee that the 
Government rates sl1onlcl be charged on that line. 

1596. By ilfr. Guesdon.-This expenditure,! suppose, provides for fair wear and tear and mainten~nce ; 
and I sLippose that Mr. Back also has to provide for that in making up his accounts, have you not 1 That 
is so, 
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1597. All I say i,i, that if we have to come clown to the Government scale-and all I ask Mr. Back to 

say is that there must obvious!? be a substant_ial decrease in this line if the Colony has to rnn this line 
itself, is it likely to te able to run it any cheaper than it has been ·mi1 by the company? I do 1101 quite 
know what is included in the expenditure you have named-whet.he1· there are directors' fees charged for 
and so forth. But, as far as I have seen the management and working of the line, I do not think we 
could manage it cheaper. - . 

· 1598. By 11fr. Urqnlul?'t.-What does it cost to run the Scottsdale line? 
1599. By 1lfr. Guesdon.-What is the average cost for maintenance on the average mileage of your 

system, Mr. Back? I think i: is right to point out to yon that these figures will mislead yon to some 
extent, because the circmmstances under which expenses gro"; vary in different instances. The Fingal line 
will take much less to maintain than the Scottsdale line, for instance. 

1600. By Mr. Patterson.-! may tell yon that this expenditure on the Burnie line does not include 
directors' fees, or anything at all of the sort. It is simply the cost of workirig the line in Tasmania. You 
understand that? 'l'hat line is economically wqrked. I do not think I could do it cheaper. 

1601. By the C/iairman.-[s the Scottsdale lirie about the same lerigth as the line to W aratah? Yes, 
about the same length. 

1602. What is the length of the Scottsdale line? 47 miles and a few chains. 
1603. ·what were your receipts there last year? £11,701. 
1604. And working expenses? £8833. 
1605. About the same number of trains per day? Well, I dare say,.very nearly the same. But they 

are different trains. 
1606. Your trains are heavier? Yes, we had heavier trains. 
1607. By ilf.r. Gue.~don.-They run one tmin per day. Do yoLI? Last year we did. We nm two 

now. But we have some special trains, and I think they have some too. To give you an idea of how 
these railway expenses vary, I m,1y say that to work a trnin-mile 011 the Main Line costs 3s. 6d.; on the 
Western, 3s. 4d.; on the Fingal, 3s. 8d.; on the Parattah-Oatlands, 3s. 6d.; on the Derwent Valley, 
3s. 0;td.; on the Scottsdale, 4.~. 6d.; on the Chudleigh, 3s. 8d. ; on the Apsley, 4.~. ·2d. ; on West Coast 
Lines, 6s. Id.; and on the Sorell, 2s. lld.; being au average of 3s. 9·49d. throughout the Colony per 
mile run. Now, I want to show you how the train mileage would mislead you. I-fere are other figures. 
The cost per mile working the full length is: on the Main Line, £460 a year; on the W estem, £416; on 
the Fingal, £172; on the Parattah-Oatlands, £119; on _the Derwent Valley, £249; on the Scottsdale, 
£187; on the Cbndleigh, £119; on the Apsley, £136; on the West Coast Lines, £488; and on the 
Sorell, £189 ; or an average of £343. 

1608. By t!te C!tair1nan.-What I want to know is this. I have as',ed Mr. Back if the Scottsdale 
line is about equal in Je·ngth to the line we are dealing with-He says, "Yes." Is it a line of similar 
construction, Mr. Back? No; the Scottsdale line is heavier. 

1609. Would the working of the Scottsdale line, train service against train service, be a fair thing to 
put down as equal with the working of this other line ; or should the Scottsdale line cost more to w01·k, or 
less? .Maintenance would be a little heavier, otherwise it would be about the same. 

1610. I want to get from you, Mr. Back, whether one line could be taken as the counterpart of the 
other? ·well, no ; on the ·scottsdale line we use much heavier stock. 

1611. And which of the two lines would be most expensive to· work with the same train service? 
Well, yon see, on the Scottsdale line we have got heavier engines, and carry heavier loads on heavier rails. 
We could take a bigger load on the Scottsdale line than on this Burnie line. 

1612. Would the effert of that he to cheapen the working of the Scottsdale. line? Oh, yes. 
1613. Consequently, it would be a cheaper line to work than this Burnie line? Well, that depends 

on the traffic. 
1614. Supposing we took it on the basis of one train each day? [n that case the differ.ence would only 

be in maintenance. The maintenance on the Scottsdale line would be a little heavier than the maintenance 
on this Burnie line, from its nature and character. 

1615. By 1llr. Urqultart.-In your opinion, i\fr, Back, has the construction of the Gnildford to 
Zeehan line increased the value of this Burnie to Waratah line? Of course it would increase it. 

1616. Ancl, as regards the fntme traffic of t.he Waratah-Bnrnie line; will it be largely increased or 
diminished ? Well, the only factor that is likely to affect it would be 1his Magnet ore. If all !!:0es well 
that would increase the traffic.. I do not know enough of Bischoff to say anything· as to that, bnt I have 
been told that the Bischoff mine will he worked for years and years to come, 

Yes. 
1617. Will not all the stuff that is carried up to Guildford Junction come down the Burnie line 1 

1618. A traffic that line has never had in the past ? · Yes. 
1619. W~ll traffic from the North Mt. Panell district come clown· Burnie way? Probably. 
1620. It must come? Yes, I think so. 
1621. And that is all new freight to come for this line ? All the traffic for Burnie and from· Burnie 

which passes over the Guildford to Zeehan line must go over the B umie line. 

MR. C. N AIRN1 called and exarnined. 

Mr. N ait-n made the statutory declaration. 
1622. By the Chairrnan.- Y ou1· name is Charles Cameron Nairn ? . 
1623. And you a!'e an enf!ineer in the Hail way Departmeht of the Colony 1 Yes, . 
1624. BI/ M,·. PaUer.~on,-'fhe information I am going· to ask yon to give to this Committee t could 

have criven myself equally well; lmt I think it is better for the Committee to get it froqi an independen_t 
man, ~ot mixed up with this question in any' way,---N ow, Mr. N airni have yot1 examined the plan of the 
first 5 miles of the Bumie to Waratah Railway? Yes, I have exammed that, 
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1625. Can you tell the Committee how many 5-chain curves thel'e are? In the four and a half miles, 
commencing outside Bumie, and ending at the fifth mile, I find there are 42 5-chain curve$, 11 of ·which 
are reverse. 

1626. Have you examined the plans and sections of the Sorell Railway? Yes, I have. 
1627. Can you give me the total number of 5-chain curves in the 15 miles that form the whole length 

of that line? Seven. 
]628. How many reverse? One. 
1629. What are the steepest gradients on that Sorell line, and what is the greatest continuous length 

of that gradient? The steepest gradient is 1-in 40, and the greatest continuous length of it is 65 chains. ' 
1630. "Now, can yon tell the Committee the nature of the alterations made by you on the Main Line· 

at the Horseshoe recently? In what way? 
1631. In the matter of reducing the grade? As to the reduction of the grade on the far side, do you 

mean? 
] 632. Yes? Well, the grade in use up to the bridge was a short pinch of 1 in 37, which, of course, 

had no right to be there, but which had been there all throngh. It was terribly heavy. 
1633. What length of it wast.here? Oh, a very shol't pinch, about four or five chains. It just caught 

the engines at the very worst point, at the finish of a heavy grade up from Brighton Junction. 
1634. After you made that alteration could you take up a greater load than before? From two to 

three tmcks more on every train. 
1635. That would be about 15 tons, I suppose? Yes. about 15 tons, at least. 
1636. What is the greatest length of continuous 1 in 40 grade on the Main Line? Between Colebrook 

and Rhyndaston there is about l;j!- miles of 1 in 40, and in another piece, of about l¼ miles of 1 in 40. 
_ 1637. Are there many 5~chain curves in that length? Four in that portion. 

1638. No reverse ? No, no reverse. 
lfi39. And in the If-mile length in the same distance that you spoke of? There are 10 5-chaiu curves. 
1640. By lib·. Guesdon.-No reverse? No, no reverse in either. 

. 1641. By llifr. Patterson.-You have told us, Mr. Nairn, that the existence of a yery small length of 
1 in 37 on the Main Line was a most serious handicap to the working of the Lraffw? Quite ~o. 

1642. And even the reduction of that small length of heavy grade enabled you to take 15 tons more 
freight up in each train? Quite so.· 

1643. Would it make a very serious difference to the expense of running on the Main Line if, instead of 
Ii miles of l in 40 grade, you had 5 miles of 1 in 33? Well, we simply could not work tlie railway with 
the existing stock. That is what it amounts to. · You would have to have special .itock and special arrange­
ments. 

164.4. What is a common load on the most powe1fol engine you have on the line from :J:Iobart to 
Launceston ? 84 tons of a paying load. · 

1645. But, I suppose you are aware that the policy of railway management all over the world at the­
present day is to eliminate severe gradients, lay down heavy rails, and em ploy powerful locomotives? To . 
get economical working, undoubtedly. 

1646. You also know that the Colonies of New South Wales and Victoria are now spending many 
thousands of pounds in eliminating severe grades on different parts of' their railway system? I am folly 
aware of that. 

1647. Do you think that is sound policy to adopt? Unquestionably; undoubtedly. 
1648. Have you taken out the continuous grade of 1 in :.32 and 1 in 3:3 on the Burnie-Waratah line? 

In 4½ miles of distance there al'e practically 2½ miles of continuous 1 in 32 and 1 in 33. 
1649. Is there anything as low as 1 in 32? Oh, yes, I am not taking the decimals. 
1650. By the Chairman.-Mr. Naim, you said that a contiuuous length of 1 in 33 on the ;\'Iain Line 

would have such effect that the line could not be worked? We have no such grade. 
1651. But Mr. Patterson asked you if you had a 5-mile continuation of 1 in 33 what would happen? 

We could not ,vork it with our present stock. It would be quite impossible. 
1652. Can you tell us how that grnde is worked on the Waratah line? Oh, very easily, the trains run 

about two trucks and a carriage ; we run about ] 2 loaded trucks, and a carriage and van. 
1653. What you mean is thar if you had that grade you would simply have to take a lighter load? 

You would have to double your engiues or increase your power. 
1654. You said it wou1d be impossible to work with that grade? I mean to say that it would be 

impossible under the present conditions. 
1655. But you could work it with a lighter load 7 Oh, yes ; you would have to lower your loads 

very considerably. 
1656. And what would that mean in expenditure? Oh, it ,;,ould entail a very considerable cost. 

'I.'he difference between our standard loads now and the standard loa2rs over a 1 in 33 grade would be very 
considerable. 

1657. Do you know the Bumie-Waratah line? I have been over it. 
1658. Are you aware that the grades we are referring to now only exist on the first five miles of that 

line? Yes. . 
1659. Would it be a very expensive thing to assist with a banking·-engine from the terminal station? 

You could have a banking-engine to do it; but, I think that if the Government stock were put on the 
road in a very short time would be knocked to pieces; I do not think the line would stand it. They are 
running a very flexible single-buffer stock. The Govemment double-buffer stock is very heavy on the 
roads; I know that from my own experience of our own lines, and the severe wear and tear. 

1660. But, apart from that, would it be an expensive thing to keep a banking-engine to assist trains 
over the first five miles? Well, you would have to keep the banki11g-engine running, and yon would have 
to keep a station and sidings, and marshalling yard at the top of the hill. It would result in a verv 
considerable cost in the course of twelve months. ' 

1661. An enormous cost? I could not say that, 



r 

(No. 76.) 

78. 

1662. B.1J J.lfr. Patterson.-I had intended to call Mr. Deeble about that, bnt he went away this 
morning. I did not know- that you knew the character of the st0ck on the Burnie-Waratah line--it is 
single-buffer stock ? Yes. 

1663. The same as was used on the Main Line in Mr, Grant's time? Yes. 
lfi64. We have no single-buffer stock now ? Only on the West Coast lines, and the Sorell line. 
1665. And, of com·se, the single-buffer stock is extremely flexible as c01npa1·ed with the double-buffer 

stock? Yes. . · 
1666. If yot1 get a banking-engine employed over the fii·st five miles, and have to have a marshalling 

station at the top, does not that prncticall.,· <lnnhle the cost of haulage through to Waratah? Well, of· 
course you have the engine running a double t,·ip; that doubles the engine mileag·e to the distance where 
your marshalling station is. . . 

1667. And of_comse you wonld have to µa,v the fireman and driver of that engine the same daily 
wages as if they went 150 miles in a 1lay? Qt1itc ·so. 

1668. So that it doubles the cost of hanh1gse? As regards payment of wages-Yes. 
1669. By t.he Chairman.-Does it <lo1tble the cost of haulage right through to Waratah? No, only 

to the point at which you marsha}t your tr1icks again. 
1670. Would there not be always a shunting engine at work at.a ierminal station, like that at Burnie? 

It depends on the traffic. 
1671. Well, if there were enough traffic to -require a marshalling yard, there would be enough, I 

suppose, to necessitate the keeping of a shunting engine at. Burnie? Probably; but, a shunting engine 
is not suitable for use as a banking engine. I could not say that it would be a good thing to employ a 
banking engine at all about the yard, through points and crossings. 

1672. By Jl:fr. Urqnha,·t.-Bnt I suppose the man that drove the banking engine could be also 
employed on the shunting engine? I do not think he could; because, probably, the work of shunting in the 
yanl would clash with the time when the driver had to leave to take his trains up Lhe bank to the 
marshalling· station. We find the same difficulty in Hobart at times with our shnnting engine, ifwe want 
to take it up to Bridgewater on a short run. 

1673. B:IJ J.11r. Hall.-You say that the trains at Bumie consist of one tmck and two carriages? That 
is what they consisted of when I was last there, ten years ago. We took up two tmcks and brought down 
one and a composite carriage, if l remernber·rightly. · I could not speak positively of what tliey take now. 

MR. JONES, called and exam.ined. 

Mr. Jones made the statutory declaration. , 
1674. By the Chafrinan.-Your name is David ,Jones? Yes. 
1675. And you are District Surveyor of Waratah? · Yes. 
1676. Are you we[acquaint.ed with the Waratah District? I have been there something over 25 

year;,. 
1677. Do you know the mineral land about it? I do. . 
1678. Have you surveyed most of the mineral sections there? I have; I was on the first exploration 

trip through that country in .1875 with Mr. Chas. P. Sprent. 
H:i79. B.IJ Jl:fr. Hc,ll.-Can you give any inform_ation, Mr. Jones, with reference to the_ tin count1·y in 

the vicinity of the Meredith Range and Mount Ramsay? Well, I may say, ·of comse, that you are all 
aware that the tin country practically begins at the Mount Bischoff Tin Mine, and t.he main run has been 
traced to 5 miles beyond ·waratah, where tin has been obtained; and we think that a company will be 
formed, shortly, to work it there. But the quantity of ore to the dish does not exceed 2 ozs. Still some 
160 acres are held there under a protection area. I would not be quite sure as to the area, because I have 
not made the surveys·; they are simply prospected. The average yield 011t there is 2 ozs. Further on, ac 
what is called the Whyte River, 5 or 6 tons of tin ore have been won, brought down to Waratah, and shipped 
away. 

1680. During how long a period was that 5 or 6 tons won? It was only worked by two or three men. 
I couldn't tell yon. 

1681. Is that latel:t? This year, I should think. Further on still we come to the tin country in the 
vicinity of the Meredith Range and Mouut Ramsay. There is tin obtained here chiefly in the form of 
alluvial, associated with iron. and also associated with porphyry; just as it occurs in the Motmt Bischoff 
mine, that is, at Mount Ramsay; going on to the south, on to the Meredith Range, you come to 1he 
vicinity of the Stanley River, and the head waters of Pine Creek. · That is along the east side of the 
Meredith range. I may remark here, that the parties who ·brought in the tin from here, spent £9 to 
bring 01le ton into Waratah, independently of the freight on the line. 

1682. vVell, that c-ountry you speak of in such high terms: can yon assign any reason for it lying 
practically dormant? 1iV ell, ofcourse; there is a road out to the Whyte River, and to the Five Mile. There 
is an old discovery beyond that, that has been revived by Whitehead, Stanley, and some others. They have 
a concession from the Govemment of 160 acres-two 80-acre blocks that. they are prospeeting llpon. Then, 
there is a track to the old Mount Stewart Mine-just a ·rough pack-horse track. But, from there, through 
to the Parson's Hood, which forms the south head of the Meredith Ranl-!:e, they have had to cut their own 
track to enable them to bring this orc out. , I have recommended to Mr. Counsel that a track be cut 
throuo·h there, and he bas adopted that su"gestion. "\,Vere it not that the wet weather set in so severely on 
Mr. Counsel's last visit to Wan1tah, that ll·ack would have been through by this time. 
. 1683. Now it has been said that the life of the Mount .Bischoff Mine is practically limited. Can you 

giv~ any inform?tion with reference to the Bischoff Mine? Yes. 
1684. It has also been stated that when that mine pays its last dividend it will be the end of the 

;Bischoff district? I don't think so. 
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1685. You are a mining surveyor? Yes~ I may say, Mr. Chairman, that. I have conducted all the 
surveys of the Mou11t Bischoff mines. I have had the conduct of all the smveys-all the untlerground 
snrveys, and the field engi11ee1·ing--for Mr. Kayser, since 1878. Every bit of the work in connection 
with all the mines there I have bad to <lo. Now, as to the life of the Bischoff ·mine, I may 
say, that of course, they. nre .not depending altogP,the1· on the brown face for the whole of their 
ore at the present time. .There is the Q,ieen Ioele, which is a distinct lode, which was worked by the 
Stanhope Company in the firilt place. Then it was tra_ceJ into the Bischoff Company's mine. The 
general course of it is westerly. 1.'hat lorle has been trflced through the no1th section of the Mount 
Bischoff Tin Mining Company's block, and it no doubt enters the old Wheal Bischoff's wound which now 
belongs to the Bischoff Company. I would not be at all surp1·iseLl to find it junctioning with the Mount 
Bischoff West Tin Mining· Company's lode, which runs nOJ:th ,;;,,me few degrees east. I .know that the Ioele 
goes into the Wheal Bischoff Company's mine, which 110w belongs to the Mount Bis.chaff Company's 
property. 

1686. Will you give a short outline of the. reasons which lead you, froin your own knowledge, to believe 
hat the Bischoffmine has a certain life? Well, I can confidently say that the Bischoff mine must have a 

.ife, as far as they know at the present time, without prospective work-a life in the ·b1own face alone of 
from ten to fifteen years on present ,;bowing. That i8, independent of the Stanhope or North Valley, on 
both of which there are good lodes. . 

1687. And the vVes-t Bischoff? That is a very good hcle, running nearly nor.th. So far, the surveys 
in connection with that have been confined to one section. 

1688. And the Magnet-Can you give. ns any information about that mine? Yes, I made the under-
ground surveys of that. · 

1689. And what is your opinion? -Now, the mine is putting out 26 tons per week of- a class of ore 
yielding 100 ozs. of silver to the ton, and 25 per cent. of lead, and we are surveying a tram-line there now; 
and when that is finished they purpose putting out 1000 tons per mouth, but not of the same class of ore. 
They are not going to take the s_ame trouble in preparing it for the market. It will average 30 or 40 ozs. 
silver to the ton, and 12 per cent. lead. . · 

1690. You think they can keep up that yield of 1000 tons a month? Oh, yes. There is not less than 
100,000 tons in sight now, :,hove .No. 3 level. . 

1691. Now, Mr. Jones, with reference to your opi11ion of the land between Waratah and Burnie, now 
held by the Van Dieme11's Land Cori.1pany-the land through which thei1· line runs-Do ·you think that land, 
if thrown oprn for selection, would be taken np? I should think so, if the terms were easy. 

1692. By the Chairman.-You know the district from the Waratah to the Pieman River, do you ? 
Yes, sir. . 

1693. From what radius from Waratah would minerals have to find their way to port over this railway? 
Would l start from the railwav line as a centre? · ' 

1694. From the railway t~nni11us at Waratah? Do you mean to be brought into Waratah, or along the 
line? 

1695. I mean, what nrea of mineral country would tliis railway serve, taking Waratah as a centre? J 
should think about. twenty miles_. ' 

16!:l0. Would minerals di~covered as far south as H eazlewoo.d and Whyte River hav·e any other-outlet? 
They could be taken to Corinna; but I do not think they ever wonld, because they have a good road to 
Wa1·atah. _ 

1697 .. You do not think they would ever get to Corinna? No .. The objection to that is that the 
Pieman,River is not a good harbour. 

1698. J s that ;:, hig-hly mineralised country? Yes. There are plenty of lodes there that would be 
worked at ·a good profit, around Zeehan. 

1699. ls it a difficult com;it1'~- to prospect? · Part of it is very difficult, on account of the dense. scrub. 
1700. A.re you aware that the department is now prosecuting a system of exploratory tracks in that 

district? Yes, there is a very -good track being cnt at r,resent by Mr. Webster. 'Iliat goes t_o Mount 
Balfour; :rnd there they have good. tin as well as _copper. The source of that tin has never been discovered; 
but if that track is made, and crosses the head waters of the Franklin River, there is no doubt that the 
source of the tin would be discovered. · 

1701. Would-that come on to ihi:,; line? Ye«, it rnnst. It would go into the Magnet, I presume. 
1702. Are you able, from your own knowledge as a surveyor, to say that there is any prospect of an 

increase in mineral traftic from Waratah? l shonld say there would be a very large increase, especially 
when yon consider that you have to. take clown 1000 tons a month from the Magnet mine directly the line 
is made into it. 1.'hat is a branch linejunc!ioning wit.h the Emu Bay Railway, l½ miles from Waratah. 
The survey is under my conduct, and is nearly comple_ted. 

1703. ls the line to be marle ofsnch a character as will carry railway stock? Yes, proper locomotives 
and well-equipped rolling-stock. . 

J 704. What is the leugtl1 of the line"? By 1ny route, 13 miles. They have tried another route that 
10½ or 11 miles, but I do not think it will be a_dopted, because they have a down grade to the bed of the 

river, and then an np grade to the mine. . . 
1705. The present development of the Magnet min·e warrants eonstmction of that character? Yes. 
1706. What do you estimate the line will cost? . Not more than £1000 a mile ; there· are no deep 

cuttings, and there are no Pxpensive bridges. . ~ . 
1707. Are there any mines developed ,vith goorl prospects adjoining_ the Magnet mine? No, the lode 

has been traced, but 11othing: of great value has been tqund as yet. The Magil.et ore is to be ~ent to the 
Sulphide Company of Australia, on account of its having- several fluxes associated with -it, by reason of 
which smelting expenses will be practically nil. 

1708. Well, you can say that there is every reasonable expectation of an additional trl,ffic. of 1000 a 
month from that mine? Yes, directly this tramway is completed. 

1709. By JJ;Ir. Guesdon.-Mr. Jones,·you know somethin!5' about the value qf land, of course1 in tl\if! 
~jstrict ? Yes, · 
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1710. Here i11 an assessment roll for the district of Emu Bay for the year 1899; there i~ a propei·ty 

known as Hampshire Hills, 10,000 acres, and it is asse~scil nt a capital valne of £1000 or 2.<, an acre. Do 
you think that a fair valuation? No, I do not; not h_,, a n_v means. . 

1711. W'hat do you think would be a reasouable valuation of it, for assessment purposes? Not Jes~ 
tlum ] 5s. per acre. Of .course I am speaking now, takiu~ the valuation of the .Government land that has 
been sold up there as a comparison. 

1712. And there is another property along-sicle, Surrey Hills, 150,000 acres, also· valued at 2.~. an acre? 
1713. Well, taking the whole of that, I should not put it at less than lOs. an acre. It is all basaltic 

soil, or nearly the wl1ole of it; and it is covered with the indigenous gra;:s of this Colony. . 
1714-. N<,w there is a particnli1r form here, near Emu Bay, the occnpiel'C•fit being one, Frederick Ford 

of Burnie. The farm is of 800 acres. Do yon know anything of that land? Where did yon say it was? 
1715. That i.s near the Emu River, bordering on· the road. Now that is valued at £10 an acre. 

Is that a fair valuation? Yes, I hat would be a fair va I nation; I would not consider that over-estimated, 
considei·ing the price that. has been paid fo1· land there. 

1716. Do yon know anything of the sales of land in r.he vicinity rerently by the Van Diemen's Land 
Company? There were some sales at the Cam, where some of the land sold bro11ght. as high as £14 an 
acre- I am not sure of the price quite. Of comse the value of the land as it comes nearer towards the town 
is considerably more. I tried to buy a piece the1·e a while ago, and T was asked £150 for three-eighths of an 
acre. , 

1717. 'l'hat is £4tl0 an acre? Yes. 
1718. Now there is an Emu Bay block of 27,500 acres. Do you know that? Yes. That is also 

basaltic soil. 'l'he company pnts the valne of that at 30s. an acre, and I should put the value of it at ~l 
an acre. 

1719. It is vacant land? Yes. Of course some of it has been sold, as far out as the Twelve mile, at 
30s. per acre. 

1720. Well, it is put down· here at £10,000, or 7s. an acre. W-hat about Ri<lgely's? That is gmss 
land. · 

1721. What would you put that down at? That. may be worth 2os. Of course I am not dealing 
with the land that has been sold. Mr. Guesdon, I ain dealing with the vRcant land. 

1722. By the Chai·, ma11. -- Is there much agricult11ral lantl along the line of rail way? I should say 
that nearly the whole of the land right through to Wan1tah is valuable for agricultuml pu1·po3es. . 

1723. Good land? Good land. It is basaltic land, and eapable of beiug made very good by tillnge. 
I do not say it would be good for wheat or oats, because there would be difficulty in getting such grain to 
ripen on that high ground. Btit for all kinds of l'oot crops the land is very good indeed. Some of it is 
ven' rich. . 

· 1724. On each side of the railway? On each side for a considerable distance. Mr. Hall has asked 
me to say something about the mines held by the M.t. llischoff Company. It has eonfined its 
operations to the two sedions first surveyed. P nt in addition to thi.s, they hold 240 acres at the North 
Valley, 80 acres belonging to the old Stanhope Company, SU acres formerly held by the old Waratah 
Company, 80 acres of the East Bischoff Company, and 160 aci·es from the _Don Company, upon the whole 
of which practically no work has been done up to the present, except on the North Valley, where there is a 
good lode. 'fhe old Don Tin company has also got good ore. They are taking stuff from there now, but 
ouly in small quantities. So that on the whole, when they talk about the Mt. Bischoff Company being 
worked out with all this ground available, and with the company still working on the Clriginal sections of 
ten or fifteen years ago, it seems to me they are going very wide of the mark. 

HIS HONOR MR. JUSTICE CLARK, 1·ecalkd. 

1725. Since you were exammed, Mr. Clark, we have tliscovered· that a Bill was prepared, evidently 
with the inteution of being submitted to Parliament, and, it seems, during your term of office a Bill was 
prepared for the issue of a lease fo1· a term of 1000 :erms? I have no recollection of it. My mind is a 
perfect blank. I would not be certain the Bill was not prepared. I have no reCJo!lection of it. 

1726. Do you recognise this? It is a list of Bills submitted by you, or by your Go\'ernment. during 
the earlier part of the Session of· 1892? No. It is impossible that I would recognise it, becan,-;e it is 
not my practice to make out any sueh list. . 

1727. That_ is a list from the Crown Law Department. This is the Parliamentary Draug·htma , ·sown 
copy for his own use. Do you recognise any amongst that list-any Bills that were submitted to the 
House by your Govemment before you left office? Well, I see the Metropolitan Ominage down, and I have 
a distinct recollection of making one Bill for the Metropolitan Dminage, when I was a private practi 111cr, _as 
counsel. I could not say whether this is that particular Bill. The Devon port Town Board Bill, I I hink, 
I also prepared, and, perhaps, others. I remember the King's Island Settlement Bill, too. If the 
parliamentary draughtsman has d1mvn up this as a list of the Bills prep·are<l when 1 was in office in ] 892, 
I can see no reason to doubt its correctness. 

I 728. During that Session your Govemment left office, and were replaced hy the Dobson-Henry 
Government, you will ren~ernber'? Yes. Then I 1·e111e1nber bringing in a Bill to deal with the Regi,.t.ration 
of Deeds; whether this· is the Bili or not, I cannot sa v. I rememlier the Unclaimed Moue,·,; Bill 
particnlarly, because, if I am correct, that Bill was thrown ·out. It was a Bill following the Law oi· South 
Australia, and escheated to the Crown all unclaimed mo11eys in banks. I also remember the Defa111ation 
Bill very distinctly; but it would be impossible for me to recolleet every Bill here. 

1729. I only want you to notice that a cer1ain Bill there is marked among·st the tir■ t Bills of that 
Session? [ have ~bsolutell no recollection of it,. · 
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1730. Do you remember ever having seen that Bill? [Witness examines printed docnment. J I have 
no recollection of having seen that Bill before. And I feel sure that I did not draJt it. It is not my 
language. But I may have had it put-under my notice. And I may have understood_ that it was to be 
introduced. I do not for a moment absolutely say that it was never brought under my notice. It may 
have been. I may have been aware of its existence, or of the intention to introduce-it.. But I have no 
recollection of the fact, and I am sure l never drafted it. 

1731. Mr. Wise has stated that he believes that he drafted the Bill. I am sure the language i1 not 
mme. 

1732, Bnt would Mr. Wise draft a Bill without im,tructions given from yon, as the head of the 
department? Well, I always know what is being done; bnt it was the practice of each of the depart­
ments to send for the draughtsman_ as they required him, discuss the Bill with him, and give him all 
needed instructions ; and he would then send proofs direct to the head of the department concerned. 
To my knowledge, Sir Philip Fysh has often clone that with regard to Bills dealing with Treasury and 
Post Office matters, and Sir 'Edward Bracldon has done it. freqnently. With regard to the Lands rnd 
Works Departments, the probability is that he would consult heads of departments about bills, and have 
frequent consultations with them, without troubling me about the matter at all. Was this Bill ev-er 
actually introduced into Parliament? 
. 1733. There is no record of that? Well, that explains something. Before it would be actually 
mtroduced as a Government Bill,· I would be cognizant of its existence, and be prepared to introduce it, 
and 11npport it, and explain it to the Committee. But if it were never introduced, I think it is very 
probable that my knowledge of it would be of the very smallest. and most nominal ki_nd. If it had been 
mtroduced, I quite belie've that I should be aware of its contents, and prepared to support it and explain it 
iri Committee. As it was not introduced, it is probable that T knew very little about it at any time. 

1734. Will you look at that letter, Mr. Clark.'! [Witness examines letter of 11 th March, 1892: 
[Appendix XLV.] 1 have no recollection of the letter; but I see that I have signed it, and I must have 
been aware of it at the time. It is my signature, right enough . 

. 1735. Will you look at. that letter, Mr. Clark ?-That is the one following-Do yo11 remember that? 
[W 1tness examines letter of 19th March, 1892: Appendix XL VI.] I have no recollection of eithe1· of them. 
I have evidently signed both of them. Have yon got the letters to which these were replie~ ?-Have they 
been supplied to you '? · • 

. 1736. No, I do not think we got them ? These are replies to letters writ.ten to Messrs. Doh.son, 
Mitchell, and Allpo1't: they must have written to me first. 

1737. Written t.o yon privately 01· professionally? Oh, of course they must have written to me a11 
Attorney-General, because these are· official replies. I notice that this correspondence is three yeal·s after 
the signing of that agreement. · 

1738. You know that your Govemment left office on the 17th or 18th of Angnst in that year, Mr, 
Clark? Which year '/-1892? · 

1739 .. 1892? Well, 1 had forgotten the date, but I suppose that is correct. 
1740. Would you think, from the number of that Bill~marked No. 3, I think-that it was drafted 

during your term of office? It would ·not necessarily follow. No; I can only say I have no recollect.ion 
of it. 

174.1. Mr. Clark, do you think that this Bill is one that would be drafted prior to the beginning of the 
Session? . Would it be in the hands of the printer early if it were drafted in the office of the solicitor of the 
company? Probably it would be. I have been told to-day that the draft is in the handwriting of Mr. 
Mit~hell. Ifit were t!1~afted by the solicitors of the company it might have been printed very P-arly in the 
Sess10n, or before the Session commenced. 

1742. Does this Bill call to yom memory any consideration of the matter in Cabinet? Nothing 
whatever. 

1743. But do not these letters imply that yon are prepared to bring in a Bill'! Well, this first letter 
makes no reference to the agreement at all-gives no hint that there is any such agreement· in existence. 
The second letter refers evidently to some mention of it by Messrs. Dobson, Mitchell, & Allport, 
because it says, "Messrs. Blake and Riggall will perceive that Parliament is master of the 
situation; and that whatever invalid contract the Govemment may have made, or may make with.the 
Company, could be rescinded by Parliament, and all right of action or claim for compensation by the 
Company taken away from them by the rescinding action." That is evidently in reply to some mention of 
an agreement by Mesns. Dobson, MitcheH, & Allport; but I am strongly of opinion that their previon~ 
letter, to which my letter ofllth March, 1892, is a reply, made no reference to the agreement, because there 
is no reference to it in my reply. It looks very much as if what I suggested was that the Company should 
only get a 14 years' lease, and that Messrs. Dobson, Mitchell, & All port brought forward _.the existence of· 
this agreement as a reason why they should get more than I offered them. . 

1744. Do you not refer to the necessity of a Bill here, Mr. Clark, when you say, "I have already 
informed you that the Government will ask Parliament next Session for the necessary legislation to enable 
the Minister of Lands to grant a lease for such longer term as will facilitate the sale of the Van Diemen'R 
Land Company's railway to the promoters of the Waratah and Zeehan Railway, but that, at pre·sent, the 
Govemment have. no power to grant a lease for a longer period than 14 years, with the right of renewal 
for a similiar period" ? Yes; well, I say that I have informed him in that letter, do I not? 

1745. Yes? Well, this letter of. the l] th is only eight days beforehand, in which I point out that the 
longest lease that the Government have authority to grant by law iii 14 years, but that" in the· event .of a 
lease for a longer per10d being required, the Government will apply to Parliament for authority to grant a 
lease for such further period as the circumstances require "-that is the former letter to .which that refers. 

· , 1746. But it was evident that such lease was required as could only be given by special legislation-
was it not? It appears that Messrs. Dobson, Mitchell, & All port approached me with a view to obtain 
legislation in order to enable the Van Diemen's Land Company to sell their railway. That is the ground 
Three years after the agreement was signed Messrs. Dobson, Mitchell, & All port seem to have approached 

, 
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the Govemment, -through me, to get a lease for !l long term to enable the Van Diemen's Land Company to 
sell its railway. _ . 

1747. Is not !his evidence of your being· willing to legislate to remove t¾e invalidity of the agree­
ment?-" The Government are desirous of assisting in every legitimate manner the construction of the 
Waratah and Zeehan Railway, but they do not think that granting an illegal and invalid lease would help 
forward that object, inasmuch as it might be resented by Parliament, and make the· Legislature less 
disposed, than it otherwise would be, to confer the necessary power on the Government to grant a longer 
lease than that which the law at -present permits "-Is not that so? It is evidence of a willingness to 
legislate in the matter, but not necessarily to validate the agreement. 

1748. Does not that clearly imply that there was an intention to ask Parliament to legalise that 
wliich you regarded at that time as invalid? Oh, no. The probability is that three years afterwards I 
had forgotten that I had ever signed that original agreement. In fact, the strong probability is that, at the 
time of writing this letter, I was not aware of any ai<reement being in .existence to grant a lease to the 
company for 1000 years. When that agreement was brought to me for my signature I asked Mr. 
Hannaford if the Minister approved of it, and I signed it when he said yes. I feel confident that when 
Messr!/. Dobson, Mitchell, & Allport approached me on the llth March I had no recollection or. 
knowledge that there was such a thing in existence as an agreement for a lease for 1000 years. I imppose 
nobody knew of it except them and. the Van Diemen's Land Company, or thought of suggesting it to me, 
and it was not in my mind. I am confident that the fact of the agreement was not in my mind in the 
slightest degree when I was conducting this correspondence with Messrs. Dobson, Mitchell, & Allport 
until it was mentionecl by them. 

1749. Then, in a farther part of yotti· letter you say-" Messrs. Blake and Riggall will perceive that 
Parliament is master of the situation, and, that whatever invalid contract" the Government may have 
macle, or may make, with the company, could be rescinded by Parliament, and all right of action or claim 
for compensation by the company taken away from them by Act of Parliament"? I have already pointed 
out that, evidently, when Messrs. Dobson, Mitchell, &.Allport wanted something more for the company 
than I suggested they then drew my attention to the existence of this a~:reement ; but they had not drawn 
my attention to it when they wrote the letter to which this is a reply. Then, when they got my reply, and 
I told them that we had only authority to give a lease for 14· years, it_ is very clear to me that they then 
drew attention to this agreement that I signed three years before, and to which I referred to it as an 
invalid and illegal document. - . 

1750. This letter is dated the 19th of March? Yes. 
1751. And the Bill which we refer to is .Bill No. 3? Yes. 
_1752. Whic~ would either, would it not, be probably printed early in the session, or prior to the 

Session commencmg? Yes, vel'y probably. · 
. . 1753. ·would not th'lt Bill be in some way brought before you as Attorney-General, or· would such a 

practice exist in tbe office that Bills would be_ drafted without any reference to you at all 1 1 have already 
told you that the drafts man often interviewed the Treasurer directly on financial and Post Office matters, 
and drafted Bills with his approval. In sti"ch cases I was a ware of the Bills' existence, and that was all. 
. 1754. By M1·. U1·quha1·t.-It is frequently the practice of the Attorney-General to settle private Bills?. 
I did not settle that one. · . 

17M. Woulcl you be surprised to hear that :Ml'. :Mitchell says that you did settle it? I have no 
recollC'ction of it; that is all I can say. It is not my original draft! I have absolutely no recollection of 
it. That is really all I can say. I woulcl. never undertake absolutely to say that that Bill was never 
brought und_e1· my notice. I can only say I have absolutely no recollection of it ; and I am sure that the 
original draft was not mine. Reading the language stmck out as the original langu~·e, I am sure it is not 
my language. _ · 

1756. Have vou seen this before? [Witness examines document, 3rd October, 1892.] What· about 
this? • . 
_ 1757. Would _that iudicate that a Bill ha~ been drafted and prepare,d jJrior to that time? Drafted by 

somebody, undoubtedly, I suppose, _There was evidently a Bill in existence when this was written. But 
if Mr. :Mitchell says that I settled that Bill I should •like him to give me very minute particulars, because 
I have drafted a lot of Bills under instmctions from Messrs .. Dobson, Mitchell, & All port's office. 

1758. There is a distinction between drafting ancl settling, is there not? I have drafted and settled 
numbers of Bills, and I may have forgotten this one, or Mr. Mitchell may have ma~e a mistake.· It is 
a very different matter settling a Bill prepared outside the department and preparing a Bill emanating 
from the· department. I will look the matter up in my private ·book. I drafted several rail way Bills for 
Messrs. Dobson, Mitchell, & Allport's office, either for the Van Diemen's Land Company. or the Emu 
Bay Company, or for both of them. I remember, distinctly, drafting several railway Bills for them, 
and I think that if I drafted this Bill under circumstances similar to those under which I drnfted the · 
railway Bills, I would also remember ·it-I believe I would. But, at the present moment, I have simply 
no recollection of it" at all. · · 

1759. By Jl1r. Guesdon.-Mr. Clark, of com'se there are various responsibilities attached to various 
Government departments? Yes. -

1760. And when an instmction comes over from the Lands Office to the Attorney-General's Office to 
prepare a lease you would send it on, as you have told us; to the Crown Solicitor? Yes. 

• 1761. Do you not think that the·respomibility rested upon that office to satisfy itself that the lease waij 
legal-was not ult1·a vires before it was allowed to be presented for signature? Oh yes, undoubtedly. 

176_2. Well, as concerns this particular proposal, you transmitted it on to the Crown Solicitor, with a 
small mmute? Yes. 

... 1763. Then th~ responsibility in connection with that resteci with that department to see that it was 
legally carried out? Oh, yes, if the conduct of it remained in that department. 'l'he reason I make -t~at 
remark is from·what I have he'Li·d, it appears to me that it is possible that the conduct of this bu$ine!1 _ 
was practically left to the company's solicitors. 
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. _ 1764. There i,s no doubt that the usual practice was i1ot observed with regard to this transaction? 
That is what [ have heard. 
. 1765. But still, when it came back for perusal and approval, should there be the possibility of such a 
glaring mistake creeping into a document of this sort, as evidently, has crept in ? If it ea me back with an 
illegal or invalid amendment it would be the <l.uty of the Crown Solicitor to object to it. 

1766. Would you not cali a proposal by a Minister to grant 1000 years lease without the sanction of 
Parliament an mvalid element? Well, of course I do not wish now to give a legal opinion respecting the 
invalidity of t~is particular agreement. It may be that there was authority to _grant a lease for 1000 
years. But, assuming that there wa;i no legal authority, it would be the duty of the Crown Solicitor to 
know that, and to object to it. I do not know what has been disclosed to this Committee, and I do not 
know whether the agreement was engrossed and submitted to me for signature without the Crown Solicitor 
having a fair and proper opportunity to peruse it. . 

1767. But that does not affect the question as to the management of the department? If an opportu­
nity was never given to the Crown Solicitor to object, he could not be responsible, and the question to be 
asked, it seems to me, is-how _did it come about that opportiinity was not given to him? Who was respon-
11i ble for that ? 

1768. I am only trying to settle the responsibility on the_ department .. It was for the department to 
point out how the fatal mistake occurreJ? I have already said, gentlemen, that I have no wish to shrink 
from any political or'corporate respor1sibility as a member of the Cabinet, nor any responsibility that rests 
on the Attomey-General's Department. But the thing may have been so irregularly conducted that the 
Attomey-General's _Department may ha.ve been practically shunted,_ and may not have had its usual and 
proper opportunity of having its voice in the matter .. I do not know that it was so·; but if the department 
was in any way shunted, and the business wa11 transacted by the Company's solicitors and the Lands 
Department, I do not think the Crown Solicitor would be responsible. 

1769. But when yon signed the agreement, and when you asked Mr Hannafo1:d if this thing was in 
order, what you meant to express was-" Has this come from the Crown Solicitor in the proper way? " 
Ya . 

1770. Ha9- yon any knowledg·e that that lease was a lease for 1000 years? Mr. Hannaford never 
attempted to describe the contents. · I just looked at it, and saw that it was an agreement with the Van 
Diemen's Land Company ; I should be very sorry to say now what the term was or not. I am very much 
inclined to_think that I <lid not read it tlirough in the way I would have read it if it had been !'ubmitted to 
me for perusal. I am very doubtful if I really read the document at all, I would not like to say I did not. 

1771. The probabilities are that if yon had seen that it was a lease for 1000 years you would have 
opposed it. Yes, I suppose I would. . 

1772. By the Ohairman.-Yon knew it was a legal document, and not a formal paper? It was 
not submitted to me as a legal document. 

1773. On the face of it it was a legal document? Let me explain .. The Minister of Lands-all the 
Ministers, I think-have frequently signed important legal documents from the Crown Solicito1· without 
the Attorney-General being concerned at all. On this occasion I looked upon myself as Mr. Pillinger's 
substitute, and if he had been in town that thing would have gone to him without the Attorney-General 
being brought into the matter at all. T do not consider that it was submitted to me in my legal capcaity 
in any way. It has not been the practice in getting papers from- any Minister, to send for the Crown 
Solicitor in reference to them. - · · 

1774. By Mr. Guesdon.-Then the responsibility is with the Law Officers of the ·crown? . If it were 
conducted in the ordinary way the responsibility would be with the Law Officers of the Crown; but if it 
were not, the responsibility would not rest with th:em. I do not know where the responsihili ty is. . 

1775. If this question were asked of Mr. John Mitchell -you know him pretty well-" Is it the 
professional practice, Mr. Mitchell, in dealing with a client's money and handing it over as security for a 
lease, to ascertain whether the lessor has a title? "-and he replied," Oh, yes; that is the law." Then it 
it went on-" ls that the professional practice? "-and1 he said, "Yes. O_h, it is the practice."-Then, 
was there any particular reason why you departed- from that practice . in this particular instance? "-No. 
Everybody assum~d that the Government had power to do it."-" Then, you did not examine the title?"­
" Oh, no."-Then, you departed from usual professional practice ?-Oh, I do no~ know. "When we got the 
documents from the Crown Solicitor's office, we asmmed that they knew more than we did."-

1776. You follow me ? Yes. · 
· 1776A. Now, your opinion is that they prepared the draft themselves ? From what I have heard, I 

believe so. 
[Mr. Gu-esdon reads further extracts from Mr. John Mitchell's evidence.] 
1777._ Now, I want you to note this, Mr. Clark.-pp you not think (I am not speaking to yqu in 

your judicial, but merely in you1· professional capacity)-do you not think that a·certain amount of respon­
. sibility must_ rest upon the solicitor for the lessee in this particular case, who did not_ take the ordinary 
professional precaution of ascertaining whether the title of the lessor was a valid one ? Yes ; and I will go 
further, and will say that if the suggestion of an invalid and illegal thing came from the lessees' solicitors, 
the responsibility certainly must rest upon them. If it is their own suggestion they ~eliberately take it at 
their own risk. If tkey suggest of their own motion that which turns out to be invalid and illecral, they 

· take it at their own risk. 
0 

1778. By M1·. Urquhm·t.-But if it is stated by Mr. Norton Smith. that the anangement was entered 
into between himself and Mr. N. _J. Brown, at Circular Head, and that they came to an agreement--

Mr·. Guesdon: Mr. Nicholas Brown has aistinctly and _emphatically denied that. · , 
_ 1779. By Mr. Urquhart.-Mr. Norton Smith saiJ so; and if he gave certain instrnctions to his 

solicitors, would it not be the duty of those solicitors to act on those instructions? Oh, yes. But, then, if 
he instructs them to ask for something illegal and invalid, he does it at his own risk ; when I referred to 
the solicitor, just now, suggesting something at his own risk, of course I really meant at his client's risk; 
because the client has to take the responsibility for all his solicitor does. J mean to sa v, that the ·solicitor 
takes it at his own riiik, as representing his client. • 
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1780. · By M1·. Guesdon.-That does not- do away with the .rluty of the solicitol' to take prope1· pre­

cautions on behalf of his client? Oh, no. 
1781. By Mr. Urquhart.-Is it not the usual practice of the lessee's solicitor to draft ii lease and sub-

mit it to the lessor's solicitor? It may be done sometimes, but it is certainly not the usual practice. . 
1782. By J.lfr. Guesdon.-What is the usual practice ? ·The lessor's solicitor drafts a le.ase. 
1783. By 1lfr. U1·quhart.-Do you know anything about the Emu Bay Company's lease for the 

branch line--as to what solicitor drafted that? I do not know anything about it. · 
1784. B.1/ the C!tairman.-If, as·a result of previous negotiation,s, arrangements had been come to 

between Mr. Pillinger and the Van Diemen's .Land Company's manage1· to grant a lease in perpetuity, 
11ractically, whose function in accordance with the usual practice, would it have been to have drawn up 
that lease'/ I think the mle would have been that it should have been prepared in the Crown Solicitor's 
office. 

1785. Tf the draft had been p,.epared by Messrs. Dobson, Mitchell, & A11port, and by them submrtted 
to the Crown Law officers, would not the obligation of clos~Iy_ examining and. scrutinising that lease 
have been greater, as concerns the Crown Law officers, than if 1t had heen drafted by themselves? I 
think they ought to be equally careful in either case. They ought to be as careful in one way as another. 

1786. But would they not need to be -extra careful if it was drafted by people who would naturally 
draft it to protect their client's interest? Well, it is just the diffel'ence of being careful of ehoosing· your own 
language to convey what you intend, and carefully scrntinising another man's language to see that you are 
not committed to more than you intend. , · . 

1787. Would you place the Crown Law Offic«:lrs on a level with an ordinary firm of solicitor6 in an 
affair of this kind? How do you m·ean? . 

1788. Do. you think any higher responsibility rests upon them against improperly taking a chance, or 
being careless of right and wrong? ·r think every competent solicitor does. that in private praetice. 

1789. You said somethiug about the 1·esponsibility resting on the firm of solicltors who drafted the 
document that was invalid? I do not think you u11derstooJ. me. I said that if they inserted in ·the draft 
11omething invalid and illegal it must be at their own risk. · · · 

1790. Very well,-we know that the lease was drafted there-you know that? I have been informed 
10. The di·aft of the document I signed was drafted by them. 

1791. Very well, ·inasmuch as that·agreement or receipt contained a condition that was contrary to 
law, that was not valid, and that could not be carried out, was there not a bigger respon~ibility on the part ot 
the Cro>vn Law officers for not examining that and discovering· it. (No answer.) . 

1792. Would the Crown Law officers in such circumstances be justified in taking advantage of the 
fact 1hat they kne.w this was an invalid document, and submitting it to a Minister? No, certainly not. 
-Of course they would not. I could not imagine them doing so. _ 

171:)3. By J.11:r. Urqulw1·t.-In other words, it was their duty to inform the ·Minister that the thing 
was invalid? Yes. Their first duty would be to send the draft back to the company's solicitors, and o~ject 
to it without troubling the Minister at all. That would be their duty in the first instance. . 

1794. By the Clwirman.-If you were shown, in evidence, that the Crown Solicitor never saw that 
document, and that, so far as we can ascertain, it only passed through the hands of a junior clerk who 
engrossed it, does that indicate that the Crown Law Officers. were alive to their duties, and that the business 
was conducted in a proper manner? I should certainly say. that son;ebody was very negligent. Not 
necessarily the heads of the department; because you will sometimes get subordinates wl10 will occasionally 
act in an insubordinate and 1iegligent manner, and do the business before the head is a ware of it. Such 
things do occasiona]]y happen, and I dare say you find it in your own private business. Such things may 
happen in a lawye1·'s office, although you would naturally say that in a well-conducted, office all precautions 
would be taken against such an event. 

1795. 13y ilfr. Nfrlwlls.-Do you consider it possible to construe this ag!'eement us a promise to ask 
Parliament, to grant this lease? WeJI., you know, I have never seen the document since I saw it reprinted 
in the J1 e1'l-u:ry a few weeks ago. . . · . 

1796. First of all it is signed by yon on behalf of the Minister of Lands, who, we will assume, bud 
no power to bind the Crown? Yes. · 

1797. And secon,dly, its terms are vague and general? Yes. 
l 797 A. Well, in view of these facts, might it not be suggested that. this was a promise to obtain power 

to grant a lease'! Well,' the Miuister of Lands may have intended to sign a· document of the description 
you describe, and this may have been sent over as such ; but I wouldn't like to venture an opinion on the 
construction of this document now. 

1798. I uuderstand that, but I questiou you rather 01, what you would gather as to the intent of this 
document from the surrounding circumstance$? Well, taking notice .of tµese two letters which th~ Chair­
man has put into my hands from Messrs. Dobscf11, Mitchell, and A.II port's office, it is just possible that this 
agreement may have been promised by the ~'.linister of Lands simply as a foundation for making an appli­
cation to Parliament ; that may be the 'history of it. Of course it is only speculation ; bnt it is evident 
from the conespondence three years afterwards, that ivfess1:s. Dobson, Mitchell, and A.llport approached 
the Gover1unent with a view to gettiilg them to. obtain Parliamentary sanction, that something such as 
you suggest may be the truth of the matter. _I think the first letter shows clearly enough that three years 
after the agreement was signed ·the con1pany's soli9itors, apparently spontaneously, approached the Govern­
ment with a view to getting Parliamentary sanction. If these letters are simply representative of a later 
stage in the same transaction, of which this agreement is the beginning,-then the construction Mr. N icholli. 
puts upon it is a very possible· one. - · 

1799. By ilfr. A.ihenhead.-Mr. Fillinger seems to have• given specific instrnctions for the doc11111eni 
to he prepared? Yes. . . . 

1800. Now none of these documents said anything· about the term of 1000 yeei·s? 'fhat i_s so, but 
there is something more important still. The earlier part of the•instruction: aays 1hat the agreem~nt is to 
be prepared in accordance with. an Act of Parliament. 
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1801. What I want to get at is this : no ternf of I 00.0 years is mentioned, an_d if the Mini11ter intended 

to get it prepared for a term of lUOQ years, it would be ~o expret!sed iu this memo? It is ve1;y evident to 
me that the Crown Solicitor would never put 1000 years in_that document unleis he got instructions from 
M1·. Pillinger. . · 

1802. B:IJ the Clta·i'l'man.-Might I ask what construction you would put upon a condition that the 
Van Diemen's Land Company would subscribe a certain amount on condition that they'· were allowed to 
rur. the line on rails, to carl'y on a train service in a certain direction, if no period ,vas named? Simply 
an agreement to that effect. 

1803. No. Supposing that you w~re asked, would yon regard it as an agreome11t in perpetuity'! 
'!'here is an Act of Parliament ; but there is nothing about running tl'ains in it. 

1804. I am speaking· generally. Supposing you had been Minister of Lands at the. time, and had 
agreed to the condition imposed by Mr. Norton-Smith, that the Van Diemen's Land Company wa■ to 
have the right to run their trains on that breakwater? Yes. 

1805. And, supposing that no term at all was mentioned-what iuterpretation would you put upon it­
Would you think they were a~king fol' a right in perpetuity? Oh, I presume that they would be requesting tht 
right to use the breakwater so long as the breakwater existed. But every man is supposed to know the law, 
and if there was no law in existence authorising any Minister or Government to give a lease in perpetuity, 
then they would be held to have made that agrne111ent with that knowle~ge. They may have been, iu fact, 
absolutely ignorant of it; but they woulJ be held to have made the agreement, knowing that such a thing 
could not be legally given. 'l'herefore, there is a strong presnmption in favonr of Mr. Nicholl's theory, 
that, in dealing with the Minister, they had in view the intention of corning to Parliament-, in order that 
Parliament might authorise the issue of the. necessary lease. 

1806. Wouhl yon put the construction upon correspondence of that kind, that they were askiug for a 
rig·ht in perpetllity? Yes. But, as I 8ay, dealing with Ministers without any autho1'.ity to give a lease, 
they would be presumed to be looking fonvard to Par!iamentary actio11. 

· 1807. And both partie:-1 are supposed to know the law? Yes. . 
. 1808. By 1l1r. Nicholls.-The Chairinan did not draw your attention to the whole of the circum-

3tances that existed at the time when this agreement was made-In this way: the agreement was signed in 
1889? Yes. 
. 1809. For 11 years Lefore that the company had had line~ on the various jettie:,1 and the breitkwater at. 

Emu Bay, and had been using them on sufferance. What I want to ask you, ~ir, is this: whether, when 
they got an agreement for a further right to go on that breakwater, it would not be rather 011 the term.~ of 
their former occupaucy? Oh, that might be so. . . : 

1810. And re1uain there during convenience'/ That might be so; but there is this to be _said, if I 
ur1Jerstand you accurately, Mr. Nicholls, they had not paid for the use of the former jetties; as to thin 
breakwater, there was monetar.v consideration. Now, of course, as I said on the first occasion when I wa■ 
giving evidence here, it is not a matter of law, bL1t of daily experience that the Van Diemen's Land 
Company would naturally expect to g·et some return from that breakwater in return for that £1000 they 
paid. 

[See letter from Mr. Clark. Appendix L.J 

SATURDAY, DECEMBER 15, 1900. 

MR. JOHN MiTCHELL, 'l'ecalledand examined. 

1811. By Jlfr. Urquhart :-Can you give the date of your instrnctions to Mr. A. I. Clark for settling 
that Bill? I can g·ive you the date of the attendance. I could get it. . · 

1812. Yo.u are quite clear in yonr own mint.I that Mr. A. I. Clark, in his professional capacity, 3ettled 
the Bill? I believe he did. 

1813. You have already said so. vVe want to make a certainty of it, I coul<l verify that. 
iJJ,r. Niclwll,.-I may mention to the Committee that I met )fr. Justice. Cla1 k on my way 

down here this morning, and he informed me that he had found on reference to his books that he did settle 
the Bill. 
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APPENDICES. 

COPY OF CORRESPONDENCE RE LEASE OF RUNNING POWER OYER THK 
EMU BAY BREAKWATER· 

(I.) 

1. F_rom the Master Warde11, 'l'able Cape Ma1·ine Board to the.Agent Van Diemen's Laud Company:­

Marine Boa!'d Office, Burnie, Emu Bay, 26th .June, 1880. 
Sm, 

A'i' a meeting of the Mal'ine Boa!'d, held on 24th instant, it was resolved that application be mat.le to 
t.he Van Diemen's Land Company and lo the Mount Bischoff Tin Mining· Company, soliciting. a subsidy 
from each of these companies towards the further extension of the jetty improvements now under progresii 
at Emu Bay, in order that a breakwater affording shelter may, if practicable, be constructed by running an 
additional 200 feet from tl1e eud of the present. work at. a1, angle of about 25 degrees in a south- easterly 
direction. It is-believed by this Board, from a recent interview with some of its members at Burnie, that 
the Government will be pl'epared to advocate; during the coming Session of Parliament, the exp~nditure of 
£3000 to £4000 in addition to the £2500 now b~ing expended, _provided the companies interested, and the 
Marine Board contribute amongst t.hem a substantial amount. I have been directed to make an ·application 
to the Mount Bischoff 'l'in Mining Company for £1000 or £1500 towards the object (that company being 
largely interested), and a same application to you as agent fol' the Van 'Diemen's Land Company, and beg 
tliat yon will have the kindness to recommend such to the favourable consideration of your Directors in 
London. I feel :ime yon must be impressed with the absolute necessity which now exists for some better 
.provision for shipping accommodation at Emu Bay; and as the jetty improvements are now in hand, the 
board considers this a most opportune· time for making lhis appeal, in orde1· to secure the further expenditure 
if possible, of an additional £8000 01· £10,000 upon the termination of the present contract, or probably 
in conjunction with it, and whilst the advantage offers of obtaining the ·services of a gentleman possessing 
the qualifications of the present Engineer-in-Chie£ I may add that this Board is quite prepared, upon 
being provided with the necessary borl'owing powers by Parliament, to contribute £1000 conditionally upon 
the two companies now being applied to favonrably entertaining the subject. I shall esteem it a favour 

. if you will lay the matter before· your Directors with the least possible delay. 

I am, 
Sir, 

Your obedient Servant, 

ARTHUR B. WILLIS; Mm1ter Warden, 

(II.) 

2. From the Agent Van Diemeii's Land Company to the Master Warden Emu Bay Marine Board:-
. The Van Diemen's Land Company's Office,. 

Sm, Emu Bay, 26th July, 1880. 

I HAVE the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your favour requesting that this company will 
. contribute a sum of money towards the improvement of the shipping accommodation at the port of Emu 
Bay. The scheme you submit appears ,to me very feasible, and I have had much pleasure in forwarding· 
your lette1· to my Dhectors, who, I trust will accede to the proposition. I expect to get a reply from them 
early in October, and will at once acquaint you with it. 

I have, &c. 
,T. W. NOR'l'ON SMITH . 

. (lII.) 

3. From the Agent Van Diemen's Land Company to the Master Warden 'Emu Bay Marine Bm,rd :­
Van Diemen's Land Company's Office, 

Emu Bay, 19rh October, JASO. 
SIR, . . 

IN reference to your application for assistance from the Van Diemen's Land, Company towards the 
exten1ion of the breakwater now in course of construction at this port, I have now the pleasure of informing· 
you that that company will subscribe One thousand Pou~ds (.£1000), provided the other pa~-ties interested 
in t):ie work 1ubscribe in the proportions mentioned in your letter to me .of the 26th ,T nne ; viz.-

The Govemment of this Colony, from .£3000 to £4000. 
The M.B.T.M. Company, from .£1000 to £1500. . 
Tha Marine Board, .£1000. 
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And provided also, that the Van Diemen's Land Company will be allowed to extend their tramway to the 
end of the breakwater, should they desire to do so ; in case of such tramway being laid, it would, of course, 
be worked in the same manner as that laid on the present jetty by the company and the Marine Board 
conjointly. 

Your obedient Servant, 
The Master Warden. ,T. W. NORTON-SMITH. 

(IV.) 

Woolnort.h, Van Diemen~~ Land Company, 
· ith December, 1888. 

Srn, 
, IN view of the absolute necessity for an extension of the Emu Bay Breakwater beyqnd the point to 
which funds are now available (inclusive of the .£8000 proposed during the last Session of Parliament) 
will carry it, t.o make it of sufficient length to provide the necessary protection for shipping, I have 
the honour to inform you that the V.D.L: Co. will contribute a further sum of £1000, provided that 
an additional amount of £5000 towards this work be voted by Parliament during the ensuing Session, and 
also provided that the right be granted to the V.D.L. Co., or their assigns, to run and maintain a railway 
through the land granted to the Crown in 18i2 for wharf purposes, and OTer the breakwater. 

Trusting that this proposal will have ymu hearty co 0 operation, 

The Hon. A. 1'. PrLLINGER, 

Minister of Lands and Works, Hobart. 

'l'o the Engineer-in-Chief; for remarks. 
W.S. 

13. 12. 

I have, &c. 
J. W. NORTON-SMI'l'H, Agent. 

I WOULD suggest that mol'e information be obtained ail to the iilleged ab~olute nece~sity for the further· 
present expenditure, seeing that very shortly the large sum of £24,500 will have been expended on this 
work, exclusive of £4000 voted for plant, and exclusive of .±:7250 in local contributions, while the work 
has been extended far beyond the_ limit advised by l\fr. Na pier Bell, if it wa~ to atop short of full comple­
tion, at a cost of some .£60,000. 

To Engineer-in-Chief. 

J. FINCHAM, Engineer-in-Chief. 
13. 12. 88. 

I SHALL be glad if you can obtain information nec!MOlll"J a1 ptlr your·memo. 

ATTAc1-u:.o. 

,T. FINCHAM-. 
23. 1. 89. 

ALFRED PILLING ER, Minister of Landa. 
13. 12. 88. 

Emu Bay Jetty and proposals of Manager of Van Diemen1
~ LMd Company, in letter of 

7th December, 1888-

W ITH regard to item 2 marked in letter referred to above, I advise that the right he granted, subject 
to the rig·ht of the Government to run their trains on such railway at any futnre time ; that the rails be 
laid so as not Lo impede the free use of any part of the jetty for cart tiaffic, nnd that the railway is worked 
under such regulations as may be imposed by the Marine Board. · 

(V.) 

E?dU BAY JE'l"J'Y, 
Sm, . 

,f. FINCHAM, Eng'ineer-in-Chief. 
28. 1. 89. 

19th December, 1888. 

f HAYE the honour to acknowledge the reeeipt of your lettel', dated 1th in11tant, ~tatiug that th~ 
V .D.L. Company will contribute a further sum of .£1000, provided that the additional sum of £5000 
be voted by Parliament towards this work dnriug the ensuing Session, and that the right be gran-ted to 
the Company to run and maintain a railway tbro11gh the land conveyed to the Crown in 1872, for 
wharf pnrposes, and over the brea;kwater. 

. In rep~y, I _desire to point out that the Govemment haH already expended the sum of £28,500 on 
thrn work, (mcluclmg plant, £4000), and the work has been extended uenrlv twice aa far »~ recornmendod 
by Mr. Napier Bell, pending funcls being proTidecl for co1nplete ;helter. · 
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Yom prO!JOSRI will, howev@1·, receive foll consideration, and yon will be again cornmnnicaterl with on 

thi1 matter. 
I have, &c., 

P. 0. FYSH, for Minister of Lands and Work~, (ab~ent). 
J. \V. NOR'l'ON' Sr.11•rtt, Esq., .Emu Bay. 

41 Viet. No. 10 
46 Viet. No. 26 
47 Viet. No. 34 
49 Viet. No. 44 
50 Viet. No. 23 
52 Viet. No. -

Contributed locally 

(VT.) 

£ 
2500 
5000 
4000 
4000 (plant) 
5000 
8000 

28,500 
7250 

35,750 

21;-t Ma1·ch, l88fJ. 
E:r,rn BAY J E'I"rY-52 V1c•r. No. 63-£5000. 

Srn, 
I HAVE the honour to-inform you that all available funds on of the abovementioned work have bee11 

expended, with the exception of the. vote of £5000 passed last Session, conditionally npon· the Van 
Diemen's Land Cornp1rny contributiug £1000 and the Table Cape Marine Board, £800. 

As in accordance with the Act it will be necessary for the above contributions to be paid before any 
portion of this vote can be expended, l have the houour lo request that you will be good enough to forwnrd 
a cheque at, yonr earliest convenience in order that the works may not be delayed . 

• 
I hare, &c., 

ALFRED PILLINGER, Minister of Land~ and Worb. 

W. NoR'J'ox SMI'l'H, Est[,, V.D.L. Company, Emu Bay. 

(VII.) 

Van Diemen'~ Larnl Compu11y, Burnie, 27t.h_Mnrch, 188!). 

EMU BAY Jw1"rY. 
S1n, 

I HAVE the honour to ackno,vledg·e t.he receipt of your letrer of the 2ht iustaut, advising that a vot<! 
for £5000 pa11se<l la11t Session, conditionally upon the Van Dieme11's Lane! Company contl'ihnting £1000. 

A reference to the correspondence previous to the passing of the Act shows that the Van Diemen's 
Land Company agreed to contribute ..£1000 on certain r.onrlition~. An<l we shall he very pleased to carry 
out this agreement, anrl we ue prepared to make progress payments as the wm·k goes on in the same 
manner as the former ,mm of £5000 was paid to the I'rearnry. But during this month it would be \'er.v 
inconvenient to have to make any considerable cash paymentH, and, therefore, I will ask yon to he good 
l!nongh to podtpone the call for a little time. 

I have, &c., 
:MONTAGUE BROWN, Ae11istant Manng:er. 

'l'he Hon. the l\'Iini11ter ofLand.11 and Works, Hobart. 

(VIII.) 
:Jrrl April, 188ll. 

8ui, 
I H."-VE the lionolll' to acknowledge the receipt ofyom· letter of the 27th nltimo, r1• mode of fu1-thei· 

contribution of ~1000 by Van Diemen's Land Company towards these works; and, in reply, to inform 
you thnt Section of Act, 52 Viet. No. 63, requires that payment of r.be 11 rnonnt named be made before :my 
farther expenditure is incurred in connection with these works. 
· Unless. therefore, this condition i~ immediately complied with, it will be absolutel,v necessal'y fol' me 
to i(m1e orders fortlnYith, for the stoppage· of the works. 

A ~imilar lotte1· has been .!lent to the Table Cape MRrine Ronn!. 
I ha'l'e, &c., 

ALFRED PTLLTNGER., Ministe1· of L1111d!l 1111d Wo,·ks. 

The.Manag·el' Y\lll Diemen'l! Land Company, Burnie. 
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(IX.) 

Van Diemen's Land Company, Burnie, 15th April, 1889. 

EMU BAY JETTY. 
Sm, 

I HAVE the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your favour of the 3rd instant, which would have 
received earlier attention had the writer been at home. 

The terms on which you demand payment of the Company's contribution towa1·ds the further extension 
of this work are so entirely different from those on which the last contribution was made, that I .am 
unprepared, at present, to make it. I shall, however, be in receipt of moneys shortly, certainly not later 
than the l;;t proximo, when your request will receive immediate attention, though, considering the 
promptness with which all applications for payment on account of the last donation were met, I fail to see 
the reason for this insult being offered to the Van Diemen's Land Company. 

I have, &c. 
J. W. NORTON SMITH, Agent. 

The Hon. A. T. PrLLINGER, Minister of Lands and Works, Hobart. 

(X.) 
From the Minister of Lands and Works to the Agent Van Diemen's Land Company. 

Public Works Office, Hobart, 17th April, 1889. 
SrR, 

I HAVE the 'honour to &cknowledge receipt of your [letter, dated 15th instant, in reference to request 
made by this -Depai·tment for contribution fiom your Company, in terms of Act 52 Viet. No. 63. In reply, 
I desire to inform you that your intimation that this matter will receive your attention not later than the 
1st proximo has been noted. With regard to the concluding paragraph of your communication, I very 
much regret that you should have put a construction upon my lettter which was nev_er intended. You will 
see, upon perusal of the Act, which I enclose, that no other course was open than that adopted in .this case. 

I have, &c. 

ALFRED PILL~NGER, Minister of Lands and Works. 

(XI.) 

DEAR Srn, 
101, Macqua1·ie-street, Hobart, 2nd May, 1899, 

REFERRING to the letter of 7th December, 1888, written to you by Mr. Norton Smith on behalf of 
the Van Diemen's Land Company, we are instructed to say that the £1000 is now available, nnd can be 
paid over. Will you please instruct the Crown Law Officers to prepare a lease of the land required on 
which the railway can be laid down, constructed, run, &c. May we i•eqnest your giving the iustructions 
at once, as the company wish to make their contribution to the Government. 

YoUi"s, &c. 
DOBSON, MITCHELL, & ALLPORT. 

The Hon. A. T. PILLING-ER, E~q., Ministet· of Limds and Works. 

To Eng·ineer-in-Chief, for remarks for the information of the Hon. the Minister. 
IT is, I think, only necessary that the lease should give the company power to foy down rails on the 

oreakwater in terms of my former 1·ecommendation (23/1 /89), so as not to obstruct the use of the same by 
the Government or the public ; and also thrnugh land granted to Crown in 1872, without delaying matters 
for fresh sur:vey. 

Porwai•ded to the Hon. the Attorhey-General. 

J, FINCHAM. 
3. 5. 89. 

As it is necessary that the contribution of £1000 should be at once made by the Van Diemen's Land 
Company, in terms of Act 52 Viet. No. 63, the works at Emu Bay Jetty uncle;· such Act _being now' in 
p1·ogl'e~s (v-ide copies letters to Manager Van Diemen"s Land Company). Will the ,Honourable the 
Attorney-General have the necessary document pPepared for my signature, guaranteeing tbe issue of the 
lease required by the company, in accordance with Manager's letter of 7/12/88, and the . .Engineer-in­
Chief's recommendations of 23rd January, 1889, and 3rd May, 1889. On this understanding, perhaps 
Messrs. Dobson, Mitchell, & Allport will at once pay the amount. · 

ALFRED l'. FILLINGER, Minister of Lands and Works, 
7th May, 1889, 
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(XI .-continued.) 

A. INGLIS CLARK. 
7. 5. 89. 

WITH reference to lease required by Company prior to payment of One thousand Pounds contrib11tion 
as per your letter of 7th December, 1888, Engineer-in-Chief advises that right be granted subject to right 
of Government to mn their trains over such railway at any future time ; that the rails be laid so as not to 
impede the free use of any part of the Jetty for ca1·t traffic, and that railway be worked under such 
regulations as may be imposed by the Marine Board. 

Do you agree to these conditions ? 

J. W. NORTON s~fITH, Esq., Emu Bay. 
ALFRED PILLINGER, Minister of .Lands and Works. 

16th May, 1889. 

Co'NDITIONS under which Van l)iemen's Land Company agree to contribute One thousand Pounds towards 
cost of Emu Ba_v Breakwater is that right be granted to company to run Railway through land resumed 
b,v Crown in 1872 for w barf purposes and over the Breakwater. There is nu objection to this being done 
under certain restrictions, of which Mr. Norton Smith has been notified, a11d that railway is worked under 
,rnch regulations as may be imposed by your Board. 

Will yon ·please inform me of any provisions your Board would like inserted in lease. 

ALFRED PILLING ER, Minister of Lands and Works, 

'l'he Master Warden, Table Cape Marine Board, Burnie. 

From Burnie, 
17th May, 1889. 

(XII.) 
[TELEGRAM,] 

16th May, 1889. 

CONDITIONS agreed to subject to the· following: Go'{ernment to pay p1·oportionate cost of main­
tenance when rmining their trains ove1· railway. In event of Marine Board imposing harassing regulations 
appeal to be made to the Minister of Lands and W 01·ks. 

J. W. NORTON-SMITH. 
To Hon. Minister, Lands and Works. 

CONDITIONS agreed to by Mr, NoR'I'ON S:r;nTH approved. 
ALFRED PILLINGER, 

17. 5. 89, 

FoRWARDED to the Crown Solicitor, 
17. 5. 89. 

DEAR S1H, 

(XIII.) 
10 I, Macq ua1•ie-st11eet, I-i obart, 20th May; 1889, 

HER&WITH draft 1•e~eipt, on which being' signed by the Minister of Lancls and Works, we can hand 
you cheque for £1000. 

Yours, &c., 

E. D. Doaprn, Esq., Crown Solicitor, 
DOB~ON, MITCHELL, & AlLPORT. 

"IN consideration of the stun of One thottsand Pounds this day paid by the Van Diemen's Land 
Comp~ny to the Government of Tasmania, the said Government agrees to grant to the Company, their 
successors and assigns, a Lease for the term of 1000 years from the date hereof of a strip 01· strips of land 
ten feet wide in or a bout the posi1ions shown by red lines in the tracing hereto annexed, and also the right 
to lay down, construct, maintain, work, and run a line or lines of railway,, tog-ether with all works, stations, 
and sheds incidental 01· uecessary thereto on the said strip ot· strips of land, and for the c;onsideration afore­
said the said Government agree to gran.t to·the said Company, their sncce:ssors and assigns, for the same 
period, the right to lay down,"construct, maintain, work, and run a line of railway and all necessaries 
thereto on the p1°e8e11t Emu Bay .Breakwater and on any further or future extension or alteration thereof 
or additions thereto, or on any piers thereto. But it. is hereby declared that the said Govemment shall 
have the right to run trains over the said lines of railway on their paying- to the said Company, their 
successors or as~igns, a fair a11d just proportion of the moneys for the time being expended by the Company 
in the maintenance of the i<aicl lines of railway (such proportion to be ascertained by arbitration in case of 
disjJute): And provided that the said running by the Governme1it shall be at times convenient and suitable 
to the prnper working by the said Company, their ~uccessors or assigns, of their said lines of rail way : And 
provided that the rails on the said Breakwater be so laitl as.not to impede the use of the said Breakwater 
for cart traffic : And provided that the naid running shall be subject to rules and regulations that ma1 be 
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made by the Governor in Council : Provided tbat the said running shall also be · snl~ect t.o the rules and 
regulations ma,le h_v the Table Cape lVIarine Board, but as to these, should an_v question 01· dispnte arise 
between the said Bnard.and the Company, their successors or assigns, then the same question 01· dispute 
shall be decided by the )linister of Lands and Works for the time being, whose decision shall he final." 

Dated this 21st day of May, 1889, 
A. INGLIS CLARK, 

fo-r the Minister- of Lands and W m·hs. 

(XIV.) 

Attorney-General's Office, Hobart, 16th July, 1889. 
MEMO. 

THE enclosed telegram from the Master W arclen, Emu Bay, to the Hon. the Minister of L_ands, dated 
the 2n_d June, is returned; with a memo. endorsed thereon by the Crown Solicitor on this date. 

W. STOPS, Secretary, 
To the Hon. the Minister of Lands. 

Emu Bay, 2nd June, 1889. 
PLE_AsE forward me draft proposed lease to railway company re jetty. 

MASTER WARDEN. 
Minister of Lands and Works. 

I SHALL be glad if the Hon. the Attorney-General will direct tliat draft lease be forwarded to the 
Office, in prder that the request of the Master Warden may be complied with. 

ALFRED PILLING ER, Minister of Lands and Works. 
The Hon. the. Attorney-General. ·3rd June, 1889. 

THB l~ase is, at the present time, with M ~ssrs. Dobson antl Mitchell, for perusal on behalf of the Van 
Diemen's Land Company. 

A. INGLIS CLARK: 

:3rd June, 188_9. 
MBSSRS. Dobson & Mitchell have been applied to several times for this Draft Lease, but without result. 

Can the Law Department procure same and forwarcl_to the Master Warden for perusal? 

REFERRED to the Crown Solicitor, 

ALFRED PILLING ER, Minister of Lands and Works. 
13. 7. '89. 

W. STOPS, Secretary. 
16. 7. '89 

I THINK it very irregular on the pa1:t of the Public Works Department to apply to a solicitor for a{1y 
Draft forwarded to him from this office fo1 perusal, and stich a practice, if carried out, would lead to endless 
confu~ion. I expect to receive the Draft Lease from D. M. & A. to-mo11·ow, approved on the part of the 
Van Diemen'~ Land Company, and if the .Minister so desil'es, it can be se11t to him to be forwarded to the 
Master \'Varden, although I do nut ser, why this course should be followed, as the Mal'ine Board are not 
parties to the Lease. 

The Hon. the Attorney-General. 

EDW. D. DOBBIE. 
16th July, l 81"l9., 

THE Marine Board has contrd of tbe Port, and has been promised a perusal of the lease, to see that 
public interests nre properly protected. The delay is occasioning inconvenience, and the application was 
made from this Department to Messrs. Dobson and· Mitchell to prevent a farther delay, for which this 
Department is held responsible. 

· PLEASE return these papers.· 

ALFRED PILLINGER. 
17. 7. '89. 

foitW,\llDED t9 the Crown Solicitor with reference to the memo. of the Hon. the Minister of this date. 

W. STOPS, Secretary. 
n.p.•s9: 
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(XV.) 

Public Works Office, 
Hobart, :3rd July, 1889. 

As I understand the Van Diemen's Land. Company are not disposed to assist in the future exten:3ion 
of the Emu Bay Breakwater by any farther contribution towards the cost of the wo1·k, I have the honour 
to ask whether vou will recommend for the favourable consideration of your directors the conveyance of 
certain land at Blackman's Point to the Government for public purpose~, .in consideration of an additio11al 
sum of say £6000 being· expended on extending the breakwater. · 

l'he land in question is shown on accompanying plan, and consists of two areas, as follows :-First,· 
2½ acres in block A., now ehiefly the quarry and yard for the breakwater work ; second, something less 
than -~ an acre, in block B., between high and low water mark. In all, three acres to be conveyed to the 
Government, with the right to quarry on block C. (containiug about ~ an acre), under existing- re~trictiomi 
as to level of bottom of quarry. 

I have, &.e., 

AL°FRED PILLINGER, Minister of Lands and Work,;, 
J. W. NoRTON SMITH; Esq., V.D.L. Company, Emu Bay. 

(XVA.) 
Public Works Office, Hobart, 5th Augnst, 1889. 

SIR, 
IN reference to your letter of 13th ultimo, I have the honour to inform yon that I think it most likely 

that there may be considerable opposition_ to the proposed vote on the part of certain members of the 
House, unless I am in a position to show that your Company is willing to a~sist in some way, and I have, 
therefore, to ask you to reconsider your views so that the vote may not he jeopardised . 

. I hope that the matter can be dealt with at once, as far as your undertaking to make a recommendation 
to your Directors for what we require,-and believe that when the time come~ for the construction of a 
Railway, the great advantages to be gained both by the Van Diemen's Land Company and the Emn Bay 
and Bischoff Company, in the connection of their railways with the general system of the Colony, will be 
so apparent to them that they will not find fault with the second request made foi· the purpose of facilitating 
that object. 

1 have, &c., 
ALFRED PILLINGER, Minister of Lands and Works. 

J. W. NORTON SMITH, -Esq., Burnie. 

(XVI.) 
101, Macquarie-street, Hobart, 22nd July, 1889. 

VAN DIEMEN's LAND Co11rPAN.Y AND GovEHNMENT. 
DEAR SIR, 

WE send draft lease herewith for perusal. 
Yours very truly, 

DOBSON, MITCHELL, & ALLPORT. 
E. D. DoBBIE, Esq., Crown Solicitor. 

(XVII.) 
CoM~nssIONER OF CROWN LANDS TO VAN DrnMEN's LAND Co~rPANY. 

Crown Solicitor's Office, 23rd September, ) 889. 
DEAR Srns, 

I CANNOT ag-ree to the alterations made by you in the Draft Lease. There must be ~ time limited for 
the construction of the railway, otherwise your clients might defer its construetiou until the last , ear of the 
term, and thereby prevent the construction of a railway by the Government, there not being sufficient room 
on the Breakwater for two lines. I have seen the Minister, wbo states that it is not his wish to insist. upon 
the railway being commenced until the present extension is completed, but that it must be completed within 
twelve months after ·notice being given. I haYe, therefore, altered the Draft Lease accordingly, and 
now return it for your pemsal. 

Yours truly, 
Messrs. DonsoN, Mr~'CHSLL, & ALLPORT, Solicitors. EDW. DOBBIE. 

(XVI II.) 
· Van Diemen's Land Company, Burnie, 25th September, 1889. 

SrR, LEASE OF LAND AT Eiru BAY FOR RAILWAY Pl'RPOSES. 
I HAVE the honour to request that you will not insist on the insertion of a clause compelling the 

Company to c9nstmct their railwa! along the centre of the break water witlwut consulting the Table Cape 
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Marine Board. I am pf opinion that.if the road be laid somewhat on one side it will be rno1·e convenient 
for all parties concerued, and that \f you could inqnire into the matter on the spot you would he of m'y 
opinion. Knowing that yoa are only desi1·ons of protecting the public interest in this matter, I trust that 
you ;'·ill favour me by granting the a hove re') uest. 

I have, &c. 
,T. W. NORTON SMITH, Agent. 

The Hon. ALFRED PILLINGER,. 
Minister of Lands and Works, Hobart. 

To Engineer-in-Chief for rema!'ks. 
MINISTER OF LANDS AND WORKS. 

27.9.89. 

THE Hon. the Minister.-! quite concur with Mr. Norton Smith; the centre is not the proper place. 

FORWARDED to the Hon, the Attomey-General. 

REFERRED to the Crown Solicitor. 

J. FINCHAM, Engineer-in-Chief, 
28.9.89. 

ALFRED PILLINGER. 
30.9.89. 

F. STOPS, Secretary. 
30.9.89. 

As it appears to be agreed that the centre is i1ot the proper place for the railway, it will be necessary 
to define, either by diagram or othe1·wise, the position of the railway, ·as it would be injudicious to allow 
the Company t-o'construct it on auy portion of the brealnvater they might choose. 
E.I.C. 2.10.89. E. D. DOBBIE. 

1.10.89. 

(XIX.) 

101, Macquarie-street, Hobart, 8th October, 1~89. 
DEAR Sm, 

WE return draft Lease, with two proposed additions. Kindly riiturn same at your earliest convenience. 

Yours, &c., 

E. D. DoBBIE, EsQ., Crown Solicitor. 
DOBSON, MITCHELL, & ALLPORT. 

(XX.). 

Crown Solicitor's Office, Hobart, 11th October, 1889. 
Re EMU BAY LEASE .FOR RAILWAY. 

DEAR Sm, 
REFERRING to Mr. J. Norton-Smith's letter of25th 11ltimo to the Hon. the Minister of Lands antl 

W 01·ks, which yo11 have pernsed, I have to inform you that the Minister is content to alter the form of 
Lease so that the company may place tlieir line of railway upon any pertiou of the breakwater which may 
be approved-of by the Ministe1·. 

Yours truly, 
E. D. DOBBIE. 

Messrs. DonsoN, MITCHELL, & ALLPOR'r, So!iC"itors, Hobart. 

, 
(XXI.) 

Engineer-in-Chief's Office, Hobart, 16th November, 1889. 

LEASE To THE VAN DIEMEN's LAND Co111P.ANY. 
Sm, 

The plan attached to the lease (which plan I see for the first time to-day), indicates concessions of a 
rather more extended character than I contemplated in my former recommendations that the Company 
should be allowed to lay a railway down on the Emu Bay Breakwater, i.e., to perpetuate the present 
· concessions enjoyed by them. . 

The plan evidently. indicates provisio11 for qom:iection wtth a future e)\:tension of the (}over:nment 
railwa1s to Wyn;vard~ · 
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In view of this, and of the references contained in the lea~e to the General Manager of' Govel'llmcnt 
Hail ways, T think it shoulcl be forwarded to him, with this Memo., fo1· any 1·c111arks he may choose to mnkc 
l,efore tlie Hono1m1 hlc the Minister signs it. 

ME"r"o. for the Honourable the Minister. 
.T, Fl NCH AM, Engineer-in-q)1ief, 

REFERRED to the General Manager accordingly. 

HONOURABLE ]\fINISTER, 

PLEASE see Memo. herewith, 

ALFHEO PILLINGEll, Minister of Lands and Works, 
18, ll, 89, 

(XXII.) 

FRED. BACK. 
21. ll. 89, 

Tasmanian Governm1mt R~ilways, 
General Manager's Office, 21st. N ovem her, 1889. 

LEASE TO THE VAN Drn"rnN's LAND CoMPANY, 

WITH reg.ard to the enclosed copy of a proposed agreement for leasing for one thousand years certain 
land, together with certain rights to use the breakwater at Emu Bay, to the Van Diemen's Land Company 
iP. consideration of a contribution towards the cost of the breakwater of £l000 (One thonsaud Ponnds), 
and a yearly rent of ls. (One Shilling) pet· annum, I am of opiniou that such proposal would be 
detrimental to the interests of the Colon,v, and a source of future embarrassment to the Hailway Depart­
ment in the event of the extension of the Government rail wars to Burnie. 

'!.'he agreement is silent a~ to the r!g-hts of the Van ·niemen's Land Company to charge storage, 
wharfage, or haulage rates to the public, but I take it they can at least make any increase in their rates they 
please. 

The interest on £1000 at 4 per cent. could be met by a ch,ug·e of only 6d. per ton on 1600 tons of 
goods. Such a charge is abont half the averagtJ rate for similar services in the other Colonies. 

If the control of the wharves remained in the hands of the Government they could be made a source 
of revenue, and if even only a nominal sum were charged there would be a revenue increasing with the 
prosperity of the Colony. 

I am of opinion that tho concession proposed to be given to the Company, which practically embraces 
the freehold of certain strips of land, the key to the whole undertaking, is worth not less than £10,000, 
and further, I am of opinion that in the event of a purchase of the line by the Government the concession, 
when part of a going concern, would be valued in connection with the line at 11early twice the amount I 
have named. 

Ifit is decided to allow the Van Diemen's Land Company, as a matter of public convenience, to use 
the wharf ( and no doubt such will be the case) it might be advisable, until the Govemment line i,­
constructed, to grant the right to use the wharf from time to time; such permits extending over a period 
of not more than one year at a time, and-on payment of a small fee, say a yearly rent equal to 3½ per cent. 
on £1000, the amount proposed in the agreement as the contribution of the Company towards the cost of 
the breakwater, say, £35 per annum. 

FRED. BACK, General Manager. 
ME"IO. fur Hon. Minister of Lands and Works. 

(XXIII.) 

THE right to lay rails and p1·ice to be paid ha:;i been approved and notified prior to embodiment of 
provision in the formal agreement; and if it were otherwise, the Manager would re11uire to be seized of all 
the facts to enable him to express final opinion. 

I do not see that he makes any remarks at all upon the chief point as t.o which it was desirnble that he 
should be consulted-marked 5. 12. 89. (a.), (b.)-and has probably overlooked it. 

As I think the ciuestion i~ important, I suggest that papers be referred back to him._ 

J. FINCHAM, Engineer-in-Chief. 
Honourable the Minister, 5. 12. 89. 

To General Manager accordingly. 
. B. STAFFORD BIRD, for Minister of Lands and Works. 

5. 12. 89. 

(XXIV.) 

I duly considered .Mr. Fincharn's Memo. in all its beai·ings. The real point to be dealt with is the 
· one I have underlined in red. I have gone over my report to you again, and see no reason to modify or 

alter it in an! particular. If the progress of the Colour during the next ten years i1_1creases in the same 

' 
.. 
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i·atio as in the last ten yeal's, it will, in my opinion, be found timt it would have been cheaper to have made 
the Van Diemeu's Land Company a present of £10,000, than to have carried out the proposed agreement 

FRED. B.A.CK. 
_ 7. 12. 89. 

Honourable the Minister. 

(XXV-.) 

COPY OF ENDORSEMENTS, 
The right to lay rails, and pl'ice to be paid, has heen approved and notified prior to embodiment of' 

provision in the formal~agreement, and if it was o_therwise the Manager would require to be ·seized of all 
the facts fo enable him to express final opinion. _ 

I do not see that he makes any _remarks at all upon the chief point as to which it was desirable that he 
should be consulted (marked 5.12.19 a-b ), and has probably overlooked it. .As I think the question is 
important, I suggest the paJJers he referred back to him. 

J. FINCH.AM, Engineer-in-Ohief. 
5. 12. 1889. 

GENERAL 11anager . 
.Accordingly. 

B. ST-AFFORD BIRD, Minister of Lands and Works. 
5. 12. 1889. 

I duly considered Mr. Fiucham's memo. in all its bearings. The real point to be dealt with is the one 
underlined in red. I have gone over my report again, and see no reason to modify or alter it in any 
particular. If the progress of the Colony during the next 10 years increases in the same ratio as in the 
last 10 years, it will, in my opinion, be found that it would have been cheaper to make the V.D.L. Com­
pany a present of £10,000 than to have carried out the proposed agrP.ement. 

FRED. B.A.CK. 
7. 12. 1889. 

· HoN, Minister. 

h• appears that the Van Diemen's Land Company are asking further· concessions than those agTeed 
to, _viz.:--running powers over B. & C., evideutly with a view to future extension of railway to Wynyard. 
Will the General Manager please express his views· on these proposed concessions. 

To GENERAL MANAGER, 

To' HONOURABLE l\frn1sTER, 

ALFRED FILLINGER, 
10. 12. 1889. 

AFTER discussing this ·matter with you I have nothing further to add to my former correspondence. 
It would be well to refuse the .strip of land, which would form connection with line to W ynyard: 

:MEMO. 

(XXVI.) 

FRED. BACK. 
24. 12. 1889. 

Engineer-in-Chief's Office, Hobart, 10th December, 1889. 

EMU BAY JETTY AND VAN DrnMEN's LAND CoMPANY. 

, .• _.,tl.---/ I CANNOT advise the Hon. the Minister to sign the agreement with the Van 
-~, -x'< Diemen'~ Lan~ Company ~rnw: be[ore him _until the General ~ana~er replies to ·, x" the quest10n raised by me m his mterest, viz., "as to. connect10n with Wynyard 

-=;:. · x'<"- extension of Government Railways," for neither of his memoranda refer to it. 
, x_"- Nothing more is necessary to be said as· to payment of £1000 by the Com• 
+ 1'- y__'< c.; pany, as the Act of Parliament disposes of that question, and the interest on that 

'. .j amount is the equivalent of the alternative proposed by Mr. Back, that_ they 
-'. ~ should pay £35 per an11um. • 
::£. ;( Moreover, as the rail way on the jetty will be as much at the disposal of the 
~ Govemment a6 of the Company, and the general public will also have free 

: access to it, I disagree entirely with the General Manager's views. 

' : J. FINCH.AM, Engineer-in-Chief, 

' ' + The Hon. the Minister of Lands and Works. 

_A Line sppro".~.d-by Minister. 
ll & o Suggestions originl!ting with 

· V.D.L. Coy. re extension 
to Wynyard, 
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(XXVII.) 

. General Manager's Office, jJth December, 1889. 
BURNIE Breakwater.-Engineer-in-Chief refere to an Act in his memo. of yesterday. Kindly have 

me furnisherl ·with copy before I report further to you. 
FR ED. BACK, General Manager. 

The Hon. the Minister of Lands and Works, Hobart. 

(XXVIII.) 

Tasmanian .Govemment Railways, 
Engineer-in-Chief'.s Office, Hobart, 3rd January, 1890. 

EMU B.t.Y BREAKWA'l'ER. 

Agreement for Lease of Land to the Van Diemen's Land Company. 
THE plan attached to Agreement forwarded for the signature of the Minister of Lands and Works is 

one that has never been prepared or previously checked in the Public Works Office, and indicates more 
extensive concessions than were ever contemplated by the department. 

The limit of the concession was a perpetuation of the present access to the Breakwater as ~njoyed by 
the Van Diemen's Land Company, on an improved line shown in pink colom on tracing herewith, marked 
"Jan. 2/90, P.W.D." 

The uncoloured lines of rail way on this tracing ( of Jan. 2/90) are coloured pink on plan, presumably 
prepared by tlie intended lessees, and give them a command of connection with the future extension of 
Government railways, which is thought to be undesirable by the General Manae;er. 

A. INGLIS CLARK, for Minister of Lands and Works, absent. 

(XXIX.) 

Public Works Office, Hobart, 21st January, 1890. 
P.W.C. Act, 53 Viet. No. 54, Item 19. 

~ . 

OIR, 
I HAVE the honour herewith, to submit a revised plan showing the land which it is proposed that the 

Van Diemen's Land Company shall grant to the Government of Tasmania in connection with the provisions 
of the Act of Parliament above quoted. I also append statement of certain conditions to be observed. 

PLAN.-The Block A. to be granted to the Government for purposes connected with the extension of 
the North-Western Railway, and for erection of Public Buildings,. as hereafter may be required. 

The Block C. to be granted to the Goyernment for the purposes of quarrying stone for Jetty or Break­
water works until such works are completed. 

'fhe Blocks B. and Bn., to be granted to the Government for purposes of future wharfage, or an 
equivalent portion of C. to be permanently transferred to the Government in the event of the Van 
Diemen's Land Compa11y electing to retain Block BB. ; such election to be made forthwith. 

GENERA'L.-Reservation 20 feet wide to be made for continuing North Terrace Road to Jetty and 
Blackman's Point. 

Mr. W. Jones to relinquish his claim to existing lease upon the, te!'ms stated in your letter of 
8th instant, viz., conditionally on the Crown giving another lease to him of a piece of ground 
80 feet long by 40 feet wide ( about. 11 and ¾ perches) on the flat from which stone has been taken for 
construction of the breakwater, for 21 years from 1891, the date of his being put in possession, the 
exact site of the proposed leasehold to be selected by your (i.e. the Government) officer and him:1elf 
conjointly, this being subject to the reservation contained iu Mr. J ones's letter of 17th instant, of the 
Government being allowed to purchase (if necessary) his interest in the existing lease, the purchase 
money, in the event of dispi1te, to be settled by arbitration. 

I have, &c., 
ALFRED PILLING ER, Minister of Lands and Works. 

(XXX.) 

DEAR Snt, 
101, Macquarie-street, Hobart, 13th Febrtiat·y, 18!:I0. 

Re YAN :brn11iE:N 1s LAND Co~iPANY. 
WE would like to get the Lease herein completed, and out of hand. 

Yours very truly, 

JE. :b. Dom1:B, Esq., Crown Solicitor; 
DOBSON, MITCHELL, & ALLPORT. 

FoRWARDED to Engineer-in°Chief for his information. 
EDW. :b. DOBBIE, 

181 2. '90, 
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(XXXI.) 

CNo. 76.) 

101, Mac[]uarie-street, Hobart, 7th March, 1890. 

WE beg to draw your attention to the continued delay in the matter of the Van Diemen's Land 
Company's Lease. The money was paid, in good faith, on 21st May last; but no Lease yet. 

Yours very truly, 
DOBSON, MITCHELL, & ALLPORT. 

E. D. DoBBrn, Esq., Crown Solicitor. 

REFERRED to the Eng·ineer-in-Chief for his information. 
E. D. DOBBIE. 

7. 3. '.90 .. 

PAPERS, lease, and fresh trncings sent to Crown Solicitor, with memo. of Engineer-in-Chief, dated 
3rd Jan nary, 1890. 

Sra, 

(XXXII.) 

JAMES FINCHAM, Engineer-in-Chief. 
8. 3. 90. 

Van Diemen's Land Company, Burnie, 8th March, 1890. 

EMU BAY BREAKWA'l'ER •. 

I HAVE the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your telegram of 6th instant, and the pleasure 
of informing you that your consent to the extra width of road from North 1.'errace removes the last obstacld 
to the further extension of the breakwater. I am in receipt ·of a telegram from my directors, consenting 
to grant to the Crown the three acres of land indicated by the letters A, B, and BB, on the plan I has 
the honour to receive from you under cover of your favour of 21st January, substantially on the terme 
mutually agreed upon between us, by conversation, letters, &c., viz. :-That the land in question is to be 
used for public purposes only ; such public purposes to inelude the reservation of a road one chain wide 
connecting the North Terrace with the breakwate1·, the constrnction of a railway from , Bumie westward, 
the erection of Bonded Store, Marine Board and Customs offices, and such other· buildings for public 
purposes as may from time to time be found. neces_sary, and for providing space for depositing goods to be 
loaded into or discharged from vessels. . , , 

That a right of way, 20 feet wide, from the road near North Terrace to the laml at Blackman's Point 
north of Block A, in a convenient position for an approach, and the rig·ht of constructing a railway across 
Block A, to connect the proposed railway shnnt on the said land on Blackman's Point with the Emu Bay 
and Mount Bischoff Railway, and of maintaining and working the same, be reserved to the company. ·. 

That you will use your best endeavours to secure the extension of the present work to a total length 
of at least 600 feet.. ) 

You, doubtless, have a description of the ground in your office ; if you· will be good enough to forward 
same to me I will pass it on to my directors, in order that the Grant Deed may be completed without 
unnecessary delay. 

DEAR SIRS, 

I have, &c., 

J. W. NORTON SMITH, Agent. 

(XXXIII.) 

Re Van Dieman's Land Company's Lease. 
Crown Solicitor's Office, 

ll. 3. '90. 

IN reference to yom· frequent applications as to delay in this matter, I have to refer you to Memo. of 
Minister of Lands and Works of 3rd January last (which you have all'eady seen), and coiJY of which I 
now enclose. The Minister, upon the recommendation of the Engineer-in-Chief, declines to grant the 
lease with the present plan attached, but is willing to execute the lease with the plan marked "January 
2nd, 1890, P.W.D." (which you have ·also seen), attached. If your clients are willing to accept the 
lease on those terms, please let me know, and the matter can be at once completed. 

Yours, &e., 

EDW. D, DOBBIE. 
Me11srs. DOBSON, MI'l'CHELL, ·& ALI,PORT, Solicitors, 
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(XXXJV.) · 
101, ~acquarie-street, Hobnrt, 

· 11th Mnrch, 1890. 

· YouR tardy reply to our numerous applications 1·e the V.D. Laf!d Comµany',; leatie is jttst to hand, 
and the position taken. up is something extraordina1·y. The Government obtained a cheque for £1000 from 
the compR11y, and this was pR.id in pursuance. of the provisions contain•ed in a written ag1·eement. Are we 
to consider that this agreement will not be carried out on your part? 

yours very trnly, 

DOBSON, MITCHELL, & ALLPOR'.l'. 
E. Doirnrn, Esq., Crown Solicitor. 

FoHWAHDED to Minister of Lands and Works, for his consideration. 

Hm,E RHED to Engineer-in-Chief: 

Tm~ Crown Solicitor has all the papers. 

E. DoBBIE, Crown Solicitor. 

Mm1io. 
Re VAN DrnMEN's LAND CoMPANY's ¼EASE. 

EDW, D. DOBBIE. 
11. 3. '90. 

H. E. PACKER. 
12. 3. '90. 

,T. FINCHAM. 
14. 3. '90. 

ALL paper~, with engTossment of lease, and two diagrams forwal'lled to the Hon. the Premier for his 
information. 

The Hon. the Premier. 

DEAR Srns, 

(XXXV.) 
Re VAN DrnMEN's LAND COMPANY's LEASE. 

EDW. D. DOBBJE. 
13. 3. '90. 

Crown Solicitor's Office, 19th March, 1890. 

IN reply lo you1·s of this day, I must refer you to the Minister of Lands to whom yonr letter~ have 
been forwarded,. and with whom the matter now rests, so far as I .know. 

, - Yours truly, · 

EDW. D. DOBBIE. 
l\Iessrs. DoBSON MITCHELL, & ALLPOll'l', Solicitors. 

D.EAR Sm, 

(XXXVI.) 
101, Macquarie-street, Hobart, l!:lth March, 1890. , 

Re VAN Drn~nrn's LAND CoMPANY's L_1,AsE. 

WE have had some correspondence with the Crown Solicitor herein ; we are referred to yon for ·a 
reply. Kindly let us have same at your early convenience. 

Yours very truly, 

DOBSON MITCHELL, & ALLPOHT. 
The Hon. A. 'l'. P1LLING1rn, Minister of Lands and Works. 

(XXXVII.) 
IOI, Macquarie-street, Hobart, 28th April, 1890. 

DEAR Sm, 
'l'HE Honourable the· At_toniey-General has referred us to you to ascertain what the Governmeut will 

do in the matter of the Van Diemen's Land Company's Lease. If-convenient, we should like to know the 
above during to-day. 

Yours very truly; 
DOBSON, MI'l'CHELL, & ALLPOR'l'. 

The Hon. A. T. P1urnmrn, Minister of Lands and Works. 
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INS'l'R UCTIONS a!'e awaiterl in l'eforence to decision of the Hononra hle the Premiel'. 

HONOURABLE THE MrNISTJi.H. 
J. FINCHAM. 

29. 4. 90. 

IT has been decided to allow the Van Diemen's Land Company facilities to run their present railway 
on to breakwater, care being taken to reserve all necessary crossings which may be req11i1·ed for extension 
of Government railways. -- Please advise me as to this before l communicate with Messrs. Dobson, 
Mitchell, & Allport. . 

To ENGINEER-IN-CHrnF. 

MElV£0RANDU11L , 

(XXXVIII.) 

ALFRED PILLINGER. 
29. 4. 90. 

'l'asmanian Government Railways, 
Engineel'-in-Chief's Office, Hobai·t, 2nd May, 1890. 

IT having been decided that the .right to lay down a line of rails on the Emu Bay Breakwater by 
the Emu Bay and ?\fount BiRchoff Railway Company or the Van Diemen's Land Comp~ny shall no 
longer be questioned, all that is necessary to be done now, prior to the signing of the lease, is to obtain the 
sanction of the Van Diemcn's Land Company .to n condition that, with the constrnction of certain 
turn-outs or shunts leading 011 to Blackman's Point (not originally indicated b,v the Company, but now 
stated to be necessary fo1· proper working of line on Breakwatel'), the Government shall have the right to 
construct upon, acl'Oss, or over any of tl1e lines for which l'ight-of-wa,v is to be granted, such sidings 01· 

lines of rails as may be required by the Minister of Lmids to connect. and use the Breakwater line as part 
of the G<,vernment Railway system, without payment of tolls or an,v charges whatsoever. 

,T. FIN CHAM:, Enginee1;-in-Chief. 
The Hon. the Ministel' of Lands and Works. 

(XXXIX.) 

Department of Lands and ·works, 2nd May, 1890. 
GENTLEMEN, 

I HAVE the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of 28th ultimo, and, in reply, to inform 
you that all further difficnlty will be removed, both as to the signing of the lease and the aeceptance of the 
grant of three acres of land at Blackman's Point, as proposed by the Van Diemen's Land Company, if 
they will assent to the following conditions, viz. :-That with the eonstn1ction of certain turn-ou.ts or shunts 
leading on to Blackman's Point (not originally indicated by the Van Diemen's Land Company, but now 
Rtated to be necessary for propel' working of thei!" line 011 the breakwater), the Govemment. shall have the 
right to com,truct upon, across, or over any of the lines for which l'ight-of-way is to be gl'anted, such 
sidings or lines of rails as may he re<Juirerl by the Minister of Lands and Works for the .time. being to 
connect and use the breakwater line as part of the Government Railway system without payment of tolls 
orany charges whatsoever. 

· I have, &c., 

ALFRED PILLINGER, i.VIinister of Lands and Works. 

iVIesSl'S. DOBSON, Mr·rCHHLL, & ALLPOR~', Solicitol's, Hobart. 

(XL.) 

101, Macquarie-st1·eet, Hobart, 21st M,ay, 1890. 

V.D.L. Co:MPANY's LEASE. 
DEAR Sm, 

WE sent a copy of you!' last letter herein to Mr. Smith, and he instructs us that the new position taken 
up by you cannot for one moment be entertained. He is willing to come to an arrangement, allowing the 
Government to run their train over the lines at the Breakwater on a proportionate cost of maintenance 
being paid. . Our instructions are that if no settlement is come to within a week then action must be taken 
to have .the agreement specifically enfol'ced We trnst that in the time allowed you _will see yonr way 
clear to meet Mr. Smith in what he oife!'s. Of course this letter is without pr~judice. 

Yours faithfully, 

DOBSON, MITCHELL, & ALLPORT_. 

The Honourable A. T, PILLINGER, l\.iinist&r of Lan~l~_a_n~ Works. 
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(XLI.) 

Department of Lands and Works, 27th May, 1890. 
EMU BAY BREAKWA'l'ER AND VAN DrnMEN's LAND COMPANY'S LEASE. 

GRN'l' LEl\IEN' 
I HAVE the honour to acknowledge the receipt ·of your letter of 21st inst., and to re.quest that yon 

will kindly allow the matter to remain in abeyance until the return, about the end of this week, of the 
En·gineer-in-Chief from the West Coast. 

I have, &c. 
ALFRED PILLlNGER, Ministei· of Lands_ and Worb. 

Mess!'s. DoBsoN, MrTCHELL, & ALI.PORT, Solicitors, Hobart. 

(XLIA.) 

Public Works Office, Hobart, Septembe!' 5th, 1890. 

EMU BAY BREAKWATER AND VAN DrEMEN':; .LAND COMPANY. 
GENTLEMEN, 

IN reply to your letter of 21st May last, I have the honour to inform yon that the Government will, 
of course, pay a proportionate part of the cost of maintenance of the portions of the breakwater line which 
may be used jointly by the company and the Government, and I regret that the omission of this fact from 
my letter of 2nd May last should have caused any misunderstanding on this point. · 

The conditions as now arranged between the company and the Government are, I understand, as 
follows:-

The Van Diemen's Land Company or the E~n Bay and Mount Bischoff Company to have the right 
to lay down a line of rails on the Emu Bay breakwater. The Government to have the right" t.o use such 
line, and also to construct upon, across, or over any of the lines fo1· which right of way is to be granted by 
them such sidings or lines of rails as may be required to connect and use the breakwater line constr~cted 
by the company as part of the Government Railway system without payment of any tolls or charges other 
than the proportion of rilaintenance above stated. 

The Van- Diemen's Land Company to grant to the Government three acres of land at Blackman's 
Point as shown on the plan attached to my letter to Mr. Norton Smith, dated 21st ,January, 1890, and 
marked respectively A., B., and Bn. ; the block marked C. to be tempora!'ily granted to the Government 
for the purpose of quarrying stone for jetty or breakwater works until such works are compl~tecl. 

The Government to grant a lease to the Van Diemen's 1..and Compa,1y of the strips of land coloured 
yellow on attached tracings for the purposes of their railway, such strips to be of the width of 10 feet 
throughout, and also the right to lay clown rails and use the same along a space not exceeding 10 feet in 
width in the centre of the present bre.akwater, and any extension thereof or a like space of same width or 
any other portion of the breakwater which may be approved by the Minister of Lands and Works. 

A Reservation to the Vau Diemen's Land Company, one chain wide, to be allowed for continuing North 
Terrace Road to breakwater and Blackman's Point. 

Mr. Jones to relinquish his lease so far as the block 'A. is affected, conditionally on the Crnwn giving 
him a lease for 21 years-of a piece of land 80" x 40" in the portion of the gullet excavated and fronting 
on the Government land between breakwater and the said gullet or opening ; or his lease to be terminated 
and compensation paid therefor. Reservation of a tight of way 20 feet wide to be made from the North 
Terrace to the land on Blackman's Point, north of block A, in a convenient position for an approach. 

Reservation to the Van Diemen's Land Company of the right of constructing a railway across the 
extreme north-east angle of block A. to connect the prnposed milway shunt on the said land on Blackman's 
Point with the Emu Bay and Mount Bischoff Railway, and of maintaining and working the same. 

I shall be glad to liave confirmation of the above. · ' 

ALFRED PILLINGEH, Minister of Lands and Workd. 
Messrs. DoBSON, Mr'l'CHELL, · & ALLPOH'r, Solicitors, Hobart. 

DEAR Sm, 

• 

(XLII.) 
Chief Secretary's Office, 24th October, 1891. 

.Re VAN. DIEMEN'S LAND COMPANY'S LEASE. 

You R letter of the 22nd October received during· my absence from office. I do not understand the 
request you make therein, as [·explained to you, Mr. Mitchell, before leaving for Melboume, that the 
agreement ~made to grant a lease for oue thousand years was ultra vires of the powers of the Minister, 
who has no power to grant leases of Crown lands beyond that conferred by the Crown Lands Act. The 
agreement in question was not prepared in this office. 

Yours truly, 
E. D. DOBBIE. 

Messre. DOBSON, MI'l'CHELJ:,_ & AtLPORT, Solicitors. 
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Crown Solicitor's Office. 

V.D.L. CoY.'s LEASE.-(Lettet· from Dobson, Mitchell, &, Allport.) 
Su1H,Il'l"l'ED for the consideration of the Hon. the Attomey-General. I have already verbally 

explained the position of matters he1·ein. 

DEAR Srns, 

EDW. D. DOBBIE. 
3-11-'!:ll. 

Crown Solicitor's Office, 3rcl November, 1891. 

I HAVE alr!)ady informed the Hon. the Attorney-General of the position of matters herein, and, a, 
requested, I will again bring the que~tion nnder his not.ice. 

Yours tmly, 
EDW. D. DOBBIE. 

Messrs. DOBSON, MITCHELL,&: ALT.PORT, Solicitors. 

(XLIII.) 
Chief Secretary's Office, 3rd December, 1891. 

VAN DrE11rnN's LAND CoMPANT. 
DEAR Srns, 

Youn letter of to-day's elate received. T.he preparation of Bills for Acts of Parliament' is not per­
formed in this office. 

'fhe matter has all'eady heen brong'ht under the notice of the Hon. the Attorney-General. See my 
letter to you of 3. l 1. 91. 

Yours tmly, 
EDW. D. DOBBIE. 

Me~srs_. DoBSON, JWITCHELL, &, ALT.POR'l', Solicitors. 

SAME. DonsoN, MITCHELL, & ALLPORT's LE'l'TER. 
FoRWARDED to the Hon. the Attomey-General. I do not know what object the writers have in 

sendiug this communication. They mnst know that their request is impossible. The letter ha's been 
acknowledged. 

'rhe Hon. the A ttomey-General. 

EDW. W. DOBBIE. 
3. 12. 91.. 

(XLIV.) 
Crown Solicitor's Office, Hobart, 2nd Novcmbe/, 1892. 

D1,A n S rns, 
Re VAN DrnMEN's LAND CoiwPANY's LE,.\.SE. 

I am instmcted by the Hon. The Attorney-General to forwarrl you draft of a BiH to authorise the 
issne of (lease to the Van Diemen's Land Company and to inform you that the Govemment a1·e prepared 
to introduce such Bill into Parliament in the form now submitted, conditionally upon a satisfactory 
al'!'angemcnt heing made with reference to the three acres of land to be surrenclered by the company t.o the 
Queen. · 

Yours truly, 

Messrs. DoBsoN, Mrnnrnr.r., & ALLPORT, Solicitors, Hobart. 
E. D.,,J)OBBIE. 

(XLV.) 
'Attomey-Geneml's Office, Hobart, 11 th March, 1892. 

Re V.D.L. Co11IPANY. 
DEAR SIRS, 

IN reply to your letter to me of the 22nd ultimo, req nesting to be informed what the Govemment are 
prepared to do in regard to granting a lease to the V.D.L. Co. of the strip of Crown Land on 'which a 
portion of the company's railway is constructed, [ have now to info1·111 you that the longest lease which the 
Govemment have authority of law to grant at the present time is fourteen years, with the right of renewal 
for a similar period; but in the event of a lease for a longer period heing required by the company in 
connection with the sale of their railway t.o the promoters of the Waratah and Zeehan railway, the 
Government will _apply to Parliament for authority to grant a lease for such further period as the 
circumstances require. / 

I have, &c., 
A. INGLIS CLARK. 

MesHs. DOBSON, MITCHELL, & ALLPORT, 
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(XLVI.) 

D1.:An Srns, 
Attomey-General's Office, Hobart, Hlth March, 1892. 

Re V.D.L. Co. 
I Ai\I in receipt of your letter to me, enclosing cop~· of letter to you from Messrs. Blake and Riggall. 

I have already informed yon that the Go1iernment will ask Pa1·liamenl. next Session for the necessary 
legislation to enable the Minister of Lands to 0·1·ant a lease for such longer term a:s will facilitate the sale of 
the V.D.L. Co."s Railway to the Pl'Ornoters of the vVamtah and Zeehan Railway, but that at present the 
Govemment ha Ye no power to grant a lease for. a longer period than fourteen years, with the right of 
renewal for a similar period. · . 

The Government a_1·e desirous of assisting in every legitimate. manner the construct.ion 9f the \.Varatah 
and Zeehan Railway, bnt they do not think that granting an i\leo·al and invalid lease would help forward 
that o~ject·, inasmuch as it might be resei1tcd hy Parlian;ent, and" make the Legislature less disposed than it. 
otherwise would be-to confer the necessary power on the Government to grant a longer lease than that. 
which the law at present permits .. Messrs. Blake and Riggall will perceive that Parliament is master of 
the situation, and that. whatever invali<l co11trnct. the Gove~·nment may have made, or may make, with the 
company could he rescinded hy Parliament, and all right of action or claim for compensation by the com­
pany taken away from them by the re~cin<ling Act. But 1 do not npprehend any opposition on the pat't of 
Parliament to authorising tlte grnnting of a lease for such period as the circumstances of the case reguit-e, 
and in the meantime I would suggest the advisability of the company accepting a lease for fourteen years, 
which course would strengthen the hanrls of the Government in approaching- Padinment for a ntho1·ity to 
grant a lease for a longer period. · · -

,- I have, &c., 
Messrs. DoBSON, MITCHELL, & Ar.r.POR'l', A. INGLIS CLARK.· 

(VLVII.) 
16th November, 1892. 

EMU BAY BREAKWA'l'ER. . . . 

As I understand that the question of the Emu Bay Breakwater is exercising attention at the present 
time, I beg to enclose herewith the copy ot' a letter written by me on the su~ject, in Nov.ember, 1889, for 
your perusal.· · 

The Hon. the Minister of Railways. 
FRED. BACK, General Manage1·: 

(XLVIIA.) 
November 21st, 1892. 

WE are instmcted to ask if you will carry out the_ agreement of the former Minister in this matter, 
and if not, kindly ;;t11te your reasons fully. 

The Honourable Wnr.IAM HAHTNOLL. 

'· 

MY DEAR Srns, 

Messrs. DOBSON, MITCHELL, & ALLPORL. 

(XL VIII.) 
nfinister';; Office, Lands and Works Department, 

November 22nd, 1892. 

IN answer to yours of yesterday's date, I tlesire to state that yom· Mr. Mitchell was present at the 
interview refened to, and is well acquainted with all that transpired. I fail to see that it can be coni,tl;uetl 
th!lt what I then staterl the. Govemment were prepared to do fails to carry out the agreement to which you 
refer. 

Yours faithfully, . . 

Messrs. DoBSON, MITCHELL, & ALT.PORT. WILLIAM .. HARTNOLL: 

(XLVIIIA.) 

Lands and Works Office, .Hoba1-t, 24th March, 1897· 
Sin, . 

·w1Tn reference to' a piece of·Jand (about three acres) _at Blackman's Point which was tak,en -from yonr 
Company in connection with t.l1e construction of the Emu Bay Break water, I fii1d, upon reference to officinl 
records, that the tranfer of the portion of land in question to the ,Crown was neve1· effect.eel, owing· lo a 
dispute aS' to the bonndarie.'J thereof, your contention heing that the land should be 1aken from low-wate1· 
mark, }Yhile this Department, supported b~· the Crown Law ( lffice1·s held thnt it should he from high-wate1· 
m~ . 
: I shall be glad to know whetl,er such difficulty still exists so far as you are concerned, a~ this Depart-

ment is now desirous of having the matter hrought to u definite termination, · 
I have, &c. · 

ALFH.ED PlLLINGEB., Ministe·r of Lands and Works. 
J. -w. NORTON s~nTH, Esq., Mauager 

· Yan Diemen's Land Company, E·mu Bay; 
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(XLIX.) 
Ex TRACT fron1 a letter of the General Manager of Railways, adclressecl to the Hon. the Minister of 

Railways, a11d dated Augnst 12th, 1897,_ when the General Mauager was directed _to report on a 
proposal to erect a Custom House neRi· the Burnie breakwater :-

" Whilst on this subject I should like to refor to my repol't to you, dated 21st Novernbel', 188\:l, on the 
proposal to hand over certain l'ights to use the breakwatel' at Burnie_ to the Van Diemen's Land Company 
fol' a period of 1000 years. I ,note you that it was 11ot advisable to grnnt this concession to the company, 
and now-eight yeurs afterwards-I am thoroughly confirmed in my opinion." 

(L.) 
Judges' Chambers, 15th December, 1 \WO. 

DEAR Nhi. MULCAHY, -
ON referring to my fee-l.,ook, I find an entry on 23rd April, 1892, of a Draft Bill to authorise the 

Minister of Lands to gnwt a lease of a strip of land to the V.D.L. Co., which is charged to Messrs. 
Dobson, Mitchell, & All port; but that Bill would not be intJ•odnced into Parliament by a Ministe1· as a 
Government Bill until it had been approved by the Cabinet; and I am info!'111ed that there does not 
appear to be any record of it having been introduced into Parliament in the Session of 181:)2, and I have 
not any recollection of it ever having been considerell by the Cabinet. 

I reJ11ain of the same opinion ,vhich I expressed to tlio Committee yesterday, that the original 
language of the Draft Bill then shown to me is not mine, and, if it is the same Bill which is entered in my 
foe-book, I must have worked upon a draft prepared and submitted .to me by the solicitors for the 
V.D.L. Co. 

Hon. E. MULCAHY, Chairman Select Coinmittee. 

(LI). 
[1'ELEGHA11I.] 

I am, &c. 
A .. ING.LIS CLARK. 

Launceston, 15th December, 1900. 
AssESSllIEN'l' Hetum in rnspect of Emu Bay and Mou11t Bischoff Railway posted to your address. 

It will be seen that local a nthority has acoepted Mr. Norton Smith's figures. 

To Commissioner of Taxes, Hobart. WILL HUN'l', Collector. 

(LII.) 
Ex"l'RAC'l'S from original Grant Deed of laud, in Emn Bay District, to V.D.L. Company. 

AND SIX'l'HLY all that block 01· tract of land situate lying' and being in the District known as Emu 
Bay in our said Island of Van Diemens's Land and containing altogether about Fifty thousand acres be the 
same more or less bounded on the south-east side by the Emu Hiver from Emu Bay in Bass Straits to 
the N orthem boundary of the Hampshire Hills Block, 011 the south by a due west line of three hundred 
and four chains and fifty links along· that block crossing the old road leading from Deloraine to Emu Bay 
and also crossing' the Guide River, on the west by a clue south line of fifty chains also along that block, 
thence ag·ain on the south by a due west line of one hundred and thirty chains along Crown land to St. 
Mary's River, the11ce on the westem side by that river to its junction with the Cam River, thence on the 
north-west side by the last-mentioned river to its junction with Bass Straits aforesaid, and on the 
north-east side by Bass Straits and Emu Bay to the Emu River aforesaid being the point of commence-
ment. . 

'l'oGE'l'HER with all and the singular rights, royalties, melllbers, privileges, and appurtenances whatso­
ever to the said lands and hereditarnents belonging or i11 anywise appertaining·: 'l'0 HAVE AND 'l'0 HOLD 
the said several tracts of land, and all and singular the heriditaments and premises hereby granted or 
intended so to be aml every part with the appurtenances unto the said Van Diemen's Laud Company, their 
successors and assig·ns for ever freed and for ever discharged of and from all and eve1·y the Quit Rents 
conditions provisos, limitations and l'estrictions in the said letters patent or charter expressed or con­
tained : IN WITNESS whereof we have caused our trnsty and well beloved Sir W ILLIAllf 'l'HOMAS 
DENISON Our Lieutenant-Governor of our said Island of Van Diemeu's Land and its Dependencies to 
affix to these presents the Great Seal of Our said Isl,and and its Dependencies this twenty-seventh day of 
July in the year of Our Lord One thousand eight hundred and forty-eight and in the twelfth year of our 
reign. · 

(LIII.) 
CoNTRillU'l'IONS BY VAN Drn~u.N's LAND COMPANY ON AccouN'r EMu BAY BREAKWA'l'EH. 

21st J nly, 1886 ............................................ . 
30th July, 1887 ........................................... . 
14th May, 1888 ........................................... . 
23rd May, 1889 ........................................... .. 

£ 
1500} 
2000 Placed to Credit of 46. 26. 1. 
1500 
1000 Placed to Credit of 52 Viet. No. 63 . 

.£6000 
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(LlV.) 

Mouwr BrscnoFF RAILWAY. 

Cost ot' One Mile of 61-lbs. Permanent Way. 
440 24' 01-lb. steel rails, 9fr857 tons at £U ................. :......... £863 
880 bar fiz;hplates, 3·401 tons at £10 ._.. ........... ....... ... ... .. .... 34 

1760 bolts, nuts, and washer;:, l ·05 tons at £37 10.~. .. . ....... .. . .. 39 
H572 spikes, 2 tonR at £22 ................... .,................ ............ 44 

40-lb. permanent way rails and fa6teniugs as above, 68·891 
tons at £~) .......................................................... . 

Difference of cost per mile ....................... . 
Half new sleepers, 1000 at ls. 6d .... .................................... . 
200 cubic yards ballast, at 4.< ............................................. . 
Labom, relaying, per l yard, ls. 6d . ................................... . 

I 

37~ miles of renewal, at .......................... . 

£980 
= 
£621 

£259 
75 
40 

132 

.±'506 
-- £18,97.5 

Une third of the cost of 40 sets of points and crossings..................... 400 

H.elaying, total cost.............................. £Hl,375 

JOHN M. M'CORMICK, Eng·ineer of Existing Line~. 
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[64- VICT.j Mount Bischoff Railway Pi1·rch.ose. 

As amended by the Select Committee. 

A 

B I L L 
TO 

Authorise the Governor to purchase the Line A.D. moo~ 
of Railway known as " The Emu Bay and 
Mount Bischoff Railway," and for other 
purposes. 

WHEREAS it is deemed expedient that the Governor should be PREAMBLE~ 

authorised1 for and ·on behalf of the Colony of Tasmania, to purchase 
the Em.n Bay and Mount Bischoff Railway hereinafter defined, and that 
the several other powers and authorities hereinafter mentioned should 

5 be conferr<=:d upon the · Governor and the Minister of Lands and 
'\\r orks respectively : 

Be it therefore enacted by His Excellency the Governor of Tasmania 
by and with the advice and consent of the Legi:-lative Council and 
House of Assembly, in Parliament assembled, as follows :-

10 1 This Act may be cited as "The Mount Bisr:hoff Rail way Purchase Short title. 
Act, 1900." 

2 In this Act, unless the con text otherwise requires- Interpretation. 
"The Minister" means the Minister of Lands ai-id Works for 

the time being : 
15 "The Company" means '' The Emu Bay Railway Company, 

Limited," and any person 01· persons claiming, by, through, 
or under the Company : 

" Land " includes building,;; : 
" The Railway" means-

20 1. The Railway, so far as the same has been constructed 
from [Burnie to Waratah, including the permanent 
way thereof, and all works, buildings, stations, 
and erections erected or built on or connected with 
the said Railway ;] (Crown land (contiguous to the 

25 Bre~kwater) at Burnie to Waratalt, including· the 
permanent way thereof~ and all works, build- a8; 
ings, stations, and erections constructed, or bmlt 

[Bill I J 0.7 

upon or connected with the said railway; and also 
including any easement- in connection with the said 

*/' The words proposed to be struck out are enclosed in brackets [ ] ; those to he 
inserted, in parentheses ( ). 
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railway exercised by the Company 01· its· predecessors 
in title, and all claims of the Company, or its pre­
decessors in title, to any such easement, whether · 
arising out of agreement or otherwise) and 

n. All land upon which the same are respectively con- 5 
structed, erected, or built, and all lands used in con­
nection therewith ; and 

III. All plant, locomotives, tenders, carriages, trucks, rolling 
stock, steam e11gines, machinery, or any parts of the 
same, all furniture, tools, implements, and appliances I 0 
of every kir;cl whatsoever, and all stores and railway 
material of the Company used in connection with the 
Railway. 

PART I. 
3 It shall be lawful for the Govemol', if he shall see fit, for and 

on behalf of the Colony of Tas~nan·ia, to purchase, for ,i sum not 15 
exceeding· Two hundred and five thousand five hundred Pounds, 
the said Railway, together with all rights, privileges, powers, and 
advantages whatsoever affecting or appurtenant to the_ said llailway 
which are or may become vested in, held, enjoyed, or possessed by or 
conferred on the said Company, or any pe1·son claiming by, through, 20 
or under the same. 

4 1f the Railway shall be purchased by the Governol' under the 
power herein.before conferred upon hi:m, tlie Governor may, if he 
shall see fit, make such a settlement .with the Company as he may 
deem expedient in regard to any contracts entered into or accepted 25 
by the Company in connection with the maintenance, construction, 
and working of the Railway. 

5 In the event of the Governor purchasing tl1e said railway no 
sum of money shall be payable or paid by the Governor to any officer 
or servant of the Company by way of compeusation for any loss of 30 
office or em ploy men t suffered by such officer or servant by reason of 
the purchase of such Railway. 

Defrayment of 6 The purchase-mouey of the Hailway shall be defrayed out 
cost of purchase. of moneys to be hereafter provided by Purliameut for that purpose. 
56 Viet. No. 56. 

Power to lease 
Railway. 

·Governor may 
grant power to 
other persons to 
,act. 

7 It shall be lawful for the Minister, with the consent of the 35 
Governor, to grant to any person or company a lea!'le of the Railway 
or any part thereof, together with any Crown land used or occupied in 
connection therewith for a term not exceeding Ninety-nine years at a 
rental of not le!-"' thnn Ei~·ht thousand Pounds, subject to such cove• 
11a11ts, terms, aml couditiu11::; as to tbe Minister may seem fit. 40 

8 It shall be lawful for the Governor from time to time to appoint 
any person or persons in his name, and for and on behalf of the Colony, 
to exercise any of the powers vested in the Governor by this Act, and 
for that purpose to enter into negotiations and tu sign, seal, execute, and 
deliver all such agreements, contracts, and other documents as may be 45 
necessary or expedient in or about the sale and purchase of the said 
Railway under the provisions of this Act; aud everything done by any 



(No: 76.) 
107 

T64 VJCT.] Mount Bischoff' Railway .Pm·cl,ase. 

such person or pe!'sons under such appointment shall be binding upoµ A.D. 1900. 
the Colony. 

9 Nothing herein contained shall render the Governor personally Governor not 
liable for anything done or omitted to be done by him under this Act. liable. 

PART II. 
-5 10 The Minister may, if the Governor [in Council] approves, 

purchase, acquire, and take, i'or Railway or other public purposes, the 
whole or any portion of any land forming any part of the pieces of land 
in the Town of Burnie, which pieces ofland are delineated upon a chart or 
plan deposited in the office of the Minister at Hobart, and signed by 

.] 0 the President of the Legislative Council and the Speaker of the House 
of Assembly. 

11 The Minister, his officers and workmen, may at all reasonable 
times in the day-time, upon giving Twenty-four hours' previous notice 
in writing to the owner or occupier of any land forming any p·art of the 

15 piece. of land, enter into and upon such land for the purpose of survey­
ing or valuing the same. 

12 The Lands Clauses .A cl shall, except as hereby expressly varied, 
be incorporated with this Act; but-

I. There shall not be i11corporated with this Act the Secti,)ns and 
-20 provisions of the said Act hereinafter mentioned ; that is to 

say,-Section Eight, whereby it is provided that the capital 
is to be subscriued before the compulsory powers are to be 
put in foree ; Section Nine, whereby it is provided that the 
certificate of the .Justices shall be evidence that the capital 

· 25 has been subscrilJed : 
n. In the construction of this Act and the said incorporated Act 

this Act shall be deemed to be the Special Act, and the 
Minister shall be deemed to be " the promoter of the 
undertakiug." 

~ 
Power to Minister 
to pm·chase lands, 

Power to enter 
upo"u lands. 

21 Viet. No. 11 
incorporated. 

~ 30 lH Any not.ice required to be given by or on behalf _of the Queen Notices. 
or the Governor in Council by virtue of the provisions of The Lands 21 Viet. No. 11. 
Clauses Act or. this Act, shall be sufficient if signed by. the Minister 

14--(1.) N othwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in any If either party to 
Act, if either party is dissatisfied with the award of the Arbitrators or an _award is dis: 

. 35 Umpire, and either party desires to have the compensation settled by a satisfied therewith 

J :l f. h ""' C d I 11 · h' 1' d fi a Judge of the m ge o t e uupreme ourt, an s ia , wit m wenty-one ays a ter Supreme Court 
notice of the making of such award has been given to such party, signify may decide 
such desire by notice in writing· to the other party, then the amount of such thereon. 
compensation shall be ascertained by a Judge of the Supreme Court in 

-40 such manner as he deems adv_isable, and subject to such conditions as 
such Judge sees fit to impose; and such Jndg·e may also, in his discre­
tion, make any Order as to the persou by whom the costs of such 
proceedings shall be bornr. 

(2.J Where the party dissatisfied with the award gives notice to the 
-45 other party as aforesr1id, then such award shall not be made a Rule of 
· Court until such Judge, by an Order in writing under his hand, deter­

mines the matter in dispute. 
( 3 ) The Rules made by the J uJges of the Supreme Court under 36 Viet. No. 19. 

'' The Main Line of Railway Amendment Act, No. 2," shall he appli-
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Certain land 
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53 Viet. No. 54. 
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cable to all proceedings which shall L>e taken for carrying- out the pro­
visions of this Section. 

15 The. purchase-money of any land taken under the provisions of 
this Part of this Act shall be appropriated out of moneys to be hereafter 
provided by Parliament for the pmpose. 5· 

PAR'l' III. 
16 The land described in the Schedule hereto, being portion of the 

land mentioned in Item Nineteen iu the First Part of the Schednle to 
"The Public Works Construction Act, 188P," shall, without the 
necessity of any surrender or connecting title other than this Act, be 
surrendered to and become vested in and be held enjoyed, possessed, 10· 
and used by Her Majesty the Queen for public purposes, freed and 
discharged from all claims and demands by or on the part of the Van 
Diemen's Land Company, and by or on the part of any person 
claiming by, through, or under such Company. 

PART IV. 
CA It shall be lawfol for the Minister, if the Gove1;nor approves, to I 5. 

take and acquire for public purposes the land rlescribed in the Schedule 
(2.) hereto.) 

CB The amount of compensation to be paid to the owner of such 
land so taken and acquired shall be referred to the determination of 
Two arbitrators, one of whom shall be appointed by the Minister, and 20· 
the other by the said owner, ;1nd for the purpose of this Section "The 
Arbitration Act, 1892," shall apply.) 

~CHE DUL E. 

(1.) 
TOWN OF BURNIE. 

2A. 1 n. 29P. Portion of 50,000 acres granted to the Van Diemen's Land 
Company. 

Bounded on tl1e north-west by one chain forty-fom links and three-q uarte~·s of a· 
link south-westerly, commencing at a point on Bass Strait distant four charns and 
eighty-five links or thereabouts north-easterly from the angle formed by .the eastc1:n 
side of Wilson-street with North Terrace; on the south-west by five chams fift_y-s1x 
links and three-quarters of a link south-easterly; again on the south-west b)'. one chain 
and fiftyssix links sotith-eaeterly; on the south-east b.\· one chain thirty-three lrnks 1101:th-· 
easterly; again on the south-east by four chains eight links and three-quarters of a lrnk 
north-easterly ; on tl1e north-east by five chains an<l forty-four links north-westel'l_y to·· 
Bass Strait aforesaid ; and thence by that Strait to the point of commencement. 

C(2.) 
TOWN OF BUHNIE. 

All that piece of land, !O far as the same is not already the property of the­
Crown, commencing at tne north angle on Bass Strait, of two acres one rood twenty­
nine perches, as described in Schedule (1.) and bounded by the north-east boundary 01 
that land and by a line forming a continuation of that boundarj: south-easterly _to Emu 
Bay; thence by that bay northerly (to include Blackman'::1 Pomt) to Bass Strait afore-­
said ; and thence by that strait to the point of commencement.) 

JOHN VAlL, 
GOVERNMRNT PRJNTRR, TASMA.NJA, 


